
Agenda subject to change... 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA  
September 25, 2024 

1 Auburn Way 

6:00 p.m. 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
Kim Skriba 

Carolyn Wade 
Bo Bland 

Jon Gomolak 
Robert Yoe 

CALL TO ORDER: 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – July 17, 2024 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1. Proposed adoption of an updated Official Zoning Map for the City of Auburn.

2. Proposed amendment to the City’s Zoning Ordinance, Section 17.91, Auburn Downtown Overlay
District.

3. Case: ZTA 24-000, MBC Developers, LLC c/o Andersen Tate & Carr, has submitted an application for
a proposed amendment to the City’s Zoning Ordinance, Section 17.90.140, PUD Planned Unit
Development District

4. Case: RZ 24-000, MBC Developers, LLC c/o Andersen Tate & Carr, has submitted an application to
rezone 100 Lyle Road (AU11 148) and 0 Main Street (AU11 031B), a combined 57.917± acres, from
AG – Agricultural district to PUD – Planned Unit Development district for the purpose of developing
the property with a 188-lot single-family detached subdivision.

Announcements 

Adjournment 



Planning & Zoning 
Commission Meeting 

Minutes 

July 17, 2024 

Meeting Called to order by Co-Chair Bo Bland 

Co-Chair asked for a for the approval of the agenda, motion, 2nd, all in favor, motion carried. 

Co-Chair asked for the approval of minutes from June 19, 2024, motion made to approve, 
2nd - all in favor, motion carried. 

Public Hearing Procedures read by Co-Chair Bo Bland 

Co-Chair read old Business that was previously tabled at the June 19, 2024, meeting: 

1. Case: OAR 24-001, Sullins Engineering, LLC has submitted an application for
review in accordance with the provisions of the Auburn Downtown Overlay
District Architectural Review (17.91.070) for approval of a site plan, landscaping
& building design including elevations & architectural details of a proposed
townhome development located on a portion of 0 6th Street (Tax Parcel AU1 121
pt).

Co-chair asked for a motion to remove the item Case: OAR 24-001, from being tabled from 
their last meeting, motion made to remove item from the table, 2nd, motion approved 

Meeting was turned over to Sarah McQuade-City Planner 

City Planner Sarah McQuade advised staff that the applicant sent an email the day prior to 
the meeting asking to withdraw their application from the agenda. The applicant will re-
submit after the city has completed their update for the Downtown Overlay District 
Ordinance.  

Commission member Rob Yoe inquired about when they would find out what the changes 

Mayor  City Council 
Richard E. Roquemore Robert L. Vogel III 

Taylor Sisk 
   Jamie Bradley 

    Joshua Rowan 
City Administrator   
Michael E. Parks 



are and what the process is.  Planner advised that she has a draft ready to City Attorney for 
his review.  Once the City attorney City Staff have a chance to review the ordinance it will 
be brought back to the Planning Commission for review and comment then onto the City 
Council for final approval at a Public Hearing for approval and final adoption. 

The Co-Chair stated there are 2 items to discuss: to either ask for a motion to approve the 
withdrawal or a motion to deny the request to withdraw. 

Commission member Carolyn Wade inquired as to how long this is going to go on since it 
had been tabled 3 times.  City Planner stated that if they approve the request, it will be 
complete, the applicant will have to come back with a new application. 

Co-Chair asked if there was a motion, motion made by Commission member Jon Gomolak 
to approve the request to withdraw, 2nd, all in favor. 

Co-Chair read the next item on the agenda a discussion regarding City Code Section 16.43.013 
– Rob Yoe Commission Member, floor was turned over Commission member.

Other Commission members had a chance to join in on the conversation regarding 16.43.013, 
this was a discussion only & nothing to vote on. 

Co-chair asked if there were any citizen comments on the topic, citizen Jamie Bradley spoke on 
the topic 16.43.013 regarding the story behind the old oak trees.  Helen Roquemore spoke 
about the trees in the city and how she has noticed the new developers come in and take down 
all the trees and the city should hold the developers to the plans submitted.  Sylvia Barber also 
stated that the developers abide by the plans that were approved & to stop giving all the 
variance requests.  Alyssa Knaut wanted to mention that if a big tree was to come down to put 
back mature native trees so that they have a chance to fully develop years down the road. 

The Co-Chair closed the citizen comments and asked the City Planner if there are any 
announcements, no planning commission meeting schedule for August. 

Co-Chair asked for a motion to adjourn, motion made, 2nd all in favor. 

Motion to adjourn, 2nd, all approved. 



M
t M

oriah
R

d

Brown Bridge Rd

Harmony Grove Ch Rd

R
ocky

C
reek

R
d

Cro
nic

Town Rd

6th
St

Bla

ckberry Cir

Parks
M

ill R
d

County Line-Auburn Rd

6th Ave

Apalachee
Church

Rd

Cheyenne
W

ay

Main St

A
u

try
R

d

HeatherwoodDr

C
arolyn

St

Augustine Dr

3r
d

Av

e

4th Ave

Lyle Rd

C
abot's

L
n

Kilc
re

ase
Rd

Bla
ck

be
rr

y
Ln

Riv
er

Trce

Pa
ul

 B
ro

w
n

Ln

Oakleaf Dr

B
radford Park Ln

Brookfield
D

r

Pecan Way

E
th

eridge
R

d

H
aw

th
or

ne
 A

ve

Ryan

D
r

Pointers Way

Overlook Ct

2nd Ave

Hickory Ridge Trl

Quail Run

H
ill

St

Highland Ct

BradfordPark Dr

O
akleaf C

t

Navajo Trl

Atlanta Hwy NW

B
Robinson

Rd

Ard
ell Ct

Oak
Rdg

W
yn

fie
ld

W
ay

H
un

ters Cv

Br
ad

fo
rd

Ct

RiverOaks

RiverGlen
Rd B

et
ts

C
re

ek
D

r

Fie ldview
Dr

Sue Ln

W
ag

es
Rd

Goldenrod Ln

Jo
hn

's
Blf

Su

m
m

it

R
dg

Courtn
ey

Ln

Hill's Shop
Rd

Ch
ur

ch
 S

t

Timberridge Ct

Fiddlers

Trl

C
ab

ot
's

 D
r

7t
h

St

Colle
ge

St

Hick
ory

Trce

Tim

berri
dge Ln

5t
h

St

H
eritage W

ay

9t
h

St

C
lover

D
r

GlenTerrace
R

d

Prim
rose Ln

Rivervie
w

C
t

C
arter

R
d

Park
Pl

V
an

St

Elkgrove D
r

Berry Way

A
u

bu
rn

Park
D

r

Saddlecreek Ct

Betts M
ill R

d
Peyton Ln

Austi
n W

ay

M
yr

tl
e

St

W
ill

ow
Gate

W
ay

Steepl e Chase Rd

Am
anda Ct

Pine H
ill Rd

3rd
 St

C
abot'sR

d
g

Union Ct

L o ngford
Ct

Scott Industrial Blvd

Dandelio
n Ln

Springbro ok
D

r

O
ld

C
h

urch
R

d

Sc
en

ic
Ln

Chris
ty

Ln

Jamestown Rd

C
re

st
Po

in
te

Ct

Mary Carter Rd

Country
Living Lane

St Andrews Dr

W
oodlawn Dr

Jonaquil Ave

M
eadow

Trace Dr

W
yn

fie
ld

Ln

W

y nfield Ct

N
atasha

D
r

Stonebro
oke Dr

W
illow Gate Trce

Wynfield Dr

Governor's Rdg

L
akeview

Dr

W
ynbrook

D
r

Pool Cir

H
illtop

Cir

W
yngate Rd

H
oney

su
ck

le
Te

r

Quail Valley Rd

Willow Dr

Sa
dd

le
cr

ee
k

R
d

Cobbles
tone Rd

ZONING MAP
CITY OF AUBURN, GA
Legend

City Limits

Streams

Zoning Districts

AG

C1

C2

C3

CCD

Downtown Overlay

M1

M2

MH

PSV

R-100

RM8

RMD

0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Miles



Ti
tle

 1
7 

- Z
O

N
IN

G 
Ch

ap
te

r 1
7.

91
 A

U
BU

RN
 D

O
W

N
TO

W
N

 O
VE

RL
AY

 D
IS

TR
IC

T 

Ch
ap

te
r 1

7.
91

 A
U

BU
RN

 D
O

W
N

TO
W

N
 O

VE
RL

AY
 D

IS
TR

IC
T 

17
.9

1.
01

0 
Pu

rp
os

e 

Th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

an
d 

in
te

nt
 o

f t
he

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
O

ve
rla

y 
Di

st
ric

t i
s t

o 
pr

om
ot

e 
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

or
de

rly
 re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
hi

le
 fo

st
er

in
g 

th
e 

re
vi

ta
liz

ati
on

 o
f h

ist
or

ic
 st

ru
ct

ur
es

 a
nd

 th
ei

r a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 e

le
m

en
ts

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

ar
ea

. 
Th

e 
di

st
ric

t a
im

s t
o 

st
rik

e 
a 

ba
la

nc
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

co
ns

er
vi

ng
 th

e 
ric

h 
hi

st
or

ic
al

 fa
br

ic
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 w

hi
le

 
fa

ci
lit

ati
ng

 in
no

va
tiv

e 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
Th

e 
ov

er
la

y 
id

en
tifi

es
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
n 

qu
al

iti
es

 th
at

 
de

fin
e 

th
e 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
an

d 
pr

op
os

es
 st

an
da

rd
s t

o 
en

su
re

 c
om

pa
tib

ili
ty

 o
f n

ew
 a

nd
 in

fil
l p

ro
je

ct
s w

ith
 e

xi
sti

ng
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

Th
e 

cr
ite

ria
 a

re
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 e
lic

it 
hi

gh
 q

ua
lit

y 
m

at
er

ia
ls,

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e,
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 sc
al

e,
 a

nd
 a

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
att

er
n 

th
at

 e
ffe

cti
ve

ly
 im

pl
em

en
ts

 th
e 

ci
ty

’s 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 v

isi
on

in
g 

do
cu

m
en

ts
. 

Sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
: 

1.
Im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 C

ity
 o

f A
ub

ur
n'

s "
Au

bu
rn

 2
01

5"
 p

la
n,

 2
02

3 
Co

m
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

Pl
an

, a
nd

 D
efi

ne
 O

ur
Au

bu
rn

, t
he

 2
02

0 
Li

va
bl

e 
Ce

nt
er

s I
ni

tia
tiv

e 
St

ud
y,

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 sp

ec
ifi

c 
la

nd
 u

se
 a

nd
 d

es
ig

n 
ob

je
cti

ve
s.

2.
Ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 n

ei
gh

bo
rh

oo
d-

se
rv

in
g 

re
ta

il,
 se

rv
ic

e 
an

d
ot

he
r u

se
s o

n 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

 fl
oo

r a
nd

 re
sid

en
tia

l u
ni

ts
 a

bo
ve

 th
e 

no
nr

es
id

en
tia

l s
pa

ce
.

3.
En

co
ur

ag
e 

re
ha

bi
lit

ati
on

 a
nd

 re
-u

se
 o

f e
xi

sti
ng

 h
ist

or
ic

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

he
re

 fe
as

ib
le

.
4.

P r
om

ot
e 

ne
w

 in
fil

l r
es

id
en

tia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t f

or
 a

ll 
ag

es
 th

at
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

att
ai

na
bl

e 
by

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

.
5.

Pr
om

ot
e 

ne
w

 in
fil

l n
on

re
sid

en
tia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t i
n 

a 
pl

an
ne

d 
fo

rm
at

.
6.

En
co

ur
ag

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t t
ha

t e
xh

ib
its

 th
e 

ph
ys

ic
al

 d
es

ig
n 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s t
ha

t p
ro

m
ot

es
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n
or

ie
nt

ed
 st

or
ef

ro
nt

-s
ty

le
 sh

op
pi

ng
.

7.
En

co
ur

ag
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 st
yl

es
 a

s t
he

 b
as

is 
of

 fu
tu

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

bo
th

 in
fil

l a
nd

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
8.

Pr
om

ot
e 

th
e 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 w

el
l-b

ei
ng

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 b
y 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
cti

vi
ty

, a
lte

rn
ati

ve
tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

m
od

es
, i

nc
or

po
ra

tin
g 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
an

d 
bi

cy
cl

in
g 

am
en

iti
es

, a
nd

 g
re

at
er

 so
ci

al
in

te
ra

cti
on

.

17
.9

1.
02

0 
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
 

Th
e 

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
O

ve
rla

y 
Di

st
ric

t s
ha

ll 
ap

pl
y 

to
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
O

ve
rla

y 
Di

st
ric

t o
f t

he
 C

ity
 o

f A
ub

ur
n.

 T
he

 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 o

ve
rla

y 
di

st
ric

t e
ith

er
 su

pp
le

m
en

t o
r r

ep
la

ce
 th

e 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 u

nd
er

ly
in

g 
zo

ni
ng

 d
ist

ric
t, 

as
 

de
sc

rib
ed

 h
er

ei
n.

 T
he

 d
ist

ric
t b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s s
ha

ll 
be

 a
s e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
on

 th
e 

O
ffi

ci
al

 Z
on

in
g 

M
ap

. F
or

 lo
ts

 th
at

 a
re

 sp
lit

 
by

 th
e 

O
ve

rla
y 

Di
st

ric
t l

in
e,

 a
cr

ea
ge

 m
aj

or
ity

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
di

st
ric

t w
ill

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

in
cl

us
io

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
O

ve
rla

y 
Di

st
ric

t b
ou

nd
ar

y,
 th

us
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
es

e 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

. I
n 

th
e 

ev
en

t o
f a

ny
 c

on
fli

ct
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s o
f 

th
is 

Ch
ap

te
r a

nd
 a

ny
 o

th
er

 p
ro

vi
sio

n,
 th

e 
pr

ov
isi

on
s o

f t
hi

s C
ha

pt
er

 sh
al

l c
on

tr
ol

.



17
.9

1.
03

0 
Pr

in
ci

pa
l u

se
s.

 

Th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

l u
se

s o
f l

an
d 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 a
llo

w
ed

 in
 th

e 
Au

bu
rn

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
O

ve
rla

y 
Di

st
ric

t a
re

 a
s 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
el

ow
. A

ll 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 a

nd
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d 
us

es
 a

re
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

lim
ita

tio
ns

 a
nd

 st
an

da
rd

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 w

ith
in

 
th

is 
Ch

ap
te

r 1
7.

91
.  

17
.9

1.
03

1 
Pe

rm
itt

ed
 p

rin
ci

pl
e 

us
es

. 

W
ith

in
 th

e 
ad

op
te

d 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

ov
er

la
y 

di
st

ric
t, 

no
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

sh
al

l b
e 

er
ec

te
d,

 u
se

d,
 o

r s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 a
lte

re
d,

 n
or

 sh
al

l 
th

e 
la

nd
 o

r p
re

m
ise

s b
e 

us
ed

 in
 w

ho
le

 o
r i

n 
pa

rt
, e

xc
ep

t f
or

 u
se

s p
er

m
itt

ed
 in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
lis

t: 
 

Re
sid

en
tia

l U
se

s:
 

1.
Dw

el
lin

gs
, t

o 
in

cl
ud

e:

a.
Re

no
va

tio
n 

an
d/

or
 re

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

sin
gl

e-
fa

m
ily

 d
et

ac
he

d 
ho

m
es

.

b.
N

ew
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

sin
gl

e-
fa

m
ily

 d
et

ac
he

d,
 si

ng
le

-fa
m

ily
 a

tt
ac

he
d,

 a
nd

 re
sid

en
tia

l o
ve

r
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 o

r o
ffi

ce
.

In
st

itu
tio

na
l U

se
s:

 

1.
Pu

bl
ic

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
, u

se
s a

nd
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

2.
Pl

ac
e 

of
 W

or
sh

ip
. U

se
s s

uc
h 

as
 c

hu
rc

he
s,

 sy
na

go
gu

es
, t

em
pl

es
, a

nd
 m

os
qu

es
.

3.
Cu

ltu
ra

l f
ac

ili
ty

 o
r e

xh
ib

it.
 T

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
m

us
eu

m
s a

nd
 li

br
ar

ie
s.

4.
Ed

uc
at

io
na

l s
er

vi
ce

. P
ub

lic
 o

r p
riv

at
e 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l i

ns
tit

ut
io

ns
 o

ffe
rin

g 
ge

ne
ra

l e
du

ca
tio

n 
co

ur
se

s,
in

cl
ud

in
g 

nu
rs

er
y 

sc
ho

ol
s a

nd
 k

in
de

rg
ar

te
ns

.

5.
Co

m
m

un
ity

 c
en

te
r.

6.
Da

yc
ar

e 
fa

ci
lit

y.
 U

se
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

ca
re

 a
nd

 su
pe

rv
isi

on
 fo

r c
hi

ld
re

n 
or

 a
du

lts
 a

w
ay

 fr
om

 th
ei

r p
rim

ar
y

r e
sid

en
ce

 fo
r l

es
s t

ha
n 

24
 h

ou
rs

 p
er

 d
ay

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
it 

co
m

pl
ie

s w
ith

 a
ll 

st
at

e 
da

y 
ca

re
 a

nd
 h

ea
lth

de
pa

rt
m

en
t r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

.

7.
U

til
ity

 fa
ci

lit
y.

 In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 se

rv
ic

es
 su

ch
 a

s h
ig

h-
vo

lta
ge

 e
le

ct
ric

 su
bs

ta
tio

ns
, u

til
ity

-s
ca

le
 p

ow
er

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 a
nd

 u
til

ity
-s

ca
le

 w
at

er
 st

or
ag

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
ey

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
re

gu
la

tio
ns

:

a.
An

y 
bu

ild
in

g 
or

 st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 e

xc
ep

t a
 su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
fe

nc
e,

 sh
al

l b
e 

se
t b

ac
k 

at
 le

as
t t

hi
rt

y 
fe

et
 fr

om
an

y 
pr

op
er

ty
 li

ne
.

b.
Th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
sh

al
l b

e 
ei

th
er

 c
om

pl
et

el
y 

su
rr

ou
nd

ed
 b

y 
a 

w
ov

en
 w

ire
 fe

nc
e 

at
 le

as
t e

ig
ht

 fe
et

 h
ig

h
or

 sh
al

l b
e 

en
cl

os
ed

 w
ith

in
 a

 b
ui

ld
in

g.

c.
Th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
sh

al
l b

e 
fu

rn
ish

ed
 w

ith
 a

 p
la

nt
ed

 b
uf

fe
r n

ot
 le

ss
 th

an
 te

n 
fe

et
 w

id
e 

to
 c

re
at

e 
an

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
vi

su
al

 sc
re

en
 o

n 
al

l s
id

es
.

d.
Th

e 
fa

ci
lit

y 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
us

ed
 fo

r t
he

 st
or

ag
e 

of
 v

eh
ic

le
s o

r e
qu

ip
m

en
t.

Co
m

m
er

ci
al

 U
se

s:
 

1.
Ea

tin
g 

an
d 

Dr
in

ki
ng

. E
xa

m
pl

es
 in

cl
ud

e 
re

st
au

ra
nt

s a
nd

 b
re

w
er

ie
s o

r b
re

w
 p

ub
s.

2.
Fi

na
nc

ia
l s

er
vi

ce
. T

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
ba

nk
s,

 c
re

di
t u

ni
on

s,
 b

ro
ke

ra
ge

, a
nd

 in
ve

st
m

en
t s

er
vi

ce
s.

3.
M

ed
ic

al
 se

rv
ic

e.
 P

ro
vi

de
d 

th
at

 th
es

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

es
 a

re
 p

er
fo

rm
ed

 in
 a

n 
of

fic
e 

se
tt

in
g 

w
ith

 n
o 

ov
er

ni
gh

t
ca

re
. T

yp
ic

al
 u

se
s i

nc
lu

de
 o

ffi
ce

s o
f p

hy
sic

ia
ns

, d
en

tis
ts

, p
sy

ch
ia

tr
ist

s,
 p

sy
ch

ol
og

ist
s,

 p
hy

sic
al

 th
er

ap
ist

s,
an

d 
ch

iro
pr

ac
to

rs
.

4.
Pe

rs
on

al
 se

rv
ic

e.
 U

se
s t

ha
t p

ro
vi

de
 p

er
so

na
l s

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t s
er

vi
ce

s.
 T

yp
ic

al
 u

se
s i

nc
lu

de
ba

rb
er

s,
 sa

lo
ns

, t
ra

ve
l a

ge
nc

ie
s,

 a
nd

 d
ay

 sp
as

.



 

 

5.
 

St
ud

io
 o

r I
ns

tr
uc

tio
na

l s
er

vi
ce

. F
or

 in
di

vi
du

al
 o

r s
m

al
l g

ro
up

 in
st

ru
ct

io
n 

or
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 in

 fi
ne

 a
rt

s,
 m

us
ic

, 
dr

am
a,

 fi
tn

es
s,

 la
ng

ua
ge

, o
r s

im
ila

r a
ct

iv
iti

es
.  

6.
 

Co
ns

um
er

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 re
pa

ir 
se

rv
ic

e.
 U

se
s t

ha
t p

ro
vi

de
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
, c

le
an

in
g,

 a
nd

 re
pa

ir 
se

rv
ic

es
 

fo
r c

on
su

m
er

 g
oo

ds
 o

n 
a 

sit
e.

 T
yp

ic
al

 u
se

s i
nc

lu
de

 la
un

dr
y 

an
d 

dr
y-

cl
ea

ni
ng

 p
ic

k-
up

 sh
op

s,
 ta

ilo
rs

, s
ho

e 
re

pa
ir,

 p
ic

tu
re

 fr
am

in
g 

sh
op

s,
 lo

ck
sm

ith
s,

 e
le

ct
ro

ni
cs

 re
pa

ir 
sh

op
s,

 a
nd

 si
m

ila
r e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
ts

.  

7.
 

Re
ta

il 
sa

le
s.

 U
se

s i
nv

ol
vi

ng
 th

e 
sa

le
, l

ea
se

, o
r r

en
ta

l o
f n

ew
 o

r u
se

d 
go

od
s t

o 
th

e 
ul

tim
at

e 
cu

st
om

er
. 

Ex
am

pl
es

 in
cl

ud
e 

dr
ug

 st
or

es
, d

ep
ar

tm
en

t s
to

re
s,

 c
am

er
a 

sh
op

s,
 b

ik
e 

an
d 

ho
bb

y 
sh

op
s,

 sp
or

tin
g 

go
od

s,
 

bo
ok

st
or

es
, g

ift
 sh

op
s,

 je
w

el
ry

 st
or

es
, a

nd
 sp

ec
ia

lty
 sh

op
s 

8.
 

O
ffi

ce
. U

se
s t

ha
t f

oc
us

 o
n 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
ex

ec
ut

iv
e,

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

ad
m

in
ist

ra
tiv

e,
 a

nd
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l u

se
s o

th
er

 
th

an
 th

os
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

e 
m

ed
ic

al
 se

rv
ic

e 
us

e 
ca

te
go

ry
.  

9.
 

Sp
or

ts
 a

nd
 R

ec
re

at
io

n.
 T

o 
be

 in
do

or
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s w

he
re

 p
ar

tic
ip

an
t s

po
rt

s a
nd

 re
cr

ea
tio

n 
us

es
 a

re
 c

on
du

ct
ed

 
en

tir
el

y 
w

ith
in

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
.  

 17
.9

1.
03

1 
Pr

oh
ib

ite
d 

us
es

.  

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
us

es
 sh

al
l n

ot
 b

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 in

 th
e 

Au
bu

rn
 D

ow
nt

ow
n 

O
ve

rla
y 

Di
st

ric
t: 

 

1.
 

Pa
w

ns
ho

ps
 a

nd
 c

he
ck

 c
as

hi
ng

 e
st

ab
lis

hm
en

ts
.  

2.
 

Ad
ul

t e
nt

er
ta

in
m

en
t e

st
ab

lis
hm

en
ts

.  

3.
 

Au
to

m
ot

iv
e 

sa
le

s o
r r

en
ta

ls.
 

4.
 

Au
to

m
ot

iv
e 

re
pa

irs
.  

5.
 

Bi
lli

ar
d 

pa
rlo

rs
 a

nd
 p

oo
l h

al
ls.

  

6.
 

An
im

al
 se

rv
ic

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 st
ab

le
s.

  

7.
 

Bo
at

 st
or

ag
e 

or
 sa

le
s.

  

8.
 

Ca
r w

as
he

s.
  

9.
 

Sh
oo

tin
g 

ga
lle

rie
s,

 fi
re

ar
m

, a
nd

 a
rc

he
ry

 ra
ng

es
.  

10
. 

Fi
re

ar
m

s d
ea

le
rs

.  

11
. 

M
od

el
in

g 
ag

en
ci

es
.  

12
. 

M
as

sa
ge

 p
ar

lo
rs

.  

13
. 

Ba
th

ho
us

es
.  

14
. 

Fl
ea

 m
ar

ke
ts

.  

15
. 

Ju
nk

 st
or

es
 o

r s
cr

ap
 sa

le
s.

  

16
. 

Hy
pn

ot
ist

s,
 p

al
m

 re
ad

er
s,

 o
r f

or
tu

ne
 te

lle
rs

.  

17
. 

La
bo

r p
oo

ls.
  

18
. 

Ta
tt

oo
 p

ar
lo

rs
 o

r s
ho

ps
. 

19
. 

Bo
dy

 p
ie

rc
in

g 
pa

rlo
rs

 o
r s

ho
ps

.  

20
. 

Da
ta

 c
en

te
rs

 a
nd

 b
itc

oi
n 

m
in

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 

21
. 

Va
pe

 S
ho

ps
 

22
. 

To
ba

cc
o 

Sh
op

s 

Elizabeth Mitchem
Do they want to add any of these: Funeral homesLandfills or recycling plantsGas stationsRecreational vehicle storageSelf-storage facilitiesDrive through restaurantsDrive through banksDistribution facilities exceeding 5,000 square feet



17
.9

1.
03

3 
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 u
se

s.
 

A.
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 o
ut

do
or

 sa
le

s o
f m

er
ch

an
di

se
.

1.
An

y 
ap

pl
ic

an
t f

or
 a

 p
er

m
it 

fo
r t

em
po

ra
ry

 o
ut

do
or

 sa
le

s o
f m

er
ch

an
di

se
 sh

al
l d

em
on

st
ra

te
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e
w

ith
 th

e 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 o
f t

hi
s s

ec
tio

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
an

 a
nn

ua
l p

er
m

it 
ob

ta
in

ed
 fr

om
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t
as

 a
n 

oc
cu

pa
tio

na
l t

ax
 c

er
tif

ic
at

e.

2.
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 u

se
s a

re
 a

llo
w

ed
 o

n 
pr

op
er

tie
s w

ith
in

 th
e 

Au
bu

rn
 D

ow
nt

ow
n 

O
ve

rla
y

Di
st

ric
t:

a.
Th

e 
sa

le
 o

f f
ru

its
 o

r v
eg

et
ab

le
s n

ot
 to

 e
xc

ee
d 

a 
pe

rio
d 

of
 si

x 
(6

) m
on

th
s.

b.
Ch

ar
ita

bl
e 

or
 n

on
pr

of
it 

ev
en

ts
 n

ot
 to

 e
xc

ee
d 

fo
ur

 (4
) d

ay
s.

c.
Ho

lid
ay

 sa
le

s b
et

w
ee

n 
O

ct
ob

er
 1

5t
h 

an
d 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1s
t.

d.
Th

e 
sa

le
 o

f a
ny

 it
em

s i
n 

as
so

ci
at

io
n 

w
ith

 a
n 

ex
ist

in
g 

bu
sin

es
s l

oc
at

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
pr

em
ise

s a
s a

pr
in

ci
pa

l u
se

 (i
.e

., 
sid

ew
al

k,
 p

ar
ki

ng
 lo

t, 
or

 te
nt

 sa
le

s)
 n

ot
 to

 e
xc

ee
d 

tw
en

ty
 (2

0)
 d

ay
s.

3.
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 sa
le

s a
ct

iv
iti

es
 a

re
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

:

a.
N

o 
su

ch
 te

m
po

ra
ry

 o
ut

do
or

 sa
le

s o
f m

er
ch

an
di

se
 m

ay
 b

e 
co

nd
uc

te
d 

on
 p

ub
lic

 p
ro

pe
rt

y ,
w

ith
in

 a
ny

 p
ub

lic
 ri

gh
t-

of
-w

ay
, a

nd
 n

o 
di

sp
la

y 
or

 sa
le

s a
re

a 
m

ay
 b

lo
ck

 sa
fe

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n

m
ov

em
en

t.

b.
Te

nt
s m

ay
 b

e 
us

ed
 in

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 sa

le
s a

ct
iv

iti
es

 fo
r a

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f f

iv
e 

(5
)

da
ys

 o
ve

r a
 o

ne
-m

on
th

 p
er

io
d.

c.
N

o 
op

er
at

or
, e

m
pl

oy
ee

, o
r r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
m

ay
 so

lic
it 

di
re

ct
ly

 to
 th

e 
m

ot
or

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
.

d.
N

o 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 o
ut

do
or

 sa
le

s m
ay

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

fu
lly

 w
ith

in
 o

r e
nc

ro
ac

h 
an

y 
dr

ai
na

ge
 e

as
em

en
t,

pu
bl

ic
 si

de
w

al
k 

or
 ri

gh
t-

of
-w

ay
, r

eq
ui

re
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

sp
ac

es
, f

ire
 la

ne
s,

 d
es

ig
na

te
d 

lo
ad

in
g 

ar
ea

s ,
dr

iv
ew

ay
s,

 m
an

eu
ve

rin
g 

ai
sle

s,
 o

r A
DA

 m
in

im
um

 si
de

w
al

k 
w

id
th

 w
ith

in
 p

riv
at

e 
sid

ew
al

ks
 o

r
ot

he
r a

re
as

 in
te

nd
ed

 fo
r p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
m

ov
em

en
t.

B.
Te

m
po

ra
ry

 st
ag

e 
or

 te
nt

.

1.
T e

m
po

ra
ry

 st
ag

es
 re

qu
ire

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

va
l o

f a
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

pe
rm

it.

2.
Te

nt
s o

ve
r 4

00
 sq

ua
re

 fe
et

 re
qu

ire
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l o
f a

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
pe

rm
it.

17
.9

1.
04

0 
Si

ng
le

-fa
m

ily
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
. 

A.
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
. T

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

de
sig

n 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 w
ith

in
 th

is 
se

ct
io

n 
sh

al
l a

pp
ly

 to
 a

ll 
bu

ild
in

gs
 in

 th
e

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
O

ve
rla

y 
di

st
ric

t t
ha

t a
re

 u
se

d 
fo

r s
in

gl
e-

fa
m

ily
 re

sid
en

tia
l p

ur
po

se
s,

 a
pp

lie
d 

to
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g

ho
us

in
g 

ty
pe

s”

a.
Dw

el
lin

g,
 si

ng
le

-fa
m

ily
 d

et
ac

he
d.

b.
Dw

el
lin

g,
 a

tt
ac

he
d.

c.
Dw

el
lin

g,
 d

up
le

x.

B.
Ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 fa
ca

de
s.

 T
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
de

sig
n 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 a

pp
ly

 to
 a

ll 
fa

ca
de

s v
isi

bl
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

st
re

et
, f

ac
in

g
st

re
et

s,
 fa

ci
ng

 m
ai

n 
pa

rk
in

g 
lo

ts
, a

nd
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
or

 v
isi

bl
e 

fr
om

 re
qu

ire
d 

op
en

 sp
ac

es
, u

nl
es

s o
th

er
w

ise
no

te
d. a.

Fa
ca

de
s s

ty
le

 sh
al

l b
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 st

yl
es

 to
 b

et
te

r a
lig

n
w

ith
 th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 n

at
ur

e 
of

 th
e 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
ar

ea
:



 

 

i. 
Vi

ct
or

ia
n.

 

ii.
 

Ar
ts

 a
nd

 C
ra

ft
s (

Cr
af

ts
m

an
). 

iii
. 

Ar
t D

ec
o.

 

iv
. 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

M
ay

or
 a

nd
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il.
 

C.
 

Ex
te

rio
r f

in
ish

 m
at

er
ia

ls.
  

a.
 

Ex
te

rio
r b

ui
ld

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
sh

al
l b

e 
pr

im
ar

ily
 b

ric
k,

 st
on

e,
 o

th
er

 m
as

on
ry

, g
la

ss
, w

oo
d,

 o
r 

ce
m

en
tit

io
us

 fi
be

rb
oa

rd
. O

th
er

 m
at

er
ia

ls 
su

ch
 a

s v
in

yl
 m

ay
 b

e 
us

ed
 o

nl
y 

as
 a

cc
en

t a
nd

 tr
im

 
m

at
er

ia
ls.

  

b.
 

Al
l e

xp
os

ed
 fo

un
da

tio
n 

w
al

ls 
on

 a
ll 

sid
es

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

sh
al

l b
e 

fa
ce

d 
w

ith
 b

ric
k,

 st
on

e,
 o

r 
m

ar
bl

e.
  

c.
 

Al
l b

ric
k,

 st
on

e,
 o

r o
th

er
 m

as
on

ry
 sh

al
l b

e 
fu

ll-
 o

r h
al

f-d
ep

th
. S

im
ul

at
ed

 v
en

ee
r p

an
el

s a
re

 
pr

oh
ib

ite
d.

 S
im

ul
at

ed
 m

as
on

ry
 th

at
 is

 in
di

vi
du

al
ly

 st
ac

ke
d 

or
 a

pp
lie

d 
ar

e 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

.  

d.
 

M
et

al
 sh

al
l b

e 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 o

nl
y 

as
 m

et
al

 sp
lit

 se
am

 ro
of

in
g 

or
 a

s a
n 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 a
cc

en
t c

om
pr

isi
ng

 
a 

m
ax

im
um

 o
f t

en
 p

er
ce

nt
 o

f a
ny

 o
ne

 fa
ça

de
. A

cc
ep

ta
bl

e 
m

et
al

 m
at

er
ia

ls 
ar

e 
lim

ite
d 

to
 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 m
et

al
 p

an
el

s,
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 m
et

al
 c

la
dd

in
g,

 m
et

al
 m

es
h,

 a
nd

 p
er

fo
ra

te
d 

m
et

al
. 

Ex
am

pl
es

 o
f m

et
al

 m
at

er
ia

ls 
no

t p
er

m
itt

ed
 in

cl
ud

e 
bu

t a
re

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
 st

oc
k 

PE
M

B 
m

et
al

 sk
in

s 
co

m
m

on
ly

 re
fe

rr
ed

 to
 a

s '
R-

pa
ne

l' 
an

d 
sh

ee
t m

et
al

 sy
st

em
s w

ith
 e

xp
os

ed
 fa

st
en

er
s,

 e
xc

ep
t a

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r p
er

fo
ra

te
d 

m
et

al
.  

e.
 

Pr
oh

ib
ite

d 
ex

te
rio

r m
at

er
ia

ls 
in

cl
ud

e 
ba

re
 m

et
al

, a
lu

m
in

um
 s

id
in

g,
 m

et
al

 p
an

el
s,

 p
la

st
ic

, a
nd

 
m

irr
or

 g
la

ss
.  

D.
 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
. E

ve
ry

 si
ng

le
-fa

m
ily

 re
sid

en
tia

l d
w

el
lin

g 
un

it 
sh

al
l p

ro
vi

de
 a

t m
in

im
um

 o
ne

 
fe

at
ur

e 
fr

om
 e

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ca
te

go
rie

s:
  

a.
 

Pr
iv

at
e 

ou
td

oo
r s

pa
ce

. 

i. 
Fr

on
t p

or
ch

 (m
in

im
um

 3
0 

sq
ua

re
 fe

et
 in

 a
re

a)
. 

ii.
 

Fr
on

t-
fa

ci
ng

 b
al

co
ny

 (m
in

im
um

 5
0 

sq
ua

re
 fe

et
 in

 a
re

a)
. 

iii
. 

Re
ar

 te
rr

ac
e 

(m
in

im
um

 1
00

 sq
ua

re
 fe

et
 in

 a
re

a)
. 

iv
. 

Ro
of

to
p 

te
rr

ac
e 

(m
in

im
um

 1
50

 sq
ua

re
 fe

et
 in

 a
re

a)
. 

v.
 

Pr
iv

at
e 

ya
rd

 sp
ac

e 
w

ith
 a

t l
ea

st
 o

ne
 tr

ee
 (m

in
im

um
 1

50
 sq

ua
re

 fe
et

 in
 a

re
a)

. 

b.
 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 p
ro

je
ct

io
n.

  

i. 
Pr

oj
ec

tio
n 

w
in

do
w

 (b
ay

 o
r b

ow
). 

ii.
 

Tu
rr

et
. 

iii
. 

Co
ve

re
d 

ba
lc

on
y 

or
 p

or
ch

. 

iv
. 

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

M
ay

or
 a

nd
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
co

m
m

un
ity

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t d
ire

ct
or

. 

c.
 

Ro
of

 e
le

m
en

t. 

i. 
Do

rm
er

s.
 

ii.
 

Fr
on

t g
ab

le
 o

r p
ed

im
en

t. 

iii
. 

Ro
of

to
p 

te
rr

ac
e.

 

iv
. 

Va
rie

d 
ga

bl
e 

sy
st

em
. 

v.
 

Co
rn

ic
e 

de
ta

ili
ng

. 



vi
.

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t d

ire
ct

or
.

d.
U

ni
t o

r f
aç

ad
e 

va
ria

tio
n 

(r
eq

ui
re

d 
w

he
n 

m
or

e 
th

an
 fi

ve
 u

ni
ts

 fr
on

t o
n 

a 
sin

gl
e 

bl
oc

k 
fa

ce
 in

 si
ng

le
-

fa
m

ily
 a

tt
ac

he
d 

dw
el

lin
gs

).

i.
Ch

an
ge

 in
 b

ric
k/

st
on

e 
co

lo
r o

r a
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 m
as

on
ry

 m
at

er
ia

l.

ii.
Ch

an
ge

 in
 w

in
do

w
 c

om
po

sit
io

n.

iii
.

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n 
or

 re
ce

ss
 o

f a
n 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 fe
at

ur
e 

th
at

 is
 a

 m
in

im
um

 o
f f

iv
e 

fe
et

 d
ee

p 
or

 1
5

fe
et

 ta
ll 

(u
se

d 
to

 d
ist

in
gu

ish
 a

nd
 se

pa
ra

te
 fa

ça
de

s v
er

tic
al

ly
 b

ec
au

se
 o

f t
he

 si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

tio
n)

.

iv
.

Al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

M
ay

or
 a

nd
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il.
 c

om
m

un
ity

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t d
ire

ct
or

.

e.
Re

ce
ss

ed
 w

in
do

w
 sy

st
em

s.
 W

in
do

w
 sy

st
em

s r
ec

es
se

d 
fr

om
 th

e 
fa

ça
de

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

a 
m

in
im

um
of

 o
ne

 a
nd

 th
re

e-
qu

ar
te

rs
 in

ch
es

. T
hi

s r
ev

ea
l s

ha
ll 

be
 a

cc
om

pl
ish

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
de

sig
n 

of
 th

e
w

in
do

w
 c

as
in

g 
re

ve
al

s a
nd

 fr
am

es
.

E.
Se

tb
ac

ks
. T

he
 in

te
nt

io
n 

of
 th

is 
se

ct
io

n 
is 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 w
al

ka
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

cl
os

er
 to

st
re

et
 ri

gh
ts

 o
f w

ay
 th

an
 in

 o
th

er
 d

ist
ric

ts
, s

o 
th

at
 th

e 
ar

ea
 in

cr
ea

sin
gl

y 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
s a

nd
 re

ta
in

s a
do

w
nt

ow
n 

ch
ar

ac
te

r. 
Th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 fr

on
t y

ar
d 

se
tb

ac
k 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

ov
er

la
y 

di
st

ric
t s

ha
ll 

be
 te

n
fe

et
. T

he
 si

de
 y

ar
d 

se
tb

ac
k 

m
ay

 b
e 

ze
ro

 w
he

re
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 m
ee

t a
pp

lic
ab

le
 fi

re
 sa

fe
ty

 c
od

es
. I

n 
al

l o
th

er
ca

se
s,

 th
e 

m
in

im
um

 si
de

 y
ar

d 
se

tb
ac

k 
sh

al
l b

e 
fiv

e 
fe

et
. T

he
 m

in
im

um
 re

ar
 y

ar
d 

se
tb

ac
k 

sh
al

l b
e 

fiv
e 

fe
et

.

F.
Bu

ild
in

g 
He

ig
ht

. B
ui

ld
in

g 
he

ig
ht

 sh
al

l n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

fo
rt

y-
fiv

e 
fe

et
, o

r t
hr

ee
 (3

) s
to

rie
s.

 T
he

 m
in

im
um

 fi
rs

t
flo

or
 h

ei
gh

t f
or

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

lo
ng

 F
ou

rt
h 

Av
en

ue
 sh

al
l b

e 
fo

ur
te

en
 fe

et
.

G.
La

nd
sc

ap
in

g.
 L

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
 sh

al
l c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ov
isi

on
s o

f S
ec

tio
n 

17
.1

10
.0

60
, i

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 th
e

st
an

da
rd

s d
es

cr
ib

ed
 h

er
ei

n.

a.
O

n 
ev

er
y 

sit
e 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

r r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

st
re

et
 tr

ee
s s

ha
ll 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

at
tw

en
ty

-fi
ve

-fo
ot

 in
cr

em
en

ts
.

b.
O

n 
ev

er
y 

sit
e 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

r r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

a 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

pl
an

 sh
al

l b
e 

su
bm

itt
ed

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

va
l. 

Th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
id

en
tic

al
 to

 th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
pl

an
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

om
m

iss
io

n.

H.
Ad

di
tio

na
l S

ite
 R

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

.

a.
Ga

ra
ge

 d
oo

rs
 sh

al
l n

ot
 ta

ke
 u

p 
m

or
e 

th
an

 4
0 

pe
rc

en
t o

f t
he

 li
ne

ar
 w

id
th

 o
f a

ny
 st

re
et

 fa
ci

ng
fa

ça
de

 a
nd

 sh
al

l b
e 

of
fs

et
 fr

om
 th

e 
fr

on
t f

aç
ad

e 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f f

iv
e 

fe
et

.

b.
Al

l s
in

gl
e-

fa
m

ily
 a

tt
ac

he
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

 sh
al

l i
nc

lu
de

 a
 c

on
tin

uo
us

 st
re

et
/s

id
ew

al
k 

no
 le

ss
 th

an
 fo

ur
(4

)f
ee

t i
n 

w
id

th
 c

on
ne

ct
in

g 
fr

on
t e

nt
ra

nc
es

 o
f a

ll 
dw

el
lin

gs
.

c.
U

se
s t

ha
t h

av
e 

ga
ra

ge
s s

ha
ll 

pr
ov

id
e 

dr
iv

ew
ay

s a
t l

ea
st

 2
5 

fe
et

 in
 d

ep
th

, a
s m

ea
su

re
d 

fr
om

 b
ac

k
of

 si
de

w
al

k 
to

 th
e 

ga
ra

ge
 d

oo
r, 

su
ffi

ci
en

t t
o 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
a 

pa
ss

en
ge

r v
eh

ic
le

 w
ith

ou
t a

ny
p o

rt
io

n 
of

 th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

ov
er

ha
ng

in
g 

or
 o

bs
tr

uc
tin

g 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 si

de
w

al
ks

.

17
.9

1.
04

2 
N

on
-s

in
gl

e-
fa

m
ily

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t s

ta
nd

ar
ds

. 
A.

Ap
pl

ic
ab

ili
ty

. T
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
de

sig
n 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 o

f t
hi

s s
ec

tio
n 

ap
pl

y 
to

 a
ll 

bu
ild

in
gs

 in
 th

e 
Do

w
nt

ow
n

O
ve

rla
y 

Di
st

ric
t t

ha
t a

re
 u

se
d 

fo
r n

on
-s

in
gl

e-
fa

m
ily

 re
sid

en
tia

l p
ur

po
se

s t
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

m
ul

ti-
fa

m
ily

 re
sid

en
tia

l
bu

ild
in

gs
, m

ix
ed

 u
se

 re
sid

en
tia

l b
ui

ld
in

gs
, o

r r
es

id
en

tia
l o

ve
r c

om
m

er
ci

al
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

.

B.
Ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 fa
ca

de
s.

 T
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
de

sig
n 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 a

pp
ly

 to
 a

ll 
fa

ca
de

s v
isi

bl
e 

fr
om

 th
e 

st
re

et
, f

ac
in

g
st

re
et

s,
 fa

ci
ng

 m
ai

n 
pa

rk
in

g 
lo

ts
, a

nd
 a

dj
ac

en
t t

o 
or

 v
isi

bl
e 

fr
om

 re
qu

ire
d 

op
en

 sp
ac

es
, u

nl
es

s o
th

er
w

ise
no

te
d.



C.
Fa

ca
de

s s
ty

le
 sh

al
l b

e 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 st
yl

es
 to

 b
et

te
r a

lig
n 

w
ith

 th
e

hi
st

or
ic

 n
at

ur
e 

of
 th

e 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

ar
ea

:

a.
Vi

ct
or

ia
n.

b.
Ar

ts
 a

nd
 C

ra
ft

s (
Cr

af
ts

m
an

).

c.
Ar

t D
ec

o.

d.
Al

te
rn

at
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

M
ay

or
 a

nd
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il.

D.
Du

m
ps

te
rs

. D
um

ps
te

r a
nd

 se
rv

ic
e 

ar
ea

s s
ha

ll 
be

 c
om

pl
et

el
y 

sc
re

en
ed

 w
ith

 la
nd

sc
ap

in
g,

 a
 fe

nc
e,

 a
 w

al
l, 

or
a 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

th
er

eo
f.

E.
Ex

te
rio

r f
in

ish
 m

at
er

ia
ls.

a.
Pr

im
ar

y 
bu

ild
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls.

i.
Pr

im
ar

y 
bu

ild
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

sh
al

l b
e 

us
ed

 o
n 

at
 le

as
t 7

0 
pe

rc
en

t o
f a

ny
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

fa
ça

de
,

c a
lc

ul
at

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

sis
 o

f e
ac

h 
in

di
vi

du
al

 fa
ça

de
.

ii.
Pr

im
ar

y 
bu

ild
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

in
cl

ud
e 

br
ic

k,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

fu
ll-

de
pt

h 
an

d 
ha

lf-
de

pt
h 

m
as

on
r y

br
ic

k;
 st

on
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
un

pa
in

te
d 

na
tu

ra
l s

to
ne

, u
np

ai
nt

ed
 c

as
t s

to
ne

 h
av

in
g 

th
e

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 o

f n
at

ur
al

 st
on

e;
 a

nd
 u

np
ai

nt
ed

 te
rr

ac
ot

ta
. S

im
ul

at
ed

 v
en

ee
rs

 a
re

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.

b.
Se

co
nd

ar
y 

bu
ild

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

ls.

i.
Se

co
nd

ar
y 

bu
ild

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
m

ay
 b

e 
us

ed
 o

n 
up

 to
 3

0 
pe

rc
en

t o
f a

ny
 e

xt
er

io
r b

ui
ld

in
g

fa
ça

de
, c

al
cu

la
te

d 
on

 th
e 

ba
sis

 o
f e

ac
h 

in
di

vi
du

al
 fa

ça
de

.

ii.
Se

co
nd

ar
y 

bu
ild

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

ls 
in

cl
ud

e 
w

oo
d,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
na

tu
ra

l w
oo

d 
or

 c
em

en
t-

ba
se

d
a r

tif
ic

ia
l w

oo
d 

sid
in

g;
 sh

in
gl

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 w
oo

d 
or

 c
em

en
t-

ba
se

d 
sh

ak
es

 a
nd

 sh
in

gl
e.

c.
O

th
er

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
.

i .
Bu

ild
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls,

 o
th

er
 th

an
 th

os
e 

ex
pr

es
sly

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
is 

se
ct

io
n,

 m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 o
n

up
 to

 te
n 

pe
rc

en
t o

f a
ny

 e
xt

er
io

r b
ui

ld
in

g 
fa

ça
de

, p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

ey
 h

av
e 

no
t b

ee
n

pr
oh

ib
ite

d 
by

 th
is 

se
ct

io
n.

ii.
M

at
er

ia
l p

ro
po

rt
io

n 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

ns
 sh

al
l n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
fo

un
da

tio
ns

, w
in

do
w

sy
st

em
s,

 a
nd

 d
oo

rs
. P

ro
po

rt
io

ns
 a

re
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
on

 th
e 

ba
sis

 o
f e

ac
h 

in
di

vi
du

al
 fa

ça
de

.

iii
.

M
at

er
ia

ls 
sh

al
l c

on
tin

ue
 a

ro
un

d 
th

e 
co

rn
er

 o
f t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

on
to

 fa
ça

de
s n

ot
 v

isi
bl

e 
fr

om
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 st
re

et
 a

 m
in

im
um

 d
ep

th
 o

f o
ne

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 b

ay
.

iv
.

Pr
oh

ib
ite

d 
m

at
er

ia
ls.

 S
yn

th
et

ic
 st

uc
co

, c
on

cr
et

e 
m

as
on

ry
 u

ni
ts

 (C
M

U
), 

an
d 

vi
ny

l a
re

 n
ot

pe
rm

itt
ed

 a
s e

xt
er

io
r f

in
ish

 m
at

er
ia

ls.

v.
Bu

ild
in

g 
fa

ça
de

s s
ha

ll 
be

 c
on

st
ru

ct
ed

 o
f n

o 
m

or
e 

th
an

 th
re

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

an
d/

or
co

lo
rs

. A
dd

iti
on

al
 m

at
er

ia
ls 

m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 a
s s

ec
on

da
ry

, t
rim

, o
r a

cc
en

t m
at

er
ia

ls.

1.
Ex

te
rio

r c
ol

or
s s

ha
ll 

be
 c

om
pa

tib
le

 w
ith

 th
e 

co
lo

rs
 o

n 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

,
s u

bj
ec

t t
o 

re
vi

ew
 b

y 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

om
m

iss
io

n.
 P

ro
po

se
d 

co
lo

rs
 sh

al
l b

e
sp

ec
ifi

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
sit

e 
pl

an
. C

ol
or

s m
us

t b
e 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

es
et

 p
al

et
te

of
 a

cc
ep

te
d 

co
lo

rs
 fo

r t
he

 o
ve

rla
y 

di
st

ric
t.

d.
Aw

ni
ng

s.
 A

w
ni

ng
s s

ha
ll 

be
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 o
n 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

i.
St

ru
ct

ur
al

 a
w

ni
ng

s/
ca

no
pi

es
 a

re
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
at

 th
e 

gr
ou

nd
 le

ve
l t

o 
en

ha
nc

e 
ar

tic
ul

at
io

n
of

 th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

vo
lu

m
es

.



ii.
Th

e 
m

at
er

ia
l o

f a
w

ni
ng

s a
nd

 c
an

op
ie

s s
ha

ll 
be

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 m

at
er

ia
ls 

th
at

 c
om

pl
em

en
t

th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

su
ch

 a
s m

et
al

 fl
as

hi
ng

 a
nd

 w
oo

d 
tr

im
. S

om
e 

fa
br

ic
s m

ay
 b

e 
al

lo
w

ed
;

ho
w

ev
er

, v
in

yl
 is

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d.

iii
.

Aw
ni

ng
s/

ca
no

pi
es

 sh
al

l n
ot

 b
e 

in
te

rn
al

ly
 il

lu
m

in
at

ed
.

iv
.

Aw
ni

ng
s/

ca
no

pi
es

 sh
al

l n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

th
e 

le
ng

th
 o

f f
ift

y 
fe

et
 w

ith
ou

t a
 b

re
ak

.

v.
Aw

ni
ng

s/
ca

no
pi

es
, w

he
n 

in
st

al
le

d,
 sh

al
l e

xt
en

d 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f t

hr
ee

 fe
et

 a
nd

 a
m

ax
im

um
 o

f f
iv

e 
fe

et
 o

ve
r t

he
 si

de
w

al
k 

or
 ri

gh
t-

of
-w

ay
, w

hi
ch

ev
er

 is
 c

lo
se

r.

vi
.

Aw
ni

ng
s a

nd
 c

an
op

ie
s a

re
 n

ot
 re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 to
 st

re
et

 tr
ee

s a
nd

 li
gh

tin
g.

vi
i.

Aw
ni

ng
s s

ha
ll 

be
 a

tt
ac

he
d 

di
re

ct
ly

 to
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g,
 ra

th
er

 th
an

 su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 c
ol

um
ns

 o
r

po
le

s.

F.
Bu

ild
in

g 
ar

tic
ul

at
io

n 
on

 st
re

et
 fa

ci
ng

 fa
ça

de
s.

 T
he

 g
ro

un
d 

st
or

y 
of

 a
ll 

no
n-

sin
gl

e-
fa

m
ily

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l f

aç
ad

es
fr

on
tin

g 
Fo

ur
th

 A
ve

nu
e 

sh
al

l c
on

ta
in

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
el

em
en

ts
.

a.
Co

rn
ic

e/
ar

tic
ul

at
ed

 fl
oo

r l
in

e.
 T

he
 c

or
ni

ce
 v

isu
al

ly
 se

pa
ra

te
s o

ne
 fl

oo
r f

ro
m

 th
e 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 fl
oo

r(
s)

.
Th

e 
co

rn
ic

e 
ca

n 
be

 a
rt

ic
ul

at
ed

 w
ith

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 c
ol

or
, p

at
te

rn
, o

r m
at

er
ia

l.

b.
Si

gn
 b

oa
rd

. A
 si

gn
 b

oa
rd

 sh
al

l b
e 

an
 a

re
a 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

co
rn

ic
e 

an
d 

w
in

do
w

 sy
st

em
 w

he
re

 a
 w

al
l

sig
n 

is 
pl

ac
ed

. T
he

 si
gn

 b
oa

rd
 sh

al
l b

e 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f t

w
o 

fe
et

 in
 h

ei
gh

t a
nd

 sh
al

l e
xt

en
d 

th
e 

w
id

th
of

 e
ac

h 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 b

ay
.

c.
Tr

an
so

m
. T

ra
ns

om
s a

re
 h

or
izo

nt
al

ly
 a

rt
ic

ul
at

ed
 w

in
do

w
s l

oc
at

ed
 b

el
ow

 th
e 

sig
n 

bo
ar

d.
 T

he
w

in
do

w
 sy

st
em

 sh
al

l e
xt

en
d 

th
e 

fu
ll 

w
id

th
 o

f t
he

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 b

ay
 o

r t
en

an
t s

pa
ce

 b
ut

 m
ay

 b
e

se
pa

ra
te

d 
by

 m
ul

lio
ns

 a
nd

 m
un

tin
s c

on
sis

te
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

de
sig

n 
ae

st
he

tic
. G

ril
le

s a
re

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d.

d.
Re

ce
ss

ed
 e

nt
ry

. R
ec

es
se

d 
en

tr
ie

s a
re

 im
po

rt
an

t t
o 

th
e 

re
ta

il 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 th

e 
us

er
s f

ro
m

i n
cl

em
en

t w
ea

th
er

, i
nc

re
as

e 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f s

pa
ce

 in
 w

hi
ch

 to
 d

isp
la

y 
m

er
ch

an
di

se
, a

nd
 to

 e
as

e
th

e 
tr

an
sit

io
n 

of
 u

se
rs

 to
 a

nd
 fr

om
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 re
al

m
. E

nt
ry

w
ay

s s
ha

ll 
be

 re
ce

ss
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

pl
an

e
of

 th
e 

sh
op

fr
on

t f
aç

ad
e 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f t
hr

ee
 fe

et
.

e.
Di

sp
la

y 
w

in
do

w
. D

isp
la

y 
w

in
do

w
s p

ro
vi

de
 fr

am
es

 fo
r r

et
ai

l u
se

rs
 to

 d
isp

la
y 

m
er

ch
an

di
se

 a
nd

co
nt

rib
ut

e 
to

 th
e 

ac
tiv

e 
an

d 
vi

br
an

t c
ha

ra
ct

er
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 st
re

et
 fr

on
t. 

Di
sp

la
y 

w
in

do
w

s
sh

al
l n

ot
 b

e 
se

pa
ra

te
d 

w
ith

 m
ul

lio
ns

, m
un

tin
s,

 o
r g

ril
le

s.

f.
Bu

lk
he

ad
. B

ul
kh

ea
ds

 sh
al

l b
e 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f 1
8 

in
ch

es
 in

 h
ei

gh
t a

nd
 sh

al
l e

xt
en

d 
th

e 
fu

ll 
le

ng
th

 o
f

th
e 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 b
ay

 o
r t

en
an

t s
pa

ce
.

g.
Fe

ne
st

ra
tio

n.
 F

en
es

tr
at

io
n 

pr
op

or
tio

ns
 sh

al
l c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 st

an
da

rd
s i

n 
th

is 
se

ct
io

n.
 G

ril
le

s,
 o

th
er

fa
ux

 fe
at

ur
es

, a
nd

 m
et

al
 sh

op
fr

on
t w

in
do

w
 sy

st
em

s a
re

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d.

G.
W

al
l p

ro
je

ct
io

ns
. I

n 
or

de
r t

o 
av

oi
d 

la
rg

e 
ex

pa
ns

es
 o

f f
la

t (
on

e-
di

m
en

sio
na

l) 
ex

te
rio

r w
al

ls 
al

on
g 

sid
ew

al
ks

,
bu

ild
in

g 
fa

ça
de

s o
ve

r 5
0 

fe
et

 in
 le

ng
th

 a
lo

ng
 a

 st
re

et
, s

ha
ll 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

w
al

l p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 o
r r

ec
es

se
s a

m
in

im
um

 o
f 1

2 
in

ch
es

 in
 d

ep
th

. T
he

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
le

ng
th

 o
f s

uc
h 

re
ce

ss
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

io
ns

 sh
al

l c
on

st
itu

te
 a

t
le

as
t 2

0 
pe

rc
en

t o
f t

he
 to

ta
l f

aç
ad

e 
le

ng
th

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 st
re

et
.

H.
Ve

rt
ic

al
 d

iv
isi

on
s.

 E
ac

h 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

sh
al

l p
ro

vi
de

 a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f o
ne

 o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

to
 d

iv
id

e 
th

e 
fa

ça
de

 in
to

v e
rt

ic
al

 d
iv

isi
on

s a
t i

nc
re

m
en

ts
 n

o 
gr

ea
te

r t
ha

n 
10

0 
fe

et
 a

s m
ea

su
re

d 
al

on
g 

th
e 

ba
se

 o
f t

he
 fa

ça
de

.

a.
A 

ch
an

ge
 o

f f
aç

ad
e 

m
at

er
ia

l a
nd

 w
in

do
w

 sy
st

em
 fr

om
 g

ra
de

 to
 ro

of
; o

r

b.
Ch

an
ge

 o
f b

ui
ld

in
g 

he
ig

ht
 o

f a
t l

ea
st

 o
ne

 st
or

y;
 o

r

c.
A 

ch
an

ge
 in

 fa
ça

de
 c

om
po

sit
io

n 
an

d/
or

 a
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

al
 st

yl
e 

fr
om

 g
ra

de
 to

 ro
of

; o
r

d.
An

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

or
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
pa

ss
ag

e 
w

ith
 a

 m
in

im
um

 w
id

th
 o

f t
en

 fe
et

 a
nd

 a
 m

in
im

um
 d

ep
th

 o
f

30
 fe

et
.

e.
Si

m
ila

r m
ea

ns
 in

te
nd

ed
 to

 c
on

ve
y 

th
e 

im
pr

es
sio

n 
of

 se
pa

ra
te

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
.



f.
Ch

an
ge

 in
 c

ol
or

 a
lo

ne
, w

in
do

w
 sy

st
em

 a
lo

ne
, o

r s
et

ba
ck

 a
lo

ne
, d

o 
no

t s
at

isf
y 

th
is 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t.

I.
Ro

of
lin

es
. B

ui
ld

in
g 

ro
of

 li
ne

s a
lo

ng
 st

re
et

-fa
ci

ng
 fa

ça
de

s s
ha

ll 
ch

an
ge

 a
t l

ea
st

 o
nc

e 
ev

er
y 

20
0 

fe
et

 o
f

fa
ça

de
 le

ng
th

. T
hi

s c
ha

ng
e 

sh
al

l o
cc

ur
 fo

r a
 m

in
im

um
 le

ng
th

 o
f 2

0 
fe

et
 a

nd
 b

e 
ac

co
m

pl
ish

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
at

le
as

t o
ne

 o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g:

a.
A 

ch
an

ge
 o

f r
oo

f p
ar

ap
et

 w
al

l h
ei

gh
t a

nd
 m

at
er

ia
l.

b.
A 

ch
an

ge
 o

f r
oo

f c
or

ni
ce

 d
es

ig
n.

c.
A 

ch
an

ge
 in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f s
to

rie
s.

d.
A 

ch
an

ge
 in

 ro
of

-s
ha

pe
.

J.
Bl

an
k 

w
al

ls.
 B

la
nk

 w
al

l a
re

a 
ap

pl
ie

s t
o 

gr
ou

nd
 a

nd
 u

pp
er

 st
or

y 
fa

ça
de

s v
isi

bl
e 

fr
om

 a
 st

re
et

 (n
ot

 in
cl

ud
in

g
an

 a
lle

y)
 o

r o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e.

a.
Bl

an
k 

w
al

l a
re

a 
is 

m
ea

su
re

d 
in

 li
ne

ar
 fe

et
 a

pp
lie

d 
in

 b
ot

h 
ve

rt
ic

al
 a

nd
 h

or
izo

nt
al

 d
ire

ct
io

ns
.

b.
Th

er
e 

sh
al

l b
e 

no
 m

or
e 

th
an

 2
0 

fe
et

 o
f b

la
nk

 w
al

l a
re

a.

c.
Bl

an
k 

w
al

l a
re

a 
ca

n 
be

 b
ro

ke
n 

up
 o

r i
nt

er
ru

pt
ed

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
se

 p
ro

vi
sio

ns
 w

ith
 a

ny
 o

ne
 o

f t
he

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
:

i.
Fe

ne
st

ra
tio

n.

ii.
Su

bs
ta

nt
ia

l m
at

er
ia

l c
ha

ng
e.

 C
ha

ng
in

g 
or

 a
lte

rn
at

in
g 

pa
in

t c
ol

or
s a

lo
ne

 d
oe

s n
ot

co
ns

tit
ut

e 
a 

m
at

er
ia

l c
ha

ng
e.

iii
.

Fa
ça

de
 a

rt
ic

ul
at

io
n 

gr
ea

te
r t

ha
n 

12
 in

ch
es

 in
 d

ep
th

.

iv
.

Pa
tt

er
ns

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
ns

 a
rt

ic
ul

at
ed

 w
ith

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls.

v.
Ve

rt
ic

al
 g

re
en

 w
al

ls,
 m

ad
e 

of
 la

nd
sc

ap
ed

 m
at

er
ia

l s
pe

ci
fie

d 
fo

r v
er

tic
al

, c
lim

bi
ng

gr
ow

th
.

K.
Re

sid
en

tia
l b

al
co

ni
es

.

a.
W

he
re

 b
al

co
ni

es
 a

re
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
de

sig
n,

 th
ey

 sh
al

l b
e 

in
te

gr
al

 to
 th

e 
fa

ça
de

.

b.
Ba

lc
on

ie
s o

n 
st

ep
pe

d-
ba

ck
 st

or
ie

s m
ay

 b
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
tly

 se
cu

re
d,

 e
xt

en
di

ng
 fr

om
 th

e 
fa

ça
de

 a
s a

ca
nt

ile
ve

r.

c.
Ju

lie
t b

al
co

ni
es

 a
re

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d.

L.
W

in
do

w
 sy

st
em

s.

a.
A 

m
in

im
um

 o
f 5

0 
pe

rc
en

t o
f c

om
m

er
ci

al
 fa

ça
de

s a
nd

 2
5 

pe
rc

en
t o

f r
es

id
en

tia
l f

aç
ad

es
 sh

al
l b

e
co

ve
re

d 
w

ith
 fe

ne
st

ra
tio

n.
 F

en
es

tr
at

io
n 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 is

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

ba
se

d 
on

 fa
ça

de
 a

re
a 

an
d 

by
flo

or
. T

he
 fa

ça
de

 a
re

a 
us

ed
 to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

fe
ne

st
ra

tio
n 

is 
m

ea
su

re
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

to
p 

of
 th

e 
fin

ish
ed

d o
or

 to
 th

e 
to

p 
of

 th
e 

fin
ish

ed
 fl

oo
r a

bo
ve

 o
r t

op
 o

f a
 ro

of
 p

ar
ap

et
.

b.
Fe

ne
st

ra
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 a

pp
ly

 to
 fa

ça
de

s t
ha

t a
bu

t a
 p

ub
lic

 o
r p

riv
at

e 
st

re
et

 (n
ot

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
an

al
le

y)
, o

r a
 re

qu
ire

d 
op

en
 sp

ac
e.

c.
Gl

as
s u

se
d 

to
 sa

tis
fy

 fe
ne

st
ra

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 sh
al

l b
e 

un
pa

in
te

d,
 sh

al
l h

av
e 

a 
tr

an
sp

ar
en

cy
(v

isi
bl

e 
lig

ht
 tr

an
sm

iss
io

n)
 h

ig
he

r t
ha

n 
70

 p
er

ce
nt

 a
nd

 sh
al

l h
av

e 
an

 e
xt

er
na

l r
ef

le
ct

an
ce

 o
f l

es
s

th
an

 1
5 

pe
rc

en
t. 

Tr
an

sp
ar

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
xt

er
na

l l
ig

ht
 re

fle
ct

an
ce

 sh
al

l b
e 

es
ta

bl
ish

ed
 u

sin
g 

th
e

m
an

uf
ac

tu
re

r's
 sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

ns
.

d.
Gl

az
ed

 d
oo

rs
, w

in
do

w
 fr

am
es

, s
as

he
s,

 m
ul

lio
ns

, a
nd

 si
m

ila
r f

ea
tu

re
s t

ha
t a

re
 in

te
gr

al
 to

 th
e

w
in

do
w

 sy
st

em
 c

ou
nt

 to
w

ar
ds

 fe
ne

st
ra

tio
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. O
pa

qu
e 

do
or

s a
nd

 w
in

do
w

s d
o 

no
t.

e.
N

o 
sh

ad
es

, b
lin

ds
, o

r o
th

er
 c

ov
er

in
gs

 a
re

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

 fl
oo

r f
en

es
tr

at
io

n 
of

 a
ny

 n
on

-
re

sid
en

tia
l b

ui
ld

in
g.



f.
Gr

ill
es

, i
no

pe
ra

bl
e 

sh
ut

te
rs

, a
nd

 o
th

er
 fa

ux
 w

in
do

w
 tr

ea
tm

en
ts

 a
re

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d.

g.
W

in
do

w
 sy

st
em

s s
ha

ll 
be

 re
ce

ss
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

fa
ça

de
 o

f t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f t

hr
ee

 in
ch

es
.

Th
is 

re
ve

al
 sh

al
l b

e 
ac

co
m

pl
is

he
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

de
sig

n 
of

 th
e 

w
in

do
w

 c
as

in
g 

re
ve

al
s a

nd
 fr

am
es

.

M
.

Se
tb

ac
ks

. T
he

 in
te

nt
io

n 
of

 th
is 

se
ct

io
n 

is 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 u
ni

fo
rm

ity
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
o 

th
at

 th
e 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
ar

ea
re

ta
in

s i
ts

 c
ur

re
nt

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
. T

he
 m

ax
im

um
 fr

on
t y

ar
d 

se
tb

ac
k 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

ov
er

la
y 

di
st

ric
t s

ha
ll

be
 te

n 
(1

0)
 fe

et
. T

he
 si

de
 y

ar
d 

se
tb

ac
k 

m
ay

 b
e 

ze
ro

 (0
) w

he
re

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 m

ee
t a

pp
lic

ab
le

 fi
re

 sa
fe

ty
 c

od
es

.
In

 a
ll 

ot
he

r c
as

es
, t

he
 m

in
im

um
 si

de
 y

ar
d 

se
tb

ac
k 

sh
al

l b
e 

fiv
e 

(5
) f

ee
t. 

Th
e 

m
in

im
um

 re
ar

 y
ar

d 
se

tb
ac

k
sh

al
l b

e 
fiv

e 
(5

) f
ee

t.

N
.

Bu
ild

in
g 

He
ig

ht
. B

ui
ld

in
g 

he
ig

ht
 sh

al
l n

ot
 e

xc
ee

d 
fo

rt
y-

fiv
e 

fe
et

, o
r t

hr
ee

 st
or

ie
s.

 T
he

 m
in

im
um

 fi
rs

t f
lo

or
he

ig
ht

 fo
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
lo

ng
 F

ou
rt

h 
Av

en
ue

 sh
al

l b
e 

fo
ur

te
en

 fe
et

.

O
.

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g.

 L
an

ds
ca

pi
ng

 sh
al

l c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

s o
f S

ec
tio

n 
17

.1
10

.0
60

, i
n 

ad
di

tio
n 

to
 th

e
st

an
da

rd
s d

es
cr

ib
ed

 h
er

ei
n.

a.
O

n 
ev

er
y 

sit
e 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

r r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

st
re

et
 tr

ee
s s

ha
ll 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

at
tw

en
ty

-fi
ve

-fo
ot

 in
cr

em
en

ts
.

b.
O

n 
ev

er
y 

sit
e 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

r r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

a 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

pl
an

 sh
al

l b
e 

su
bm

itt
ed

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

va
l. 

Th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
id

en
tic

al
 to

 th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
pl

an
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 c

om
m

iss
io

n.

17
.9

1.
04

3 
N

on
-r

es
id

en
tia

l b
ui

ld
in

gs
 

A.
Ap

pl
ic

ab
ili

ty
. N

ew
 n

on
-r

es
id

en
tia

l b
ui

ld
in

gs
 sh

al
l b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

 d
es

ig
n 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 o

f t
hi

s s
ec

tio
n

w
hi

ch
 a

pp
ly

 to
 a

ll 
bu

ild
in

gs
 in

 th
e 

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
O

ve
rla

y 
Di

st
ric

t t
ha

t a
re

 u
se

d 
fo

r n
on

-r
es

id
en

tia
l p

ur
po

se
s t

o
in

cl
ud

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 m
ix

ed
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

.
B.

Pr
im

ar
y 

Fr
on

ta
ge

. P
rim

ar
y 

fr
on

ta
ge

s m
us

t b
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

at
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
bu

ild
 to

 li
ne

. W
he

re
 th

er
e 

is
re

qu
ire

d 
gr

ee
ns

pa
ce

 o
r o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

st
re

et
sc

ap
e,

 th
e 

bu
ild

 to
 li

ne
 m

a y
ex

te
nd

 a
ro

un
d 

sa
id

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

pe
rim

et
er

.
C.

Ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 fa

ca
de

s.
 T

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

de
sig

n 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 a
pp

ly
 to

 a
ll 

fa
ca

de
s v

isi
bl

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
st

re
et

, f
ac

in
g

st
re

et
s,

 fa
ci

ng
 m

ai
n 

pa
rk

in
g 

lo
ts

, a
nd

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

or
 v

isi
bl

e 
fr

om
 re

qu
ire

d 
op

en
 sp

ac
es

, u
nl

es
s o

th
er

w
ise

no
te

d. a.
Fa

ca
de

s s
ty

le
 sh

al
l b

e 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 st
yl

es
 to

 b
ett

er
 a

lig
n

w
ith

 th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 n
at

ur
e 

of
 th

e 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

ar
ea

:
i.

Vi
ct

or
ia

n.
ii.

Ar
ts

 a
nd

 C
ra

fts
 (C

ra
fts

m
an

).
iii

.
Ar

t D
ec

o.
iv

.
Al

te
rn

at
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

M
ay

or
 a

nd
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il.
D.

Du
m

ps
te

rs
. D

um
ps

te
r a

nd
 se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
s s

ha
ll 

be
 c

om
pl

et
el

y 
sc

re
en

ed
 w

ith
 la

nd
sc

ap
in

g,
 a

 fe
nc

e,
 a

 w
al

l, 
or

a 
co

m
bi

na
tio

n 
th

er
eo

f.
E.

St
re

et
 le

ve
l f

aç
ad

e.
 N

ew
 n

on
-r

es
id

en
tia

l d
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

st
re

et
 le

ve
l f

aç
ad

e 
th

at
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

ll
of

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ar

ch
ite

ct
ur

al
 fe

at
ur

es
:

a.
A 

no
n-

gl
as

s b
as

e 
or

 k
ne

e 
w

al
l b

el
ow

 a
ll 

w
in

do
w

s b
eg

in
ni

ng
 a

t g
ra

de
 a

nd
 e

xt
en

di
ng

 to
 a

 p
oi

nt
 n

o
le

ss
 th

an
 e

ig
ht

 (8
) i

nc
he

s b
ut

 n
ot

 m
or

e 
th

an
 tw

en
ty

-fo
ur

 (2
4)

 in
ch

es
 a

bo
ve

 th
e 

sid
ew

al
k 

ar
ea

 a
t

th
e 

bu
ild

-to
 li

ne
. K

ne
e 

w
al

l m
ay

 b
e 

w
ai

ve
d 

w
he

n 
di

re
ct

ly
 a

bu
tti

ng
 a

 p
riv

at
e 

pa
tio

.
b.

A 
co

m
bi

na
tio

n 
of

 g
la

ss
 d

isp
la

y 
w

in
do

w
s a

nd
 d

oo
rs

 c
ov

er
in

g 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f s

ev
en

ty
-fi

ve
 (7

5)
pe

rc
en

t o
f t

he
 a

re
a 

of
 th

e 
fa

ca
de

 th
at

 is
 lo

ca
te

d 
al

on
g 

th
e 

bu
ild

-to
 li

ne
 a

t t
he

 g
ro

un
d 

flo
or

 o
f t

he
bu

ild
in

g.
c.

Gl
as

s d
isp

la
y 

w
in

do
w

s s
ha

ll 
be

 c
le

ar
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
 v

isi
bi

lit
y 

in
to

 th
e 

in
te

rio
r t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

fo
r

m
in

im
um

 d
ep

th
 o

f t
w

o 
an

d 
on

e-
ha

lf 
(2

.5
) f

ee
t.



 

 

d.
 

Gl
as

s d
isp

la
y 

w
in

do
w

s s
ha

ll 
be

 a
t l

ea
st

 8
 fe

et
 ta

ll,
 a

s m
ea

su
re

d 
fr

om
 th

e 
sid

ew
al

k.
  

e.
 

Pr
im

ar
y 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
en

tr
an

ce
s o

n 
th

e 
st

re
et

 fa
ca

de
 sh

al
l b

e 
re

ce
ss

ed
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f s

ev
en

 (7
) f

ee
t 

fr
om

 th
e 

ex
te

rio
r f

aç
ad

e.
 A

ll 
ot

he
r d

oo
rs

 lo
ca

te
d 

al
on

g 
st

re
et

 fr
on

ta
ge

 sh
al

l b
e 

of
 a

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
 th

at
 

m
at

ch
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

su
rr

ou
nd

in
g 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
ar

ea
.  

f. 
A 

gl
as

s t
ra

ns
om

 lo
ca

te
d 

ab
ov

e 
gl

as
s d

isp
la

y 
w

in
do

w
s a

nd
 th

e 
en

tr
y 

do
or

 sh
al

l b
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

24
 

in
ch

es
 a

nd
 3

6 
in

ch
es

 ta
ll,

 n
o 

m
or

e 
or

 le
ss

.  
g.

 
Pr

ov
id

es
 n

o 
le

ng
th

 o
f f

ac
ad

e 
ex

ce
ed

in
g 

tw
en

ty
 (2

0)
 fe

et
 w

ith
ou

t i
nt

er
ve

ni
ng

 g
la

ss
 d

isp
la

y 
w

in
do

w
s o

r g
la

ss
 d

oo
rs

. 
h.

 
A 

sig
n 

ba
nd

 a
re

a 
lo

ca
te

d 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

gl
as

s t
ra

ns
om

 h
av

in
g 

a 
m

in
im

um
 h

ei
gh

t o
f t

hi
rt

y-
six

 (3
6)

 
in

ch
es

. T
he

 si
gn

 b
an

d 
ar

ea
 is

 th
e 

ar
ea

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
to

p 
of

 th
e 

tr
an

so
m

 w
in

do
w

 a
nd

 c
or

ni
ce

 li
ne

. 
i. 

A 
co

rn
ic

e 
lin

e 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

sig
n 

ba
nd

 a
 m

in
im

um
 h

ei
gh

t o
f e

ig
ht

 (8
) i

nc
he

s.
 

j. 
St

re
et

 a
dd

re
ss

 n
um

be
rs

, a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f s
ix

 (6
) i

nc
he

s i
n 

he
ig

ht
, l

oc
at

ed
 a

bo
ve

 th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
en

tr
an

ce
. 

k.
 

Fi
ni

sh
ed

 c
ei

lin
g 

he
ig

ht
 sh

al
l b

e 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f f

ou
rt

ee
n 

(1
4)

 fe
et

.  
 

l. 
Ex

te
rio

r h
ei

gh
t o

f s
in

gl
e-

st
or

y 
bu

ild
in

gs
 sh

al
l b

e 
a 

m
in

im
um

 o
f e

ig
ht

ee
n 

(1
8)

 fe
et

 a
s m

ea
su

re
d 

at
 

to
p 

of
 p

ar
ap

et
. P

ar
ap

et
 sh

al
l e

nc
lo

se
 a

ll 
sid

es
 o

f t
he

 ro
of

. 
F.

 
Se

tb
ac

ks
. T

he
 in

te
nti

on
 o

f t
hi

s s
ec

tio
n 

is 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 u
ni

fo
rm

ity
 o

f d
ev

el
op

m
en

t s
o 

th
at

 th
e 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
ar

ea
 

re
ta

in
s i

ts
 c

ur
re

nt
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

. T
he

 m
ax

im
um

 fr
on

t y
ar

d 
se

tb
ac

k 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
ov

er
la

y 
di

st
ric

t s
ha

ll 
be

 te
n 

(1
0)

 fe
et

. T
he

 si
de

 y
ar

d 
se

tb
ac

k 
m

ay
 b

e 
ze

ro
 (0

) w
he

re
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 m
ee

t a
pp

lic
ab

le
 fi

re
 sa

fe
ty

 c
od

es
. 

In
 a

ll 
ot

he
r c

as
es

, t
he

 m
in

im
um

 si
de

 y
ar

d 
se

tb
ac

k 
sh

al
l b

e 
fiv

e 
(5

) f
ee

t. 
Th

e 
m

in
im

um
 re

ar
 y

ar
d 

se
tb

ac
k 

sh
al

l b
e 

fiv
e 

(5
) f

ee
t. 

 
G.

 
La

nd
sc

ap
in

g.
 L

an
ds

ca
pi

ng
 sh

al
l c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ov
isi

on
s o

f S
ec

tio
n 

17
.1

10
.0

60
, i

n 
ad

di
tio

n 
to

 th
e 

st
an

da
rd

s d
es

cr
ib

ed
 h

er
ei

n.
  

a.
 

O
n 

ev
er

y 
sit

e 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
st

re
et

 tr
ee

s s
ha

ll 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
at

 
tw

en
ty

-fi
ve

-fo
ot

 in
cr

em
en

ts
. 

b.
 

O
n 

ev
er

y 
sit

e 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t, 
a 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
pl

an
 sh

al
l b

e 
su

bm
itt

ed
 

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

va
l. 

Th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
sh

al
l b

e 
id

en
tic

al
 to

 th
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
pl

an
 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 c
om

m
iss

io
n.

 

17
.9

1.
04

4 
G

re
en

sp
ac

e 
/ 

op
en

 sp
ac

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
.  

A.
 

In
te

nt
. G

re
en

sp
ac

e 
/ o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
is 

an
 a

re
a 

on
 a

 lo
t d

es
ig

na
te

d 
to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r a

cti
ve

 o
r p

as
siv

e 
re

cr
ea

tio
n.

 
It 

is 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 a
s a

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 to

ta
l l

ot
 a

re
a.

 T
hi

s s
ec

tio
n 

is 
in

te
nd

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 re
cr

ea
tio

n 
an

d 
op

en
 sp

ac
e 

ar
ea

s a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 re
sid

en
ts

 a
nd

 te
na

nt
s.

 H
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

 g
re

en
sp

ac
e 

w
ill

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
th

e 
he

al
th

 
an

d 
w

el
l-b

ei
ng

 o
f r

es
id

en
ts

 b
y 

en
co

ur
ag

in
g 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
cti

vi
ty

, p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

or
ie

nt
ed

 d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

am
en

iti
es

, 
an

d 
gr

ea
te

r s
oc

ia
l i

nt
er

ac
tio

n 
to

 a
dv

an
ce

 th
e 

vi
sio

n 
of

 th
e 

Au
bu

rn
 D

ow
nt

ow
n 

O
ve

rla
y 

Di
st

ric
t a

nd
 it

s 
in

te
nti

on
s.

  
 

B.
 

Ap
pl

ic
ab

ili
ty

.  
 1.

 
Ev

er
y 

no
n-

re
sid

en
tia

l, 
m

ix
ed

-u
se

, a
nd

 m
ul

ti-
fa

m
ily

 d
ow

nt
ow

n 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
op

en
 sp

ac
e 

ha
vi

ng
 a

 c
um

ul
ati

ve
 a

re
a 

of
 n

o 
le

ss
 th

an
 1

0 
pe

rc
en

t o
f t

he
 to

ta
l l

ot
 a

re
a.

 T
hi

s s
ha

ll 
be

 m
ea

su
re

d 
by

 
m

ul
tip

ly
in

g 
th

e 
to

ta
l l

ot
 a

re
a 

by
 th

e 
m

in
im

um
 g

re
en

sp
ac

e 
/ o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 sp
ec

ifi
ed

 in
 th

is 
se

cti
on

.  
 

2.
 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 re
su

lti
ng

 in
 th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 th
re

e 
or

 fe
w

er
 si

ng
le

 fa
m

ily
 d

et
ac

he
d 

dw
el

lin
g 

un
its

 e
ac

h 
up

on
 th

ei
r o

w
n 

sin
gl

e 
lo

t (
i.e

., 
in

fil
l d

ev
el

op
m

en
t)

 o
r w

he
re

 th
e 

ca
lc

ul
at

ed
 re

qu
ire

d 
op

en
 sp

ac
e 

do
es

 
no

t e
xc

ee
d 

40
0 

sq
ua

re
 fe

et
 a

s a
 re

su
lt 

of
 sm

al
l l

ot
 si

ze
 a

re
 e

xe
m

pt
 fr

om
 g

re
en

sp
ac

e 
/ o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t. 



3.
N

o 
po

rti
on

 o
f a

ny
 d

et
en

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
y 

or
 st

re
am

 b
uff

er
 m

ay
 b

e 
cr

ed
ite

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 sa

tis
fa

cti
on

 o
f t

he
gr

ee
ns

pa
ce

 m
in

im
um

.
4.

N
o 

po
rti

on
 o

f o
ut

do
or

 sp
ac

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
pl

ac
ed

 w
ith

in
 a

 re
qu

ire
d 

tr
an

siti
on

al
 b

uff
er

 o
r s

tr
ea

m
 b

uff
er

,
ex

ce
pt

 fo
r m

ul
ti-

us
e 

pa
th

s o
r t

ra
ils

.
5.

Th
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

op
en

 sp
ac

e 
sh

al
l b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

n 
sit

e 
an

d 
sh

al
l m

ee
t t

he
 st

an
da

rd
s o

f e
ith

er
 p

riv
at

e
gr

ee
ns

pa
ce

 o
r p

ub
lic

 g
re

en
sp

ac
e 

be
lo

w
.

6.
N

o 
po

rti
on

 o
f t

he
 re

qu
ire

d 
st

re
et

sc
ap

e 
m

ay
 b

e 
cr

ed
ite

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
m

in
im

um
s,

 e
xc

ep
t f

or
th

os
e 

po
rti

on
s o

f s
up

pl
em

en
ta

l z
on

es
 a

bu
tti

ng
 re

sid
en

tia
l t

re
at

m
en

t w
hi

ch
 a

re
 lo

ca
te

d 
w

ho
lly

 u
po

n
pr

iv
at

e 
lo

ts
 a

nd
 fu

nc
tio

na
lly

 se
rv

e 
as

 y
ar

ds
.

7.
Gr

ee
ns

pa
ce

 m
us

t b
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

or
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 a
s p

ar
t o

f t
he

 fi
rs

t p
ha

se
 o

f c
on

st
ru

cti
on

, i
n 

an
 a

m
ou

nt
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 to
 th

e 
fir

st
 p

ha
se

 p
ro

po
rti

on
 o

f t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.

C.
P r

iv
at

e 
gr

ee
ns

pa
ce

.

1.
P r

iv
at

e 
gr

ee
ns

pa
ce

s a
re

 a
m

en
iti

es
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 g
en

er
al

ly
 re

se
rv

ed
 fo

r u
se

 b
y 

bu
ild

in
g 

te
na

nt
s a

nd
ow

ne
rs

 a
nd

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 n

ot
 n

ec
es

sa
ril

y 
be

 a
cc

es
sib

le
 to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
. E

xa
m

pl
es

 in
cl

ud
e 

ro
of

 d
ec

ks
, p

oo
l

am
en

ity
 a

re
as

, p
et

 c
ar

e 
ar

ea
s,

 c
ou

rt
 y

ar
ds

, y
ar

ds
, b

al
co

ni
es

 o
r p

or
ch

es
.

2.
B a

lc
on

ie
s o

r p
or

ch
es

 in
te

nd
ed

 fo
r s

in
gl

e 
ho

us
eh

ol
d 

us
e 

sh
al

l p
ro

vi
de

 a
 m

in
im

um
 e

ig
ht

 (8
) f

oo
t d

ep
th

an
d 

m
in

im
um

 fi
ve

 (5
) f

oo
t w

id
th

. J
ul

ie
t b

al
co

ni
es

 a
re

 n
ot

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
cr

ed
it.

3.
Pr

iv
at

e 
gr

ee
ns

pa
ce

s s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

m
in

im
um

 a
re

a 
of

 4
00

 sq
ua

re
 fe

et
 o

f h
or

izo
nt

al
 c

on
tig

uo
us

 sp
ac

e.
4.

Co
m

m
on

 o
ut

do
or

 sp
ac

es
 sh

al
l p

ro
vi

de
 o

ve
rh

ea
d 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 a
t l

ea
st

 e
ig

ht
 (8

) f
ee

t.
5.

In
di

vi
du

al
 u

ni
t b

al
co

ni
es

 o
r i

nd
iv

id
ua

l u
ni

t p
or

ch
es

 sh
al

l p
ro

vi
de

 a
 m

in
im

um
 le

ng
th

 o
f e

ig
ht

 (8
) f

ee
t

an
d 

m
in

im
um

 w
id

th
 o

f fi
ve

 (5
) f

ee
t. 

To
 re

ce
iv

e 
cr

ed
it 

fo
r s

ai
d 

ba
lc

on
ie

s o
r p

or
ch

es
, u

se
rs

 m
us

t b
e 

ab
le

to
 e

xi
t t

he
ir 

un
it 

co
m

pl
et

el
y 

by
 st

ep
pi

ng
 o

nt
o 

an
 a

dj
ac

en
t p

la
tfo

rm
. J

ul
ie

t b
al

co
ni

es
 a

re
 n

ot
 e

lig
ib

le
 to

be
 c

re
di

te
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

m
in

im
um

s.
6.

Co
ur

t y
ar

ds
 sh

al
l n

ot
 b

e 
en

cl
os

ed
 b

y 
w

al
ls 

or
 fe

nc
es

 fo
r m

or
e 

th
an

 7
5%

 o
f t

he
 p

er
im

et
er

 o
f t

h e
gr

ee
ns

pa
ce

 a
nd

/o
r o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 w

ith
 th

e 
ex

ce
pti

on
 o

f a
 w

al
l o

r f
en

ce
 sh

or
te

r t
ha

n 
fo

ur
 (4

) f
ee

t t
al

l.
7.

En
cl

os
ed

 o
r r

oo
fe

d 
ac

ce
ss

or
y 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 a

re
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 w
ith

in
 c

ou
rt

ya
rd

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
en

cl
os

ed
 o

r r
oo

fe
d

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 d

o 
no

t o
cc

up
y 

m
or

e 
th

an
 2

0 
pe

rc
en

t o
f t

he
 to

ta
l o

ut
do

or
 sp

ac
e.

8.
Co

m
m

on
 o

ut
do

or
 sp

ac
es

 sh
al

l b
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 a

ll 
te

na
nt

s o
f a

 b
ui

ld
in

g,
 a

t n
o 

co
st

, d
ur

in
g 

th
e

ho
ur

s o
f o

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g.
 T

he
 sp

ac
e 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
pe

rm
an

en
tly

 re
se

rv
ed

 o
r i

n 
an

y 
w

ay
ex

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
te

na
nt

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

tim
e 

it 
is 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 a
ll 

te
na

nt
s.

D.
Pe

de
st

ria
n 

ou
td

oo
r g

re
en

sp
ac

e 
st

an
da

rd
s.

1.
P e

de
st

ria
n 

ou
td

oo
r g

re
en

sp
ac

e 
ar

e 
am

en
iti

es
 th

at
 a

re
 p

ub
lic

ly
 a

cc
es

sib
le

 a
nd

 lo
ca

te
d 

in
 c

lo
se

pr
ox

im
ity

 to
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 si
de

w
al

k.
 E

xa
m

pl
es

 in
cl

ud
e 

pl
az

as
, p

ati
os

, p
at

hs
, a

nd
 tr

ai
ls.

2.
Th

e 
fin

ish
ed

 fl
oo

r o
r g

ro
un

d 
su

rf
ac

e 
of

 a
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
sp

ac
e 

m
us

t b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

ei
th

er
 a

t t
he

 sa
m

e 
gr

ad
e

as
 th

e 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cl
ea

r z
on

e 
(s

ee
 S

ec
tio

n 
9.

1.
7.

C.
2 

Si
de

w
al

k 
Zo

ne
) o

r w
ith

in
 th

e 
gr

ou
nd

 fl
oo

r e
le

va
tio

n
m

in
im

um
s o

r m
ax

im
um

s s
pe

ci
fie

d 
in

 th
is 

U
DC

.
3.

Pe
de

st
ria

n 
sp

ac
e 

sh
al

l a
bu

t a
nd

 b
e 

di
re

ct
ly

 a
cc

es
sib

le
 fr

om
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 si
de

w
al

k 
al

on
g 

th
e 

pr
im

ar
y

fr
on

ta
ge

s.
4.

Pe
de

st
ria

n 
sp

ac
e 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
se

pa
ra

te
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

sid
ew

al
k 

by
 a

ny
 st

ru
ct

ur
e 

fo
r m

or
e 

th
an

 4
0%

 o
f t

he
w

id
th

 o
f t

he
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e,
 w

ith
 th

e 
ex

ce
pti

on
 o

f a
 w

al
l o

r f
en

ce
 sh

or
te

r t
ha

n 
3 

fe
et

 ta
ll.

5.
Th

e 
fa

ça
de

 fa
ci

ng
 th

e 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

sp
ac

e 
m

us
t m

ee
t s

to
re

fr
on

t o
r r

es
id

en
tia

l t
re

at
m

en
t s

ta
nd

ar
ds

.
6.

M
ec

ha
ni

ca
ls 

an
d 

uti
lit

y 
eq

ui
pm

en
t s

ha
ll 

no
t b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
w

ith
in

 a
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
op

en
 sp

ac
e 

or
 b

et
w

ee
n 

a
pe

de
st

ria
n 

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
an

 a
dj

ac
en

t b
ui

ld
in

g 
fa

ça
de

.

E.
Ad

di
tio

na
l r

eg
ul

ati
on

s.



 

 

1.
 

Al
l s

in
gl

e-
fa

m
ily

 a
tta

ch
ed

 a
nd

 d
up

le
x 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

, i
n 

ex
ce

ss
 o

f t
w

o 
(2

) a
cr

es
, s

ha
ll 

be
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f t
w

en
ty

 (2
0)

 p
er

ce
nt

 a
cti

ve
 g

re
en

sp
ac

e 
th

at
 m

ee
ts

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 
of

 th
is 

Ch
ap

te
r. 

 
2.

 
Ca

lc
ul

ati
on

s f
or

 a
cti

ve
 g

re
en

sp
ac

e 
/ o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
sh

al
l e

xc
lu

de
 re

qu
ire

d 
sid

ew
al

ks
 a

nd
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

st
rip

s 
bu

t m
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
 

i. 
Co

m
m

on
 sq

ua
re

, g
re

en
, o

r p
la

za
 im

pr
ov

ed
 fo

r p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

us
e.

  
ii.

 
Ac

tiv
e,

 n
on

-c
om

m
er

ci
al

 p
ar

k.
 

iii
. 

W
al

ki
ng

 o
r b

ic
yc

le
 tr

ai
ls.

  
iv

. 
Ga

rd
en

s.
 

v.
 

Al
te

rn
at

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
M

ay
or

 a
nd

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il.

 

17
.9

1.
05

0 
Si

gn
ag

e.
 

A.
 

Ap
pl

ic
ab

ili
ty

. T
he

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
 a

nd
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s s
ec

tio
n 

ap
pl

y 
to

 a
ll 

sig
ns

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Au

bu
rn

 
Do

w
nt

ow
n 

O
ve

rla
y 

Di
st

ric
t a

nd
 sh

al
l s

up
pl

em
en

t t
he

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 u
nd

er
ly

in
g 

zo
ni

ng
 d

ist
ric

t. 
W

he
re

 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

, s
ig

na
ge

 in
 th

e 
Au

bu
rn

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
O

ve
rla

y 
Di

st
ric

t s
ha

ll 
al

so
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f 
Au

bu
rn

’s
 Z

on
in

g 
Co

de
 C

ha
pt

er
 1

7.
12

0.
 S

ig
ns

.  

B.
 

Ge
ne

ra
l D

es
ig

n.
 T

he
 o

ve
ra

ll 
de

sig
n 

of
 a

ll 
sig

na
ge

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
m

ou
nt

in
g 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
sh

al
l r

el
at

e 
to

 th
e 

de
sig

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

l b
ui

ld
in

g 
on

 th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

. B
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

ith
 a

 re
co

gn
iza

bl
e 

st
yl

e 
su

ch
 a

s V
ic

to
ria

n,
 A

rt
s a

nd
 

Cr
af

ts
, A

rt
 D

ec
o,

 e
t a

l.,
 sh

ou
ld

 u
se

 si
gn

ag
e 

of
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

st
yl

e.
 F

or
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
ith

ou
t a

 re
co

gn
iza

bl
e 

st
yl

e,
 th

e 
sig

n 
sh

al
l a

do
pt

 th
e 

de
co

ra
tiv

e 
fe

at
ur

es
 o

f t
he

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
or

 th
e 

el
em

en
ts

 o
f o

ne
 o

f t
he

 a
fo

re
m

en
tio

ne
d 

st
yl

es
, 

ut
ili

zin
g 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

an
d 

co
lo

rs
 a

s t
he

 fa
ça

de
.  

C.
 

Pu
rp

os
e.

 It
 is

 th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 th

is 
se

ct
io

n 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
, s

af
et

y,
 a

nd
 g

en
er

al
 w

el
fa

re
 th

ro
ug

h 
re

as
on

ab
le

, c
on

sis
te

nt
, a

nd
 n

on
-d

isc
rim

in
at

or
y 

sig
n 

st
an

da
rd

s u
ni

qu
e 

to
 th

e 
Au

bu
rn

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
O

ve
rla

y 
Di

st
ric

t. 
Si

gn
 c

op
y 

is 
pe

rm
itt

ed
 if

 a
ll 

ot
he

r g
ui

de
lin

es
 a

re
 m

et
 (s

ize
 a

nd
 q

ua
lit

y)
.  

D.
 

Pe
rm

it 
Re

qu
ire

d.
 A

 p
er

m
it 

fo
r a

ny
 si

gn
 in

 th
is 

di
st

ric
t s

ha
ll 

be
 re

qu
ire

d 
be

fo
re

 p
la

ce
m

en
t, 

er
ec

tio
n,

 o
r 

in
st

al
la

tio
n.

 A
ll 

sig
ns

 a
re

 su
bj

ec
t t

o 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
va

l t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

O
ve

rla
y 

Ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 R
ev

ie
w

 (O
AR

) 
pr

oc
es

s.
  

E.
 

Pr
oh

ib
ite

d 
Si

gn
s.

  

1.
 

O
ff-

pr
em

ise
s s

ig
ns

 a
re

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d.

  

2.
 

Po
rt

ab
le

 si
gn

s a
re

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d 

ex
ce

pt
 o

ne
 A

-fr
am

e 
"s

an
dw

ic
h"

 si
gn

 w
ill

 b
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 p
er

 b
us

in
es

s.
  

3.
 

Ro
of

 to
p 

sig
ns

 a
re

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d.

  

4.
 

El
ec

tr
on

ic
 m

es
sa

ge
 b

oa
rd

 si
gn

s a
re

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d.

  

5.
 

In
fla

ta
bl

e,
 m

ov
in

g,
 a

ni
m

at
ed

 a
nd

 re
vo

lv
in

g 
sig

ns
 a

re
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d.
  

F.
 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

ts
.  

1.
 

Si
gn

 A
re

a 

a.
 U

nl
es

s o
th

er
w

ise
 st

at
ed

, “
sig

n 
ar

ea
” 

re
fe

rs
 to

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f t

he
 si

gn
 fa

ce
 a

s d
ef

in
ed

 in
 C

ha
pt

er
 1

7.
12

0.
 

Si
gn

s.
  F

or
 si

gn
s o

n 
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

, t
he

 e
nt

ire
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

or
 b

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
of

 th
e 

sig
n 

is 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 a
s t

he
 

sig
n 

ar
ea

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

ny
 m

at
er

ia
l o

r c
ol

or
 fo

rm
in

g 
th

e 
sig

n 
fa

ce
 o

r t
he

 b
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

us
ed

 to
 d

iff
er

en
tia

te
 

th
e 

sig
n 

fr
om

 th
e 

sig
n 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
ag

ai
ns

t w
hi

ch
 it

 is
 p

la
ce

d.
   

b.
 P

er
m

itt
ed

 a
re

a 
m

ay
 b

e 
di

vi
de

d 
up

 b
et

w
ee

n 
a 

m
ax

im
um

 o
f t

hr
ee

 si
gn

s.
 N

o 
sin

gl
e 

sig
n 

sh
al

l e
xc

ee
d 

ei
gh

ty
 (8

0)
 sq

ua
re

 fe
et

.  

c.
 F

or
 d

ou
bl

e 
fa

ce
d 

sig
ns

, p
ro

vi
de

d 
on

ly
 o

ne
 si

de
 c

an
 b

e 
se

en
 fr

om
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 ri
gh

t-
of

-w
ay

 a
t a

ny
 lo

ca
tio

n,
 

th
e 

sig
n 

ar
ea

 sh
al

l b
e 

co
m

pu
te

d 
by

 th
e 

m
ea

su
re

m
en

t o
f t

he
 fa

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
la

rg
es

t s
ig

n 
ar

ea
.  



 

 

d.
 T

he
 to

ta
l m

ax
im

um
 a

llo
w

ab
le

 si
gn

 a
re

a 
fo

r a
ll 

w
al

l m
ou

nt
ed

 si
gn

s i
s t

w
o 

(2
) s

qu
ar

e 
fe

et
 p

er
 li

ne
ar

 fr
on

t 
fo

ot
 o

f t
he

 p
rin

ci
pa

l b
ui

ld
in

g 
on

 a
 p

ub
lic

 ri
gh

t-
of

-w
ay

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

ul
ti-

te
na

nt
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

. S
ig

ns
 a

ffi
xe

d 
to

 
aw

ni
ng

s s
ha

ll 
be

 c
on

sid
er

ed
 a

 w
al

l m
ou

nt
ed

 si
gn

.  

e.
 T

he
 to

ta
l a

llo
w

ab
le

 sq
ua

re
 fo

ot
ag

e 
of

 d
isp

la
y 

ar
ea

, p
er

 si
de

 o
f a

 m
on

um
en

t s
ig

n 
is 

th
irt

y-
six

 (3
6)

 sq
ua

re
 

fe
et

.  

f. 
Si

gn
s p

ro
je

ct
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
fa

ce
 sh

al
l n

ot
 e

xc
ee

d 
fif

te
en

 (1
5)

 sq
ua

re
 fe

et
 o

r p
ro

je
ct

 fa
rt

he
r t

ha
n 

fiv
e 

fe
et

 o
r o

ne
-h

al
f t

he
 d

ist
an

ce
 to

 th
e 

st
re

et
 c

ur
b,

 w
hi

ch
ev

er
 is

 le
ss

. 

g.
 C

ha
ng

ea
bl

e 
co

py
 m

es
sa

ge
 b

oa
rd

s s
ha

ll 
no

t e
xc

ee
d 

tw
en

ty
-fi

ve
 (2

5)
 sq

ua
re

 fe
et

 a
nd

 sh
al

l b
e 

co
un

te
d 

to
w

ar
d 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 sq
ua

re
 fo

ot
ag

e 
al

lo
w

ed
 fo

r o
n-

sit
e 

si
gn

s.
  

2.
 

Si
gn

 H
ei

gh
t (

fo
r F

re
es

ta
nd

in
g 

Si
gn

s)
. 

a.
 T

he
 h

ei
gh

t o
f t

he
 si

gn
 sh

al
l b

e 
m

ea
su

re
d 

fr
om

 th
e 

fin
ish

ed
 g

ra
de

, w
hi

ch
 sh

al
l n

ot
 b

e 
ra

ise
d 

so
 a

s t
o 

cr
ea

te
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 si
gn

 h
ei

gh
t, 

or
 to

 th
e 

he
ig

ht
 o

f t
he

 ro
ad

w
ay

 c
ro

w
n 

of
 th

e 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 st

re
et

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
sig

n 
fa

ce
s,

 w
hi

ch
ev

er
 is

 lo
w

er
, t

o 
th

e 
hi

gh
es

t p
oi

nt
 o

f t
he

 si
gn

 st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

br
ac

ke
t, 

su
pp

or
ts

, a
nd

 
an

y 
sig

n 
fa

ce
 su

rr
ou

nd
s.

  

b.
 F

re
es

ta
nd

in
g 

sig
ns

 sh
al

l n
ot

 b
e 

ta
lle

r t
ha

n 
ei

gh
t (

8)
 fe

et
. 

G.
 

M
ou

nt
in

g 
an

d 
Pl

ac
em

en
t. 

 

1.
 

Si
gn

s s
ha

ll 
be

 m
ou

nt
ed

 o
r e

re
ct

ed
 so

 a
s t

o 
no

t o
bs

cu
re

 th
e 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 fe
at

ur
es

 o
r o

pe
ni

ng
s o

f t
he

 
bu

ild
in

g.
  

2.
 

Si
gn

s a
nd

/o
r s

ig
n 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 sh

al
l n

ot
 e

xt
en

d 
in

to
 o

r a
bo

ve
 o

r b
e 

an
ch

or
ed

 o
r p

la
ce

d 
in

 a
ny

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 

th
e 

rig
ht

-o
f-w

ay
 u

nl
es

s p
ro

je
ct

in
g 

fr
om

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
in

 c
on

fo
rm

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
is 

ar
tic

le
.  

3.
 

An
y 

sig
n 

pl
ac

ed
 o

n 
a 

sid
ew

al
k,

 w
al

kw
ay

, o
r o

th
er

 p
ub

lic
 ri

gh
t o

f w
ay

 sh
al

l c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

cr
ite

ria
 o

f 
th

is 
se

ct
io

n 
an

d 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 p
ro

vi
sio

ns
 o

f t
he

 A
m

er
ic

an
s w

ith
 D

isa
bi

lit
ie

s A
ct

 (A
DA

). 
  

4.
 

N
o 

sig
n 

or
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 a
 si

gn
 sh

al
l e

xt
en

d 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

co
rn

ic
e 

lin
e 

at
 th

e 
to

p 
of

 th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

fa
ce

.  

5.
 

Fr
ee

st
an

di
ng

 si
gn

s m
us

t b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

a 
m

in
im

um
 o

f t
en

 (1
0)

 fe
et

 fr
om

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 ri

gh
t-

of
-w

ay
.  

6.
 

Gr
ou

nd
-fl

oo
r b

us
in

es
se

s i
n 

m
ul

ti-
st

or
y 

bu
ild

in
gs

 c
an

no
t m

ou
nt

 si
gn

s h
ig

he
r t

ha
n 

fo
ur

te
en

 (1
4)

 fe
et

 
ab

ov
e 

gr
ad

e.
  

7.
 

Th
e 

lo
w

es
t p

or
tio

n 
of

 a
ny

 si
gn

 p
ro

je
ct

in
g 

fr
om

 a
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

fa
ce

 sh
al

l n
ot

 b
e 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 e

ig
ht

 fe
et

 (8
) 

ab
ov

e 
th

e 
fin

ish
ed

 g
ra

de
 o

f t
he

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

ar
ea

 (i
.e

., 
th

e 
sid

ew
al

k,
 if

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
). 

H.
 

M
at

er
ia

ls.
 T

he
 st

ru
ct

ur
al

 m
at

er
ia

ls 
of

 th
e 

sig
n 

sh
al

l m
at

ch
 th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 m

at
er

ia
ls 

of
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g.
 P

la
st

ic
, v

in
yl

, 
or

 si
m

ila
r m

at
er

ia
ls 

ar
e 

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 R

es
in

 si
m

ul
at

in
g 

th
e 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 o

f w
oo

d,
 a

nd
 fa

br
ic

 m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
. 

1.
 

W
al

l, 
aw

ni
ng

, a
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

in
g 

sig
ns

 sh
al

l b
e 

m
ad

e 
of

 so
lid

 w
oo

d,
 m

et
al

, s
tu

cc
o,

 o
r m

as
on

ry
 (b

ric
k 

or
 

st
on

e)
.  

 
a.

 W
al

l s
ig

ns
 m

ay
 b

e 
pa

in
te

d 
di

re
ct

ly
 o

nt
o 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
g 

fa
ça

de
.  

2.
 

Aw
ni

ng
 si

gn
s s

ha
ll 

be
 m

ad
e 

of
 c

lo
th

, c
an

va
s,

 m
et

al
, o

r w
oo

d.
  

3.
 

Fr
ee

st
an

di
ng

 si
gn

s s
ha

ll 
be

 m
ad

e 
w

ith
 a

 so
lid

 w
oo

d,
 m

et
al

, a
nd

/o
r m

as
on

ry
 b

as
e.

 T
he

 b
as

e 
of

 th
e 

sig
n 

m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

na
rr

ow
er

 th
an

 th
e 

sig
n 

fa
ce

.  

I. 
Li

gh
tin

g.
  

1.
 

In
te

rn
al

ly
 li

t s
ig

ns
 a

re
 su

bj
ec

t t
o 

re
vi

ew
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
O

AR
 p

ro
ce

ss
.  

2.
 

Si
gn

s i
nc

or
po

ra
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
(b

ac
k 

ill
um

in
at

ed
, n

eo
n,

 e
tc

.) 
sh

al
l b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 fo

r a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ne
ss

 
re

ga
rd

le
ss

 o
f t

he
 a

bo
ve

-m
en

tio
ne

d 
siz

e 
lim

ita
tio

ns
.  

Elizabeth Mitchem
Could change this to “back of curb (if no curb, edge of pavement)”



 

 

3.
 

Li
gh

te
d 

sig
ns

 sh
al

l u
se

 fo
cu

se
d,

 lo
w

 in
te

ns
ity

 il
lu

m
in

at
io

n.
 S

uc
h 

lig
ht

in
g 

sh
al

l n
ot

 sh
in

e 
in

to
 o

r c
re

at
e 

gl
ar

e 
at

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

or
 v

eh
ic

ul
ar

 tr
af

fic
, n

or
 sh

al
l i

t s
hi

ne
 in

to
 a

dj
ac

en
t a

re
as

. L
ig

ht
 fi

xt
ur

es
 m

ou
nt

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
gr

ou
nd

 sh
al

l b
e 

sc
re

en
ed

 b
y 

la
nd

sc
ap

in
g.

  

4.
 

Fl
as

hi
ng

, b
lin

ki
ng

, r
ev

ol
vi

ng
, o

r r
ot

at
in

g 
lig

ht
s a

re
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d.
  

5.
 

Ex
po

se
d 

ne
on

 m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 b
ut

 o
nl

y 
if 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t a

s d
ec

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
zo

ni
ng

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

r t
he

ir 
de

sig
ne

e.
  

J. 
W

in
do

w
 S

ig
ns

.  

1.
 

Si
gn

s p
ai

nt
ed

 d
ire

ct
ly

 o
n 

w
in

do
w

 g
la

ss
, a

ffi
xe

d 
to

 th
e 

w
in

do
w

, o
r h

un
g 

in
 w

in
do

w
s a

re
 p

er
m

itt
ed

. T
he

y 
sh

al
l b

e 
co

un
te

d 
to

w
ar

d 
th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 si

ze
 re

qu
ire

m
en

t a
nd

 sh
al

l n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

tw
en

ty
-fi

ve
 (2

5)
 p

er
ce

nt
 

of
 a

ny
 o

ne
 w

in
do

w
 a

re
a.

  

K.
 

M
ul

ti-
Te

na
nt

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
.  

1.
 

Si
gn

ag
e 

fo
r t

he
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

an
d 

fo
r t

he
 te

na
nt

s s
ha

ll 
be

 c
on

sis
te

nt
 in

 si
ze

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
n.

  

2.
 

Sq
ua

re
 fo

ot
ag

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

va
rio

us
 te

na
nt

 sp
ac

es
 sh

al
l b

e 
th

e 
re

sp
on

sib
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 o
w

ne
r, 

bu
t 

al
l t

en
an

ts
 a

re
 p

er
m

itt
ed

 to
 h

av
e 

at
 le

as
t o

ne
 (1

) b
ui

ld
in

g 
sig

n.
 T

o 
fa

ci
lit

at
e,

 m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 (1

) b
ui

ld
in

g 
sig

n 
is 

pe
rm

itt
ed

 p
er

 fa
ça

de
, p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 a
gg

re
ga

te
 si

gn
 a

re
a 

al
lo

w
an

ce
 is

 n
ot

 e
xc

ee
de

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
bu

ild
in

g 
or

 th
e 

fa
ça

de
.  

3.
 

M
ul

tip
le

 in
di

vi
du

al
 fr

ee
-s

ta
nd

in
g 

sig
ns

 a
re

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d.

  

4.
 

Bu
ild

in
g 

sig
ns

 n
ot

 e
xc

ee
di

ng
 si

x 
(6

) s
qu

ar
e 

fe
et

 a
re

 p
er

m
itt

ed
.  

L.
 

Sp
ec

ia
l P

ur
po

se
 S

ig
ns

. S
pe

ci
al

 p
ur

po
se

 si
gn

s a
re

 n
ot

 re
vi

ew
ed

 e
xc

ep
t a

s n
ot

ed
.  

1.
 

O
n-

sit
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

sig
ns

 o
r s

ig
ns

 g
iv

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t t
he

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
or

 re
no

va
tio

n 
of

 a
 

bu
ild

in
g 

on
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

sit
e 

m
us

t b
e 

re
m

ov
ed

 a
t t

he
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t. 

 

2.
 

Di
re

ct
io

na
l s

ig
ns

, r
ea

l e
st

at
e 

sig
ns

, o
r i

nc
id

en
ta

l s
af

et
y 

sig
ns

 su
ch

 a
s "

en
tr

an
ce

" o
r "

ex
it"

 o
r t

ha
t g

iv
e 

no
n-

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

bu
t d

o 
no

t c
on

ta
in

 a
dv

er
tis

em
en

ts
 a

re
 e

xe
m

pt
 fr

om
 th

is 
ar

tic
le

.  

M
. 

Bu
ild

in
g 

Co
de

s.
 A

ll 
sig

ns
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
de

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

.  

N
. 

N
on

-C
on

fo
rm

in
g 

Si
gn

s.
 A

 n
on

co
nf

or
m

in
g 

sig
n 

is 
an

y 
sig

n 
pe

rm
an

en
tly

 a
ffi

xe
d 

to
 th

e 
gr

ou
nd

 o
r a

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
ov

er
la

y 
di

st
ric

t o
n 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
da

te
 o

f t
hi

s a
rt

ic
le

, w
hi

ch
 is

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d 

by
, o

r d
oe

s n
ot

 
co

nf
or

m
 to

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
se

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
. T

em
po

ra
ry

 o
r p

or
ta

bl
e 

sig
ns

 sh
al

l n
ot

 b
e 

af
fo

rd
ed

 
no

nc
on

fo
rm

in
g 

st
at

us
. Q

ua
lif

yi
ng

 n
on

co
nf

or
m

in
g 

sig
ns

 m
ay

 c
on

tin
ue

 p
ro

vi
de

d:
  

1.
 

Th
e 

sig
n 

is 
pr

op
er

ly
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d.
  

2.
 

It 
is 

no
t s

tr
uc

tu
ra

lly
 a

lte
re

d 
ex

ce
pt

 a
s r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 m

ee
t b

ui
ld

in
g 

co
de

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

.  

3.
 

It 
is 

no
t e

xp
an

de
d 

or
 a

lte
re

d 
in

 a
ny

 m
an

ne
r e

xc
ep

t f
or

 a
 c

ha
ng

e 
of

 c
op

y.
 

4.
 

An
y 

da
m

ag
e 

do
es

 n
ot

 e
xc

ee
d 

fif
ty

 (5
0)

 p
er

ce
nt

 o
f t

he
 e

st
im

at
ed

 re
pl

ac
em

en
t c

os
t. 

 



 

 

17
.9

1.
06

0 
Re

qu
ire

d 
Pl

an
s a

nd
 R

ev
ie

w
. 

A.
 

Pl
an

s R
eq

ui
re

d.
 P

rio
r t

o 
th

e 
iss

ua
nc

e 
of

 a
ny

 la
nd

 d
ist

ur
ba

nc
e 

pe
rm

it,
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

pe
rm

it,
 o

r s
ig

n 
pe

rm
it,

 th
e 

ap
pl

ic
an

t s
ha

ll 
su

bm
it 

to
 th

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 zo

ni
ng

 c
om

m
iss

io
n,

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g:
  

1.
 

An
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n;
  

2.
 

A 
sit

e 
pl

an
;  

3.
 

A 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

pl
an

;  

4.
 

Bu
ild

in
g 

de
sig

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

el
ev

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 d
et

ai
ls 

of
 p

ro
po

se
d 

bu
ild

in
gs

, e
xt

er
io

r 
m

at
er

ia
ls 

an
d 

co
lo

rs
; a

nd
  

5.
 

Pl
an

s a
nd

 e
le

va
tio

ns
 o

f a
ll 

sig
ns

, a
ll 

of
 w

hi
ch

 sh
al

l d
em

on
st

ra
te

 th
at

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 d
es

ig
n 

fo
llo

w
s a

ll 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
hi

s A
ub

ur
n 

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
O

ve
rla

y 
Di

st
ric

t. 
 

6.
 

Re
qu

es
ts

 fo
r s

ig
ns

 o
n 

ze
ro

 se
tb

ac
k 

pr
op

er
tie

s f
ro

nt
in

g 
Fo

ur
th

 A
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

Fi
ft

h 
St

re
et

 sh
al

l b
e 

su
bm

itt
ed

 fo
r a

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

re
vi

ew
 in

st
ea

d 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 zo
ni

ng
 c

om
m

iss
io

n.
   

B.
 

Re
vi

ew
. T

he
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Co
m

m
is

sio
n 

sh
al

l r
ev

ie
w

 e
ac

h 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
fo

r c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
ll 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 

Au
bu

rn
 D

ow
nt

ow
n 

O
ve

rla
y 

Di
st

ric
t b

as
ed

 in
 p

ar
t o

n 
th

e 
cr

ite
ria

 o
ut

lin
ed

 h
er

ei
n 

an
d 

m
ak

e 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
 

to
 th

e 
Ci

ty
 C

ou
nc

il 
fo

r f
in

al
 re

vi
ew

. U
po

n 
a 

de
ci

sio
n 

by
 th

e 
M

ay
or

 a
nd

 C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

th
at

 sa
id

 p
la

ns
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 A
ub

ur
n 

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
O

ve
rla

y 
Di

st
ric

t, 
th

e 
ap

pl
ic

an
t s

ha
ll 

th
en

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 a

pp
ly

 fo
r 

la
nd

 d
ist

ur
ba

nc
e,

 b
ui

ld
in

g,
 o

r s
ig

ns
 p

er
m

its
.  

 
1.

 R
ev

ie
w

 C
rit

er
ia

:  

a.
 

Ap
pl

ic
an

t s
ub

m
itt

al
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

 p
ro

je
ct

 n
ar

ra
tiv

e.
   

b.
 

Ap
pl

ic
an

t h
as

 su
bm

itt
ed

 a
 c

on
ce

pt
ua

l p
la

n 
sh

ow
in

g 
al

l p
ro

po
se

d 
bu

ild
in

gs
, s

ite
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
, 

an
d 

ot
he

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
pe

rt
in

en
t t

o 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 si

te
.  

c.
 

El
ev

at
io

n 
dr

aw
in

gs
 su

bm
itt

ed
 sh

al
l i

nc
lu

de
 d

im
en

sio
ns

 o
f a

ll 
sid

es
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
pr

op
os

ed
 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
. A

rc
hi

te
ct

ur
al

 e
le

va
tio

ns
 a

nd
 tr

ea
tm

en
ts

 il
lu

st
ra

tin
g 

th
e 

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
al

 fi
ni

sh
 o

f t
he

 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

. 

d.
 

Ap
pl

ic
an

t h
as

 in
cl

ud
ed

 e
xt

er
io

r f
in

ish
 m

at
er

ia
l s

el
ec

tio
ns

 fo
r a

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 st

ru
ct

ur
es

 to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f C
ha

pt
er

 1
7.

91
 A

ub
ur

n 
Do

w
nt

ow
n 

O
ve

rla
y 

Di
st

ric
t. 

 

e.
 

Ap
pl

ic
an

t h
as

 su
bm

itt
ed

 si
gn

 p
la

ns
 a

nd
 la

nd
sc

ap
e 

pl
an

s i
n 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

is 
Ch

ap
te

r 1
7.

91
 

Au
bu

rn
 D

ow
nt

ow
n 

O
ve

rla
y 

Di
st

ric
t. 

 

f. 
Ap

pl
ic

an
t s

ub
m

itt
al

 in
cl

ud
es

 p
ho

to
s o

f n
ei

gh
bo

rin
g 

pr
op

er
tie

s t
o 

en
su

re
 c

om
pa

tib
ili

ty
 w

ith
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 d

es
ig

n.
  

g.
 

Ap
pl

ic
an

t s
ha

ll 
pr

ov
id

e 
an

y 
ot

he
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

de
em

ed
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 b
y 

th
e 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t d

ire
ct

or
 to

 e
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

sit
e 

an
d 

its
 st

ru
ct

ur
es

.  
 

h.
 

Pr
op

er
ty

 o
w

ne
d 

by
 th

e 
Ci

ty
 o

r a
ny

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
th

er
eo

f s
ha

ll 
be

 e
xe

m
pt

 fr
om

 th
e 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 R
ev

ie
w

 
pr

oc
es

s d
es

cr
ib

ed
 h

er
ei

n.
 

C.
 

Ap
pe

al
s.

 A
ny

 a
pp

ea
l o

f t
he

 D
ec

isi
on

 o
f t

he
 M

ay
or

 a
nd

 C
ou

nc
il 

m
ay

 b
e 

ap
pe

al
ed

 to
 th

e 
Su

pe
rio

r C
ou

rt
 o

f 
Ba

rr
ow

 C
ou

nt
y.

 

 

 

  

Elizabeth Mitchem
Do they want to keep this?

















A
n
d
e
rs

e
n
, 
T

a
te

 &
 C

a
rr

, 
P

.C
. 
▪

O
n
e
 S

u
g
a
rl
o
a
f 
C

e
n
tr

e
 ▪

S
u
ite

 4
0
0
0
 ▪

1
9
6
0
 S

a
te

lli
te

 B
o
u
le

va
rd

 ▪
D

u
lu

th
 G

A
 3

0
0
9
7
 ▪

w
w

w
.a

tc
la

w
fir

m
.c

o
m

Se
p

te
m

b
er

 6
, 2

0
2

4

C
O

M
B

IN
E

D
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 O

F
 I

N
T

E
N

T
A

N
D

 J
U

S
T

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

F
O

R
 R

E
Z

O
N

IN
G

A
N

D
 T

E
X

T
 A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

A
p

p
li

ca
ti

on
 

C
it

y
 o

f 
A

u
b

u
rn

 
B

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n

ty
, 

G
eo

rg
ia

A
p

p
li

ca
n

t:
M

B
C

 D
ev

el
op

er
s,

 L
L

C

R
ez

on
in

g 
T

ra
ct

: 
   

 
T

ax
 P

ar
ce

l 
ID

s 
A

U
11

 0
31

B
 a

nd
 A

U
11

 1
48

 
±

57
.9

17
A

cr
es

 o
f 

L
an

d 

L
oc

at
ed

 a
t 

1
0

0
 L

y
le

 R
o

ad
, 

A
u

b
u

rn
, G

eo
rg

ia
 

F
ro

m
 A

G
 t

o 
P

U
D

S
u

b
m

it
te

d
 f

or
 A

p
p

li
ca

n
t 

b
y:

 
M

el
od

y 
A

. G
lo

ut
on

, E
sq

.
A

N
D

E
R

S
E

N
T

A
T

E
&

 C
A

R
R

, 
P

.C
. 

 
O

ne
 S

ug
ar

lo
af

 C
en

tr
e

1
9

6
0

 S
at

el
li

te
 B

lv
d

.
S

u
it

e 
4

0
0

0
D

ul
ut

h,
 G

eo
rg

ia
 3

00
97

77
0.

82
2.

09
00

m
gl

ou
to

n@
at

cl
aw

fi
rm

.c
om

mailto:mglouton@atclawfirm.com


2

I.
IN

T
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N

T
hi

s 
A

pp
li

ca
ti

on
 f

or
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
an

d 
T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

t1
is

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 f

or
 a

 5
7.

91
7-

ac
re

 p
ar

ce
l 

of
 l

an
d

 
lo

ca
te

d 
at

 1
00

 L
yl

e 
R

o
ad

, 
ju

st
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
it

s 
in

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

A
u

tr
y

 R
oa

d 
(h

er
ei

na
ft

er
 t

h
e 

“P
ro

p
er

ty
”)

. 
 T

he
 

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
is

 a
n 

as
se

m
bl

ag
e 

of
 t

w
o 

ta
x 

pa
rc

el
s,

 w
it

h
 f

ro
nt

ag
e 

on
 L

yl
e 

R
oa

d
. 

T
he

 P
ro

pe
rt

y
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 z

on
ed

 
A

G
 (

A
g

ri
cu

lt
u

ra
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t)
 p

ur
su

an
t 

to
 t

h
e 

C
it

y
 o

f 
A

u
b

u
rn

 Z
o

n
in

g
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 (
th

e 
“Z

o
n

in
g

 O
rd

in
an

ce
”)

. 
T

h
e 

A
pp

li
ca

nt
, 

M
B

C
 D

ev
el

op
er

s,
 L

L
C

(t
he

 “
A

pp
li

ca
nt

”)
 n

ow
 s

ee
ks

 a
p

p
ro

v
al

 t
o

 r
ez

on
e 

th
e 

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
to

P
U

D
 

(P
la

nn
ed

 U
n

it
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
D

is
tr

ic
t)

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 d

is
ti

n
ct

iv
e 

an
d

 a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e

si
n

g
le

-f
am

il
y

 d
et

ac
he

d 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
co

m
m

un
it

y 
w

it
h 

18
8 

lo
ts

.  
 

T
h

is
 d

oc
um

en
t 

is
 s

ub
m

it
te

d 
as

 t
he

 L
et

te
r 

o
f 

In
te

nt
, 

Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

si
s 

S
ta

te
m

en
t,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 
re

qu
ir

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Z

on
in

g 
O

rd
in

an
ce

.  

II
.

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 O

F
 T

H
E

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 A
N

D
 S

U
R

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 A

R
E

A
 

T
he

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
is

 a
la

rg
e 

tr
ac

t 
fr

o
n

ti
n

g
L

yl
e 

R
oa

d.
 I

t 
co

nt
ai

ns
 a

 p
er

so
n

al
 r

es
id

en
ce

 a
nd

 s
ev

er
al

 a
cc

es
so

ry
 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
.  

T
he

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 is

 m
o

st
ly

 w
oo

de
d 

an
d

 s
lo

pe
s 

so
u

th
w

ar
d

 to
w

ar
d

 a
 c

re
ek

 w
it

h
 f

lo
od

pl
ai

n.
  T

he
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 
zo

ni
ng

 c
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 u
se

s 
ar

e 
as

 f
ol

lo
w

s:
 

L
oc

at
io

n
Z

o
n

in
g

 
P

ro
po

se
d 

Si
te

 
P

U
D

N
o

rt
h

A
G

 a
nd

 R
-1

00

E
as

t
M

H
 a

nd
 R

-1
00

 

S
o

u
th

R
-1

0
0 

W
es

t 
A

G
 

   
 

1
In

 c
o

n
ju

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

re
q

u
es

te
d

 r
ez

o
n

in
g,

 t
h

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
is

 s
ee

ki
n

g 
a 

te
xt

 a
m

en
d

m
en

t 
to

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

7
.9

0
.1

4
0

(C
)(

1
) 

an
d

 (
6

) 
o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

o
f 

A
u

b
u

rn
 Z

o
n

in
g 

O
rd

in
an

ce
.  



3

T
he

 
A

pp
li

ca
nt

 
is

 
re

q
u

es
ti

n
g

 
th

e 
C

it
y

 
of

 
A

ub
ur

n
re

zo
ne

 
th

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 
to

 
al

lo
w

 
fo

r 
a 

p
la

n
n

ed
un

it
 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t.

  
T

h
e 

si
te

 i
s 

su
rr

o
u

n
d

ed
 b

y
 o

th
er

 r
es

id
en

ti
al

 u
se

s 
to

 i
n

cl
u

d
e 

p
ri

m
ar

il
y

 R
-1

0
0

 z
o

n
in

g
 c

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n
s.

  
A

s 
su

ch
, 

th
e 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 i

s 
id

ea
l 

fo
r

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

as
 a

re
si

d
en

ti
al

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 a
n

d
 w

il
l 

al
lo

w
 f

o
r 

th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

o
f 

m
or

e 
ho

us
in

g.
   

 

A
s 

st
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
it

y
 o

f 
A

u
b

u
rn

’s
 2

01
8

C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

v
e 

P
la

n
 (

th
e 

“C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 P

la
n”

),
 th

e
F

u
tu

re
L

an
d

 
U

se
 M

ap
 i

d
en

ti
fi

es
 t

h
is

 a
re

a 
as

 s
in

g
le

-f
am

il
y

re
si

d
en

ti
al

. 
 T

he
 r

ez
o

n
in

g
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

P
ro

pe
rt

y,
 a

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

p
p

li
ca

n
t,

 w
il

l e
nh

an
ce

 th
e 

su
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 a
nd

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 a
re

a.
 S

p
ec

if
ic

al
ly

, t
he

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 a
 p

la
nn

ed
 u

ni
t 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
il

l 
pr

ov
id

e 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 
   

II
I.

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

A
s 

sh
ow

n 
on

 t
he

 s
it

e 
pl

an
 b

y
T

ho
m

as
 &

 H
u

tt
o

n
, 

da
te

d 
A

u
g

u
st

 2
1,

 2
02

4,
 a

nd
 f

il
ed

 w
it

h
 t

hi
s 

A
pp

li
ca

ti
on

 
(h

er
ei

na
ft

er
 t

he
 “

S
it

e 
P

la
n”

),
 t

he
 A

pp
li

ca
nt

 i
s 

pr
op

os
in

g 
to

 r
ez

on
e

57
.9

17
 a

cr
es

 f
ro

m
 A

G
 t

o
 P

U
D

 i
n

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t o

f 
a

p
la

n
n

ed
u

n
it

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tw

it
h

 1
8

8
 u

n
it

s.
  T

h
e 

A
pp

li
ca

nt
 p

ro
p

o
se

s 
to

 d
ev

el
o

p
 

th
e 

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
it

h
 t

he
 P

U
D

 
zo

n
in

g
 c

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n 
to

 a
ll

o
w

fo
r 

a 
m

or
e 

u
n

iq
u

e
an

d
 

cr
ea

ti
ve

 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

. 
T

h
e 

m
in

im
u

m
 h

ea
te

d
 f

lo
o

r 
ar

ea
w

o
u

ld
 b

e 
1,

60
0

sq
u

ar
e 

fe
et

. 
 T

o
 t

h
e 

ex
te

n
t 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
, 

th
e 

A
p

p
li

ca
n

t 
is

 s
ee

ki
ng

 a
 c

o
n

cu
rr

en
t 

va
ri

an
ce

 f
ro

m
 S

ec
ti

on
 1

7
.9

0
.1

5
0

 a
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 t

h
e 

m
in

im
u

m
 d

w
el

li
ng

 u
n

it
 s

iz
e.

  
T

he
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
o

u
ld

 i
n

cl
u

d
e 

th
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 5

0-
fo

ot
 b

uf
fe

r 
al

on
g 

al
l 

ab
u

tt
in

g
 R

-1
0

0
 z

o
n

in
g

 d
is

tr
ic

ts
. 

 A
s 

re
fe

re
n

ce
d

 
on

 t
he

 S
it

e 
P

la
n,

 t
he

 t
yp

ic
al

 l
ot

 l
ay

ou
t 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 t
yp

e 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 u
ni

t 
is

 i
de

nt
if

ie
d 

be
lo

w
:

   
   

   
   

   
 

T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

il
l 

co
ns

is
t 

of
 h

om
es

 a
t 

a 
si

ze
, q

ua
li

ty
, a

nd
 p

ri
ce

 p
oi

nt
 c

om
m

en
su

ra
te

 w
it

h 
or

 
ex

ce
ed

in
g 

ho
m

es
 i

n
 t

he
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s.

  
G

en
er

al
ly

, 
th

e 
ar

ch
it

ec
tu

ra
l 

st
y

le
 a

nd
 c

o
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

ex
te

ri
or

 o
f 

th
e 

h
o

m
es

 w
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
si

st
 o

f 
br

ic
k,

st
ac

k
ed

 s
to

ne
, 

ce
d

ar
 a

nd
/o

r 
ce

m
en

ti
ti

o
u

s 
sh

ak
e,

 s
id

in
g

 b
oa

rd
, 

an
d 

ba
tt

en
 o

r 
co

m
b

in
at

io
n

s 
th

er
eo

f.
  T

h
e 

A
pp

li
ca

nt
 h

as
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

sa
m

pl
e 

re
n

d
er

in
g

s 
w

it
h

 th
is

 s
ub

m
it

ta
l.

  T
he

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ou

ld
 b

e 
se

rv
ed

 b
y 

a 
p

ri
m

ar
y

 f
ul

l-
ac

ce
ss

 e
n

tr
an

ce
 a

n
d

 a
 s

ec
o

n
d

ar
y 

en
tr

an
ce

 f
o

r 
em

er
g

en
cy

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
as

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
b

y
 B

ar
ro

w
 C

o
u

n
ty

 F
ir

e 
M

ar
sh

al
l 

al
o

n
g

 L
y

le
 R

o
ad

, 
w

hi
ch

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e 

la
n

d
sc

ap
ed

 a
n

d
 m

ai
n

ta
in

ed
 b

y
 a

 
H

om
eo

w
ne

rs
’ 

A
ss

o
ci

at
io

n
. 

T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

se
rv

ic
ed

 b
y 

B
ar

ro
w

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

at
er

 &
 S

ew
er

 
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

 (
se

w
er

) 
an

d 
th

e 
C

it
y 

of
 A

ub
ur

n 
P

ub
li

c 
W

or
ks

 (
w

at
er

).
   

T
he

 A
p

p
li

ca
n

t 
fu

rt
he

r 
su

b
m

it
s 

th
at

 s
ev

er
al

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 b
en

ef
it

s 
w

ou
ld

 r
es

ul
t 

in
 t

he
 p

ro
p

er
ty

 b
ei

n
g

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

u
n

d
er

 t
h

e 
C

it
y

’s
 P

U
D

 z
on

in
g 

cl
as

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

. 
 F

o
r 

ex
am

p
le

, 
th

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

o
u

ld
 i

n
cr

ea
se

 
th

e 
su

pp
ly

 o
f 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 t

he
 a

re
a,

 w
hi

ch
 i

s 
cu

rr
en

tl
y

 i
n

 h
ig

h
 d

em
an

d.
 B

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

m
or

e 
ho

m
es

, t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ca

n 
he

lp
 a

ll
ev

ia
te

 t
h

e 
sh

o
rt

ag
e 

o
f 

si
n

g
le

-f
am

il
y

 d
et

ac
he

d 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 a

nd
 p

ro
v

id
e 

ci
ti

ze
ns

 w
it

h
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 h
o

u
si

n
g

 
o

p
ti

o
n

s.
 I

n 
su

m
m

ar
y,

 t
he

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 z

on
in

g 
of

 P
U

D
 f

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 a

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
is

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

it
h

 t
he

 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 P
la

n.
 



4

P
U

D
 –

P
la

nn
ed

 U
n

it
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

P
u

rs
u

an
t 

to
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 1
7.

90
.1

40
, t

he
 i

nt
en

t 
an

d 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 a
 P

U
D

 z
on

in
g 

is
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

il
it

y 
of

 
re

la
ti

ve
ly

 l
ar

g
e 

sc
al

e,
 m

ix
ed

-u
se

 p
la

n
n

ed
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ts
, 

w
hi

ch
 i

n
co

rp
o

ra
te

 i
nn

ov
at

iv
e 

co
n

ce
p

ts
 o

f 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 i
n

 
la

nd
 

us
e,

 
pu

bl
ic

 
se

rv
ic

es
 

d
el

iv
er

y
, 

en
er

gy
 

co
ns

er
va

ti
on

, 
an

d
 

en
v

ir
o

n
m

en
ta

l 
pr

es
er

va
ti

on
. 

A
 

pl
an

ne
d 

u
n

it
 

de
ve

lo
p

m
en

t 
m

ay
 a

ll
o

w
 m

or
e 

fl
ex

ib
le

 p
la

ce
m

en
t,

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

t 
an

d 
o

ri
en

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

st
ru

ct
u

re
s,

 t
h

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

in
g 

fl
ex

ib
il

it
y 

in
 t

he
 s

ub
di

vi
si

on
 o

f 
la

nd
, a

nd
 t

he
 g

ro
up

in
g 

of
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

or
y 

fa
ci

li
ti

es
 s

uc
h

as
 g

ar
ag

es
 a

nd
 p

ar
ki

ng
. 

A
 p

la
nn

ed
 u

n
it

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
is

 i
nt

en
de

d 
to

 a
ll

ow
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 a
nd

/o
r 

d
en

si
ty

 o
f 

la
nd

 u
se

s 
no

t 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 i
n 

an
 e

st
ab

li
sh

ed
 z

on
in

g 
di

st
ri

ct
.  

T
he

 p
la

nn
ed

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

w
il

l 
co

nt
ai

n 
a 

va
ri

et
y 

of
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 a

nd
 l

ot
 s

iz
es

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
.  

M
or

eo
ve

r,
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t w
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e,
 h

ig
h

-e
nd

 p
er

so
na

l r
es

id
en

ce
s.

A
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

21
 a

cr
es

 o
f 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l 

si
te

 w
il

l 
be

 p
re

se
rv

ed
 a

s 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

, 
w

hi
ch

 f
ar

 e
xc

ee
ds

 t
h

e 
m

in
im

u
m

 
re

qu
ir

ed
 p

er
 t

he
 Z

on
in

g 
O

rd
in

an
ce

.  

IV
.

T
E

X
T

 A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 i

s 
se

ek
in

g
 t

o
 a

m
en

d 
S

ec
ti

o
n

s 
1

7
.9

0
.1

4
0

(C
)(

1)
 a

nd
 (

6
) 

o
f 

th
e 

C
it

y
 o

f 
A

ub
ur

n 
Z

o
n

in
g

 
O

rd
in

an
ce

. 
 T

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 r

ea
ds

 a
s 

fo
ll

o
w

s,
 w

it
h

 t
he

 r
eq

u
es

te
d

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 (
ad

d
it

io
n

s 
in

 B
o

ld
; 

re
da

ct
io

ns
 w

it
h

 S
tr

ik
et

h
ro

u
g

h
):

“C
.

S
pe

ci
al

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
. A

ll
 p

ro
po

se
d 

P
U

D
 p

la
nn

ed
 u

ni
t 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

di
st

ri
ct

 a
pp

li
ca

ti
on

s 
sh

al
l 

co
nf

or
m

 t
o 

th
e 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g 

sp
ec

if
ic

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
: 

1.
T

he
 m

ax
im

um
 d

en
si

ty
 s

ha
ll

 n
ot

 t
o 

ex
ce

ed
 t

w
o

 a
n

d
 t

w
o

-t
en

th
s

th
re

e 
an

d
 t

h
re

e-
te

n
th

s 
d

w
el

li
n

g
 u

n
it

s 
pe

r 
gr

os
s 

ac
re

. 

2.
T

he
 s

it
e 

m
us

t 
ab

ut
 a

 p
ub

li
c 

st
re

et
 f

or
 a

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
of

 a
t 

le
as

t 
on

e 
hu

nd
re

d 
fe

et
. 

3.
A

 r
eg

is
te

re
d 

en
gi

ne
er

, a
rc

hi
te

ct
, l

an
d 

su
rv

ey
or

 o
r 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ar

ch
it

ec
t 

sh
al

l 
pr

ep
ar

e 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

re
qu

ir
ed

 
fo

r 
in

cl
us

io
n 

in
 a

n 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n.
 T

he
 p

la
ns

 s
ha

ll
 h

av
e 

th
ei

r 
of

fi
ci

al
 r

eg
is

tr
at

io
n 

se
al

. 

4.
S

id
ew

al
k

s 
sh

al
l 

b
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 a

lo
n

g
 b

o
th

 s
id

es
 o

f 
al

l 
st

re
et

s 
w

it
h

in
 a

 P
U

D
. 

T
h

e 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

 o
f 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

 s
id

ew
al

ks
 a

re
 g

iv
en

 i
n 

th
e 

ci
ty

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
re

gu
la

ti
on

s.
 

5.
W

he
re

 a
 P

U
D

 a
bu

ts
 a

 R
-1

00
 d

is
tr

ic
t,

 t
he

 P
U

D
 s

ha
ll

 c
on

ta
in

 a
 f

if
ty

-f
oo

t 
w

id
e 

bu
ff

er
 s

tr
ip

 a
lo

ng
 t

he
 

ab
ut

ti
ng

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
li

ne
s,

 u
nl

es
s 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 h
as

 t
he

 s
am

e 
la

nd
 u

se
 a

nd
 l

ot
 s

iz
e 

(w
it

hi
n 

a 
te

n 
pe

rc
en

t 
va

ri
at

io
n)

 i
s 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

R
-1

00
 p

ro
pe

rt
y;

 a
nd

 s
h

al
l 

fu
rt

he
r 

m
ee

t 
al

l 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
ci

ty
 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
. 

6.
T

he
re

 s
ha

ll
 b

e 
no

 l
an

d 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
be

yo
nd

 t
he

 a
re

as
 n

ee
de

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 o

f 
ro

ad
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
pu

bl
ic

 u
ti

li
ti

es
/f

ac
il

it
ie

s,
 p

ri
or

 t
o 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

bu
il

di
ng

 p
er

m
it

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

it
hi

n 
a 

P
U

D
 p

la
nn

ed
 u

ni
t 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

” 

T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 i

s 
se

ek
in

g 
to

 i
nc

re
as

e 
th

e 
o

v
er

al
l 

d
en

si
ty

 f
ro

m
 2

.2
/u

pa
 t

o
 3

.3
/u

pa
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

or
e 

va
ri

et
y 

in
 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 ty
pe

/s
iz

es
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
m

or
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 u

n
it

s.
  T

he
 r

eq
ue

st
 to

 r
ep

ea
l t

he
 la

n
d

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
is

 t
o

 a
ll

o
w

 f
o

r 
m

u
lt

ip
le

 l
o

t 
g

ra
d

in
g

 d
u

ri
n

g
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

re
su

lt
 i

n
 a

 m
o

re
 c

o
h

es
iv

e 
si

te
. 

 T
h

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 

te
x

t 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 w
il

l 
pr

om
ot

e 
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 p

ro
p

er
ti

es
 t

h
at

 i
nc

or
po

ra
te

 m
o

re
 w

al
k

ab
le

 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
in

 c
lo

se
 p

ro
xi

m
it

y 
to

 n
ei

gh
bo

r-
se

rv
in

g 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 u

se
s.

  I
n 

ad
d

it
io

n
, t

he
 te

x
t a

m
en

dm
en

t w
il

l a
ll

ow
 

fo
r 

a 
g

ra
d

u
al

 d
en

si
ty

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

th
at

 a
ls

o 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
o

p
en

 s
pa

ce
, r

ec
re

at
io

n
al

 a
re

as
, a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
ga

th
er

in
g 

ar
ea

s.
 M

or
eo

ve
r,

 b
y 

al
lo

w
in

g 
fo

r 
a 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
it

h
 h

ig
he

r 
d

en
si

ty
, 

co
m

m
un

it
y 

m
em

be
rs

 
ha

ve
 i

m
pr

ov
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 t

h
in

g
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

h
ea

lt
h

ca
re

, 
gr

oc
er

y 
st

or
es

, 
an

d 
em

p
lo

y
m

en
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s.

In
 s

um
m

ar
y,

 
by

 a
ll

ow
in

g 
fo

r 
di

ve
rs

e 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 o

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

pa
ce

s,
 t

he
 t

ex
t 

am
en

dm
en

t 
ca

n 
fo

st
er

 a
 s

en
se

 o
f 



5

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

nd
 b

el
on

gi
ng

, 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 a
tt

ra
ct

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

an
d 

in
v

es
tm

en
ts

, 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 j
o

b
 c

re
at

io
n 

an
d

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

gr
ow

th
 f

or
 t

he
 C

it
y.

  

V
.

S
IT

E
 I

M
P

A
C

T
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

P
u

rs
u

an
t 

to
 t

h
e 

Z
o

n
in

g
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

, 
th

e 
A

p
p

li
ca

n
t 

su
b

m
it

s 
it

s 
w

ri
tt

en
 r

es
p

o
n

se
s 

to
 t

h
e 

im
p

ac
t 

an
al

y
si

s 
w

hi
ch

 s
ho

w
s 

th
at

 r
ez

on
in

g 
to

P
U

D
sa

ti
sf

ie
s 

th
e 

“S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 E
xe

rc
is

e 
of

 t
he

 Z
o

n
in

g
 P

ow
er

,”
 a

s 
fo

ll
o

w
s:

 

A
)

W
he

th
er

 a
 p

ro
po

se
d 

re
zo

ni
ng

 w
il

l p
er

m
it

 a
 u

se
 th

at
 is

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
in

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
us

e 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 
an

d 
ne

ar
by

 p
ro

pe
rt

y:

Y
es

.  
T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

re
zo

ni
ng

 i
s 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 a

nd
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

w
it

h 
th

e 
ex

is
ti

ng
 u

se
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

an
d 

ne
ar

by
 p

ro
p

er
ti

es
. 

 T
he

 P
ro

p
er

ty
m

ai
n

ta
in

s 
fr

on
ta

ge
 o

n
L

yl
e 

R
o

ad
. 

 T
h

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 r

es
id

en
ti

al
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

is
 c

om
pa

ti
bl

e 
w

it
h 

ex
is

ti
ng

 r
es

id
en

ti
al

 u
se

s 
an

d 
w

il
l 

fu
rt

he
r 

di
ve

rs
if

y 
ho

us
in

g 
op

ti
on

s 
in

 t
he

 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
ar

ea
.  

B
)

W
he

th
er

 a
 p

ro
po

se
d 

re
zo

ni
ng

 w
il

l 
ad

ve
rs

el
y 

af
fe

ct
 t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

us
e 

or
 u

se
ab

il
it

y 
of

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
or

 n
ea

rb
y 

pr
op

er
ty

:

N
o,

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
re

zo
ni

ng
 w

il
l 

no
t 

ad
ve

rs
el

y 
af

fe
ct

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
us

e 
or

 u
sa

bi
li

ty
 o

f 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 o

r 
ne

ar
by

 
pr

op
er

ti
es

. 
 

T
he

 
pr

op
os

ed
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

is
 

co
m

pa
ti

bl
e 

w
it

h 
th

e 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
P

la
n 

an
d 

co
m

pl
im

en
ta

ry
 t

o 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 a

nd
 n

ea
rb

y 
us

es
. 

C
)

W
he

th
er

 th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 to
 b

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
a 

pr
op

os
ed

 r
ez

on
in

g 
ha

s 
re

as
on

ab
le

 e
co

no
m

ic
 u

se
 a

s 
cu

rr
en

tl
y 

zo
ne

d:

T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 s

ub
m

it
s 

th
at

 d
ue

 t
o 

th
e 

si
ze

, l
oc

at
io

n,
 l

ay
ou

t,
 t

op
og

ra
ph

y,
 a

nd
 n

at
ur

al
 f

ea
tu

re
s 

of
 t

he
 S

ub
je

ct
 

P
ro

pe
rt

y,
 i

t 
do

es
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 e

co
no

m
ic

 u
se

 a
s 

cu
rr

en
tl

y 
zo

ne
d.

 

D
)

W
he

th
er

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 r
ez

on
in

g 
w

il
l r

es
ul

t i
n 

a 
us

e 
w

hi
ch

 w
il

l o
r 

co
ul

d 
ca

us
e 

an
 e

xc
es

si
ve

 o
r 

bu
rd

en
so

m
e 

us
e 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
re

et
s,

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

fa
ci

li
ti

es
, u

ti
li

ti
es

, o
r 

sc
ho

ol
s:

N
o,

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
re

zo
ni

ng
 w

il
l 

no
t 

re
su

lt
 i

n 
an

 e
xc

es
si

ve
 o

r 
bu

rd
en

so
m

e 
us

e 
of

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 s
y

st
em

s.
 T

h
e 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 h

as
 d

ir
ec

t 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o

 L
y

le
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

is
 i

n
 c

lo
se

 p
ro

x
im

it
y

 t
o

 A
tl

an
ta

 
H

ig
hw

ay
. 

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 z
o

n
in

g
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
an

d 
si

te
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 c
an

 m
it

ig
at

e 
an

y 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 p

ub
li

c 
fa

ci
li

ti
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 t
ra

ff
ic

, u
ti

li
ty

 d
em

an
d,

 s
to

rm
w

at
er

, a
n

d
 s

ch
o

o
ls

.  

E
)

W
he

th
er

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
re

zo
ni

ng
 i

s 
in

 c
on

fo
rm

it
y 

w
it

h 
th

e 
po

li
cy

 a
nd

 i
nt

en
t 

of
 t

he
 L

an
d 

U
se

 P
la

n:

Y
es

, 
th

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

pp
li

ca
ti

on
co

n
fo

rm
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
o

li
cy

 a
n

d
 i

n
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
e 

C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

v
e 

P
la

n
 

an
d 

F
ut

ur
e 

L
an

d 
U

se
 M

ap
. 

T
he

 S
ub

je
ct

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 i

s 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 a
s 

si
n

g
le

-f
am

il
y

 r
es

id
en

ti
al

 o
n 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

la
nd

 u
se

 m
ap

.  

F
)

W
he

th
er

 t
he

re
 a

re
 o

th
er

 e
xi

st
in

g 
or

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
co

nd
it

io
ns

 a
ff

ec
ti

ng
 t

he
 u

se
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

w
hi

ch
 g

iv
e 

su
pp

or
ti

ng
 g

ro
un

ds
 f

or
 e

it
he

r 
th

e 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

r 
di

sa
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 t
he

 z
on

in
g 

pr
op

os
al

:

Y
es

. 
T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

R
ez

on
in

g 
ac

hi
ev

es
 a

 g
oa

l 
of

 t
he

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 P

la
n 

by
 p

ro
po

si
ng

 a
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

si
te

 l
ay

ou
t 

th
at

 s
er

ve
s 

as
 a

n 
op

po
rt

un
it

y 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
dd

it
io

na
l 

ho
us

in
g.

  



6

V
I.

JU
S

T
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 R
E

Z
O

N
IN

G

T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 r

es
p

ec
tf

u
ll

y
 s

u
b

m
it

s 
th

at
 "

C
it

y 
of

 A
ub

ur
n 

Z
o

n
in

g
 O

rd
in

an
ce

” 
(t

he
 “

Z
o

n
in

g
 O

rd
in

an
ce

”)
, 

as
 a

m
en

de
d 

fr
om

 ti
m

e 
to

 ti
m

e,
 to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

at
 it

 c
la

ss
if

ie
s 

th
e 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 in

 a
n

y
 z

on
in

g 
d

is
tr

ic
t t

h
at

 w
o

u
ld

 p
re

cl
ud

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 a
 p

la
n

n
ed

, u
n

it
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t,
un

de
r 

th
e 

P
U

D
zo

ni
ng

 c
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
n,

 i
s 

un
co

ns
ti

tu
ti

on
al

 a
s 

a 
ta

ki
ng

 
of

 p
ro

pe
rt

y,
 a

 d
en

ia
l 

o
f 

eq
u

al
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n
, 

an
 a

rb
it

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 c

ap
ri

ci
o

u
s 

ac
t,

 a
n

d
 a

n
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

el
eg

at
io

n
 o

f 
au

th
o

ri
ty

 
un

de
r 

th
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

 c
o

n
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
la

te
r 

se
t f

or
th

 h
er

ei
n.

  A
ny

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 in
co

n
si

st
en

t z
on

in
g 

of
 th

e 
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o

 t
he

 Z
o

n
in

g
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
de

pr
iv

es
 t

he
 A

pp
li

ca
nt

 a
nd

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ow

ne
r 

of
 a

ny
 a

lt
er

na
ti

ve
 r

ea
so

n
ab

le
 u

se
 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

P
ro

pe
rt

y.
  

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
ly

, 
al

l 
ot

he
r 

zo
ni

ng
 c

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n
s,

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 o

n
es

 i
nt

er
ve

ni
ng

 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ex

is
ti

ng
 c

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

at
 r

eq
ue

st
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 w
ou

ld
 d

ep
ri

ve
 t

he
 A

pp
li

ca
nt

 a
nd

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ow

ne
r 

of
 

an
y

 r
ea

so
n

ab
le

 u
se

 a
n

d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
o

f 
th

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

. 
F

u
rt

h
er

, 
an

y
 a

tt
em

p
t 

b
y

 t
h

e
M

ay
o

r 
an

d
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y

 
of

 A
ub

ur
n 

to
 i

m
p

o
se

 g
re

at
er

 r
es

tr
ic

ti
on

s 
up

on
 t

he
 m

an
ne

r 
in

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

w
il

l 
be

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 t

ha
n 

pr
es

en
tl

y 
ex

is
t 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
eq

ua
ll

y 
un

la
w

fu
l.

  

A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

, A
p

p
li

ca
n

t s
u

b
m

it
s 

th
at

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t z

o
n

in
g

 c
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
n 

an
d

 a
n

y
 o

th
er

 z
on

in
g 

of
 th

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 
sa

ve
 f

o
r 

w
h

at
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 a

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
in

 t
he

 Z
o

n
in

g
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 c
o

n
st

it
u

te
 a

n 
ar

bi
tr

ar
y 

an
d

 u
n

re
as

o
n

ab
le

 
us

e 
of

 t
h

e 
zo

n
in

g
 a

nd
 p

o
li

ce
 p

o
w

er
s 

b
ec

au
se

 t
h

ey
 b

ea
r 

no
 s

u
b

st
an

ti
al

 r
el

at
io

n
sh

ip
 t

o
 t

he
 p

ub
li

c 
h

ea
lt

h
, 

sa
fe

ty
, 

m
o

ra
li

ty
 o

r 
ge

ne
ra

l 
w

el
fa

re
 o

f 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 s
u

b
st

an
ti

al
ly

 h
ar

m
 t

he
 A

pp
li

ca
nt

 a
nd

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 o

w
ne

r.
  

A
ll

in
co

n
si

st
en

t 
zo

ni
ng

 c
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
n

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 z
on

in
g 

an
d 

th
e 

zo
ni

n
g

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 h

er
eu

n
d

er
 w

o
u

ld
 

co
n

st
it

u
te

 a
nd

 a
rb

it
ra

ry
 a

n
d

 u
nr

ea
so

na
bl

e 
us

e 
o

f 
th

e 
zo

ni
ng

 a
n

d
 p

ol
ic

e 
p

o
w

er
s 

b
ec

au
se

 t
he

y 
be

ar
 o

r 
w

ou
ld

 b
ea

r 
no

 s
u

b
st

an
ti

al
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

to
 t

he
 p

ub
li

c 
he

al
th

, 
sa

fe
ty

, 
m

o
ra

li
ty

, 
or

 g
en

er
al

 w
el

fa
re

 o
f 

th
e 

p
u

b
li

c 
an

d 
w

o
u

ld
 

su
b

st
an

ti
al

ly
 h

ar
m

 t
he

 A
p

p
li

ca
n

t 
an

d 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 o
w

n
er

. 
 F

u
rt

h
er

, 
th

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 i
n

co
n

si
st

en
t 

zo
ni

ng
 c

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n 
co

n
st

it
u

te
s,

 
an

d 
al

l 
zo

ni
ng

 
an

d 
pl

an
 

cl
as

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

s 
in

te
rv

en
in

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 
in

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

zo
ni

ng
 

cl
as

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
at

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 d

ev
el

o
p

 t
h

is
 P

ro
je

ct
 w

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

st
it

u
te

, 
a 

ta
k

in
g

 o
f 

th
e 

o
w

n
er

’s
 p

ri
v

at
e 

p
ro

p
er

ty
 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

ju
st

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
an

d 
w

it
h

o
u

t 
du

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
in

 v
io

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

F
if

th
 A

m
en

dm
en

t 
an

d
 F

ou
rt

ee
nt

h 
A

m
en

dm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 C
o

n
st

it
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
S

ta
te

s,
 a

nd
 A

rt
ic

le
 I

, 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 I
, 

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 I

 a
nd

 A
rt

ic
le

 I
, 

S
ec

ti
o

n
 

II
I,

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 I

 o
f 

th
e 

C
on

st
it

ut
io

n 
of

 t
he

 S
ta

te
 o

f 
G

eo
rg

ia
 a

nd
 t

he
 D

ue
 P

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 E

qu
al

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

C
la

us
es

 o
f 

th
e 

F
ou

rt
ee

nt
h 

A
m

en
dm

en
t 

to
 t

he
 C

on
st

it
ut

io
n 

of
 t

he
 U

ni
te

d 
S

ta
te

s.
  

F
ur

th
er

, 
th

e 
A

pp
li

ca
nt

 r
es

p
ec

tf
u

ll
y

 s
u

b
m

it
s 

th
at

 f
ai

lu
re

 t
o

 a
pp

ro
ve

 t
h

e 
re

q
u

es
te

d
 r

ez
o

n
in

g
 c

ha
ng

e 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 u
n

co
n

st
it

u
ti

o
n

al
 a

nd
 w

ou
ld

 d
is

cr
im

in
at

e 
in

 a
n 

ar
bi

tr
ar

y,
 c

ap
ri

ci
ou

s 
an

d
 u

nr
ea

so
na

bl
e 

m
an

n
er

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
A

pp
li

ca
nt

 a
n

d
 P

ro
p

er
ty

 o
w

ne
r 

an
d 

o
w

n
er

s 
of

 s
im

il
ar

ly
 s

it
ua

te
d 

p
ro

p
er

ty
 i

n
 v

io
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

rt
ic

le
 I

, 
S

ec
ti

on
 I

II
, 

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 I

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

n
st

it
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
S

ta
te

 o
f 

G
eo

rg
ia

 a
nd

 t
he

 E
q

u
al

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

C
la

us
e 

of
 t

he
 F

o
u

rt
ee

n
th

 
A

m
en

dm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 C
on

st
it

ut
io

n 
of

 t
he

 U
ni

te
d 

S
ta

te
s.

  

F
in

al
ly

, 
th

e 
A

pp
li

ca
nt

 r
es

pe
ct

fu
ll

y 
su

b
m

it
s 

th
at

 t
he

 M
ay

or
 a

nd
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y

 o
f 

A
ub

ur
n 

ca
n

n
o

t 
la

w
fu

ll
y 

im
po

se
 m

or
e 

re
st

ri
ct

iv
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
up

on
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

th
an

 p
re

se
nt

ly
 e

xi
st

, a
s 

to
 d

o 
so

 
n

o
t 

o
n

ly
 w

ou
ld

 c
o

n
st

it
u

te
 a

 t
ak

in
g 

of
th

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 a
s 

se
t 

fo
rt

h
 a

b
o

v
e,

 b
u

t 
al

so
 w

ou
ld

 a
m

ou
nt

 t
o

 a
n

 u
nl

aw
fu

l 
de

le
ga

ti
on

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
au

th
o

ri
ty

, 
in

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
o

p
p

o
si

ti
o

n
, 

in
 v

io
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

rt
ic

le
 I

X
, 

S
ec

ti
on

 I
V

, 
P

ar
ag

ra
p

h
 I

I 
o

f 
th

e 
G

eo
rg

ia
 C

o
n

st
it

u
ti

o
n

. 
 

T
h

is
 A

pp
li

ca
ti

on
 m

ee
ts

 f
av

or
ab

ly
 w

it
h

 th
e 

p
re

sc
ri

b
ed

 te
st

 s
et

 o
u

t b
y 

th
e 

G
eo

rg
ia

 S
up

re
m

e 
C

o
u

rt
 to

 b
e 

u
se

d
 

in
 e

st
ab

li
sh

in
g

 
th

e 
co

n
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 b
al

an
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n
 p

ri
v

at
e 

p
ro

p
er

ty
 

ri
g

h
ts

 a
nd

 z
o

n
in

g
 

an
d

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

s 
an

 
ex

pr
es

si
on

 o
f 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t’

s 
po

li
ce

 p
ow

er
. 

S
ee

G
uh

l 
v.

 H
ol

co
m

b 
B

ri
dg

e 
R

oa
d 

C
or

p.
, 2

38
 G

a.
 3

22
 (

19
77

).
 

V
II

.
C

O
N

C
L

U
S

IO
N

 



7

F
or

 t
he

 f
or

eg
oi

ng
 r

ea
so

ns
, 

th
e 

A
pp

li
ca

nt
 r

es
pe

ct
fu

ll
y 

re
qu

es
ts

 t
ha

t 
th

is
 A

pp
li

ca
ti

on
 t

o
R

ez
on

e 
fr

om
A

G
 t

o 
P

U
D

, 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 t
he

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

T
ex

t 
A

m
en

dm
en

t,
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
.

T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 w

el
co

m
es

 t
he

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 m

ee
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
it

y
 o

f 
A

ub
ur

n 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
st

af
f 

to
 a

n
sw

er
 a

ny
 q

u
es

ti
o

n
s 

o
r 

to
 a

d
d

re
ss

 a
n

y
 c

o
n

ce
rn

s 
re

la
ti

n
g

 
to

 t
hi

s 
L

et
te

r 
of

 I
nt

en
t 

or
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls

.  

R
es

p
ec

tf
u

ll
y

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

h
is

23
rd

 da
y 

of
 A

ug
us

t,
 2

02
4.

 

A
N

D
E

R
S

E
N

, T
A

T
E

 &
 C

A
R

R
, P

.C
.

M
el
od

y 
A

. 
G

lo
ut

on

M
el

od
y

A
. G

lo
ut

on
, E

sq
. 

E
nc

lo
su

re
s 

M
A

G
/d

w
b 

 
4
8
6
3
-0

0
5
2
-1

1
8

6
, 

v
. 

1















I. 
IN

T
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N
 

T
hi

s 
A

pp
li

ca
ti

on
 f

or
 R

ez
on

in
g 

is
 s

ub
m

it
te

d 
fo

r 
a 

57
.9

17
-a

cr
e 

pa
rc

el
 o

fl
an

d 
lo

ca
te

d 
at

 
10

0 
L

yl
e 

R
oa

d,
 j

us
t 

so
ut

h 
o

f i
ts

 i
nt

er
se

ct
io

n 
o

f A
ut

ry
 R

oa
d 

(h
er

ei
na

ft
er

 th
e 

"P
ro

pe
rt

y"
).

 
T

he
 

Pr
op

er
ty

 i
s 

an
 a

ss
em

bl
ag

e 
o

f 
tw

o 
ta

x 
pa

rc
el

s,
 w

it
h 

fr
on

ta
ge

 o
n 

L
yl

e 
R

oa
d.

 T
he

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
is

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 z

on
ed

 A
G

 (
A

gr
ic

ul
tu

ra
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t)
 p

ur
su

an
t 

to
 t

he
 C

it
y 

o
f A

ub
ur

n 
Z

on
in

g 
O

rd
in

an
ce

 
(t

he
 "

Z
on

in
g 

O
rd

in
an

ce
")

. T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
, M

B
C

 D
ev

el
op

er
s,

 L
L

C
 (

th
e 

"A
pp

li
ca

nt
")

 n
ow

 s
ee

ks
 

ap
pr

ov
al

 t
o 

re
zo

ne
 t

he
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

to
 P

U
D

 (
Pl

an
ne

d 
U

ni
t 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
D

is
tr

ic
t)

 i
n 

or
de

r 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
a 

di
st

in
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
si

ng
le

-f
am

il
y 

de
ta

ch
ed

 r
es

id
en

ti
al

 c
om

m
un

it
y 

w
ith

 1
88

 
lo

ts
. 

T
hi

s 
do

cu
m

en
t 

is
 s

ub
m

it
te

d 
as

 t
he

 L
et

te
r 

o
f 

In
te

nt
, 

Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

si
s 

St
at

em
en

t, 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
 th

e 
Z

on
in

g 
O

rd
in

an
ce

. 

II
. 

D
E

SC
R

IP
T

IO
N

 O
F

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 A

N
D

 S
U

R
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

 

T
he

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
is

 a
 la

rg
e 

tr
ac

t f
ro

nt
in

g 
L

yl
e 

R
oa

d
. I

t c
on

ta
in

s 
a 

pe
rs

on
al

 r
es

id
en

ce
 a

nd
 s

ev
er

al
 

ac
ce

ss
or

y 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

. 
T

he
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

is
 m

os
tl

y 
w

oo
de

d 
an

d 
sl

op
es

 s
ou

th
w

ar
d 

to
w

ar
d 

a 
cr

ee
k 

w
ith

 
fl

oo
dp

la
in

. 
T

he
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 z

on
in

g 
cl

as
si

fi
ca

ti
on

s 
an

d 
us

es
 a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

L
oc

at
io

n 
Z

on
in

g 
P

ro
po

se
d 

Si
te

 
P

U
D

 

N
or

th
 

A
G

 a
nd

 R
-1

00
 

E
as

t 
M

H
 a

nd
 R

-1
00

 

S
ou

th
 

R
-1

00
 

W
es

t 
A

G
 

2 



T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 is

 r
eq

ue
st

in
g 

th
e 

C
it

y 
o

f A
ub

ur
n 

re
zo

ne
 th

e 
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

to
 a

llo
w

 f
or

 a
 p

la
nn

ed
 

un
it

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
T

he
 s

ite
 i

s 
su

rr
ou

nd
ed

 b
y 

ot
he

r 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
us

es
 t

o 
in

cl
ud

e 
pr

im
ar

il
y 

R
-1

00
 

zo
ni

ng
 c

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

ns
. 

A
s 

su
ch

, 
th

e 
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

is
 i

de
al

 f
or

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
as

 a
 r

es
id

en
ti

al
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
an

d 
w

ill
 a

llo
w

 f
or

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f m

or
e 

ho
us

in
g.

 

A
s 

st
at

ed
 i

n 
th

e 
C

it
y 

o
f A

ub
ur

n'
s 

20
18

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 P

la
n 

(t
he

 "
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 P
la

n"
), 

th
e 

Fu
tu

re
 L

an
d 

U
se

 M
ap

 i
de

nt
if

ie
s 

th
is

 a
re

a 
as

 s
in

gl
e-

fa
m

ily
 r

es
id

en
tia

l. 
T

he
 r

ez
on

in
g 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

P
ro

pe
rt

y,
 a

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

pp
lic

an
t,

 w
ill

 e
nh

an
ce

 t
he

 s
ur

ro
un

di
ng

 a
nd

 
ex

is
ti

ng
 a

re
a.

 S
pe

ci
fi

ca
ll

y,
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

o
f a

 p
la

nn
ed

 u
ni

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

ho
us

in
g 

op
ti

on
s 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s.
 

II
I. 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
 

A
s 

sh
ow

n 
on

 th
e 

si
te

 p
la

n 
by

 T
ho

m
as

 &
 H

ut
to

n,
 d

at
ed

 A
ug

us
t 2

1
, 2

02
4,

 a
nd

 f
ile

d 
w

ith
 th

is
 

A
pp

li
ca

ti
on

 (
he

re
in

af
te

r 
th

e 
"S

ite
 P

la
n"

), 
th

e 
A

pp
li

ca
nt

 is
 p

ro
po

si
ng

 to
 r

ez
on

e 
57

.9
17

 a
cr

es
 f

ro
m

 
A

G
 t

o 
P

U
D

 i
n 

or
de

r 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
o

f 
a 

pl
an

ne
d 

un
it

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

ith
 1

88
 

un
its

. 
T

he
 A

pp
li

ca
nt

 p
ro

po
se

s 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 t
he

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
it

h 
th

e 
PU

D
 z

on
in

g 
cl

as
si

fi
ca

ti
on

 to
 a

ll
ow

 f
or

 a
 m

or
e 

un
iq

ue
 a

nd
 c

re
at

iv
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
. T

he
 m

in
im

um
 h

ea
te

d 
fl

oo
r 

ar
ea

 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

1,
60

0 
sq

ua
re

 fe
et

. 
T

o 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
, t

he
 A

pp
lic

an
t i

s 
se

ek
in

g 
a 

co
nc

ur
re

nt
 v

ar
ia

nc
e 

fr
om

 S
ec

ti
on

 1
7 .

90
.1

50
 a

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 t
he

 m
in

im
um

 d
w

el
lin

g 
un

it 
si

ze
. 

T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

ill
 c

on
si

st
 o

f h
om

es
 a

t 
a 

si
ze

, q
ua

lit
y,

 a
nd

 p
ri

ce
 p

oi
nt

 c
om

m
en

su
ra

te
 w

it
h 

or
 e

xc
ee

di
ng

 h
om

es
 i

n 
th

e 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
co

m
m

un
it

ie
s.

 
G

en
er

al
ly

, 
th

e 
ar

ch
it

ec
tu

ra
l 

st
yl

e 
an

d 
co

m
po

si
ti

on
 o

f t
he

 e
xt

er
io

r 
o

f t
he

 h
om

es
 w

ou
ld

 c
on

si
st

 o
f b

ri
ck

, s
ta

ck
ed

 s
to

ne
d,

 c
ed

ar
 a

nd
/o

r c
em

en
ti

ti
ou

s 
sh

ak
e,

 s
id

in
g 

bo
ar

d 
an

d 
ba

tt
en

 o
r 

co
m

bi
na

ti
on

s 
th

er
eo

f.
 

T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 h

as
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

sa
m

pl
e 

re
nd

er
in

gs
 w

ith
 t

hi
s 

su
bm

itt
al

. 
T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
se

rv
ed

 b
y 

a 
pr

im
ar

y 
fu

ll 
ac

ce
ss

 e
nt

ra
nc

e 
an

d 
a 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
en

tr
an

ce
 f

or
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
ve

hi
cl

es
 a

s 
re

qu
ir

ed
 b

y 
B

ar
ro

w
 C

ou
nt

y 
F

ir
e 

M
ar

sh
al

l 
al

on
g 

L
yl

e 
R

oa
d,

 w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

la
nd

sc
ap

ed
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
by

 a
 H

om
eo

w
ne

rs
' A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
. 

T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 f

ur
th

er
 s

ub
m

its
 th

at
 s

ev
er

al
 c

om
m

un
it

y 
be

ne
fi

ts
 w

ou
ld

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 

be
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

un
de

r 
th

e 
C

it
y'

s 
PU

D
 

zo
ni

ng
 

cl
as

si
fi

ca
tio

n.
 

F
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ou

ld
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
su

pp
ly

 o
f h

ou
si

ng
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

, w
hi

ch
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 in

 h
ig

h 
de

m
an

d.
 

B
y 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
m

or
e 

ho
m

es
, 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ca
n 

he
lp

 a
lle

vi
at

e 
th

e 
sh

or
ta

ge
 o

f 
si

ng
le

-f
am

il
y 

de
ta

ch
ed

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
iti

ze
ns

 w
it

h 
ad

di
ti

on
al

 h
ou

si
ng

 o
pt

io
ns

. I
n 

su
m

m
ar

y,
 th

e 
re

qu
es

te
d 

zo
ni

ng
 o

f P
U

D
 f

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

o
f a

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
is

 c
on

si
st

en
t w

ith
 t

he
 C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 P
la

n.
 

PU
D

 -
P

la
nn

ed
 U

ni
t D

ev
el

op
m

en
t D

is
tr

ic
t 

P
ur

su
an

t 
to

 S
ec

ti
on

 1
7.

90
.1

40
, 

th
e 

in
te

nt
 a

nd
 p

ur
po

se
 o

f 
a 

PU
D

 z
on

in
g 

is
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

il
it

y 
o

f 
re

la
ti

ve
ly

 l
ar

ge
 s

ca
le

, 
m

ix
ed

-u
se

 p
la

nn
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
, 

w
hi

ch
 i

nc
or

po
ra

te
 

in
no

va
ti

ve
 c

on
ce

pt
s 

o
f 

ef
fi

ci
en

cy
 i

n 
la

nd
 u

se
, p

ub
li

c 
se

rv
ic

es
 d

el
iv

er
y,

 e
ne

rg
y 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n,

 a
nd

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l 

pr
es

er
va

ti
on

. 
A

 p
la

nn
ed

 u
ni

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
m

ay
 a

ll
ow

 m
or

e 
fl

ex
ib

le
 p

la
ce

m
en

t, 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

t 
an

d 
or

ie
nt

at
io

n 
o

f 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

, 
th

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

in
g 

fl
ex

ib
ili

ty
 

in
 

th
e 

su
bd

iv
is

io
n 

o
f l

an
d,

 a
nd

 t
he

 g
ro

up
in

g 
o

f 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
so

ry
 f

ac
il

it
ie

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
ga

ra
ge

s 
an

d 
pa

rk
in

g.
 A

 p
la

nn
ed

 u
ni

t 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
is

 i
nt

en
de

d 
to

 a
llo

w
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 a
nd

/o
r 

de
ns

it
y 

o
f 

la
nd

 u
se

s 
no

t o
th

er
w

is
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 i
n 

an
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
zo

ni
ng

 d
is

tr
ic

t. 

3 



T
he

 p
la

nn
ed

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
w

il
l 

co
nt

ai
n 

a 
va

ri
et

y 
o

f 
ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
lo

t 
si

ze
s 

to
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 d

em
an

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
it

y.
 

M
or

eo
ve

r,
 t

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e,
 h

ig
h-

en
d 

pe
rs

on
al

 r
es

id
en

ce
s.

 A
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

21
 

ac
re

s 
o

f 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
si

te
 w

ill
 

be
 

pr
es

er
ve

d 
as

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e,

 w
hi

ch
 f

ar
 e

xc
ee

ds
 t

he
 m

in
im

um
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

pe
r 

th
e 

Z
on

in
g 

O
rd

in
an

ce
. 

A
) 

IV
. 

S
IT

E
 I

M
P

A
C

T
 A

N
A

L
Y

SI
S 

P
ur

su
an

t 
to

 t
he

 Z
on

in
g 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n,

 t
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 s

ub
m

it
s 

its
 w

ri
tt

en
 r

es
po

ns
es

 to
 t

he
 

im
pa

ct
 a

na
ly

si
s 

w
hi

ch
 s

ho
w

s 
th

at
 r

ez
on

in
g 

to
 P

U
D

 s
at

is
fi

es
 th

e 
"S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 G
ov

er
ni

ng
 E

xe
rc

is
e 

o
f t

he
 Z

on
in

g 
P

ow
er

,"
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s:
 

W
he

th
er

 a
 p

ro
po

se
d 

re
zo

ni
ng

 w
ill

 p
er

m
it

 a
 u

se
 t

ha
t 

is
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

in
 v

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

us
e 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
dj

ac
en

t a
nd

 n
ea

rb
y 

pr
op

er
ty

: 

Y
es

. 
T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

re
zo

ni
ng

 
is

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
an

d 
su

it
ab

le
 

w
it

h 
th

e 
ex

1s
tm

g 
us

e 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
o

f a
dj

ac
en

t 
an

d 
ne

ar
by

 p
ro

pe
rt

ie
s.

 
T

he
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 f

ro
nt

ag
e 

on
 L

yl
e 

R
oa

d
. 

T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
is

 c
om

pa
ti

bl
e 

w
it

h 
ex

is
ti

ng
 r

es
id

en
ti

al
 u

se
s 

an
d 

w
il

l 
fu

rt
he

r 
di

ve
rs

if
y 

ho
us

in
g 

op
ti

on
s 

in
 t

he
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 a

re
a.

 

B
) 

W
he

th
er

 a
 p

ro
po

se
d 

re
zo

ni
ng

 w
ill

 a
dv

er
se

ly
 a

ff
ec

t t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
us

e 
or

 u
se

ab
il

it
y 

o
f a

dj
ac

en
t 

or
 n

ea
rb

y 
pr

op
er

ty
: 

N
o

, a
pp

ro
va

l 
o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
re

zo
ni

ng
 w

ill
 n

ot
 a

dv
er

se
ly

 a
ff

ec
t t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

us
e 

or
 u

sa
bi

lit
y 

o
f 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 
or

 n
ea

rb
y 

pr
op

er
tie

s.
 

T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
is

 
co

m
pa

ti
bl

e 
w

ith
 t

he
 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 P

la
n 

an
d 

co
m

pl
im

en
ta

ry
 to

 a
dj

ac
en

t a
nd

 n
ea

rb
y 

us
es

. 

C
) 

W
he

th
er

 th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 to
 b

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
a 

pr
op

os
ed

 r
ez

on
in

g 
ha

s 
re

as
on

ab
le

 e
co

no
m

ic
 u

se
 a

s 
cu

rr
en

tl
y 

zo
ne

d
: 

T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 s

ub
m

its
 th

at
 d

ue
 to

 t
he

 s
iz

e,
 lo

ca
tio

n,
 l

ay
ou

t, 
to

po
gr

ap
hy

, a
nd

 n
at

ur
al

 f
ea

tu
re

s 
o

f t
he

 S
ub

je
ct

 P
ro

pe
rt

y,
 it

 d
oe

s 
no

t h
av

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 e
co

no
m

ic
 u

se
 a

s 
cu

rr
en

tly
 z

on
ed

. 

D
) 

W
he

th
er

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 r
ez

on
in

g 
w

ill
 r

es
ul

t i
n 

a 
us

e 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 o
r 

co
ul

d 
ca

us
e 

an
 e

xc
es

si
ve

 o
r 

bu
rd

en
so

m
e 

us
e 

o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

st
re

et
s,

 tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 u
til

iti
es

, o
r 

sc
ho

ol
s:

 

N
o,

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
o

f t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
re

zo
ni

ng
 w

ill
 n

ot
 r

es
ul

t 
in

 a
n 

ex
ce

ss
iv

e 
or

 b
ur

de
ns

om
e 

us
e 

o
f 

th
e 

ex
is

ti
ng

 i
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

sy
st

em
s.

 T
he

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ha

s 
di

re
ct

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 L

yl
e 

R
oa

d 
an

d 
is

 i
n 

cl
os

e 
pr

ox
im

it
y 

to
 A

tl
an

ta
 H

ig
hw

ay
. A

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 z

on
in

g 
co

nd
it

io
ns

 a
nd

 s
it

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 c

an
 m

it
ig

at
e 

an
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
im

pa
ct

s 
on

 p
ub

li
c 

fa
ci

li
ti

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 t

ra
ff

ic
, 

ut
il

it
y 

de
m

an
d,

 s
to

rm
w

at
er

, a
nd

 s
ch

oo
ls

. 

E)
 

W
he

th
er

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
re

zo
ni

ng
 i

s 
in

 c
on

fo
rm

ity
 w

ith
 t

he
 p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
in

te
nt

 o
f t

he
 L

an
d 

U
se

 
Pl

an
: 

4 



F)
 

Y
es

, 
th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 R

ez
on

in
g 

A
pp

li
ca

ti
on

 c
on

fo
rm

s 
w

ith
 t

he
 p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
in

te
nt

 o
f 

th
e 

C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 P

la
n 

an
d 

Fu
tu

re
 L

an
d 

U
se

 M
ap

. 
T

he
 S

ub
je

ct
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

is
 i

de
nt

if
ie

d 
as

 
si

ng
le

-f
am

il
y 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

on
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 l
an

d 
us

e 
m

ap
. 

W
he

th
er

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
ot

he
r e

xi
st

in
g 

or
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

us
e 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 w

hi
ch

 g
iv

e 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

gr
ou

nd
s 

fo
r 

ei
th

er
 t

he
 a

pp
ro

va
l 

or
 d

is
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f 
th

e 
zo

ni
ng

 p
ro

po
sa

l: 

Y
es

. 
T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

R
ez

on
in

g 
ac

hi
ev

es
 a

 g
oa

l 
o

f 
th

e 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 P
la

n 
by

 p
ro

po
si

ng
 a

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 s
ite

 la
yo

ut
 th

at
 s

er
ve

s 
as

 a
n 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 h

ou
si

ng
. 

V
. 

JU
ST

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

 F
O

R
 R

E
Z

O
N

IN
G

 

T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 r

es
pe

ct
fu

ll
y 

su
bm

its
 t

ha
t 

"C
it

y 
o

f A
ub

ur
n 

Z
on

in
g 

O
rd

in
an

ce
" 

(t
he

 "
Z

on
in

g 
O

rd
in

an
ce

")
, 

as
 a

m
en

de
d 

fr
om

 t
im

e 
to

 t
im

e,
 t

o 
th

e 
ex

te
nt

 t
ha

t 
it 

cl
as

si
fi

es
 t

he
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

in
 a

ny
 

zo
ni

ng
 d

is
tr

ic
t 

th
at

 w
ou

ld
 p

re
cl

ud
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

o
f 

a 
pl

an
ne

d,
 u

ni
t 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

un
de

r 
th

e 
PU

D
 

zo
ni

ng
 c

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n,
 is

 u
nc

on
st

it
ut

io
na

l 
as

 a
 t

ak
in

g 
o

f p
ro

pe
rt

y,
 a

 d
en

ia
l 

o
f 

eq
ua

l 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n,

 a
n 

ar
bi

tr
ar

y 
an

d 
ca

pr
ic

io
us

 
ac

t,
 

an
d 

an
 

un
la

w
fu

l 
de

le
ga

tio
n 

o
f 

au
th

or
it

y 
un

de
r 

th
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

 
co

ns
tit

ut
io

na
l 

pr
ov

is
io

ns
 l

at
er

 s
et

 f
or

th
 h

er
ei

n.
 

A
ny

 e
xi

st
in

g 
in

co
ns

is
te

nt
 z

on
in

g 
o

f t
he

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
pu

rs
ua

nt
 t

o 
th

e 
Z

on
in

g 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
de

pr
iv

es
 t

he
 A

pp
li

ca
nt

 a
nd

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ow

ne
r 

o
f 

an
y 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 u

se
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

P
ro

pe
rt

y.
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, 
al

l 
ot

he
r 

zo
ni

ng
 c

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

ns
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
on

es
 i

nt
er

ve
ni

ng
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

ex
is

ti
ng

 c
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
at

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 h

er
ei

n,
 w

ou
ld

 
de

pr
iv

e 
th

e 
A

pp
li

ca
nt

 a
nd

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ow

ne
r 

o
f a

ny
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
us

e 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f t

he
 P

ro
pe

rt
y.

 
Fu

rt
he

r,
 a

ny
 a

tt
em

pt
 b

y 
th

e 
M

ay
or

 a
nd

 C
ou

nc
il

 o
f t

he
 C

it
y 

o
f A

ub
ur

n 
to

 im
po

se
 g

re
at

er
 re

st
ri

ct
io

ns
 

up
on

 t
he

 m
an

ne
r 

in
 w

hi
ch

 t
he

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

th
an

 p
re

se
nt

ly
 e

xi
st

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
eq

ua
lly

 
un

la
w

fu
l. A

cc
or

di
ng

ly
, A

pp
li

ca
nt

 s
ub

m
its

 th
at

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t z

on
in

g 
cl

as
si

fi
ca

ti
on

 a
nd

 a
ny

 o
th

er
 z

on
in

g 
o

f t
he

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
sa

ve
 f

or
 w

ha
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
qu

es
te

d 
as

 e
st

ab
li

sh
ed

 in
 th

e 
Z

on
in

g 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
co

ns
tit

ut
e 

an
 a

rb
itr

ar
y 

an
d 

un
re

as
on

ab
le

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 z

on
in

g 
an

d 
po

li
ce

 p
ow

er
s 

be
ca

us
e 

th
ey

 b
ea

r n
o 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
l 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

to
 t

he
 p

ub
li

c 
he

al
th

, s
af

et
y,

 m
or

al
it

y 
or

 g
en

er
al

 w
el

fa
re

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
li

c 
an

d 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 

ha
rm

 t
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 a

nd
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

ow
ne

r. 
A

ll 
in

co
ns

is
te

nt
 z

on
in

g 
cl

as
si

fi
ca

ti
on

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
zo

ni
ng

 
an

d 
th

e 
zo

ni
ng

 
re

qu
es

te
d 

he
re

un
de

r 
w

ou
ld

 
co

ns
ti

tu
te

 
an

d 
ar

bi
tr

ar
y 

an
d 

un
re

as
on

ab
le

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 z

on
in

g 
an

d 
po

li
ce

 p
ow

er
s 

be
ca

us
e 

th
ey

 b
ea

r 
or

 w
ou

ld
 b

ea
r 

no
 s

ub
st

an
tia

l 
re

la
ti

on
sh

ip
 t

o 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
, 

sa
fe

ty
, 

m
or

al
it

y,
 o

r 
ge

ne
ra

l 
w

el
fa

re
 o

f 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 w
ou

ld
 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 h
ar

m
 t

he
 A

pp
li

ca
nt

 a
nd

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ow

ne
r.

 
F

ur
th

er
, t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

in
co

ns
is

te
nt

 z
on

in
g 

cl
as

si
fi

ca
ti

on
 c

on
st

it
ut

es
, 

an
d 

al
l 

zo
ni

ng
 a

nd
 p

la
n 

cl
as

si
fi

ca
ti

on
s 

in
te

rv
en

in
g 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

in
co

ns
is

te
nt

 z
on

in
g 

cl
as

si
fi

ca
ti

on
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

re
qu

ir
ed

 t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

th
is

 P
ro

je
ct

 w
ou

ld
 c

on
st

itu
te

, 
a 

ta
ki

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
ow

ne
r'

s 
pr

iv
at

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 w

it
ho

ut
 j

us
t 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n 
an

d 
w

it
ho

ut
 d

ue
 p

ro
ce

ss
 i

n 
vi

ol
at

io
n 

o
f t

he
 F

if
th

 A
m

en
dm

en
t 

an
d 

F
ou

rt
ee

nt
h 

A
m

en
dm

en
t 

o
f t

he
 C

on
st

it
ut

io
n 

o
f 

th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
, 

an
d 

A
rt

ic
le

 I
, 

Se
ct

io
n 

I,
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 I
 a

nd
 

A
rt

ic
le

 I
, 

Se
ct

io
n 

II
I,

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 

I 
o

f 
th

e 
C

on
st

it
ut

io
n 

o
f 

th
e 

S
ta

te
 o

f 
G

eo
rg

ia
 a

nd
 t

he
 D

ue
 P

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 E

qu
al

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

C
la

us
es

 o
f 

th
e 

Fo
ur

te
en

th
 A

m
en

dm
en

t t
o 

th
e 

C
on

st
it

ut
io

n 
o

f t
he

 U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
. 

F
ur

th
er

, t
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 r

es
pe

ct
fu

ll
y 

su
bm

it
s 

th
at

 f
ai

lu
re

 t
o 

ap
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

re
qu

es
te

d 
re

zo
ni

ng
 

ch
an

ge
 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 

un
co

ns
ti

tu
ti

on
al

 
an

d 
w

ou
ld

 
di

sc
ri

m
in

at
e 

in
 

an
 

ar
bi

tr
ar

y,
 

ca
pr

ic
io

us
 

an
d 

5 



un
re

as
on

ab
le

 m
an

ne
r 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

A
pp

li
ca

nt
 a

nd
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

ow
ne

r 
an

d 
ow

ne
rs

 o
f s

im
il

ar
ly

 s
itu

at
ed

 
pr

op
er

ty
 in

 v
io

la
ti

on
 o

f A
rt

ic
le

 I,
 S

ec
tio

n 
II

I, 
P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 I
 o

f t
he

 C
on

st
it

ut
io

n 
o

f t
he

 S
ta

te
 o

f G
eo

rg
ia

 
an

d 
th

e 
E

qu
al

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

C
la

us
e 

o
f t

he
 F

ou
rt

ee
nt

h 
A

m
en

dm
en

t 
o

f t
he

 C
on

st
it

ut
io

n 
o

f t
he

 U
ni

te
d 

St
at

es
. 

Fi
na

lly
, 

th
e 

A
pp

li
ca

nt
 r

es
pe

ct
fu

ll
y 

su
bm

it
s 

th
at

 t
he

 M
ay

or
 a

nd
 C

ou
nc

il 
o

f 
th

e 
C

ity
 o

f 
A

ub
ur

n 
ca

nn
ot

 l
aw

fu
ll

y 
im

po
se

 m
or

e 
re

st
ri

ct
iv

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

up
on

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
o

f t
he

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
th

an
 p

re
se

nt
ly

 e
xi

st
, 

as
 t

o 
do

 s
o 

no
t 

on
ly

 w
ou

ld
 c

on
st

it
ut

e 
a 

ta
ki

ng
 o

f 
th

e 
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

as
 s

et
 f

or
th

 
ab

ov
e,

 b
ut

 a
ls

o 
w

ou
ld

 a
m

ou
nt

 t
o 

an
 u

nl
aw

fu
l 

de
le

ga
ti

on
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

au
th

or
ity

, 
in

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 
ne

ig
hb

or
ho

od
 o

pp
os

it
io

n,
 i

n 
vi

ol
at

io
n 

o
f 

A
rt

ic
le

 I
X

, 
Se

ct
io

n 
IV

, 
P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 I
I 

o
f 

th
e 

G
eo

rg
ia

 
C

on
st

itu
tio

n.
 

T
hi

s 
A

pp
li

ca
ti

on
 m

ee
ts

 f
av

or
ab

ly
 w

it
h 

th
e 

pr
es

cr
ib

ed
 t

es
t 

se
t o

ut
 b

y 
th

e 
G

eo
rg

ia
 S

up
re

m
e 

C
ou

rt
 t

o 
be

 u
se

d 
in

 e
st

ab
li

sh
in

g 
th

e 
co

ns
ti

tu
ti

on
al

 b
al

an
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n 
pr

iv
at

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 r

ig
ht

s 
an

d 
zo

ni
ng

 a
nd

 p
la

nn
in

g 
as

 a
n 

ex
pr

es
si

on
 o

f 
th

e 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t'
s 

po
li

ce
 p

ow
er

. 
S

ee
 G

uh
l 

v.
 H

ol
co

m
b 

B
ri

dg
e 

R
oa

d 
C

or
p

., 
23

8 
G

a.
 3

22
 (

19
77

).
 

V
I. 

C
O

N
C

L
U

SI
O

N
 

Fo
r t

he
 f

or
eg

oi
ng

 r
ea

so
ns

, t
he

 A
pp

lic
an

t r
es

pe
ct

fu
lly

 r
eq

ue
st

s 
th

at
 th

is
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
to

 R
ez

on
e 

fr
om

 A
G

 t
o 

PU
D

 b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

. 
T

he
 A

pp
li

ca
nt

 w
el

co
m

es
 t

he
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 to

 m
ee

t 
w

it
h 

th
e 

C
ity

 o
f 

A
ub

ur
n 

P
la

nn
in

g 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t s
ta

ff
 to

 a
ns

w
er

 a
ny

 q
ue

st
io

ns
 o

r 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 a
ny

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
re

la
ti

ng
 to

 
th

is
 L

et
te

r 
o

f I
nt

en
t o

r 
su

pp
or

ti
ng

 m
at

er
ia

ls
. 

R
es

pe
ct

fu
ll

y 
su

bm
it

te
d 

th
is

 2
3

rd
 da

y 
o

f A
ug

us
t, 

20
24

. 

E
nc

lo
su

re
s 

M
A

G
/d

w
b 

48
55

-9
35

6-
07

95
, 

V
. 

1 

6 

A
N

D
E

R
SE

N
, T

A
T

E
 &

 C
A

R
R

, P
.C

. 

M
el

od
y 

A
. 

G
lo

ut
on

, 
E

sq
. 





A
n
d
e
rs

e
n
, 
T

a
te

 &
 C

a
rr

, 
P

.C
. 
▪

O
n
e
 S

u
g
a
rl
o
a
f 
C

e
n
tr

e
 ▪

S
u
ite

 4
0
0
0
 ▪

1
9
6
0
 S

a
te

lli
te

 B
o
u
le

va
rd

 ▪
D

u
lu

th
 G

A
 3

0
0
9
7
 ▪

w
w

w
.a

tc
la

w
fir

m
.c

o
m

Se
p

te
m

b
er

 6
, 2

0
2

4

C
O

M
B

IN
E

D
 L

E
T

T
E

R
 O

F
 I

N
T

E
N

T
A

N
D

 J
U

S
T

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

F
O

R
 R

E
Z

O
N

IN
G

A
N

D
 T

E
X

T
 A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

R
ez

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

A
p

p
li

ca
ti

on
 

C
it

y
 o

f 
A

u
b

u
rn

 
B

a
rr

o
w

 C
o

u
n

ty
, 

G
eo

rg
ia

A
p

p
li

ca
n

t:
M

B
C

 D
ev

el
op

er
s,

 L
L

C

R
ez

on
in

g 
T

ra
ct

: 
   

 
T

ax
 P

ar
ce

l 
ID

s 
A

U
11

 0
31

B
 a

nd
 A

U
11

 1
48

 
±

57
.9

17
A

cr
es

 o
f 

L
an

d 

L
oc

at
ed

 a
t 

1
0

0
 L

y
le

 R
o

ad
, 

A
u

b
u

rn
, G

eo
rg

ia
 

F
ro

m
 A

G
 t

o 
P

U
D

S
u

b
m

it
te

d
 f

or
 A

p
p

li
ca

n
t 

b
y:

 
M

el
od

y 
A

. G
lo

ut
on

, E
sq

.
A

N
D

E
R

S
E

N
T

A
T

E
&

 C
A

R
R

, 
P

.C
. 

 
O

ne
 S

ug
ar

lo
af

 C
en

tr
e

1
9

6
0

 S
at

el
li

te
 B

lv
d

.
S

u
it

e 
4

0
0

0
D

ul
ut

h,
 G

eo
rg

ia
 3

00
97

77
0.

82
2.

09
00

m
gl

ou
to

n@
at

cl
aw

fi
rm

.c
om

mailto:mglouton@atclawfirm.com


2

I.
IN

T
R

O
D

U
C

T
IO

N

T
hi

s 
A

pp
li

ca
ti

on
 f

or
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
an

d 
T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

t1
is

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 f

or
 a

 5
7.

91
7-

ac
re

 p
ar

ce
l 

of
 l

an
d

 
lo

ca
te

d 
at

 1
00

 L
yl

e 
R

o
ad

, 
ju

st
 s

o
u

th
 o

f 
it

s 
in

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

A
u

tr
y

 R
oa

d 
(h

er
ei

na
ft

er
 t

h
e 

“P
ro

p
er

ty
”)

. 
 T

he
 

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
is

 a
n 

as
se

m
bl

ag
e 

of
 t

w
o 

ta
x 

pa
rc

el
s,

 w
it

h
 f

ro
nt

ag
e 

on
 L

yl
e 

R
oa

d
. 

T
he

 P
ro

pe
rt

y
is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 z

on
ed

 
A

G
 (

A
g

ri
cu

lt
u

ra
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t)
 p

ur
su

an
t 

to
 t

h
e 

C
it

y
 o

f 
A

u
b

u
rn

 Z
o

n
in

g
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 (
th

e 
“Z

o
n

in
g

 O
rd

in
an

ce
”)

. 
T

h
e 

A
pp

li
ca

nt
, 

M
B

C
 D

ev
el

op
er

s,
 L

L
C

(t
he

 “
A

pp
li

ca
nt

”)
 n

ow
 s

ee
ks

 a
p

p
ro

v
al

 t
o

 r
ez

on
e 

th
e 

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
to

P
U

D
 

(P
la

nn
ed

 U
n

it
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
D

is
tr

ic
t)

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o

 d
ev

el
op

 a
 d

is
ti

n
ct

iv
e 

an
d

 a
tt

ra
ct

iv
e

si
n

g
le

-f
am

il
y

 d
et

ac
he

d 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
co

m
m

un
it

y 
w

it
h 

18
8 

lo
ts

.  
 

T
h

is
 d

oc
um

en
t 

is
 s

ub
m

it
te

d 
as

 t
he

 L
et

te
r 

o
f 

In
te

nt
, 

Im
pa

ct
 A

na
ly

si
s 

S
ta

te
m

en
t,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 
re

qu
ir

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Z

on
in

g 
O

rd
in

an
ce

.  

II
.

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 O

F
 T

H
E

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 A
N

D
 S

U
R

R
O

U
N

D
IN

G
 A

R
E

A
 

T
he

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
is

 a
la

rg
e 

tr
ac

t 
fr

o
n

ti
n

g
L

yl
e 

R
oa

d.
 I

t 
co

nt
ai

ns
 a

 p
er

so
n

al
 r

es
id

en
ce

 a
nd

 s
ev

er
al

 a
cc

es
so

ry
 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
.  

T
he

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 is

 m
o

st
ly

 w
oo

de
d 

an
d

 s
lo

pe
s 

so
u

th
w

ar
d

 to
w

ar
d

 a
 c

re
ek

 w
it

h
 f

lo
od

pl
ai

n.
  T

he
 s

u
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 
zo

ni
ng

 c
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 u
se

s 
ar

e 
as

 f
ol

lo
w

s:
 

L
oc

at
io

n
Z

o
n

in
g

 
P

ro
po

se
d 

Si
te

 
P

U
D

N
o

rt
h

A
G

 a
nd

 R
-1

00

E
as

t
M

H
 a

nd
 R

-1
00

 

S
o

u
th

R
-1

0
0 

W
es

t 
A

G
 

   
 

1
In

 c
o

n
ju

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

re
q

u
es

te
d

 r
ez

o
n

in
g,

 t
h

e 
A

p
p

lic
an

t 
is

 s
ee

ki
n

g 
a 

te
xt

 a
m

en
d

m
en

t 
to

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 1

7
.9

0
.1

4
0

(C
)(

1
) 

an
d

 (
6

) 
o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

o
f 

A
u

b
u

rn
 Z

o
n

in
g 

O
rd

in
an

ce
.  



3

T
he

 
A

pp
li

ca
nt

 
is

 
re

q
u

es
ti

n
g

 
th

e 
C

it
y

 
of

 
A

ub
ur

n
re

zo
ne

 
th

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 
to

 
al

lo
w

 
fo

r 
a 

p
la

n
n

ed
un

it
 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t.

  
T

h
e 

si
te

 i
s 

su
rr

o
u

n
d

ed
 b

y
 o

th
er

 r
es

id
en

ti
al

 u
se

s 
to

 i
n

cl
u

d
e 

p
ri

m
ar

il
y

 R
-1

0
0

 z
o

n
in

g
 c

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n
s.

  
A

s 
su

ch
, 

th
e 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 i

s 
id

ea
l 

fo
r

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

as
 a

re
si

d
en

ti
al

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 a
n

d
 w

il
l 

al
lo

w
 f

o
r 

th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

o
f 

m
or

e 
ho

us
in

g.
   

 

A
s 

st
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

C
it

y
 o

f 
A

u
b

u
rn

’s
 2

01
8

C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

v
e 

P
la

n
 (

th
e 

“C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 P

la
n”

),
 th

e
F

u
tu

re
L

an
d

 
U

se
 M

ap
 i

d
en

ti
fi

es
 t

h
is

 a
re

a 
as

 s
in

g
le

-f
am

il
y

re
si

d
en

ti
al

. 
 T

he
 r

ez
o

n
in

g
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

P
ro

pe
rt

y,
 a

s 
in

te
nd

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

p
p

li
ca

n
t,

 w
il

l e
nh

an
ce

 th
e 

su
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 a
nd

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 a
re

a.
 S

p
ec

if
ic

al
ly

, t
he

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 a
 p

la
nn

ed
 u

ni
t 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
il

l 
pr

ov
id

e 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 o

p
ti

o
n

s 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
s.

 
   

II
I.

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

A
s 

sh
ow

n 
on

 t
he

 s
it

e 
pl

an
 b

y
T

ho
m

as
 &

 H
u

tt
o

n
, 

da
te

d 
A

u
g

u
st

 2
1,

 2
02

4,
 a

nd
 f

il
ed

 w
it

h
 t

hi
s 

A
pp

li
ca

ti
on

 
(h

er
ei

na
ft

er
 t

he
 “

S
it

e 
P

la
n”

),
 t

he
 A

pp
li

ca
nt

 i
s 

pr
op

os
in

g 
to

 r
ez

on
e

57
.9

17
 a

cr
es

 f
ro

m
 A

G
 t

o
 P

U
D

 i
n

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t o

f 
a

p
la

n
n

ed
u

n
it

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tw

it
h

 1
8

8
 u

n
it

s.
  T

h
e 

A
pp

li
ca

nt
 p

ro
p

o
se

s 
to

 d
ev

el
o

p
 

th
e 

P
ro

pe
rt

y 
in

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
it

h
 t

he
 P

U
D

 
zo

n
in

g
 c

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n 
to

 a
ll

o
w

fo
r 

a 
m

or
e 

u
n

iq
u

e
an

d
 

cr
ea

ti
ve

 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

. 
T

h
e 

m
in

im
u

m
 h

ea
te

d
 f

lo
o

r 
ar

ea
w

o
u

ld
 b

e 
1,

60
0

sq
u

ar
e 

fe
et

. 
 T

o
 t

h
e 

ex
te

n
t 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
, 

th
e 

A
p

p
li

ca
n

t 
is

 s
ee

ki
ng

 a
 c

o
n

cu
rr

en
t 

va
ri

an
ce

 f
ro

m
 S

ec
ti

on
 1

7
.9

0
.1

5
0

 a
s 

re
la

te
d 

to
 t

h
e 

m
in

im
u

m
 d

w
el

li
ng

 u
n

it
 s

iz
e.

  
T

he
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
o

u
ld

 i
n

cl
u

d
e 

th
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 5

0-
fo

ot
 b

uf
fe

r 
al

on
g 

al
l 

ab
u

tt
in

g
 R

-1
0

0
 z

o
n

in
g

 d
is

tr
ic

ts
. 

 A
s 

re
fe

re
n

ce
d

 
on

 t
he

 S
it

e 
P

la
n,

 t
he

 t
yp

ic
al

 l
ot

 l
ay

ou
t 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 t
yp

e 
of

 h
ou

si
ng

 u
ni

t 
is

 i
de

nt
if

ie
d 

be
lo

w
:

   
   

   
   

   
 

T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

il
l 

co
ns

is
t 

of
 h

om
es

 a
t 

a 
si

ze
, q

ua
li

ty
, a

nd
 p

ri
ce

 p
oi

nt
 c

om
m

en
su

ra
te

 w
it

h 
or

 
ex

ce
ed

in
g 

ho
m

es
 i

n
 t

he
 s

ur
ro

un
di

ng
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s.

  
G

en
er

al
ly

, 
th

e 
ar

ch
it

ec
tu

ra
l 

st
y

le
 a

nd
 c

o
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

ex
te

ri
or

 o
f 

th
e 

h
o

m
es

 w
o

u
ld

 c
o

n
si

st
 o

f 
br

ic
k,

st
ac

k
ed

 s
to

ne
, 

ce
d

ar
 a

nd
/o

r 
ce

m
en

ti
ti

o
u

s 
sh

ak
e,

 s
id

in
g

 b
oa

rd
, 

an
d 

ba
tt

en
 o

r 
co

m
b

in
at

io
n

s 
th

er
eo

f.
  T

h
e 

A
pp

li
ca

nt
 h

as
 i

nc
lu

de
d 

sa
m

pl
e 

re
n

d
er

in
g

s 
w

it
h

 th
is

 s
ub

m
it

ta
l.

  T
he

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t w
ou

ld
 b

e 
se

rv
ed

 b
y 

a 
p

ri
m

ar
y

 f
ul

l-
ac

ce
ss

 e
n

tr
an

ce
 a

n
d

 a
 s

ec
o

n
d

ar
y 

en
tr

an
ce

 f
o

r 
em

er
g

en
cy

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
as

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
b

y
 B

ar
ro

w
 C

o
u

n
ty

 F
ir

e 
M

ar
sh

al
l 

al
o

n
g

 L
y

le
 R

o
ad

, 
w

hi
ch

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e 

la
n

d
sc

ap
ed

 a
n

d
 m

ai
n

ta
in

ed
 b

y
 a

 
H

om
eo

w
ne

rs
’ 

A
ss

o
ci

at
io

n
. 

T
he

 p
ro

po
se

d
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

se
rv

ic
ed

 b
y 

B
ar

ro
w

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

at
er

 &
 S

ew
er

 
A

ut
ho

ri
ty

 (
se

w
er

) 
an

d 
th

e 
C

it
y 

of
 A

ub
ur

n 
P

ub
li

c 
W

or
ks

 (
w

at
er

).
   

T
he

 A
p

p
li

ca
n

t 
fu

rt
he

r 
su

b
m

it
s 

th
at

 s
ev

er
al

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 b
en

ef
it

s 
w

ou
ld

 r
es

ul
t 

in
 t

he
 p

ro
p

er
ty

 b
ei

n
g

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

u
n

d
er

 t
h

e 
C

it
y

’s
 P

U
D

 z
on

in
g 

cl
as

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

. 
 F

o
r 

ex
am

p
le

, 
th

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

o
u

ld
 i

n
cr

ea
se

 
th

e 
su

pp
ly

 o
f 

ho
us

in
g 

in
 t

he
 a

re
a,

 w
hi

ch
 i

s 
cu

rr
en

tl
y

 i
n

 h
ig

h
 d

em
an

d.
 B

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

m
or

e 
ho

m
es

, t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
ca

n 
he

lp
 a

ll
ev

ia
te

 t
h

e 
sh

o
rt

ag
e 

o
f 

si
n

g
le

-f
am

il
y

 d
et

ac
he

d 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 a

nd
 p

ro
v

id
e 

ci
ti

ze
ns

 w
it

h
 a

d
d

it
io

n
al

 h
o

u
si

n
g

 
o

p
ti

o
n

s.
 I

n 
su

m
m

ar
y,

 t
he

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 z

on
in

g 
of

 P
U

D
 f

or
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 a

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
is

co
ns

is
te

nt
 w

it
h

 t
he

 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 P
la

n.
 



4

P
U

D
 –

P
la

nn
ed

 U
n

it
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
D

is
tr

ic
t 

P
u

rs
u

an
t 

to
 S

ec
ti

o
n

 1
7.

90
.1

40
, t

he
 i

nt
en

t 
an

d 
pu

rp
os

e 
of

 a
 P

U
D

 z
on

in
g 

is
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

il
it

y 
of

 
re

la
ti

ve
ly

 l
ar

g
e 

sc
al

e,
 m

ix
ed

-u
se

 p
la

n
n

ed
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ts
, 

w
hi

ch
 i

n
co

rp
o

ra
te

 i
nn

ov
at

iv
e 

co
n

ce
p

ts
 o

f 
ef

fi
ci

en
cy

 i
n

 
la

nd
 

us
e,

 
pu

bl
ic

 
se

rv
ic

es
 

d
el

iv
er

y
, 

en
er

gy
 

co
ns

er
va

ti
on

, 
an

d
 

en
v

ir
o

n
m

en
ta

l 
pr

es
er

va
ti

on
. 

A
 

pl
an

ne
d 

u
n

it
 

de
ve

lo
p

m
en

t 
m

ay
 a

ll
o

w
 m

or
e 

fl
ex

ib
le

 p
la

ce
m

en
t,

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

t 
an

d 
o

ri
en

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l 

st
ru

ct
u

re
s,

 t
h

e 
ac

co
m

pa
ny

in
g 

fl
ex

ib
il

it
y 

in
 t

he
 s

ub
di

vi
si

on
 o

f 
la

nd
, a

nd
 t

he
 g

ro
up

in
g 

of
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

or
y 

fa
ci

li
ti

es
 s

uc
h

as
 g

ar
ag

es
 a

nd
 p

ar
ki

ng
. 

A
 p

la
nn

ed
 u

n
it

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
is

 i
nt

en
de

d 
to

 a
ll

ow
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 a
nd

/o
r 

d
en

si
ty

 o
f 

la
nd

 u
se

s 
no

t 
ot

he
rw

is
e 

al
lo

w
ed

 i
n 

an
 e

st
ab

li
sh

ed
 z

on
in

g 
di

st
ri

ct
.  

T
he

 p
la

nn
ed

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

w
il

l 
co

nt
ai

n 
a 

va
ri

et
y 

of
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 a

nd
 l

ot
 s

iz
es

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 d
em

an
d 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
.  

M
or

eo
ve

r,
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t w
ou

ld
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

tt
ra

ct
iv

e,
 h

ig
h

-e
nd

 p
er

so
na

l r
es

id
en

ce
s.

A
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

21
 a

cr
es

 o
f 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l 

si
te

 w
il

l 
be

 p
re

se
rv

ed
 a

s 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

, 
w

hi
ch

 f
ar

 e
xc

ee
ds

 t
h

e 
m

in
im

u
m

 
re

qu
ir

ed
 p

er
 t

he
 Z

on
in

g 
O

rd
in

an
ce

.  

IV
.

T
E

X
T

 A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T

T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 i

s 
se

ek
in

g
 t

o
 a

m
en

d 
S

ec
ti

o
n

s 
1

7
.9

0
.1

4
0

(C
)(

1)
 a

nd
 (

6
) 

o
f 

th
e 

C
it

y
 o

f 
A

ub
ur

n 
Z

o
n

in
g

 
O

rd
in

an
ce

. 
 T

h
e 

cu
rr

en
t 

O
rd

in
an

ce
 r

ea
ds

 a
s 

fo
ll

o
w

s,
 w

it
h

 t
he

 r
eq

u
es

te
d

 a
m

en
dm

en
ts

 (
ad

d
it

io
n

s 
in

 B
o

ld
; 

re
da

ct
io

ns
 w

it
h

 S
tr

ik
et

h
ro

u
g

h
):

“C
.

S
pe

ci
al

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
. A

ll
 p

ro
po

se
d 

P
U

D
 p

la
nn

ed
 u

ni
t 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

di
st

ri
ct

 a
pp

li
ca

ti
on

s 
sh

al
l 

co
nf

or
m

 t
o 

th
e 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g 

sp
ec

if
ic

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
: 

1.
T

he
 m

ax
im

um
 d

en
si

ty
 s

ha
ll

 n
ot

 t
o 

ex
ce

ed
 t

w
o

 a
n

d
 t

w
o

-t
en

th
s

th
re

e 
an

d
 t

h
re

e-
te

n
th

s 
d

w
el

li
n

g
 u

n
it

s 
pe

r 
gr

os
s 

ac
re

. 

2.
T

he
 s

it
e 

m
us

t 
ab

ut
 a

 p
ub

li
c 

st
re

et
 f

or
 a

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
of

 a
t 

le
as

t 
on

e 
hu

nd
re

d 
fe

et
. 

3.
A

 r
eg

is
te

re
d 

en
gi

ne
er

, a
rc

hi
te

ct
, l

an
d 

su
rv

ey
or

 o
r 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
ar

ch
it

ec
t 

sh
al

l 
pr

ep
ar

e 
th

e 
pl

an
s 

re
qu

ir
ed

 
fo

r 
in

cl
us

io
n 

in
 a

n 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n.
 T

he
 p

la
ns

 s
ha

ll
 h

av
e 

th
ei

r 
of

fi
ci

al
 r

eg
is

tr
at

io
n 

se
al

. 

4.
S

id
ew

al
k

s 
sh

al
l 

b
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 a

lo
n

g
 b

o
th

 s
id

es
 o

f 
al

l 
st

re
et

s 
w

it
h

in
 a

 P
U

D
. 

T
h

e 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

 o
f 

th
e 

re
qu

ir
ed

 s
id

ew
al

ks
 a

re
 g

iv
en

 i
n 

th
e 

ci
ty

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
re

gu
la

ti
on

s.
 

5.
W

he
re

 a
 P

U
D

 a
bu

ts
 a

 R
-1

00
 d

is
tr

ic
t,

 t
he

 P
U

D
 s

ha
ll

 c
on

ta
in

 a
 f

if
ty

-f
oo

t 
w

id
e 

bu
ff

er
 s

tr
ip

 a
lo

ng
 t

he
 

ab
ut

ti
ng

 p
ro

pe
rt

y 
li

ne
s,

 u
nl

es
s 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 h
as

 t
he

 s
am

e 
la

nd
 u

se
 a

nd
 l

ot
 s

iz
e 

(w
it

hi
n 

a 
te

n 
pe

rc
en

t 
va

ri
at

io
n)

 i
s 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 t
o 

th
e 

R
-1

00
 p

ro
pe

rt
y;

 a
nd

 s
h

al
l 

fu
rt

he
r 

m
ee

t 
al

l 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
ci

ty
 

la
nd

sc
ap

e 
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
. 

6.
T

he
re

 s
ha

ll
 b

e 
no

 l
an

d 
di

st
ur

ba
nc

e 
be

yo
nd

 t
he

 a
re

as
 n

ee
de

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
ti

on
 o

f 
ro

ad
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
pu

bl
ic

 u
ti

li
ti

es
/f

ac
il

it
ie

s,
 p

ri
or

 t
o 

is
su

an
ce

 o
f 

bu
il

di
ng

 p
er

m
it

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
in

di
vi

du
al

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 w

it
hi

n 
a 

P
U

D
 p

la
nn

ed
 u

ni
t 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t.

” 

T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 i

s 
se

ek
in

g 
to

 i
nc

re
as

e 
th

e 
o

v
er

al
l 

d
en

si
ty

 f
ro

m
 2

.2
/u

pa
 t

o
 3

.3
/u

pa
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

or
e 

va
ri

et
y 

in
 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 ty
pe

/s
iz

es
, a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
m

or
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 u

n
it

s.
  T

he
 r

eq
ue

st
 to

 r
ep

ea
l t

he
 la

n
d

 d
is

tu
rb

an
ce

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 
is

 t
o

 a
ll

o
w

 f
o

r 
m

u
lt

ip
le

 l
o

t 
g

ra
d

in
g

 d
u

ri
n

g
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

re
su

lt
 i

n
 a

 m
o

re
 c

o
h

es
iv

e 
si

te
. 

 T
h

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 

te
x

t 
am

en
dm

en
ts

 w
il

l 
pr

om
ot

e 
an

d 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 p

ro
p

er
ti

es
 t

h
at

 i
nc

or
po

ra
te

 m
o

re
 w

al
k

ab
le

 
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
in

 c
lo

se
 p

ro
xi

m
it

y 
to

 n
ei

gh
bo

r-
se

rv
in

g 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 u

se
s.

  I
n 

ad
d

it
io

n
, t

he
 te

x
t a

m
en

dm
en

t w
il

l a
ll

ow
 

fo
r 

a 
g

ra
d

u
al

 d
en

si
ty

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s 

th
at

 a
ls

o 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
o

p
en

 s
pa

ce
, r

ec
re

at
io

n
al

 a
re

as
, a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 
ga

th
er

in
g 

ar
ea

s.
 M

or
eo

ve
r,

 b
y 

al
lo

w
in

g 
fo

r 
a 

m
ix

ed
-u

se
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

w
it

h
 h

ig
he

r 
d

en
si

ty
, 

co
m

m
un

it
y 

m
em

be
rs

 
ha

ve
 i

m
pr

ov
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 t

h
in

g
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

h
ea

lt
h

ca
re

, 
gr

oc
er

y 
st

or
es

, 
an

d 
em

p
lo

y
m

en
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s.

In
 s

um
m

ar
y,

 
by

 a
ll

ow
in

g 
fo

r 
di

ve
rs

e 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 o

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

pa
ce

s,
 t

he
 t

ex
t 

am
en

dm
en

t 
ca

n 
fo

st
er

 a
 s

en
se

 o
f 



5

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

nd
 b

el
on

gi
ng

, 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 a
tt

ra
ct

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

an
d 

in
v

es
tm

en
ts

, 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 j
o

b
 c

re
at

io
n 

an
d

 e
co

no
m

ic
 

gr
ow

th
 f

or
 t

he
 C

it
y.

  

V
.

S
IT

E
 I

M
P

A
C

T
 A

N
A

L
Y

S
IS

P
u

rs
u

an
t 

to
 t

h
e 

Z
o

n
in

g
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

, 
th

e 
A

p
p

li
ca

n
t 

su
b

m
it

s 
it

s 
w

ri
tt

en
 r

es
p

o
n

se
s 

to
 t

h
e 

im
p

ac
t 

an
al

y
si

s 
w

hi
ch

 s
ho

w
s 

th
at

 r
ez

on
in

g 
to

P
U

D
sa

ti
sf

ie
s 

th
e 

“S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 G

ov
er

ni
ng

 E
xe

rc
is

e 
of

 t
he

 Z
o

n
in

g
 P

ow
er

,”
 a

s 
fo

ll
o

w
s:

 

A
)

W
he

th
er

 a
 p

ro
po

se
d 

re
zo

ni
ng

 w
il

l p
er

m
it

 a
 u

se
 th

at
 is

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
in

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
us

e 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 
an

d 
ne

ar
by

 p
ro

pe
rt

y:

Y
es

.  
T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

re
zo

ni
ng

 i
s 

co
ns

is
te

nt
 a

nd
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

w
it

h 
th

e 
ex

is
ti

ng
 u

se
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 a

dj
ac

en
t 

an
d 

ne
ar

by
 p

ro
p

er
ti

es
. 

 T
he

 P
ro

p
er

ty
m

ai
n

ta
in

s 
fr

on
ta

ge
 o

n
L

yl
e 

R
o

ad
. 

 T
h

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 r

es
id

en
ti

al
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

is
 c

om
pa

ti
bl

e 
w

it
h 

ex
is

ti
ng

 r
es

id
en

ti
al

 u
se

s 
an

d 
w

il
l 

fu
rt

he
r 

di
ve

rs
if

y 
ho

us
in

g 
op

ti
on

s 
in

 t
he

 
su

rr
ou

nd
in

g 
ar

ea
.  

B
)

W
he

th
er

 a
 p

ro
po

se
d 

re
zo

ni
ng

 w
il

l 
ad

ve
rs

el
y 

af
fe

ct
 t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

us
e 

or
 u

se
ab

il
it

y 
of

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
or

 n
ea

rb
y 

pr
op

er
ty

:

N
o,

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
re

zo
ni

ng
 w

il
l 

no
t 

ad
ve

rs
el

y 
af

fe
ct

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
us

e 
or

 u
sa

bi
li

ty
 o

f 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 o

r 
ne

ar
by

 
pr

op
er

ti
es

. 
 

T
he

 
pr

op
os

ed
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

is
 

co
m

pa
ti

bl
e 

w
it

h 
th

e 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 
P

la
n 

an
d 

co
m

pl
im

en
ta

ry
 t

o 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 a

nd
 n

ea
rb

y 
us

es
. 

C
)

W
he

th
er

 th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 to
 b

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
a 

pr
op

os
ed

 r
ez

on
in

g 
ha

s 
re

as
on

ab
le

 e
co

no
m

ic
 u

se
 a

s 
cu

rr
en

tl
y 

zo
ne

d:

T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 s

ub
m

it
s 

th
at

 d
ue

 t
o 

th
e 

si
ze

, l
oc

at
io

n,
 l

ay
ou

t,
 t

op
og

ra
ph

y,
 a

nd
 n

at
ur

al
 f

ea
tu

re
s 

of
 t

he
 S

ub
je

ct
 

P
ro

pe
rt

y,
 i

t 
do

es
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 e

co
no

m
ic

 u
se

 a
s 

cu
rr

en
tl

y 
zo

ne
d.

 

D
)

W
he

th
er

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 r
ez

on
in

g 
w

il
l r

es
ul

t i
n 

a 
us

e 
w

hi
ch

 w
il

l o
r 

co
ul

d 
ca

us
e 

an
 e

xc
es

si
ve

 o
r 

bu
rd

en
so

m
e 

us
e 

of
 e

xi
st

in
g 

st
re

et
s,

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

fa
ci

li
ti

es
, u

ti
li

ti
es

, o
r 

sc
ho

ol
s:

N
o,

 a
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
re

zo
ni

ng
 w

il
l 

no
t 

re
su

lt
 i

n 
an

 e
xc

es
si

ve
 o

r 
bu

rd
en

so
m

e 
us

e 
of

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 s
y

st
em

s.
 T

h
e 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 h

as
 d

ir
ec

t 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o

 L
y

le
 R

oa
d 

an
d 

is
 i

n
 c

lo
se

 p
ro

x
im

it
y

 t
o

 A
tl

an
ta

 
H

ig
hw

ay
. 

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 z
o

n
in

g
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
an

d 
si

te
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

re
qu

ir
em

en
ts

 c
an

 m
it

ig
at

e 
an

y 
p

o
te

n
ti

al
 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 p

ub
li

c 
fa

ci
li

ti
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 t
ra

ff
ic

, u
ti

li
ty

 d
em

an
d,

 s
to

rm
w

at
er

, a
n

d
 s

ch
o

o
ls

.  

E
)

W
he

th
er

 t
he

 p
ro

po
se

d 
re

zo
ni

ng
 i

s 
in

 c
on

fo
rm

it
y 

w
it

h 
th

e 
po

li
cy

 a
nd

 i
nt

en
t 

of
 t

he
 L

an
d 

U
se

 P
la

n:

Y
es

, 
th

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 A

pp
li

ca
ti

on
co

n
fo

rm
s 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

p
o

li
cy

 a
n

d
 i

n
te

n
t 

o
f 

th
e 

C
o

m
p

re
h

en
si

v
e 

P
la

n
 

an
d 

F
ut

ur
e 

L
an

d 
U

se
 M

ap
. 

T
he

 S
ub

je
ct

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 i

s 
id

en
ti

fi
ed

 a
s 

si
n

g
le

-f
am

il
y

 r
es

id
en

ti
al

 o
n 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 

la
nd

 u
se

 m
ap

.  

F
)

W
he

th
er

 t
he

re
 a

re
 o

th
er

 e
xi

st
in

g 
or

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
co

nd
it

io
ns

 a
ff

ec
ti

ng
 t

he
 u

se
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

w
hi

ch
 g

iv
e 

su
pp

or
ti

ng
 g

ro
un

ds
 f

or
 e

it
he

r 
th

e 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

r 
di

sa
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 t
he

 z
on

in
g 

pr
op

os
al

:

Y
es

. 
T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

R
ez

on
in

g 
ac

hi
ev

es
 a

 g
oa

l 
of

 t
he

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 P

la
n 

by
 p

ro
po

si
ng

 a
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

si
te

 l
ay

ou
t 

th
at

 s
er

ve
s 

as
 a

n 
op

po
rt

un
it

y 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
dd

it
io

na
l 

ho
us

in
g.

  



6

V
I.

JU
S

T
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
 F

O
R

 R
E

Z
O

N
IN

G

T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 r

es
p

ec
tf

u
ll

y
 s

u
b

m
it

s 
th

at
 "

C
it

y 
of

 A
ub

ur
n 

Z
o

n
in

g
 O

rd
in

an
ce

” 
(t

he
 “

Z
o

n
in

g
 O

rd
in

an
ce

”)
, 

as
 a

m
en

de
d 

fr
om

 ti
m

e 
to

 ti
m

e,
 to

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 th

at
 it

 c
la

ss
if

ie
s 

th
e 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 in

 a
n

y
 z

on
in

g 
d

is
tr

ic
t t

h
at

 w
o

u
ld

 p
re

cl
ud

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 a
 p

la
n

n
ed

, u
n

it
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t,
un

de
r 

th
e 

P
U

D
zo

ni
ng

 c
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
n,

 i
s 

un
co

ns
ti

tu
ti

on
al

 a
s 

a 
ta

ki
ng

 
of

 p
ro

pe
rt

y,
 a

 d
en

ia
l 

o
f 

eq
u

al
 p

ro
te

ct
io

n
, 

an
 a

rb
it

ra
ry

 a
n

d
 c

ap
ri

ci
o

u
s 

ac
t,

 a
n

d
 a

n
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 
d

el
eg

at
io

n
 o

f 
au

th
o

ri
ty

 
un

de
r 

th
e 

sp
ec

if
ic

 c
o

n
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

s 
la

te
r 

se
t f

or
th

 h
er

ei
n.

  A
ny

 e
x

is
ti

n
g

 in
co

n
si

st
en

t z
on

in
g 

of
 th

e 
P

ro
pe

rt
y 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 t
o

 t
he

 Z
o

n
in

g
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
de

pr
iv

es
 t

he
 A

pp
li

ca
nt

 a
nd

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ow

ne
r 

of
 a

ny
 a

lt
er

na
ti

ve
 r

ea
so

n
ab

le
 u

se
 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

o
f 

th
e 

P
ro

pe
rt

y.
  

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
ly

, 
al

l 
ot

he
r 

zo
ni

ng
 c

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n
s,

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 o

n
es

 i
nt

er
ve

ni
ng

 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ex

is
ti

ng
 c

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
th

at
 r

eq
ue

st
ed

 h
er

ei
n,

 w
ou

ld
 d

ep
ri

ve
 t

he
 A

pp
li

ca
nt

 a
nd

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ow

ne
r 

of
 

an
y

 r
ea

so
n

ab
le

 u
se

 a
n

d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
o

f 
th

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

. 
F

u
rt

h
er

, 
an

y
 a

tt
em

p
t 

b
y

 t
h

e
M

ay
o

r 
an

d
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y

 
of

 A
ub

ur
n 

to
 i

m
p

o
se

 g
re

at
er

 r
es

tr
ic

ti
on

s 
up

on
 t

he
 m

an
ne

r 
in

 w
hi

ch
 t

he
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

w
il

l 
be

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 t

ha
n 

pr
es

en
tl

y 
ex

is
t 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
eq

ua
ll

y 
un

la
w

fu
l.

  

A
cc

or
di

ng
ly

, A
p

p
li

ca
n

t s
u

b
m

it
s 

th
at

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t z

o
n

in
g

 c
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
n 

an
d

 a
n

y
 o

th
er

 z
on

in
g 

of
 th

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 
sa

ve
 f

o
r 

w
h

at
 h

as
 b

ee
n

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 a

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
in

 t
he

 Z
o

n
in

g
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 c
o

n
st

it
u

te
 a

n 
ar

bi
tr

ar
y 

an
d

 u
n

re
as

o
n

ab
le

 
us

e 
of

 t
h

e 
zo

n
in

g
 a

nd
 p

o
li

ce
 p

o
w

er
s 

b
ec

au
se

 t
h

ey
 b

ea
r 

no
 s

u
b

st
an

ti
al

 r
el

at
io

n
sh

ip
 t

o
 t

he
 p

ub
li

c 
h

ea
lt

h
, 

sa
fe

ty
, 

m
o

ra
li

ty
 o

r 
ge

ne
ra

l 
w

el
fa

re
 o

f 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
nd

 s
u

b
st

an
ti

al
ly

 h
ar

m
 t

he
 A

pp
li

ca
nt

 a
nd

 P
ro

p
er

ty
 o

w
ne

r.
  

A
ll

in
co

n
si

st
en

t 
zo

ni
ng

 c
la

ss
if

ic
at

io
n

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 z
on

in
g 

an
d 

th
e 

zo
ni

n
g

 r
eq

ue
st

ed
 h

er
eu

n
d

er
 w

o
u

ld
 

co
n

st
it

u
te

 a
nd

 a
rb

it
ra

ry
 a

n
d

 u
nr

ea
so

na
bl

e 
us

e 
o

f 
th

e 
zo

ni
ng

 a
n

d
 p

ol
ic

e 
p

o
w

er
s 

b
ec

au
se

 t
he

y 
be

ar
 o

r 
w

ou
ld

 b
ea

r 
no

 s
u

b
st

an
ti

al
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
p 

to
 t

he
 p

ub
li

c 
he

al
th

, 
sa

fe
ty

, 
m

o
ra

li
ty

, 
or

 g
en

er
al

 w
el

fa
re

 o
f 

th
e 

p
u

b
li

c 
an

d 
w

o
u

ld
 

su
b

st
an

ti
al

ly
 h

ar
m

 t
he

 A
p

p
li

ca
n

t 
an

d 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 o
w

n
er

. 
 F

u
rt

h
er

, 
th

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 i
n

co
n

si
st

en
t 

zo
ni

ng
 c

la
ss

if
ic

at
io

n 
co

n
st

it
u

te
s,

 
an

d 
al

l 
zo

ni
ng

 
an

d 
pl

an
 

cl
as

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

s 
in

te
rv

en
in

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 
in

co
ns

is
te

nt
 

zo
ni

ng
 

cl
as

si
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
at

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 d

ev
el

o
p

 t
h

is
 P

ro
je

ct
 w

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

st
it

u
te

, 
a 

ta
k

in
g

 o
f 

th
e 

o
w

n
er

’s
 p

ri
v

at
e 

p
ro

p
er

ty
 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

ju
st

 c
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
an

d 
w

it
h

o
u

t 
du

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
in

 v
io

la
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e 

F
if

th
 A

m
en

dm
en

t 
an

d
 F

ou
rt

ee
nt

h 
A

m
en

dm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 C
o

n
st

it
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
S

ta
te

s,
 a

nd
 A

rt
ic

le
 I

, 
S

ec
ti

o
n

 I
, 

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 I

 a
nd

 A
rt

ic
le

 I
, 

S
ec

ti
o

n
 

II
I,

 P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 I

 o
f 

th
e 

C
on

st
it

ut
io

n 
of

 t
he

 S
ta

te
 o

f 
G

eo
rg

ia
 a

nd
 t

he
 D

ue
 P

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 E

qu
al

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

C
la

us
es

 o
f 

th
e 

F
ou

rt
ee

nt
h 

A
m

en
dm

en
t 

to
 t

he
 C

on
st

it
ut

io
n 

of
 t

he
 U

ni
te

d 
S

ta
te

s.
  

F
ur

th
er

, 
th

e 
A

pp
li

ca
nt

 r
es

p
ec

tf
u

ll
y

 s
u

b
m

it
s 

th
at

 f
ai

lu
re

 t
o

 a
pp

ro
ve

 t
h

e 
re

q
u

es
te

d
 r

ez
o

n
in

g
 c

ha
ng

e 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 u
n

co
n

st
it

u
ti

o
n

al
 a

nd
 w

ou
ld

 d
is

cr
im

in
at

e 
in

 a
n 

ar
bi

tr
ar

y,
 c

ap
ri

ci
ou

s 
an

d
 u

nr
ea

so
na

bl
e 

m
an

n
er

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
A

pp
li

ca
nt

 a
n

d
 P

ro
p

er
ty

 o
w

ne
r 

an
d 

o
w

n
er

s 
of

 s
im

il
ar

ly
 s

it
ua

te
d 

p
ro

p
er

ty
 i

n
 v

io
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

rt
ic

le
 I

, 
S

ec
ti

on
 I

II
, 

P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 I

 o
f 

th
e 

C
o

n
st

it
u

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e 
S

ta
te

 o
f 

G
eo

rg
ia

 a
nd

 t
he

 E
q

u
al

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

C
la

us
e 

of
 t

he
 F

o
u

rt
ee

n
th

 
A

m
en

dm
en

t 
of

 t
he

 C
on

st
it

ut
io

n 
of

 t
he

 U
ni

te
d 

S
ta

te
s.

  

F
in

al
ly

, 
th

e 
A

pp
li

ca
nt

 r
es

pe
ct

fu
ll

y 
su

b
m

it
s 

th
at

 t
he

 M
ay

or
 a

nd
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y

 o
f 

A
ub

ur
n 

ca
n

n
o

t 
la

w
fu

ll
y 

im
po

se
 m

or
e 

re
st

ri
ct

iv
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
up

on
 t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 P

ro
pe

rt
y 

th
an

 p
re

se
nt

ly
 e

xi
st

, a
s 

to
 d

o 
so

 
n

o
t 

o
n

ly
 w

ou
ld

 c
o

n
st

it
u

te
 a

 t
ak

in
g 

of
th

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 a
s 

se
t 

fo
rt

h
 a

b
o

v
e,

 b
u

t 
al

so
 w

ou
ld

 a
m

ou
nt

 t
o

 a
n

 u
nl

aw
fu

l 
de

le
ga

ti
on

 o
f 

th
ei

r 
au

th
o

ri
ty

, 
in

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 n
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
o

p
p

o
si

ti
o

n
, 

in
 v

io
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

rt
ic

le
 I

X
, 

S
ec

ti
on

 I
V

, 
P

ar
ag

ra
p

h
 I

I 
o

f 
th

e 
G

eo
rg

ia
 C

o
n

st
it

u
ti

o
n

. 
 

T
h

is
 A

pp
li

ca
ti

on
 m

ee
ts

 f
av

or
ab

ly
 w

it
h

 th
e 

p
re

sc
ri

b
ed

 te
st

 s
et

 o
u

t b
y 

th
e 

G
eo

rg
ia

 S
up

re
m

e 
C

o
u

rt
 to

 b
e 

u
se

d
 

in
 e

st
ab

li
sh

in
g

 
th

e 
co

n
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

 b
al

an
ce

 b
et

w
ee

n
 p

ri
v

at
e 

p
ro

p
er

ty
 

ri
g

h
ts

 a
nd

 z
o

n
in

g
 

an
d

 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

s 
an

 
ex

pr
es

si
on

 o
f 

th
e 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t’

s 
po

li
ce

 p
ow

er
. 

S
ee

G
uh

l 
v.

 H
ol

co
m

b 
B

ri
dg

e 
R

oa
d 

C
or

p.
, 2

38
 G

a.
 3

22
 (

19
77

).
 

V
II

.
C

O
N

C
L

U
S

IO
N

 



7

F
or

 t
he

 f
or

eg
oi

ng
 r

ea
so

ns
, 

th
e 

A
pp

li
ca

nt
 r

es
pe

ct
fu

ll
y 

re
qu

es
ts

 t
ha

t 
th

is
 A

pp
li

ca
ti

on
 t

o
R

ez
on

e 
fr

om
A

G
 t

o 
P

U
D

, 
as

 w
el

l 
as

 t
he

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

T
ex

t 
A

m
en

dm
en

t,
 b

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
.

T
he

 A
pp

li
ca

nt
 w

el
co

m
es

 t
he

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 m

ee
t 

w
it

h
 t

h
e 

C
it

y
 o

f 
A

ub
ur

n 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
st

af
f 

to
 a

n
sw

er
 a

ny
 q

u
es

ti
o

n
s 

o
r 

to
 a

d
d

re
ss

 a
n

y
 c

o
n

ce
rn

s 
re

la
ti

n
g

 
to

 t
hi

s 
L

et
te

r 
of

 I
nt

en
t 

or
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls

.  

R
es

p
ec

tf
u

ll
y

 s
u

b
m

it
te

d
 t

h
is

23
rd

 da
y 

of
 A

ug
us

t,
 2

02
4.

 

A
N

D
E

R
S

E
N

, T
A

T
E

 &
 C

A
R

R
, P

.C
.

M
el
od

y 
A

. 
G

lo
ut

on

M
el

od
y

A
. G

lo
ut

on
, E

sq
. 

E
nc

lo
su

re
s 

M
A

G
/d

w
b 

 
4
8
6
3
-0

0
5
2
-1

1
8

6
, 

v
. 

1



1" = 100'
REVIEWED:
DRAWN:
JOB NO:

PREPARED BY:

PREPARED FOR:

SCALE:
SHEET:

DATE:

EXISTING CONDITIONS

EVANS PROPERTY
AUBURN, GA

MBC DEVELOPERS

J-31504.0000
####
####

09/04/2024

####

5074 Bristol Industrial Way  •  Suite A
 Buford, GA 30518  •  770-271-2868

www.thomasandhutton.com

http://www.thomasandhutton.com


1" = 100'
REVIEWED:
DRAWN:
JOB NO:

PREPARED BY:

PREPARED FOR:

SCALE:
SHEET:

DATE:

CONCEPTUAL LAYOUT

EVANS PROPERTY
AUBURN, GA

MBC DEVELOPERS

J-31504.0000
####
####

09/04/2024

####

5074 Bristol Industrial Way  •  Suite A
 Buford, GA 30518  •  770-271-2868

www.thomasandhutton.com

DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY

http://www.thomasandhutton.com


A
M

E
N

IT
Y

 A
R

E
A

 E
X

H
IB

IT
(T

O
 S

H
O

W
 S

P
A

T
IA

L 
R

E
P

R
E

S
E

N
T

A
T

IO
N

)

S
C

A
LE

: 1
"=

 5
0 

F
E

E
T



  

        

        

  
        el || E 

“St 
    

  

  
          
  
    

    

    
sa > laa HA 

he » i] 10 les à 

                              
                

       Allen E.Armour



 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
A
R
K
 

H
A
V
E
N
 

a
n
 

Fr
on
t 

E
n
t
r
a
n
c
e
 
H
o
u
s
e
 
Pl

an
s 

    
   

Fr
on

t E
nt

ra
nc

e 
H

ou
se

 P
la

ns



F
A
I
R
M
O
N
T
 

 
 

  

 
 

 
 

MA
ST
ER
 
SA
TE
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

r 5 r h 
FA
MI
LY
 
R
O
O
M
 

r h r L 

MIMO 

[ 
ME

CH
AN

IC
AL

 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

I: 

  
  

  
 
 

  4 

2 
CA

R 
C
A
B
A
L
 

h
m
 

w
o
 

  
  

  
 
 

  
  

  
  

  
   
 

FI
RS

T 
FL

OO
R 

PL
AN
 

UP
PE

R 
FL
OO
R 

P
L
A
N

FA
IR

M
O

N
T



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

  
 
 

 
   

  
  

  
  

  
 
 

 
 

CO
VE

RE
D 

CO
NS

RE
D 

PO
RC
H 

PO
RC

H 

+ 
+ 

+ 
+ 

pe
 

m
p
 

a
.
.
.
 

a 
nm
 

a 
= 

MA
ST
ER
 

SUI
TE 

m 
f
h
 

Ge
 

m 
ry 

oF
 

sa
ve
 

as
 

O
o
i
 

§ 
fa

v 
t 

n
s
 

Q
i
)
?
 

#
0
4
 

d
o
o
r
s
 

d
o
o
r
s
 

- 
al 

ot
 

| 
o 

4 
..
 

L 
~ 

v
e
 

o
a
 

| 
e
y
 

a
 

S
a
 

u
E
 

| 
P
R
A
 

. 
PA 

P
O
W
E
R
 

—
 

—
.
 

—
 

p
t
 

À 
a 

o
 

a 
- 

Y 
| 

. 
. 
L
A
N
E
 

6
 

o
e
 

a; 
D 

P
E
 

BE
DR

OO
M 

3 
P
E
T
 

SS 

sT
uo
y 

so
r 

GL
AS
T 

UT
 

Fo
re

 
| 

| 
.. 

| 
Lt

 
bt 

y 
| 

Y 
—
 
A
 

‘ 
—
 

; 
A
 

-
 

—
 

=
 

A
S
 

{ 
‘ 

? 
! 

a 
' 

J.
 

M
A
S
T
E
R
 

T
A
M
O
S
 

C
T
 

as
 

e
e
 

—
 

s
s
 

=
 

OR
TK
D 

y 
if

 
\E
 

y 
\!
 

À,
 

WE
 

À 
) 

a 
a 

a 
1 

CA
R 

GA
RA
GE
 

rf
 

a 
e 

2 
CR

 
GA
RA
GE
 

—
 

—
 

—
 

—
 

—
 

—
—
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

FI
RS

T 
FL

OO
R 

PL
AN
 

A 
FI
RS
T 

FL
OO
R 

PL
AN
 

B 
UP

PE
R 

FL
OO

R 
PL

AN

O
A

K
LE

Y



y 

 
   

  
 
 

d
e
 

x 
P
u
 

bo
m 

mr
 

ly 

 
 

 
 

Me
e 
e
e
e
 o

h. 
E
t
 

pa
ge
 

P
e
e
k
 
C
L
S
 

ve
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

L
1
 

=
 

=
 

CO
VE

RE
D 

PO
RC
H 

oa
 

FA
NE
 

RO
OM
 

L 

MA
ST

ER
 
SU

I 
CT 
e
n
a
n
o
 

] 

 
 

  
 
 

  
 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 

  
  

  
 
 

  
  

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
 

  
  

; 
ME
CH
AN
IC
AL
 

| 
1 

is
 
fo

m 
HE

DA
CO

M 3
 

| 
LE 
—
—
 

. 
A 

stu
n 

J 
co
ro
na
 

m
a
c
e
 4 

  
  

   
 

FI
RS

T 
FL

OO
R 

PL
AN
 

UP
PE

R 
FL
OO
R 

PL
AN

M
A

D
IS

O
N



M
A
D
D
O
X
 

 
 

_
 

o
e
 

4 
H
O
 

 
 

  
  

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

  
 
 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

  
 
 

  
  

 
 

  
  

  

- 
| 

"
 

=
 

a
 

H 
| 

—
 

' 

d
 
E
I
A
?
 

0
 

E
N
E
 

=
|
 

PU
UG
AS
T 

a 
fi
 

hd 
LU 

hd 
J 

MA
ST
ER
 

SUI
TE 

=
 

P
A
A
 

C
H
E
 

=
 

"O
F 

; 
) 
LA
 

7
 

< 

I
C
E
 

u
N
 

a
 

= 
[ 

| 
| 

A
N
R
T
 

E
 

= 
| 

BL
OR
OD
A 

à 

” 
2 

CAR
 G

AR
AG
E 

T 
7
 

p
u
 

6
7
%
 

L 
o 

D 
=
.
 

T
E
 

Du
ne
s 

po
rt
e 

(L
it
 

S 
a 

a 
1! 
b
l
y
 

y
y
 

A 
CL
OS
ET
 

5 
1 

G
P
 

| 

C
F
 

1 
| 

7
)
 

s
t
 
=
=
 

t 
y 

A
S
 

1
4
M
 

qt
 

  
  

  
  

 
 

FI
RS

T 
FL

OO
R 

PL
AN
 

UP
PE

R 
FL
OO
R 

PL
AN

M
A

D
D

O
X



 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

    
    

  

 
 

  
 
 

 
     
 
 

 
   

  
 
   

    

BR
EA
KF
AS
T 

en
 

o
n
 

PA
N 

gz
 

o
t
.
 

me
 

pe
se
r 

; 
t
t
 

E 
PO
WO
LA
 

PE
RO

U:
 

M
P
 

M
E
 

E 

|
 

[ 
~ 

Mu
d 

—
—
 

DR
OP

 
AR
EA
 

~ 
À 

e 
C
B
R
 

m
n
t
 

L
I
 

| 
. 

=
]
:
 

| 
IB

 
- 

ms
cu

os
er

 
| 

am
e 

. 
2 

CAR
 G

AR
AG
E 

R
E
R
 |

 

o
s
 

LL
! 

X 
a
y
 

De
WV
G 

PA
RL

OR
 

4 
>
 

| 
| 

BÉ
DI

CO
M 

4 
| 

| 
, 

in
 

co
ut

 

} 
{ 

|
|
 

BE
DA
DO
M 3

 

1 
he

d 
E
,
 

. 
/ 

, 
] 

m
a
t
 

Lo 
a 

y 
ne 

1]
 

1]
 

a 

FI
RS

T 
FL
OO
R 

PL
AN

 
UP

PE
R 

A 
FL
OO
R 

PL
AN
 

 
 

 
 

  

M
I
L
L
E
R
 

 
 

  
 
 

  
 
 

 
   

 
 

  a
l
 

T 
m
t
 

LE
DA

OO
M 

3 
—.
— 

1 
MA
ST
ER
 

HA
TE
 

q 
_
—
.
 

me
s 

we
ed
 

e
n
 

A 
CL
OG
ET
 

h
a
 

Y
 

L
l
 

ws
ao

se
r 

| 
— 

147
4 

E
E
E
 

a. 
—
 

L 
i 

S
1
D
4
0
0
M
 4 

ME
R 

CL
OS
ET
 

B
E
D
A
D
O
M
 3 

m
a
d
 

t
s
 

—
 

î
<
"
 

  
    

UP
PE

R 
B 
FL
OO
R 

PL
AN

 

 

M
IL

LE
R



Bowen and Bowen Homebuilders, LLC 

A) 
RE E 
LJILILI 

    
  

            
      

          

    
 Allen E.Armour



    

 
Tr

af
fi

c 
Im

p
ac

t 
St

u
d

y  

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 R

es
id

en
ti

al
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 

C
it

y 
o

f 
A

u
b

u
rn

, G
eo

rg
ia

          

  

  

Ju
n

e 
1

3
, 2

0
24

      
in

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

  
   

A
C

A
M

P
O

R
A

 T
R

A
F

F
I
C

,
 L

L
C

 

 
 



   

 

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 R

es
id

en
ti

al
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 

C
it

y 
o

f 
A

u
b

u
rn

, G
eo

rg
ia

 

    

p
re

p
ar

ed
 f

o
r:

 

 

M
B

C
 D

ev
el

o
p

er
s 

5
0

7
2

 B
ri

st
o

l I
n

d
u

st
ri

al
 W

ay
, S

u
it

e 
A

 

B
u

fo
rd

, G
eo

rg
ia

 3
0

51
8

 

    

Ju
n

e 
1

3
, 2

0
24

 

      

 
 

in
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 

 

  
 

 

A
C

A
M

P
O

R
A

 T
R

A
F

F
I
C

,
 L

L
C

 

8
5
8

 M
y
rt

le
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 N
E
 

A
tl
a

n
ta

, 
G

e
o

rg
ia

 3
0
3

0
8
 

(6
7
8

) 
6

3
7

-1
7
6
3
 

e
-m

a
il:

 a
c

a
m

p
o

ra
tr

a
ff

ic
@

c
o

m
c

a
st

.n
e

t 



   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 C

o
n

te
n

ts
 

 

IN
TR

O
D

U
C

TI
O

N
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
 1

 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 T

R
A

FF
IC

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S 

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 2

 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 O
F 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 R

O
A

D
W

A
YS

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 2
 

P
ED

ES
TR

IA
N

, B
IC

YC
LE

, A
N

D
 T

R
A

N
SI

T 
A

C
C

ES
SI

B
IL

IT
Y .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

2
 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 T

R
A

FF
IC

 V
O

LU
M

ES
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

2
 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 IN

TE
R

SE
C

TI
O

N
 O

P
ER

A
TI

O
N

S 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 5

 

N
O

-B
U

IL
D

 T
R

A
FF

IC
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S 
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

 6
 

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
M

ED
 T

R
A

N
SP

O
R

TA
TI

O
N

 IN
FR

A
ST

R
U

C
TU

R
E 

IM
PR

O
V

EM
EN

TS
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
 6

 
N

O
-B

U
IL

D
 IN

TE
R

SE
C

TI
O

N
 O

P
ER

A
TI

O
N

S 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 7
 

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

TR
A

FF
IC

 C
H

A
R

A
C

TE
R

IS
TI

C
S 

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 8

 

P
R

O
JE

C
T 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 8

 
TR

IP
 G

EN
ER

A
TI

O
N

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 8

 
TR

IP
 D

IS
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 A

N
D

 A
SS

IG
N

M
EN

T .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
9
 

FU
TU

R
E 

TR
A

FF
IC

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S 

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 1

1
 

A
U

X
IL

IA
R

Y 
LA

N
E 

R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

TS
 A

T 
P

R
O

JE
C

T 
A

C
C

ES
S .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 1
1
 

FU
TU

R
E 

IN
TE

R
SE

C
TI

O
N

 O
P

ER
A

TI
O

N
S .

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

1
2
 

C
O

N
C

LU
SI

O
N

S 
A

N
D

 R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
A

TI
O

N
S 

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

 1
4
 

A
P

P
EN

D
IX

 

 Ta
b

le
s 

 TA
B

LE
 1

 –
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 IN

TE
R

SE
C

TI
O

N
 O

P
ER

A
TI

O
N

S .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 5

 
TA

B
LE

 2
 –

 H
IS

TO
R

IC
 G

EO
R

G
IA

 D
O

T 
TR

A
FF

IC
 V

O
LU

M
E 

C
O

U
N

TS
 A

N
D

 A
N

N
U

A
L 

G
R

O
W

TH
 R

A
TE

S .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 6
 

TA
B

LE
 3

 –
 N

O
-B

U
IL

D
 IN

TE
R

SE
C

TI
O

N
 O

P
ER

A
TI

O
N

S .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
7
 

TA
B

LE
 4

 –
 M

A
IN

 S
TR

EE
T 

/ 
LY

LE
 R

O
A

D
 S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 T

R
IP

 G
EN

ER
A

TI
O

N
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

9
 

TA
B

LE
 5

 –
 F

U
TU

R
E 

IN
TE

R
SE

C
TI

O
N

 O
P

ER
A

TI
O

N
S 

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

. 1
3
 

 Fi
gu

re
s 

 FI
G

U
R

E 
1

 –
 S

IT
E 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 M
A

P 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
1
 

FI
G

U
R

E 
2

 –
 T

R
A

FF
IC

 V
O

LU
M

E 
C

O
U

N
T 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 M
A

P .
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.. 
3
 

FI
G

U
R

E 
3

 –
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 W

EE
KD

A
Y 

A
.M

. A
N

D
 P

.M
. P

EA
K

 H
O

U
R

 T
R

A
FF

IC
 V

O
LU

M
ES

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

 4
 

FI
G

U
R

E 
4

 –
 S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
 S

IT
E 

P
LA

N
 ..

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

8
 

FI
G

U
R

E 
5

 –
 W

EE
K

D
A

Y 
A

.M
. A

N
D

 P
.M

. P
EA

K
 H

O
U

R
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
TR

IP
S 

A
N

D
 D

IS
TR

IB
U

TI
O

N
 P

ER
C

EN
TA

G
ES

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

1
0
 

FI
G

U
R

E 
6

 –
 F

U
TU

R
E 

W
EE

KD
A

Y 
A

.M
. A

N
D

 P
.M

. P
EA

K
 H

O
U

R
 V

O
LU

M
ES

 ..
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.. 

1
1
 

   



1 
   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 In

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 

 Th
is

 s
tu

d
y 

as
se

ss
es

 t
h

e 
tr

af
fi

c 
im

p
ac

t 
o

f 
a 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 r
es

id
en

ti
al

 s
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 in
 t

h
e 

C
it

y 
o

f 
A

u
b

u
rn

, G
eo

rg
ia

. T
h

e 
si

te
 

is
 l

o
ca

te
d

 a
lo

n
g 

th
e 

so
u

th
 s

id
e 

o
f 

M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
b

et
w

ee
n

 A
u

tr
y 

R
o

ad
 a

n
d

 3
rd

 S
tr

ee
t,

 a
s 

sh
o

w
n

 i
n

 F
ig

u
re

 1
. 

Th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

w
ill

 c
o

n
si

st
 o

f 
14

4 
d

et
ac

h
ed

 s
in

gl
e

-f
am

ily
 h

o
m

es
 a

n
d

 4
4

 a
tt

ac
h

ed
 t

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e 
se

rv
ed

 

b
y 

o
n

e 
fu

ll-
m

o
ve

m
en

t 
ac

ce
ss

 o
n

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t.
 A

 s
ec

o
n

d
ar

y,
 e

m
er

ge
n

cy
 v

eh
ic

le
 a

cc
es

s 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 o

n
 M

ai
n

 

St
re

et
. 

 Th
e 

p
u

rp
o

se
 o

f 
th

is
 t

ra
ff

ic
 im

p
ac

t 
st

u
d

y 
is

 t
o

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
tr

af
fi

c 
o

p
er

at
in

g 
co

n
d

it
io

n
s 

in
 t

h
e 

vi
ci

n
it

y 
o

f 
th

e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t,

 p
ro

je
ct

 fu
tu

re
 t

ra
ff

ic
 v

o
lu

m
es

, a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

im
p

ac
t 

o
f t

h
e 

su
b

je
ct

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t,

 t
h

en
 d

ev
el

o
p

 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
s 

an
d

 r
e

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
to

 m
it

ig
at

e 
th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 t

ra
ff

ic
 im

p
ac

t 
an

d
 e

n
su

re
 s

af
e 

an
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
an

d
 

fu
tu

re
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

s 
in

 t
h

e
 v

ic
in

it
y 

o
f 

th
e 

p
ro

je
ct

.  

  

 
Fi

gu
re

 1
 –

 S
it

e 
Lo

ca
ti

o
n

 M
ap

 



2 
   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 Ex

is
ti

n
g 

Tr
af

fi
c 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

 Ex
is

ti
n

g 
tr

af
fi

c 
o

p
er

at
in

g 
co

n
d

it
io

n
s 

in
 t

h
e

 v
ic

in
it

y 
o

f 
th

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

er
e 

as
se

ss
ed

. T
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

is
 a

 

d
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

tr
an

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 f
ac

ili
ti

es
, t

ra
ff

ic
 v

o
lu

m
es

, a
n

d
 in

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s.

 

  D
e

sc
ri

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

Ex
is

ti
n

g 
R

o
ad

w
ay

s 

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 is

 a
 t

w
o

 la
n

e 
lo

ca
l s

tr
ee

t 
th

at
 b

eg
in

s 
to

 t
h

e 
n

o
rt

h
w

es
t 

o
f 

th
e 

su
b

je
ct

 s
it

e 
at

 a
n

 a
ll 

w
ay

 s
to

p
 

si
gn

 c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 in

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 a
t 

A
u

tr
y 

R
o

ad
 (

th
e

 f
o

u
rt

h
 le

g 
is

 t
h

e 
re

ar
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 t
h

e 
In

gl
es

 r
et

ai
l c

en
te

r)
. 

Fr
o

m
 t

h
at

 

in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 L

yl
e 

R
o

ad
 b

en
d

s 
to

 t
h

e 
ea

st
, c

h
an

ge
s 

n
am

e 
to

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t,
 p

as
se

s 
th

e 
su

b
je

ct
 s

it
e,

 t
h

en
 b

en
d

s 
b

ac
k 

to
 

th
e 

n
o

rt
h

, 
in

te
rs

ec
ts

 6
th

 A
ve

n
u

e 
at

 a
n

 a
ll-

w
ay

 s
to

p
 s

ig
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 i

n
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
, 

th
e

n
 a

 s
ig

n
al

iz
ed

 i
n

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 a
t 

A
tl

an
ta

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 (

U
S 

29
 B

u
si

n
es

s)
 (

n
o

rt
h

 o
f 

th
e 

in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

ch
an

ge
s 

n
am

e 
to

 M
t 

M
o

ri
ah

 R
o

ad
).

 T
h

e 

te
rr

ai
n

 a
lo

n
g 

M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 i

s 
le

ve
l 

to
 g

en
tl

y 
ro

lli
n

g 
an

d
 t

h
e 

p
o

st
ed

 s
p

ee
d

 l
im

it
 i

s 
2

5
 m

p
h

. 
Th

e 
ro

ad
 i

s 

n
ar

ro
w

 w
it

h
 a

 r
u

ra
l 

cr
o

ss
-s

ec
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 n

o
 s

id
ew

al
ks

, 
sh

o
u

ld
er

, 
o

r 
cu

rb
-a

n
d

-g
u

tt
er

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

p
av

em
en

t 
is

 i
n

 p
o

o
r 

co
n

d
it

io
n

.  

 P
e

d
es

tr
ia

n
, B

ic
yc

le
, a

n
d

 T
ra

n
si

t 
A

cc
es

si
b

ili
ty

 

 Th
er

e 
ar

e
 n

o
 s

id
e

w
al

ks
 a

lo
n

g 
M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

o
r 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 o

r 
o

th
er

 lo
ca

l r
o

ad
w

ay
s.

 T
h

er
e 

is
 a

 s
id

ew
al

k 
al

o
n

g 
th

e 
so

u
th

 

si
d

e 
o

f 
U

S 
29

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

an
d

 t
h

er
e 

ar
e

 c
ro

ss
w

al
ks

 a
n

d
 p

e
d

es
tr

ia
n

 s
ig

n
al

s 
o

n
 a

ll 
ap

p
ro

ac
h

es
 a

t 
th

e 
in

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 o
f 

U
S 

29
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
at

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t.
 T

h
er

e 
ar

e 
n

o
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 b
ic

yc
le

 la
n

es
 in

 t
h

is
 v

ic
in

it
y.

 T
h

er
e 

is
 n

o
 r

eg
u

la
rl

y 
sc

h
ed

u
le

d
 

m
as

s 
tr

an
si

t 
w

it
h

in
 a

 r
e

as
o

n
ab

le
 w

al
ki

n
g 

d
is

ta
n

ce
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 s

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
.  

 Ex
is

ti
n

g 
Tr

af
fi

c 
V

o
lu

m
es

 

 Ex
is

ti
n

g 
fu

ll 
tu

rn
in

g 
m

o
ve

m
en

t 
p

ea
k 

h
o

u
r 

tr
af

fi
c 

vo
lu

m
e 

co
u

n
ts

 w
er

e 
co

lle
ct

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
s 

in
 t

h
e 

vi
ci

n
it

y 
o

f 
th

e 
si

te
: 

 

1
. 

A
u

tr
y 

R
o

ad
 a

t 
Ly

le
 R

o
ad

 /
 In

gl
es

 A
cc

es
s 

(a
ll 

w
ay

 s
to

p
) 

2
. 

M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
at

 6
th

 A
ve

n
u

e 
/ 

B
an

k 
A

cc
es

s 
(a

ll 
w

ay
 s

to
p

) 

3
. 

A
tl

an
ta

 H
ig

h
w

ay
 (

U
S 

2
9 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

) 
at

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

M
t 

M
o

ri
ah

 R
o

ad
 (

si
gn

al
) 

 Fi
gu

re
 2

 s
h

o
w

s 
th

e 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
th

e 
co

u
n

te
d

 in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
s.

 

 



3 
   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 

 
Fi

gu
re

 2
 –

 T
ra

ff
ic

 V
o

lu
m

e 
C

o
u

n
t 

Lo
ca

ti
o

n
 M

ap
 

 Th
e 

in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 c

o
u

n
ts

 w
er

e 
co

lle
ct

ed
 o

n
 T

u
es

d
ay

, 
Ju

n
e 

4
, 

2
0

2
4

 f
ro

m
 7

:0
0

 a
.m

. t
o

 9
:0

0
 a

.m
. 

an
d

 f
ro

m
 4

:0
0

 p
.m

. 

to
 6

:0
0

 p
.m

. F
ro

m
 t

h
e 

in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 t

u
rn

in
g 

m
o

ve
m

en
t 

co
u

n
t 

d
at

a,
 t

h
e 

h
ig

h
es

t 
fo

u
r 

co
n

se
cu

ti
ve

 1
5

-m
in

u
te

 in
te

rv
al

 

vo
lu

m
es

 a
t 

ea
ch

 in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
, d

u
ri

n
g 

ea
ch

 t
im

e 
p

er
io

d
, w

er
e 

d
e

te
rm

in
ed

. T
h

e 
co

u
n

ts
 w

er
e 

co
lle

ct
ed

 d
u

ri
n

g 
su

m
m

er
 

re
ce

ss
 i

n
 a

re
a 

sc
h

o
o

ls
, 

w
h

ic
h

 c
o

u
ld

 a
ff

ec
t 

ty
p

ic
al

 v
o

lu
m

es
 a

n
d

 t
ra

ve
l 

p
at

te
rn

s.
 T

h
e

 G
eo

rg
ia

 D
O

T 
p

ro
vi

d
es

 

re
co

m
m

en
d

ed
 a

d
ju

st
m

en
t 

fa
ct

o
rs

 b
y 

m
o

n
th

 in
 t

h
ei

r 
p

u
b

lic
at

io
n

 G
eo

rg
ia

’s
 T

ra
ff

ic
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
ng

 G
u

id
e,

 2
0

1
8

. T
ab

le
 7

: 

Fa
ct

o
r 

G
ro

u
p

s,
 i

n
 t

h
at

 d
o

cu
m

en
t,

 a
ss

ig
n

s 
a 

Fa
ct

o
r 

G
ro

u
p

 o
f 

4
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
re

a 
ro

ad
w

ay
s,

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

d
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

“u
rb

an
/s

m
al

l 
u

rb
an

 m
aj

o
r 

co
lle

ct
o

rs
, 

m
in

o
r 

co
lle

ct
o

rs
, 

an
d

 l
o

ca
ls

”.
 T

ab
le

 4
 i

n
 t

h
at

 d
o

cu
m

en
t 

re
co

m
m

en
d

s 
a 

m
o

n
th

ly
 a

d
ju

st
m

en
t 

fa
ct

o
r 

1
.0

0
 f

o
r 

Ju
n

e,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

ch
an

ge
 t

h
e 

co
u

n
te

d
 v

o
lu

m
es

. T
h

es
e 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
co

u
n

ts
 a

re
 

sh
o

w
n

 in
 F

ig
u

re
 3

. T
h

e 
ra

w
 c

o
u

n
t 

d
at

a 
is

 f
o

u
n

d
 in

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 A
. 

 



4 
   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 

 

Fi
gu

re
 3

 –
 E

xi
st

in
g 

W
ee

kd
ay

 A
.M

. a
n

d
 P

.M
. P

ea
k 

H
o

u
r 

Tr
af

fi
c 

V
o

lu
m

es
 



5 
   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 Ex

is
ti

n
g 

In
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 O

p
er

at
io

n
s 

 Ex
is

ti
n

g 
tr

af
fi

c 
o

p
er

at
io

n
s 

w
er

e 
an

al
yz

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
co

u
n

te
d

 i
n

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

s 
u

si
n

g 
Sy

n
ch

ro
 s

o
ft

w
ar

e,
 v

er
si

o
n

 1
2

, 
in

 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
m

et
h

o
d

o
lo

gy
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 i

n
 t

h
e 

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 R
es

ea
rc

h
 B

o
ar

d
’s

 2
0

2
2

 H
ig

h
w

a
y 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

 

M
a

n
ua

l 7
th

 E
d

it
io

n
 (

H
C

M
 7

).
 T

h
is

 m
et

h
o

d
o

lo
gy

 is
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 in

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
. T

h
e 

an
al

ys
is

 w
as

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

ex
is

ti
n

g 

vo
lu

m
es

, 
la

n
es

, 
an

d
 c

o
n

tr
o

l. 
Th

e 
re

su
lt

s 
o

f 
th

e 
an

al
ys

is
 a

re
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
n

 T
ab

le
 1

. 
C

o
m

p
u

te
r 

p
ri

n
to

u
ts

 c
o

n
ta

in
in

g 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 r

es
u

lt
s 

o
f 

th
e 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
an

al
ys

is
 a

re
 lo

ca
te

d
 in

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 C
. L

ev
el

s 
o

f s
er

vi
ce

 a
n

d
 d

el
ay

s 
ar

e 
p

ro
vi

d
ed

 f
o

r 
ea

ch
 

o
ve

ra
ll 

in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
ea

ch
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 o
r 

m
o

ve
m

en
t.

 L
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
th

at
 o

p
er

at
e 

u
n

ac
ce

p
ta

b
ly

 (
LO

S 
E 

o
r 

LO
S 

F)
 a

re
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 in

 b
o

ld
 t

yp
e.

 

 

Ta
b

le
 1

 –
 E

xi
st

in
g 

In
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 O

p
er

at
io

n
s 

In
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 /

 A
p

p
ro

ac
h

 

A
.M

. P
ea

k 
H

o
u

r 
P

.M
. P

ea
k 

H
o

u
r 

LO
S 

D
el

ay
 

(s
/v

e
h

) 
LO

S 
D

el
ay

 
(s

/v
e

h
) 

1
. 

A
u

tr
y 

R
o

ad
 a

t 
Ly

le
 R

o
ad

 /
 In

gl
es

 A
cc

e
ss

 (
al

l-
w

ay
 s

to
p

) 
A

 
7

.2
 

A
 

7
.2

 

n
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

Ly
le

 R
d

) 
A

 
7

.1
 

A
 

7
.1

 

so
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 (
In

gl
es

 a
cc

e
ss

) 
A

 
6

.5
 

A
 

6
.9

 

ea
st

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

A
u

tr
y 

R
d

) 
A

 
7

.3
 

A
 

7
.3

 

w
es

tb
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

A
u

tr
y 

R
d

) 
A

 
7

.0
 

A
 

7
.3

 

2
. 

M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
at

 6
th

 A
ve

n
u

e
 /

 B
an

k 
A

cc
es

s 
(a

ll-
w

ay
 s

to
p

) 
A

 
7

.2
 

A
 

7
.7

 

n
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

M
ai

n
 S

t)
 

A
 

7
.0

 
A

 
7

.1
 

so
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 (
M

ai
n

 S
t)

 
A

 
7

.6
 

A
 

8
.2

 

ea
st

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

b
an

k 
ac

ce
ss

) 
A

 
7

.2
 

A
 

7
.4

 

w
es

tb
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

6
th

 A
ve

) 
A

 
7

.0
 

A
 

7
.4

 

3
. 

U
S 

2
9

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

at
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

/ 
M

t 
M

o
ri

ah
 R

o
ad

 (
si

gn
al

) 
C

 
2

0
.8

 
C

 
2

6
.3

 

n
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

M
ai

n
 S

t)
 

B
 

1
6

.7
 

C
 

2
0

.5
 

so
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 (
M

ai
n

 S
t)

 
B

 
1

8
.6

 
C

 
2

5
.6

 

ea
st

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

U
S 

2
9

 B
u

s)
 

B
 

1
1

.5
 

C
 

2
3

.3
 

w
es

tb
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

U
S 

2
9

 B
u

s)
 

C
 

2
7

.5
 

C
 

3
0

.8
 

 Th
e 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
an

al
ys

is
 r

ev
ea

ls
 a

cc
ep

ta
b

le
 tr

af
fi

c 
o

p
er

at
io

n
s 

at
 a

ll 
st

u
d

y 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

s.
 T

h
er

ef
o

re
, n

o
 m

it
ig

at
io

n
 is

 id
en

ti
fi

ed
 

at
 a

n
y 

st
u

d
y 

in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
co

n
d

it
io

n
.  

 



6 
   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 N

o
-B

u
ild

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

 A
 2

0
2

9
 n

o
-b

u
ild

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 w

as
 d

ev
el

o
p

ed
. 

Th
is

 r
ep

re
se

n
ts

 t
h

e 
tr

af
fi

c 
co

n
d

it
io

n
s 

th
at

 w
ill

 e
xi

st
 in

 t
h

e 
fu

tu
re

 a
t 

th
e 

an
ti

ci
p

at
ed

 d
at

e 
o

f t
h

e 
b

u
ild

-o
u

t 
o

f t
h

e 
su

b
d

iv
is

io
n

, b
u

t 
n

o
t 

in
cl

u
d

in
g 

th
e 

p
ro

je
ct

’s
 t

ri
p

s.
 T

h
e 

p
u

rp
o

se
 o

f t
h

e 
an

al
ys

is
 

o
f 

th
is

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 is

 t
o

 is
o

la
te

 t
h

e 
tr

af
fi

c 
im

p
ac

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
fr

o
m

 b
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d
 g

ro
w

th
 in

 v
o

lu
m

es
 

th
at

 is
 e

xp
e

ct
ed

 t
o

 o
cc

u
r 

in
 t

h
e 

ar
ea

 w
h

ile
 t

h
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 is
 u

n
d

er
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
. 

 In
 o

rd
er

 t
o

 d
ev

el
o

p
 n

o
-b

u
ild

 v
o

lu
m

es
, 

a 
b

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

 g
ro

w
th

 f
ac

to
r 

w
as

 d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

h
is

to
ri

c 

G
eo

rg
ia

 D
O

T 
A

A
D

T 
tr

af
fi

c 
co

u
n

ts
, a

s 
sh

o
w

n
 in

 T
ab

le
 2

. 
 

Ta
b

le
 2

 –
 H

is
to

ri
c 

G
eo

rg
ia

 D
O

T 
Tr

af
fi

c 
V

o
lu

m
e 

C
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 A
n

n
u

al
 G

ro
w

th
 R

at
es

 

Ye
ar

 
A

tl
an

ta
 H

w
y 

E 
o

f 
M

ai
n

 
A

n
n

u
al

 
G

ro
w

th
 

A
tl

an
ta

 H
w

y 
E 

o
f 

6
th

 S
t 

A
n

n
u

al
 

G
ro

w
th

 

C
ar

l M
id

w
ay

 
C

h
u

rc
h

 E
 o

f 
K

ilc
re

as
e 

A
n

n
u

al
 

G
ro

w
th

 

St
at

io
n

 ID
 

0
1

3
-0

0
0

7
 

0
1

3
-0

0
0

9
 

0
1

3
-7

0
0

6
 

2
0

1
8

 
1

8
,0

0
0

 
 

1
5

,6
0

0
 

 
1

,9
2

0
 

 

2
0

1
9

 
1

8
,8

0
0

 
4

.4
%

 
1

5
,8

0
0

 
1

.3
%

 
1

,9
6

0
 

2
.1

%
 

2
0

2
0

 
1

7
,3

0
0

 
-8

.0
%

 
1

7
,9

0
0

 
1

3
.3

%
 

1
,8

2
0

 
-7

.1
%

 

2
0

2
1

 
1

9
,1

0
0

 
1

0
.4

%
 

1
9

,4
0

0
 

8
.4

%
 

1
,9

3
0

 
6

.0
%

 

2
0

2
2

 
1

9
,5

0
0

 
2

.1
%

 
1

6
,3

0
0

 
-1

6
.0

%
 

2
,0

9
0

 
8

.3
%

 

a
vg

 g
ro

w
th

 
 

1
.6

%
 

 
0

.9
%

 
 

1
.7

%
 

 G
ro

w
th

 in
 t

h
e 

ar
e

a 
h

as
 fl

u
ct

u
at

ed
. T

w
o

 o
f 

th
e 

th
re

e 
G

eo
rg

ia
 D

O
T 

co
u

n
t 

st
at

io
n

s 
ex

p
e

ri
en

ce
d

 a
 d

ec
re

as
e 

in
 v

o
lu

m
es

 

b
e

tw
ee

n
 2

0
19

 a
n

d
 2

0
20

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

co
n

si
d

er
ed

 a
n

 a
n

o
m

al
y 

d
u

e 
to

 t
h

e
 p

an
d

em
ic

. 
Th

er
e 

w
as

 p
o

si
ti

ve
 g

ro
w

th
 a

t 
al

l 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ye

ar
, w

h
ic

h
 is

 s
o

m
e

w
h

at
 a

tt
ri

b
u

ta
b

le
 t

o
 a

 r
et

u
rn

 t
o

 p
re

-p
an

d
em

ic
 le

ve
ls

 a
n

d
 n

o
t 

n
ec

es
sa

ri
ly

 

n
e

w
 g

ro
w

th
. 

In
 t

h
e 

la
st

 y
ea

r 
o

f 
th

e 
d

at
a 

th
er

e 
w

as
 a

n
 i

n
cr

ea
se

 a
t 

tw
o

 o
f 

th
e 

th
re

e 
co

u
n

t 
st

at
io

n
s,

 b
u

t 
a 

-1
6

.0
%

 

d
e

cr
ea

se
 o

n
 A

tl
an

ta
 H

ig
h

w
ay

 e
as

t 
o

f 
6

th
 S

tr
ee

t.
 O

ve
ra

ll 
th

er
e

 w
as

 a
 s

lig
h

t 
in

cr
e

as
in

g 
tr

en
d

 a
t 

al
l 

th
re

e 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

s,
 

ra
n

gi
n

g 
fr

o
m

 0
.9

%
 t

o
 1

.7
%

. 
B

as
ed

 o
n

 t
h

e 
gr

o
w

th
 t

re
n

d
s 

id
en

ti
fi

ed
 i

n
 T

ab
le

 2
, 

an
d

 t
ak

in
g 

th
e 

p
an

d
em

ic
 i

n
to

 

co
n

si
d

er
at

io
n

, a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

d
e

cr
ea

se
 o

n
 A

tl
an

ta
 H

ig
h

w
ay

 in
 t

h
e 

la
te

st
 y

ea
r 

o
f 

d
at

a,
 it

 w
as

 d
ec

id
ed

 t
h

at
 a

 m
o

d
es

t 

b
ac

kg
ro

u
n

d
 a

n
n

u
al

 g
ro

w
th

 r
at

e 
o

f 2
.0

%
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e 
ex

p
e

ct
ed

 o
n

 t
h

e 
ro

ad
s 

in
 t

h
is

 s
tu

d
y 

w
h

ile
 th

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 s

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 

is
 b

u
ilt

-o
u

t.
 T

h
is

 e
q

u
at

es
 t

o
 a

 1
0

.4
%

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 v

o
lu

m
es

 fr
o

m
 e

xi
st

in
g 

to
 t

h
e 

an
ti

ci
p

at
ed

 2
0

2
9

 p
ro

je
ct

 b
u

ild
o

u
t 

ye
ar

. 

Th
e 

10
.4

%
 b

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

 g
ro

w
th

 f
ac

to
r 

w
as

 a
p

p
lie

d
 t

o
 t

h
e 

co
u

n
te

d
 t

ri
p

s 
at

 e
ac

h
 s

tu
d

y 
in

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 t
o

 d
ev

el
o

p
 t

h
e 

2
02

9
 n

o
-b

u
ild

 v
o

lu
m

es
. 

 P
ro

gr
am

m
ed

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 In

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 
 Th

e 
G

eo
rg

ia
 

D
O

T 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

w
eb

si
te

 
w

as
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 
fo

r 
tr

an
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 

p
ro

je
ct

s 
in

 
th

e 
vi

ci
n

it
y 

o
f 

th
e 

su
b

je
ct

 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t.

 
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

p
ro

gr
am

m
ed

 
(s

ch
ed

u
le

d
 

an
d

 
fu

n
d

ed
) 

o
r 

p
la

n
n

ed
 

(a
n

ti
ci

p
at

ed
) 

tr
an

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 

in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
as

 id
e

n
ti

fi
ed

: 
 



7 
   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 G

eo
rg

ia
 D

O
T 

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o

. 0
0

0
18

16
 –

 G
ra

d
e 

Se
p

ar
at

io
n

 a
t 

C
SX

 R
ai

lr
o

ad
 T

ra
ck

s 
–

 T
h

is
 is

 a
 lo

n
g-

ra
n

ge
 (

2
0

5
2

) 
p

ro
je

ct
 

to
 g

ra
d

e 
se

p
ar

at
e 

ce
rt

ai
n

 in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
s 

at
 t

h
e 

ra
ilr

o
ad

 c
ro

ss
in

gs
 a

d
ja

ce
n

t 
to

 A
tl

an
ta

 H
ig

h
w

ay
. T

h
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 w
ill

 o
cc

u
r 

w
el

l b
ey

o
n

d
 t

h
e 

b
u

ild
o

u
t 

d
at

e 
o

f 
th

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 s

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 a

n
d

 w
as

, t
h

er
ef

o
re

, n
o

t 
in

cl
u

d
ed

 in
 t

h
e 

fu
tu

re
 m

o
d

e
lin

g 

an
d

 a
n

al
ys

is
 in

 t
h

is
 t

ra
ff

ic
 s

tu
d

y.
  

 N
o

-B
u

ild
 In

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 O
p

er
at

io
n

s 

 Th
e 

n
o

-b
u

ild
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

 in
cl

u
d

es
 t

h
e 

n
o

-b
u

ild
 t

ra
ff

ic
 v

o
lu

m
es

, a
s 

d
es

cr
ib

ed
 a

b
o

ve
, a

p
p

lie
d

 t
o

 t
h

e 
ex

is
ti

n
g 

la
n

es
 a

n
d

 

co
n

tr
o

l. 
Th

e 
n

o
-b

u
ild

 v
o

lu
m

es
 w

er
e 

en
te

re
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
e 

Sy
n

ch
ro

 1
2

 m
o

d
e

l a
n

d
 t

h
e 

2
0

2
9

 n
o

-b
u

ild
 t

ra
ff

ic
 o

p
er

at
io

n
s 

w
er

e 
an

al
yz

ed
 a

t 
ea

ch
 s

tu
d

y 
in

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

. 
Th

e 
re

su
lt

s 
o

f 
th

e
 n

o
-b

u
ild

 a
n

al
ys

is
 a

re
 s

h
o

w
n

 i
n

 T
ab

le
 3

. 
C

o
m

p
u

te
r 

p
ri

n
to

u
ts

 c
o

n
ta

in
in

g 
d

et
ai

le
d

 r
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
th

e 
n

o
-b

u
ild

 a
n

al
ys

is
 a

re
 lo

ca
te

d
 in

 A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
. L

ev
el

s 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d
 d

el
ay

s 

ar
e

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 f

o
r 

ea
ch

 o
ve

ra
ll 

in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
ea

ch
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 o
r 

m
o

ve
m

en
t.

 L
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
th

at
 o

p
er

at
e 

u
n

ac
ce

p
ta

b
ly

 (
LO

S 
E 

o
r 

LO
S 

F)
 a

re
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 in

 b
o

ld
 t

yp
e.

 

 
Ta

b
le

 3
 –

 N
o

-B
u

ild
 In

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 O
p

er
at

io
n

s 

In
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 /

 A
p

p
ro

ac
h

 

A
.M

. P
ea

k 
H

o
u

r 
P

.M
. P

ea
k 

H
o

u
r 

LO
S 

D
el

ay
 

(s
/v

e
h

) 
LO

S 
D

el
ay

 
(s

/v
e

h
) 

1
. 

A
u

tr
y 

R
o

ad
 a

t 
Ly

le
 R

o
ad

 /
 In

gl
es

 A
cc

e
ss

 (
al

l-
w

ay
 s

to
p

) 
A

 
7

.2
 

A
 

7
.2

 

n
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

Ly
le

 R
d

) 
A

 
7

.1
 

A
 

7
.1

 

so
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 (
In

gl
es

 a
cc

e
ss

) 
A

 
6

.5
 

A
 

7
.0

 

ea
st

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

A
u

tr
y 

R
d

) 
A

 
7

.3
 

A
 

7
.4

 

w
es

tb
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

A
u

tr
y 

R
d

) 
A

 
7

.1
 

A
 

7
.4

 

2
. 

M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
at

 6
th

 A
ve

n
u

e
 /

 B
an

k 
A

cc
es

s 
(a

ll-
w

ay
 s

to
p

) 
A

 
7

.2
 

A
 

7
.8

 

n
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

M
ai

n
 S

t)
 

A
 

7
.1

 
A

 
7

.2
 

so
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 (
M

ai
n

 S
t)

 
A

 
7

.7
 

A
 

8
.3

 

ea
st

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

b
an

k 
ac

ce
ss

) 
A

 
7

.2
 

A
 

7
.4

 

w
es

tb
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

6
th

 A
ve

) 
A

 
7

.0
 

A
 

7
.5

 

3
. 

U
S 

2
9

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

at
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

/ 
M

t 
M

o
ri

ah
 R

o
ad

 (
si

gn
al

) 
C

 
2

2
.0

 
C

 
3

1
.7

 

n
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

M
ai

n
 S

t)
 

B
 

1
9

.7
 

C
 

2
4

.9
 

so
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 (
M

ai
n

 S
t)

 
C

 
2

2
.2

 
C

 
3

3
.0

 

ea
st

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

U
S 

2
9

 B
u

s)
 

B
 

1
1

.0
 

C
 

2
7

.4
 

w
es

tb
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

U
S 

2
9

 B
u

s)
 

C
 

2
8

.9
 

D
 

3
7

.0
 

 Th
e 

n
o

-b
u

ild
 a

n
al

ys
is

 r
ev

ea
ls

 t
ra

ff
ic

 o
p

er
at

io
n

s 
co

m
p

ar
ab

le
 t

o
 t

h
e 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
co

n
d

it
io

n
, w

it
h

 s
lig

h
t 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 d
el

ay
s.

 

A
ll 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e 
to

 o
p

er
at

e 
ac

ce
p

ta
b

ly
 i

n
 t

h
e

 n
o

-b
u

ild
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 n

o
 m

it
ig

at
io

n
 i

s 
id

e
n

ti
fi

ed
 a

t 
an

y 

st
u

d
y 

in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
. 

 



8 
   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 P

ro
je

ct
 T

ra
ff

ic
 C

h
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
s 

 Th
is

 s
ec

ti
o

n
 d

es
cr

ib
es

 t
h

e 
an

ti
ci

p
at

ed
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

h
ar

ac
te

ri
st

ic
s 

o
f 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t,

 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g 
a 

p
ro

je
ct

 

d
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
, h

o
w

 m
u

ch
 t

ra
ff

ic
 t

h
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 w
ill

 g
en

er
at

e,
 a

n
d

 w
h

er
e 

th
at

 t
ra

ff
ic

 w
ill

 t
ra

ve
l. 

 P
ro

je
ct

 D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

 Th
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

is
 a

 r
es

id
en

ti
al

 s
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 c
o

n
si

st
 o

f 
1

4
4

 d
et

ac
h

e
d

 s
in

gl
e

-f
am

ily
 h

o
m

es
 a

n
d

 

4
4

 a
tt

ac
h

ed
 t

o
w

n
h

o
m

es
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

er
ve

d
 b

y 
o

n
e 

fu
ll-

m
o

ve
m

en
t 

ac
ce

ss
 o

n
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t.

 A
 s

ec
o

n
d

ar
y,

 e
m

er
ge

n
cy

 

ve
h

ic
le

 a
cc

es
s 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e 
p

ro
vi

d
ed

 o
n

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t.
 T

h
e 

si
te

 p
la

n
 is

 p
re

se
n

te
d

 in
 F

ig
u

re
 4

.  
 

 
Fi

gu
re

 4
 –

 S
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 

 Tr
ip

 G
en

er
at

io
n

 
 Tr

ip
 g

en
er

at
io

n
 is

 a
n

 e
st

im
at

e 
o

f 
th

e 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

en
te

ri
n

g 
an

d
 e

xi
ti

n
g 

ve
h

ic
u

la
r 

tr
ip

s 
th

at
 w

ill
 b

e 
ge

n
er

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t.

 T
h

e
 v

o
lu

m
e

 o
f 

tr
af

fi
c 

th
at

 w
ill

 b
e

 g
en

er
at

ed
 b

y 
th

e
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

as
 c

al
cu

la
te

d
 u

si
n

g 
th

e 

eq
u

at
io

n
s 

an
d

 r
at

es
 i

n
 t

h
e 

In
st

it
u

te
 o

f 
Tr

an
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 E

n
gi

n
ee

rs
 (

IT
E)

 T
ri

p
 G

en
er

a
ti

o
n

 M
a

n
u

a
l, 

1
1

th
 E

d
it

io
n

 (
th

e 



9 
   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 cu

rr
en

t 
ed

it
io

n
).

 IT
E 

La
n

d
 U

se
 2

1
0

 –
 S

in
gl

e 
Fa

m
ily

 D
et

ac
h

e
d

 H
o

u
si

n
g 

an
d

 IT
E 

La
n

d
 U

se
 2

1
5

 –
 S

in
gl

e 
Fa

m
ily

 A
tt

ac
h

ed
 

H
o

u
si

n
g 

w
er

e
 c

h
o

se
n

 a
s 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
ve

 o
f 

p
ro

je
ct

. T
h

e 
tr

ip
 g

en
er

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 is
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 in

 T
ab

le
 4

. 

 

Ta
b

le
 4

 –
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

/ 
Ly

le
 R

o
ad

 S
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 T
ri

p
 G

en
er

at
io

n
 

La
n

d
 U

se
 

IT
E 

C
o

d
e 

Si
ze

 
A

.M
. P

ea
k 

H
o

u
r 

P
.M

. P
ea

k 
H

o
u

r 
2

4
-H

o
u

r 

In
 

O
u

t 
To

ta
l 

In
 

O
u

t 
To

ta
l 

2
-W

ay
 

Si
n

gl
e 

Fa
m

ily
 D

et
ac

h
ed

 
2

1
0

 
1

4
4

 h
o

m
e

s 
2

6
 

7
8

 
1

0
4

 
8

8
 

5
2

 
1

4
0

 
1

,4
1

2
 

Si
n

gl
e 

Fa
m

ily
 A

tt
ac

h
ed

 
2

1
5

 
4

4
 h

o
m

es
 

4
 

1
3

 
1

7
 

1
3

 
9

 
2

2
 

2
8

6
 

P
ro

je
ct

 T
o

ta
ls

 
 

1
8

8
 h

o
m

e
s 

3
0

 
9

1
 

1
2

1
 

1
0

1
 

6
1

 
1

6
2

 
1

,6
9

8
 

 Th
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 s
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 w
ill

 g
en

er
at

e 
1

21
 a

.m
. p

ea
k 

h
o

u
r 

tr
ip

s,
 1

6
2

 p
.m

. p
ea

k 
h

o
u

r 
tr

ip
s,

 a
n

d
 1

,6
9

8
 w

ee
kd

ay
 t

ri
p

s.
 

 Tr
ip

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 A

ss
ig

n
m

e
n

t 

 Th
e 

tr
ip

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 p
er

ce
n

ta
ge

s 
in

d
ic

at
e 

w
h

at
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

th
e 

su
b

d
iv

is
io

n
’s

 t
ri

p
s 

w
ill

 t
ra

ve
l t

o
 a

n
d

 f
ro

m
 v

ar
io

u
s 

d
ir

ec
ti

o
n

s.
 T

h
e

 t
ri

p
 d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 p

er
ce

n
ta

ge
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

su
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 w

er
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 

p
ro

xi
m

it
y 

o
f l

ik
el

y 
tr

ip
 o

ri
gi

n
s 

an
d

 d
es

ti
n

at
io

n
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g 

re
gi

o
n

al
 e

m
p

lo
ym

en
t 

ce
n

te
rs

, r
et

ai
l a

n
d

 o
ff

ic
es

 in
 t

h
e 

ar
e

a,
 

n
e

ar
b

y 
sc

h
o

o
ls

, 
o

th
er

 r
e

gi
o

n
al

 t
ri

p
 a

tt
ra

ct
o

rs
, 

an
d

 t
h

e 
m

aj
o

r 
ro

u
te

s 
o

f 
tr

av
el

 in
 t

h
e 

ar
ea

. 
Th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 t

ri
p

s,
 s

h
o

w
n

 

in
 T

ab
le

 4
, 

w
er

e 
as

si
gn

ed
 t

o
 e

ac
h

 s
tu

d
y 

in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 m

ai
n

 a
cc

es
s 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 

p
e

rc
en

ta
ge

s.
 T

h
e 

tr
ip

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 p
er

ce
n

ta
ge

s 
an

d
 t

h
e 

to
ta

l a
.m

. a
n

d
 p

.m
. p

ea
k 

h
o

u
r 

tr
ip

s 
ex

p
ec

te
d

 t
o

 b
e 

ge
n

er
at

ed
 

b
y 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

ar
e 

sh
o

w
n

 in
 F

ig
u

re
 5

. 

 

 



1
0

 
   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 

 
Fi

gu
re

 5
 –

 W
ee

kd
ay

 A
.M

. a
n

d
 P

.M
. P

ea
k 

H
o

u
r 

Pr
o

je
ct

 T
ri

p
s 

an
d

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

s 

 
 



1
1

 
   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 Fu

tu
re

 T
ra

ff
ic

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

 Th
e 

fu
tu

re
 v

o
lu

m
es

 c
o

n
si

st
 o

f 
th

e 
n

o
-b

u
ild

 v
o

lu
m

es
 p

lu
s 

th
e 

tr
ip

s 
th

at
 w

ill
 b

e 
ge

n
er

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 

su
b

d
iv

is
io

n
. T

h
e 

fu
tu

re
 v

o
lu

m
es

 a
re

 s
h

o
w

n
 in

 F
ig

u
re

 6
. 

 

 
Fi

gu
re

 6
 –

 F
u

tu
re

 W
ee

kd
ay

 A
.M

. a
n

d
 P

.M
. P

ea
k 

H
o

u
r 

V
o

lu
m

es
 

 A
u

xi
lia

ry
 L

an
e 

R
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
 a

t 
P

ro
je

ct
 A

cc
es

s 
 Th

e 
C

o
d

e 
o

f 
O

rd
in

an
ce

s 
o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

o
f 

A
u

b
u

rn
 w

as
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 t
o

 d
e

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

st
an

d
ar

d
s 

fo
r 

p
ro

vi
d

in
g 

le
ft

 a
n

d
 r

ig
h

t 

tu
rn

 la
n

es
 o

n
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

at
 t

h
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 m
ai

n
 a

cc
es

s.
 T

h
e

 C
o

d
e 

Ti
tl

e 
1

6
 –

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

R
e

gu
la

ti
o

n
s,

 C
h

ap
te

r 
1

6
.2

8
 

– 
A

cc
es

s 
an

d
 R

ig
h

t 
o

f 
W

ay
 R

eq
u

ir
em

en
ts

; S
tr

ee
t 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 R
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
, S

ec
ti

o
n

 1
6

.2
8

.0
2

0
 

– 
M

in
im

u
m

 R
ig

h
t-

o
f-

W
ay

 a
n

d
 S

tr
ee

t 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

, 
B

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 A

cc
es

s 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 –
 S

in
gl

e 
Fa

m
ily

 D
et

ac
h

ed
 

Su
b

d
iv

is
io

n
s 

st
at

es
: 

 

1
. 

W
h

en
 p

ro
p

er
ty

 t
h

at
 a

b
u

ts
 u

p
o

n
 a

n
 e

xi
st

in
g 

o
r 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
it

y 
ro

ad
 is

 t
o

 b
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
e

d
 o

r 
re

d
ev

el
o

p
ed

 a
s 

a 

si
n

gl
e 

fa
m

ily
 d

et
ac

h
ed

 o
r 

d
u

p
le

x 
su

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e 

ci
ty

 s
tr

ee
t 

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o

 t
h

e 
p

ro
p

er
ty

, p
ro

je
ct

 



1
2

 
   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 

ac
ce

ss
 i

m
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
it

y 
ro

ad
 (

d
ec

el
er

at
io

n
 l

an
e

s,
 t

u
rn

 l
an

es
, 

et
c.

) 
sh

al
l 

b
e

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 b

y 
th

e 

d
ev

el
o

p
er

 a
s 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 in

 t
h

is
 c

h
ap

te
r.

 
 

2
. 

A
 d

ec
el

er
at

io
n

 la
n

e
 s

h
al

l b
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 b

e 
p

ro
vi

d
ed

 a
t 

ea
ch

 s
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 s
tr

ee
t 

en
tr

an
ce

 t
h

at
 is

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 

st
re

et
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 a
 c

o
lle

ct
o

r 
st

re
et

 o
r 

ar
te

ri
al

 s
tr

ee
t.

 In
 t

h
e 

ev
en

t 
a 

st
re

et
 h

as
 a

n
 e

xi
st

in
g 

o
r 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 m
ed

ia
n

, 

an
d

 t
h

e 
d

ev
el

o
p

er
 d

es
ir

es
 t

o
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
 a

 m
ed

ia
n

 b
re

ak
 t

o
 s

er
ve

 t
h

e 
su

b
d

iv
is

io
n

, a
 le

ft
 t

u
rn

 la
n

e 
le

ad
in

g 
to

 

th
e 

m
ed

ia
n

 b
re

ak
 s

h
al

l b
e 

re
q

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 b

e 
p

ro
vi

d
ed

 b
y 

th
e

 d
ev

el
o

p
er

 a
n

d
 s

h
al

l m
ee

t 
th

e 
st

an
d

ar
d

s 
co

n
ta

in
ed

 

h
e

re
in

. 
 

3
. 

D
e

ce
le

ra
ti

o
n

 la
n

es
 s

h
al

l h
av

e 
a 

le
n

gt
h

 o
f 

o
n

e 
h

u
n

d
re

d
 f

if
ty

 f
ee

t,
 w

it
h

 a
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 f

if
ty

 f
o

o
t 

ta
p

er
 le

n
gt

h
, a

 

p
av

em
en

t 
w

id
th

 o
f 

tw
el

ve
 f

ee
t 

(e
xc

lu
si

ve
 o

f 
cu

rb
 a

n
d

 g
u

tt
er

) 
an

d
 s

h
al

l b
e 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 w

it
h

 c
u

rb
 a

n
d

 g
u

tt
er

. 

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 r

ig
h

t-
o

f-
w

ay
 t

o
 a

cc
o

m
m

o
d

at
e 

th
e 

d
e

ce
le

ra
ti

o
n

 l
an

e 
an

d
 a

n
 e

le
ve

n
 f

o
o

t 
sh

o
u

ld
er

 s
h

al
l 

b
e 

d
e

d
ic

at
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
er

 t
o

 t
h

e 
ci

ty
 a

t 
n

o
 c

o
st

. A
ss

o
ci

at
ed

 d
ra

in
ag

e 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 a
s 

d
ee

m
ed

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 

b
y 

th
e 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
d

e
ce

le
ra

ti
o

n
 la

n
e 

sh
al

l a
ls

o
 b

e
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

. 
 

4
. 

O
th

e
r 

p
ro

je
ct

 a
cc

es
s 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

ci
ty

 u
p

o
n

 t
h

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 o
f 

th
e 

D
e

p
ar

tm
en

t 
o

f 
Tr

an
sp

o
rt

at
io

n
 f

o
r 

B
ar

ro
w

 a
n

d
/o

r 
G

w
in

n
et

t 
C

o
u

n
ty

 o
r 

th
e 

st
at

e 
o

f 
G

eo
rg

ia
 i

n
 o

rd
er

 t
o

 

en
su

re
 a

d
eq

u
at

e 
si

te
 a

cc
es

s,
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n
 a

cc
es

s,
 c

o
n

ve
n

ie
n

ce
 a

n
d

 s
af

et
y 

to
 t

h
e 

m
o

to
ri

n
g 

p
u

b
lic

. 
 

5
. 

Th
e 

d
ev

el
o

p
er

 s
h

al
l b

e
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

th
e 

re
lo

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 o
r 

p
ri

va
te

 u
ti

lit
ie

s 
an

d
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

st
ru

ct
u

re
s,

 

as
 m

ay
 b

e 
o

cc
as

io
n

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
cc

es
s 

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
. 

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 S
tr

ee
t 

is
 a

 lo
ca

l s
tr

ee
t 

an
d

 a
s 

su
ch

, t
h

e
 c

o
d

e 
d

o
es

 n
o

t 
re

q
u

ir
e 

an
 e

as
tb

o
u

n
d

 d
e

ce
le

ra
ti

o
n

 la
n

e
 o

n
 

M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
at

 t
h

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 a

cc
es

s.
 G

iv
en

 t
h

e 
ex

tr
em

el
y 

lo
w

 v
o

lu
m

es
 o

n
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

(p
ro

je
ct

ed
 f

o
r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 a

t 

ea
st

b
o

u
n

d
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 4
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

an
d

 1
5

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
in

 t
h

e 
a.

m
. a

n
d

 p
.m

. p
e

ak
 h

o
u

rs
, r

es
p

e
ct

iv
el

y,
 a

n
d

 w
es

tb
o

u
n

d
 th

ro
u

gh
 

al
so

 a
t 

4
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

an
d

 1
5

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
in

 t
h

e 
a.

m
. 

an
d

 p
.m

. 
p

ea
k 

h
o

u
rs

, 
re

sp
ec

ti
ve

ly
),

 t
h

is
 s

tu
d

y 
ag

re
es

 w
it

h
 t

h
is

 

co
n

cl
u

si
o

n
. 

Fo
r 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
re

as
o

n
, 

a 
w

es
tb

o
u

n
d

 l
ef

t 
tu

rn
 l

an
e

 i
s 

n
o

t 
co

n
si

d
er

ed
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 o
n

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
at

 t
h

e 

p
ro

je
ct

 a
cc

es
s.

 T
h

e 
se

co
n

d
ar

y 
ac

ce
ss

 w
as

 a
ss

u
m

ed
 t

o
 b

e 
fo

r 
em

er
ge

n
cy

 v
eh

ic
le

 u
se

 o
n

ly
 a

n
d

, 
th

er
ef

o
re

, 
n

o
 t

u
rn

 

la
n

e
s 

ar
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

ed
 o

n
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

at
 t

h
e 

se
co

n
d

ar
y 

ac
ce

ss
.  

 It
 is

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
ed

 t
h

at
 t

h
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 m
ai

n
 a

cc
es

s 
b

e 
co

n
st

ru
ct

ed
 w

it
h

 o
n

e 
en

te
ri

n
g 

la
n

e
 a

n
d

 o
n

e
 e

xi
ti

n
g 

la
n

e.
 T

h
e 

ex
it

in
g 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

co
n

tr
o

lle
d

 b
y 

si
d

e 
st

re
et

 s
to

p
 s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 a

cc
o

m
p

an
yi

n
g 

st
o

p
 b

ar
.  

 Fu
tu

re
 In

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 O
p

er
at

io
n

s 

 A
n

 o
p

er
at

io
n

al
 a

n
al

ys
is

 w
as

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 f

o
r 

th
e 

an
ti

ci
p

at
ed

 f
u

tu
re

 p
ro

je
ct

 b
u

ild
-o

u
t 

at
 t

h
e 

st
u

d
y 

in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
s.

 N
o

 

an
al

ys
is

 w
as

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 a

t 
th

e 
p

ro
je

ct
 m

ai
n

 a
cc

es
s 

b
ec

au
se

 t
h

e 
th

ro
u

gh
 v

o
lu

m
es

 o
n

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
ar

e 
ve

ry
 lo

w
, 

as
 

p
re

se
n

te
d

 a
b

o
ve

, 
an

d
 t

h
e

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
cc

es
s 

is
 e

xp
e

ct
ed

 t
o

 o
p

er
at

e 
w

it
h

 m
in

im
al

 d
e

la
ys

. 
Ta

b
le

 5
 p

re
se

n
ts

 t
h

e 
re

su
lt

s 

o
f 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 a

n
al

ys
is

. 
C

o
m

p
u

te
r 

p
ri

n
to

u
ts

 c
o

n
ta

in
in

g 
d

e
ta

ile
d

 r
es

u
lt

s 
o

f 
th

e 
fu

tu
re

 a
n

al
ys

is
 a

re
 l

o
ca

te
d

 i
n

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 E
. L

ev
el

s 
o

f s
er

vi
ce

 a
n

d
 d

el
ay

s 
ar

e 
p

ro
vi

d
ed

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 o
ve

ra
ll 

in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 fo
r 

ea
ch

 c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 

o
r 

m
o

ve
m

en
t.

 L
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
th

at
 o

p
er

at
e 

u
n

ac
ce

p
ta

b
ly

 (
LO

S 
E 

o
r 

LO
S 

F)
 a

re
 p

re
se

n
te

d
 in

 b
o

ld
 t

yp
e.

 

 



1
3

 
   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 

Ta
b

le
 5

 –
 F

u
tu

re
 In

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 O
p

er
at

io
n

s 

In
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 /

 A
p

p
ro

ac
h

 

A
.M

. P
ea

k 
H

o
u

r 
P

.M
. P

ea
k 

H
o

u
r 

LO
S 

D
el

ay
 

(s
/v

e
h

) 
LO

S 
D

el
ay

 
(s

/v
e

h
) 

1
. 

A
u

tr
y 

R
o

ad
 a

t 
Ly

le
 R

o
ad

 /
 In

gl
es

 A
cc

e
ss

 (
al

l-
w

ay
 s

to
p

) 
A

 
7

.3
 

A
 

7
.5

 

n
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

Ly
le

 R
d

) 
A

 
7

.1
 

A
 

7
.2

 

so
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 (
In

gl
es

 a
cc

e
ss

) 
A

 
6

.8
 

A
 

7
.2

 

ea
st

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

A
u

tr
y 

R
d

) 
A

 
7

.5
 

A
 

7
.5

 

w
es

tb
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

A
u

tr
y 

R
d

) 
A

 
7

.4
 

A
 

7
.9

 

2
. 

M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
at

 6
th

 A
ve

n
u

e
 /

 B
an

k 
A

cc
es

s 
(a

ll-
w

ay
 s

to
p

) 
A

 
7

.7
 

A
 

8
.5

 

n
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

M
ai

n
 S

t)
 

A
 

7
.9

 
A

 
7

.9
 

so
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 (
M

ai
n

 S
t)

 
A

 
7

.9
 

A
 

9
.0

 

ea
st

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

b
an

k 
ac

ce
ss

) 
A

 
7

.6
 

A
 

7
.8

 

w
es

tb
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

6
th

 A
ve

) 
A

 
7

.5
 

A
 

8
.2

 

3
. 

U
S 

2
9

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

at
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

/ 
M

t 
M

o
ri

ah
 R

o
ad

 (
si

gn
al

) 
C

 
2

2
.2

 
D

 
3

6
.7

 

n
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

M
ai

n
 S

t)
 

C
 

2
1

.6
 

C
 

2
6

.3
 

so
u

th
b

o
u

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 (
M

ai
n

 S
t)

 
C

 
2

2
.2

 
D

 
3

6
.9

 

ea
st

b
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

U
S 

2
9

 B
u

s)
 

B
 

1
1

.4
 

D
 

3
7

.3
 

w
es

tb
o

u
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 (

U
S 

2
9

 B
u

s)
 

C
 

2
8

.7
 

D
 

3
8

.3
 

 Th
e 

fu
tu

re
 a

n
al

ys
is

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

ad
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 s

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
’s

 t
ri

p
s 

re
ve

al
s 

a 
sl

ig
h

t 
d

e
te

ri
o

ra
ti

o
n

 in
 o

p
er

at
io

n
s 

at
 e

ac
h

 s
tu

d
y 

in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
, w

it
h

 a
ll 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s 

co
n

ti
n

u
in

g 
to

 o
p

er
at

e 
ac

ce
p

ta
b

ly
. T

h
er

ef
o

re
, n

o
 m

it
ig

at
io

n
 is

 id
en

ti
fi

ed
 

as
 a

 c
o

n
se

q
u

en
ce

 o
f 

th
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 s
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

. 

  
 



1
4

 
   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 C

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
s 

an
d

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
 Th

is
 s

tu
d

y 
as

se
ss

es
 t

h
e 

tr
af

fi
c 

im
p

ac
t 

o
f 

a 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 r

es
id

e
n

ti
al

 s
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 in
 t

h
e 

C
it

y 
o

f 
A

u
b

u
rn

. T
h

e 
si

te
 is

 lo
ca

te
d

 

al
o

n
g 

th
e 

so
u

th
 s

id
e 

o
f 

M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
b

et
w

ee
n

 A
u

tr
y 

R
o

ad
 a

n
d

 3
rd

 S
tr

ee
t.

 T
h

e 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
w

ill
 c

o
n

si
st

 o
f 

1
4

4
 

d
e

ta
ch

ed
 s

in
gl

e
-f

am
ily

 h
o

m
es

 a
n

d
 4

4
 a

tt
ac

h
ed

 t
o

w
n

h
o

m
es

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e 

se
rv

ed
 b

y 
o

n
e 

fu
ll-

m
o

ve
m

en
t 

ac
ce

ss
 o

n
 

M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t.
 A

 s
ec

o
n

d
ar

y,
 e

m
er

ge
n

cy
 v

eh
ic

le
 a

cc
es

s 
w

ill
 a

ls
o

 b
e 

p
ro

vi
d

ed
 o

n
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t.

 T
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

ar
e 

th
e 

fi
n

d
in

gs
 a

n
d

 r
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
o

f 
th

is
 s

tu
d

y:
 

 

1
. 

Th
e 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
an

al
ys

is
 r

ev
ea

ls
 a

cc
ep

ta
b

le
 t

ra
ff

ic
 o

p
er

at
io

n
s 

at
 a

ll 
st

u
d

y 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

s.
 T

h
e

re
fo

re
, n

o
 m

it
ig

at
io

n
 is

 

id
e

n
ti

fi
ed

 a
t 

an
y 

st
u

d
y 

in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
e 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
co

n
d

it
io

n
. 

 

2
. 

Tr
af

fi
c 

vo
lu

m
e 

gr
o

w
th

 in
 t

h
is

 a
re

a 
h

as
 b

ee
n

 a
 m

ix
 o

f 
p

o
si

ti
ve

 a
n

d
 n

eg
at

iv
e.

 A
n

 a
n

n
u

al
 g

ro
w

th
 r

at
e 

o
f 

2
.0

%
, 

ap
p

lie
d

 f
o

r 
fi

ve
 y

ea
rs

, f
o

r 
a 

to
ta

l o
f 

1
0

.4
%

 g
ro

w
th

, w
as

 u
se

d
 in

 d
ev

el
o

p
in

g 
fu

tu
re

 v
o

lu
m

e 
p

ro
je

ct
io

n
s.

 

 

3
. 

Th
e 

n
o

-b
u

ild
 a

n
al

ys
is

 r
ev

ea
ls

 o
p

er
at

io
n

s 
co

m
p

ar
ab

le
 t

o
 t

h
e 

ex
is

ti
n

g 
co

n
d

it
io

n
, 

w
it

h
 s

lig
h

t 
in

cr
ea

se
s 

in
 

d
e

la
ys

. 
A

ll 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

s 
w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e 

to
 o

p
er

at
e 

ac
ce

p
ta

b
ly

 i
n

 t
h

e 
n

o
-b

u
ild

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 n
o

 m
it

ig
at

io
n

 i
s 

id
e

n
ti

fi
ed

 a
t 

an
y 

st
u

d
y 

in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
. 

 

4
. 

Th
e 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 s
u

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 w
ill

 g
en

er
at

e 
1

21
 a

.m
. 

p
ea

k 
h

o
u

r 
tr

ip
s,

 1
62

 p
.m

. 
p

e
ak

 h
o

u
r 

tr
ip

s,
 a

n
d

 1
,6

9
8 

w
ee

kd
ay

 t
ri

p
s.

 
 

5
. 

Th
e 

fu
tu

re
 a

n
al

ys
is

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

ad
d

it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 s

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
’s

 t
ri

p
s 

re
ve

al
s 

a 
sl

ig
h

t 
d

et
er

io
ra

ti
o

n
 i

n
 

o
p

er
at

io
n

s 
at

 t
h

e 
st

u
d

y 
in

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

s.
 H

o
w

ev
er

, 
al

l 
st

u
d

y 
in

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

s 
w

ill
 o

p
er

at
e 

ac
ce

p
ta

b
ly

 a
n

d
 n

o
 

m
it

ig
at

io
n

 is
 r

ec
o

m
m

en
d

ed
 a

s 
a 

co
n

se
q

u
en

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t.
 

 

6
. 

N
o

 e
xc

lu
si

ve
 le

ft
 o

r 
ri

gh
t 

tu
rn

 la
n

es
 a

re
 r

eq
u

ir
ed

 b
y 

C
it

y 
C

o
d

e 
o

n
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

at
 t

h
e 

m
ai

n
 p

ro
je

ct
 a

cc
es

s 

an
d

 n
o

n
e 

ar
e 

re
co

m
m

en
d

ed
 b

y 
th

is
 s

tu
d

y.
  

 

7
. 

Th
e 

m
ai

n
 s

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 a

cc
es

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e 
b

u
ilt

 w
it

h
 o

n
e 

en
te

ri
n

g 
la

n
e 

an
d

 o
n

e 
ex

it
in

g 
la

n
e 

an
d

 t
h

e
 e

xi
ti

n
g 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e 

co
n

tr
o

lle
d

 b
y 

si
d

e 
st

re
et

 s
to

p
 s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 a

cc
o

m
p

an
yi

n
g 

st
o

p
 b

ar
. 

 

8
. 

M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 i

s 
ve

ry
 n

ar
ro

w
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
p

av
em

en
t 

is
 i

n
 p

o
o

r 
co

n
d

it
io

n
. 

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g 

th
is

 r
o

ad
 f

ro
m

 

A
u

tr
y 

R
o

ad
 t

o
 6

th
 A

ve
n

u
e 

to
 C

it
y 

st
an

d
ar

d
s,

 is
 a

d
vi

se
d

. 
 

9
. 

Th
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 c
iv

il/
si

te
 e

n
gi

n
ee

r 
sh

o
u

ld
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it

h
 a

ll 
ap

p
lic

ab
le

 d
es

ig
n

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s 
in

cl
u

d
in

g 
si

gh
t 

d
is

ta
n

ce
s,

 

tu
rn

 la
n

e 
st

o
ra

ge
 a

n
d

 t
ap

er
 le

n
gt

h
s 

(w
h

en
 a

p
p

lic
ab

le
),

 t
u

rn
 r

ad
ii,

 d
ri

ve
w

ay
 w

id
th

s,
 is

la
n

d
s,

 a
n

gl
es

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

ad
ja

ce
n

t 
ro

ad
w

ay
s,

 a
n

d
 g

ra
d

es
. 



   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
  

    

          

 

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 A
 

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

C
o

u
n

t 
D

at
a 

  
 



 

W
e

e
kd

ay
 A

.M
. P

e
ak

 H
o

u
r

L
T

R
To

t
L

T
R

To
t

L
T

R
To

t
L

T
R

To
t

C
o

u
n

te
d

 V
o

lu
m

es
 (

Tu
es

d
ay

, J
u

n
e 

4
, 2

0
2

4
 7

:1
5

-8
:1

5
)

2
1

1
4

0
0

3
3

1
3

2
7

2
4

2
2

9
2

1
3

G
D

O
T 

M
o

n
th

ly
 A

d
ju

st
m

en
t 

Fa
ct

o
r

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

Ex
is

ti
n

g 
A

d
ju

st
ed

 V
o

lu
m

es
2

1
1

4
0

0
3

3
1

3
2

7
2

4
2

2
9

2
1

3

A
n

n
u

al
 B

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

 G
ro

w
th

 t
o

 2
0

2
9

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

2
0

2
9

 N
o

-B
u

ild
 V

o
lu

m
es

2
1

1
4

0
0

3
3

1
4

3
0

2
4

6
2

1
0

2
1

4

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 /

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
Su

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 T
ri

p
s

0
3

2
7

3
0

0
1

0
1

0
0

0
0

9
0

0
9

2
0

2
9

 B
u

ild
 V

o
lu

m
es

2
4

2
8

3
4

0
1

3
4

1
4

3
0

2
4

6
1

1
1

0
2

2
3

W
e

e
kd

ay
 P

.M
. P

e
ak

 H
o

u
r

L
T

R
To

t
L

T
R

To
t

L
T

R
To

t
L

T
R

To
t

C
o

u
n

te
d

 V
o

lu
m

es
 (

Tu
es

d
ay

, J
u

n
e 

4
, 2

0
2

4
 4

:3
0

-5
:3

0
)

3
7

4
1

4
0

1
0

1
2

2
2

8
1

3
0

2
1

4
2

0
0

2
4

G
D

O
T 

M
o

n
th

ly
 A

d
ju

st
m

en
t 

Fa
ct

o
r

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

Ex
is

ti
n

g 
A

d
ju

st
ed

 V
o

lu
m

es
3

7
4

1
4

0
1

0
1

2
2

2
8

1
3

0
2

1
4

2
0

0
2

4

A
n

n
u

al
 B

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

 G
ro

w
th

 t
o

 2
0

2
9

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

2
0

2
9

 N
o

-B
u

ild
 V

o
lu

m
es

3
8

4
1

5
0

1
1

1
3

2
4

9
1

4
0

2
3

4
2

2
0

2
6

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 /

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
Su

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 T
ri

p
s

0
2

1
8

2
0

0
3

0
3

0
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

3
0

2
0

2
9

 B
u

ild
 V

o
lu

m
es

3
1

0
2

2
3

5
0

1
4

1
3

2
7

9
1

4
0

2
3

3
4

2
2

0
5

6

A
C

A
M

P
O

R
A

 T
R

A
F

F
I
C

,
 L

L
C

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
 L

yl
e

 R
o

ad
So

u
th

b
o

u
n

d
 In

gl
e

s 
A

cc
e

ss
Ea

st
b

o
u

n
d

 A
u

tr
y 

R
o

ad
W

e
st

b
o

u
n

d
 A

u
tr

y 
R

o
ad

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 /

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
e

e
t 

Su
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 T

ra
ff

ic
 Im

p
ac

t 
St

u
d

y
C

it
y 

o
f 

A
u

b
u

rn
, G

eo
rg

ia

Ju
n

e 
2

0
2

4

In
te

rs
e

ct
io

n
: 

 1
. A

u
tr

y 
R

o
ad

 a
t 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 /

 In
gl

e
s 

A
cc

e
ss

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
 L

yl
e

 R
o

ad
So

u
th

b
o

u
n

d
 In

gl
e

s 
A

cc
e

ss
Ea

st
b

o
u

n
d

 A
u

tr
y 

R
o

ad
W

e
st

b
o

u
n

d
 A

u
tr

y 
R

o
ad



 

W
e

e
kd

ay
 A

.M
. P

e
ak

 H
o

u
r

L
T

R
To

t
L

T
R

To
t

L
T

R
To

t
L

T
R

To
t

C
o

u
n

te
d

 V
o

lu
m

es
 (

Tu
es

d
ay

, J
u

n
e 

4
, 2

0
2

4
 7

:0
0

-8
:0

0
)

0
6

5
1

1
3

4
0

1
3

5
0

1
0

1
4

1
7

9
8

4
G

D
O

T 
M

o
n

th
ly

 A
d

ju
st

m
en

t 
Fa

ct
o

r
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
Ex

is
ti

n
g 

A
d

ju
st

ed
 V

o
lu

m
es

0
6

5
1

1
3

4
0

1
3

5
0

1
0

1
4

1
7

9
8

4

A
n

n
u

al
 B

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

 G
ro

w
th

 t
o

 2
0

2
9

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

2
0

2
9

 N
o

-B
u

ild
 V

o
lu

m
es

0
7

6
1

2
3

8
0

1
3

9
0

1
0

1
4

1
8

7
9

3

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 /

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
Su

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 T
ri

p
s

0
5

2
9

6
1

0
1

7
0

1
7

0
0

0
0

3
0

0
3

2
0

2
9

 B
u

ild
 V

o
lu

m
es

0
5

9
1

5
7

3
3

8
1

7
1

5
6

0
1

0
1

7
1

8
7

9
6

W
e

e
kd

ay
 P

.M
. P

e
ak

 H
o

u
r

L
T

R
To

t
L

T
R

To
t

L
T

R
To

t
L

T
R

To
t

C
o

u
n

te
d

 V
o

lu
m

es
 (

Tu
es

d
ay

, J
u

n
e 

4
, 2

0
2

4
 4

:3
0

-5
:3

0
)

1
5

1
1

1
7

9
7

2
1

1
0

0
0

6
1

7
9

2
9

3
1

0
4

G
D

O
T 

M
o

n
th

ly
 A

d
ju

st
m

en
t 

Fa
ct

o
r

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

Ex
is

ti
n

g 
A

d
ju

st
ed

 V
o

lu
m

es
1

5
1

1
1

7
9

7
2

1
1

0
0

0
6

1
7

9
2

9
3

1
0

4

A
n

n
u

al
 B

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

 G
ro

w
th

 t
o

 2
0

2
9

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

2
0

2
9

 N
o

-B
u

ild
 V

o
lu

m
es

1
6

1
2

1
9

1
0

7
2

1
1

1
0

0
7

1
8

1
0

2
1

0
3

1
1

5

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 /

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
Su

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 T
ri

p
s

0
3

5
6

4
1

0
5

8
0

5
8

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

1
0

2
0

2
9

 B
u

ild
 V

o
lu

m
es

1
4

1
1

8
6

0
1

0
7

6
0

1
1

6
8

0
7

1
8

2
0

2
1

0
3

1
2

5

A
C

A
M

P
O

R
A

 T
R

A
F

F
I
C

,
 L

L
C

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
So

u
th

b
o

u
n

d
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
Ea

st
b

o
u

n
d

 B
an

k 
A

cc
e

ss
W

e
st

b
o

u
n

d
 6

th
 A

ve
n

u
e

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 /

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
e

e
t 

Su
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 T

ra
ff

ic
 Im

p
ac

t 
St

u
d

y
C

it
y 

o
f 

A
u

b
u

rn
, G

eo
rg

ia

Ju
n

e 
2

0
2

4

In
te

rs
e

ct
io

n
: 

 2
. M

ai
n

 S
tr

e
e

t 
at

 6
th

 A
ve

n
u

e
 /

 B
an

k 
A

cc
e

ss

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
So

u
th

b
o

u
n

d
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
Ea

st
b

o
u

n
d

 B
an

k 
A

cc
e

ss
W

e
st

b
o

u
n

d
 6

th
 A

ve
n

u
e



 

W
e

e
kd

ay
 A

.M
. P

e
ak

 H
o

u
r

L
T

R
To

t
L

T
R

To
t

L
T

R
To

t
L

T
R

To
t

C
o

u
n

te
d

 V
o

lu
m

es
 (

Tu
es

d
ay

, J
u

n
e 

4
, 2

0
2

4
 7

:1
5

-8
:1

5
)

3
7

4
7

0
8

4
1

1
6

2
2

2
9

1
6

7
2

0
3

9
2

1
1

4
2

3
1

5
5

5
1

1
7

6
7

3
G

D
O

T 
M

o
n

th
ly

 A
d

ju
st

m
en

t 
Fa

ct
o

r
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
Ex

is
ti

n
g 

A
d

ju
st

ed
 V

o
lu

m
es

3
7

4
7

0
8

4
1

1
6

2
2

2
9

1
6

7
2

0
3

9
2

1
1

4
2

3
1

5
5

5
1

1
7

6
7

3

A
n

n
u

al
 B

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

 G
ro

w
th

 t
o

 2
0

2
9

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

2
0

2
9

 N
o

-B
u

ild
 V

o
lu

m
es

4
1

5
2

0
9

3
1

2
8

2
4

3
2

1
8

4
2

2
4

3
3

1
2

4
6

7
1

6
1

3
1

2
9

7
4

3

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 /

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
Su

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 T
ri

p
s

9
2

5
1

8
5

2
0

8
0

8
0

0
3

3
6

0
0

6

2
0

2
9

 B
u

ild
 V

o
lu

m
es

5
0

7
7

1
8

1
4

5
1

2
8

3
2

3
2

1
9

2
2

2
4

3
3

1
5

4
7

0
7

6
1

3
1

2
9

7
4

9

W
e

e
kd

ay
 P

.M
. P

e
ak

 H
o

u
r

L
T

R
To

t
L

T
R

To
t

L
T

R
To

t
L

T
R

To
t

C
o

u
n

te
d

 V
o

lu
m

es
 (

Tu
es

d
ay

, J
u

n
e 

4
, 2

0
2

4
 4

:1
5

-5
:1

5
)

4
7

4
6

3
9

6
1

5
4

5
5

4
1

2
5

0
4

1
7

2
5

2
7

7
9

3
3

6
0

4
1

0
9

7
1

6
G

D
O

T 
M

o
n

th
ly

 A
d

ju
st

m
en

t 
Fa

ct
o

r
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
1

.0
0

1
.0

0
Ex

is
ti

n
g 

A
d

ju
st

ed
 V

o
lu

m
es

4
7

4
6

3
9

6
1

5
4

5
5

4
1

2
5

0
4

1
7

2
5

2
7

7
9

3
3

6
0

4
1

0
9

7
1

6

A
n

n
u

al
 B

ac
kg

ro
u

n
d

 G
ro

w
th

 t
o

 2
0

2
9

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

1
0

.4
%

2
0

2
9

 N
o

-B
u

ild
 V

o
lu

m
es

5
2

5
1

3
1

0
6

1
7

0
6

1
4

5
2

7
6

4
5

8
0

0
3

0
8

7
5

3
6

6
7

1
2

0
7

9
0

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 /

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
Su

b
d

iv
is

io
n

 T
ri

p
s

6
1

7
1

2
3

5
0

2
8

0
2

8
0

0
1

0
1

0
2

0
0

0
2

0

2
0

2
9

 B
u

ild
 V

o
lu

m
es

5
8

6
8

1
5

1
4

1
1

7
0

8
9

4
5

3
0

4
4

5
8

0
0

4
0

8
8

5
2

3
6

6
7

1
2

0
8

1
0

A
C

A
M

P
O

R
A

 T
R

A
F

F
I
C

,
 L

L
C

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
So

u
th

b
o

u
n

d
 M

t 
M

o
ri

ah
 R

o
ad

Ea
st

b
o

u
n

d
 U

S 
2

9
 B

u
s

W
e

st
b

o
u

n
d

 U
S 

2
9

 B
u

s

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 /

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
e

e
t 

Su
b

d
iv

is
io

n
 T

ra
ff

ic
 Im

p
ac

t 
St

u
d

y
C

it
y 

o
f 

A
u

b
u

rn
, G

eo
rg

ia

Ju
n

e 
2

0
2

4

In
te

rs
e

ct
io

n
: 

 3
. U

S 
2

9
 B

u
si

n
e

ss
 (

A
tl

an
ta

 H
ig

h
w

ay
) 

at
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

e
e

t 
/ 

M
t 

M
o

ri
ah

 R
o

ad

N
o

rt
h

b
o

u
n

d
 M

ai
n

 S
tr

e
e

t
So

u
th

b
o

u
n

d
 M

t 
M

o
ri

ah
 R

o
ad

Ea
st

b
o

u
n

d
 U

S 
2

9
 B

u
s

W
e

st
b

o
u

n
d

 U
S 

2
9

 B
u

s



F
ile

 N
a
m

e
: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
1

S
ite

 C
o

d
e

: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
1

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

: 
6
/4

/2
0
2
4

P
a
g
e
 N

o
: 
1

T
M

C
 D

a
ta

A
u

tr
y 

R
d
 @

 L
yl

e
 R

d
A

u
b

u
rn

, 
G

A
7

-9
 A

M
 |
 4

-6
 P

M

G
ro

up
s 

P
ri

nt
ed

- 
C

ar
s,

 B
us

es
 a

nd
 T

ru
ck

s
A

ut
ry

 R
d

N
or

th
bo

un
d

A
ut

ry
 R

d
So

ut
hb

ou
nd

P
ri

va
te

 D
rw

y
E

as
tb

ou
nd

L
yl

e 
R

d
W

es
tb

ou
nd

St
ar

t T
im

e
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
In

t. 
T

ot
al

07
:0

0 
A

M
2

5
1

0
8

0
4

0
0

4
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

1
13

07
:1

5 
A

M
1

7
0

0
8

0
1

1
0

2
0

0
1

0
1

1
1

1
0

3
14

07
:3

0 
A

M
6

3
1

0
10

1
4

0
0

5
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

1
16

07
:4

5 
A

M
4

10
0

0
14

1
2

0
0

3
0

0
1

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
18

T
ot

al
13

25
2

0
40

2
11

1
0

14
0

0
2

0
2

3
1

1
0

5
61

08
:0

0 
A

M
2

7
1

0
10

0
2

1
0

3
0

0
1

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
14

08
:1

5 
A

M
1

6
0

0
7

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

1
9

08
:3

0 
A

M
2

6
0

0
8

0
3

0
0

3
1

0
1

0
2

0
1

0
0

1
14

08
:4

5 
A

M
1

2
1

0
4

0
2

1
0

3
0

1
3

0
4

0
0

0
0

0
11

T
ot

al
6

21
2

0
29

0
8

2
0

10
1

1
5

0
7

0
1

1
0

2
48

**
* 

B
R

E
A

K
 *

**

04
:0

0 
PM

1
2

0
0

3
0

5
1

0
6

0
3

3
0

6
0

1
0

0
1

16
04

:1
5 

PM
3

1
0

0
4

0
4

0
0

4
1

2
1

0
4

0
0

0
0

0
12

04
:3

0 
PM

4
4

0
0

8
2

9
0

0
11

0
4

2
0

6
0

2
1

0
3

28
04

:4
5 

PM
1

3
0

0
4

1
6

0
0

7
0

1
4

0
5

0
0

1
0

1
17

T
ot

al
9

10
0

0
19

3
24

1
0

28
1

10
10

0
21

0
3

2
0

5
73

05
:0

0 
PM

2
3

0
0

5
1

1
0

0
2

0
1

2
0

3
3

2
1

0
6

16
05

:1
5 

PM
1

3
0

0
4

0
4

0
0

4
0

4
4

0
8

0
3

1
0

4
20

05
:3

0 
PM

0
3

0
0

3
1

7
0

0
8

1
3

2
0

6
0

2
0

0
2

19
05

:4
5 

PM
2

4
0

0
6

1
5

1
0

7
0

0
5

0
5

0
1

0
0

1
19

T
ot

al
5

13
0

0
18

3
17

1
0

21
1

8
13

0
22

3
8

2
0

13
74

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

33
69

4
0

10
6

8
60

5
0

73
3

19
30

0
52

6
13

6
0

25
25

6
A

pp
rc

h 
%

31
.1

65
.1

3.
8

0
 

11
82

.2
6.

8
0

 
5.

8
36

.5
57

.7
0

 
24

52
24

0
 

 
T

ot
al

 %
12

.9
27

1.
6

0
41

.4
3.

1
23

.4
2

0
28

.5
1.

2
7.

4
11

.7
0

20
.3

2.
3

5.
1

2.
3

0
9.

8

R
e
li
a
b

le
 T

ra
ff

ic
 D

a
ta

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
e
l: 

(7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
8
 I

 F
a
x:

 (
7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
9



F
ile

 N
a
m

e
: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
1

S
ite

 C
o

d
e

: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
1

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

: 
6
/4

/2
0
2
4

P
a
g
e
 N

o
: 
2

T
M

C
 D

a
ta

A
u

tr
y 

R
d
 @

 L
yl

e
 R

d
A

u
b

u
rn

, 
G

A
7

-9
 A

M
 |
 4

-6
 P

M

A
ut

ry
 R

d
N

or
th

bo
un

d
A

ut
ry

 R
d

So
ut

hb
ou

nd
P

ri
va

te
 D

rw
y

E
as

tb
ou

nd
L

yl
e 

R
d

W
es

tb
ou

nd
St

ar
t T

im
e

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

In
t. 

T
ot

al

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r 
A

na
ly

si
s 

Fr
om

 0
7:

00
 A

M
 to

 0
8:

45
 A

M
 -

 P
ea

k 
1 

of
 1

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r 
fo

r 
E

nt
ir

e 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
B

eg
in

s 
at

 0
7:

15
 A

M
07

:1
5 

A
M

1
7

0
0

8
0

1
1

0
2

0
0

1
0

1
1

1
1

0
3

14
07

:3
0 

A
M

6
3

1
0

10
1

4
0

0
5

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

16
07

:4
5 

A
M

4
10

0
0

14
1

2
0

0
3

0
0

1
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

18
08

:0
0 

A
M

2
7

1
0

10
0

2
1

0
3

0
0

1
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

14
T

ot
al

 V
ol

um
e

13
27

2
0

42
2

9
2

0
13

0
0

3
0

3
2

1
1

0
4

62

%
 A

pp
. T

ot
al

64
.3

15
.4

69
.2

15
.4

PH
F

.5
42

.6
75

.5
00

.0
00

.7
50

.5
00

.5
63

.5
00

.0
00

.6
50

.0
00

.0
00

.7
50

.0
00

.7
50

.5
00

.2
50

.2
50

.0
00

.3
33

.8
61

 A
u

tr
y 

R
d

 

 Private Drwy 
 Lyle Rd 

 A
u

tr
y 

R
d

 

R
ig

h
t2
 

T
h

ru
9

 
L

e
ft
2

 
P

e
d

s0
 

In
O

u
t

T
o

ta
l

2
8

 
1

3
 

4
1

 

Right
1 

Thru
1 

Left
2 

Peds
0 

Out TotalIn
4 4 8 

L
e

ft1
3

 
T

h
ru2

7
 

R
ig

h
t2
 

P
e

d
s0

 

O
u

t
T

o
ta

l
In

1
4

 
4

2
 

5
6

 

Left
0 

Thru
0 

Right
3 

Peds
0 

Total OutIn
16 3 19 

P
e

a
k 

H
o

u
r 

B
e

g
in

s 
a

t 
0

7
:1

5
 A

M
 C

a
rs

, 
B

u
se

s 
a

n
d

 T
ru

ck
s

P
e
a
k 

H
o
u
r 

D
a
ta

N
o

rt
h

R
e
li
a
b

le
 T

ra
ff

ic
 D

a
ta

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
e
l: 

(7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
8
 I

 F
a
x:

 (
7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
9



F
ile

 N
a
m

e
: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
1

S
ite

 C
o

d
e

: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
1

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

: 
6
/4

/2
0
2
4

P
a
g
e
 N

o
: 
3

T
M

C
 D

a
ta

A
u

tr
y 

R
d
 @

 L
yl

e
 R

d
A

u
b

u
rn

, 
G

A
7

-9
 A

M
 |
 4

-6
 P

M

A
ut

ry
 R

d
N

or
th

bo
un

d
A

ut
ry

 R
d

So
ut

hb
ou

nd
P

ri
va

te
 D

rw
y

E
as

tb
ou

nd
L

yl
e 

R
d

W
es

tb
ou

nd
St

ar
t T

im
e

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

In
t. 

T
ot

al

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r 
A

na
ly

si
s 

Fr
om

 0
4:

00
 P

M
 to

 0
5:

45
 P

M
 -

 P
ea

k 
1 

of
 1

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r 
fo

r 
E

nt
ir

e 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
B

eg
in

s 
at

 0
4:

30
 P

M
04

:3
0 

PM
4

4
0

0
8

2
9

0
0

11
0

4
2

0
6

0
2

1
0

3
28

04
:4

5 
PM

1
3

0
0

4
1

6
0

0
7

0
1

4
0

5
0

0
1

0
1

17
05

:0
0 

PM
2

3
0

0
5

1
1

0
0

2
0

1
2

0
3

3
2

1
0

6
16

05
:1

5 
PM

1
3

0
0

4
0

4
0

0
4

0
4

4
0

8
0

3
1

0
4

20
T

ot
al

 V
ol

um
e

8
13

0
0

21
4

20
0

0
24

0
10

12
0

22
3

7
4

0
14

81

%
 A

pp
. T

ot
al

38
.1

61
.9

16
.7

83
.3

45
.5

54
.5

21
.4

28
.6

PH
F

.5
00

.8
13

.0
00

.0
00

.6
56

.5
00

.5
56

.0
00

.0
00

.5
45

.0
00

.6
25

.7
50

.0
00

.6
88

.2
50

.5
83

1.
00

.0
00

.5
83

.7
23

 A
u
tr

y 
R

d
 

 Private Drwy 
 Lyle Rd 

 A
u
tr

y 
R

d
 

R
ig

h
t0
 

T
h
ru2

0
 

L
e
ft

4
 

P
e
d
s0

 

In
O

u
t

T
o
ta

l
1
7
 

2
4
 

4
1
 

Right
4 

Thru
7 

Left
3 

Peds
0 

Out TotalIn
14 14 28 

L
e
ft

8
 

T
h
ru1

3
 

R
ig

h
t0
 

P
e
d
s0

 

O
u
t

T
o
ta

l
In

3
5
 

2
1
 

5
6
 

Left
0 

Thru
10 

Right
12 

Peds
0 

Total OutIn
15 22 37 

P
e
a
k 

H
o
u
r 

B
e
g
in

s 
a
t 
0
4
:3

0
 P

M
 C

a
rs

, 
B

u
se

s 
a
n
d
 T

ru
ck

s

P
e
a
k 

H
o
u
r 

D
a
ta

N
o
rt

h

R
e
li
a
b

le
 T

ra
ff

ic
 D

a
ta

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
e
l: 

(7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
8
 I

 F
a
x:

 (
7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
9



F
ile

 N
a
m

e
: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
2

S
ite

 C
o

d
e

: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
2

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

: 
6
/4

/2
0
2
4

P
a
g
e
 N

o
: 
1

T
M

C
 D

a
ta

M
a

in
 S

t 
@

 6
th

 A
ve

A
u

b
u
rn

, 
G

A
7

-9
 A

M
 |
 4

-6
 P

M

G
ro

up
s 

P
ri

nt
ed

- 
C

ar
s,

 B
us

es
 a

nd
 T

ru
ck

s
M

ai
n 

St
N

or
th

bo
un

d
M

ai
n 

St
So

ut
hb

ou
nd

P
ri

va
te

 D
rw

y
E

as
tb

ou
nd

6t
h 

A
ve

W
es

tb
ou

nd
St

ar
t T

im
e

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

In
t. 

T
ot

al

07
:0

0 
A

M
0

2
0

0
2

6
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

22
0

23
31

07
:1

5 
A

M
0

0
1

0
1

5
0

1
0

6
0

1
0

0
1

0
1

27
0

28
36

07
:3

0 
A

M
0

2
3

0
5

12
0

0
0

12
0

0
0

0
0

2
0

19
0

21
38

07
:4

5 
A

M
0

2
1

0
3

11
0

0
0

11
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

11
0

12
26

T
ot

al
0

6
5

0
11

34
0

1
0

35
0

1
0

0
1

4
1

79
0

84
13

1

08
:0

0 
A

M
0

1
2

0
3

6
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

19
0

20
29

08
:1

5 
A

M
0

0
0

0
0

7
0

0
0

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

10
0

11
18

08
:3

0 
A

M
0

0
1

0
1

8
1

0
0

9
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

10
0

10
20

08
:4

5 
A

M
0

2
1

0
3

5
0

0
0

5
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

11
0

12
20

T
ot

al
0

3
4

0
7

26
1

0
0

27
0

0
0

0
0

2
1

50
0

53
87

**
* 

B
R

E
A

K
 *

**

04
:0

0 
PM

1
1

3
0

5
19

0
0

0
19

1
5

0
0

6
2

1
14

0
17

47
04

:1
5 

PM
0

0
2

0
2

14
1

0
0

15
1

5
0

0
6

1
1

19
0

21
44

04
:3

0 
PM

0
0

5
0

5
18

0
0

0
18

0
2

0
0

2
2

0
35

0
37

62
04

:4
5 

PM
1

1
0

0
2

27
1

0
0

28
0

0
0

0
0

1
1

19
0

21
51

T
ot

al
2

2
10

0
14

78
2

0
0

80
2

12
0

0
14

6
3

87
0

96
20

4

05
:0

0 
PM

0
2

2
0

4
25

1
0

0
26

0
3

0
0

3
2

1
21

0
24

57
05

:1
5 

PM
0

2
4

0
6

27
0

1
0

28
0

1
1

0
2

4
0

18
0

22
58

05
:3

0 
PM

0
2

2
0

4
21

0
0

0
21

0
1

0
0

1
1

0
13

0
14

40
05

:4
5 

PM
0

1
0

0
1

15
0

1
0

16
0

2
0

0
2

1
0

13
0

14
33

T
ot

al
0

7
8

0
15

88
1

2
0

91
0

7
1

0
8

8
1

65
0

74
18

8

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

2
18

27
0

47
22

6
4

3
0

23
3

2
20

1
0

23
20

6
28

1
0

30
7

61
0

A
pp

rc
h 

%
4.

3
38

.3
57

.4
0

 
97

1.
7

1.
3

0
 

8.
7

87
4.

3
0

 
6.

5
2

91
.5

0
 

 
T

ot
al

 %
0.

3
3

4.
4

0
7.

7
37

0.
7

0.
5

0
38

.2
0.

3
3.

3
0.

2
0

3.
8

3.
3

1
46

.1
0

50
.3

R
e
li
a
b

le
 T

ra
ff

ic
 D

a
ta

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
e
l: 

(7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
8
 I

 F
a
x:

 (
7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
9



F
ile

 N
a
m

e
: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
2

S
ite

 C
o

d
e

: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
2

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

: 
6
/4

/2
0
2
4

P
a
g
e
 N

o
: 
2

T
M

C
 D

a
ta

M
a

in
 S

t 
@

 6
th

 A
ve

A
u

b
u
rn

, 
G

A
7

-9
 A

M
 |
 4

-6
 P

M

M
ai

n 
St

N
or

th
bo

un
d

M
ai

n 
St

So
ut

hb
ou

nd
P

ri
va

te
 D

rw
y

E
as

tb
ou

nd
6t

h 
A

ve
W

es
tb

ou
nd

St
ar

t T
im

e
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
In

t. 
T

ot
al

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r 
A

na
ly

si
s 

Fr
om

 0
7:

00
 A

M
 to

 0
8:

45
 A

M
 -

 P
ea

k 
1 

of
 1

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r 
fo

r 
E

nt
ir

e 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
B

eg
in

s 
at

 0
7:

00
 A

M
07

:0
0 

A
M

0
2

0
0

2
6

0
0

0
6

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
22

0
23

31
07

:1
5 

A
M

0
0

1
0

1
5

0
1

0
6

0
1

0
0

1
0

1
27

0
28

36
07

:3
0 

A
M

0
2

3
0

5
12

0
0

0
12

0
0

0
0

0
2

0
19

0
21

38
07

:4
5 

A
M

0
2

1
0

3
11

0
0

0
11

0
0

0
0

0
1

0
11

0
12

26
T

ot
al

 V
ol

um
e

0
6

5
0

11
34

0
1

0
35

0
1

0
0

1
4

1
79

0
84

13
1

%
 A

pp
. T

ot
al

54
.5

45
.5

97
.1

PH
F

.0
00

.7
50

.4
17

.0
00

.5
50

.7
08

.0
00

.2
50

.0
00

.7
29

.0
00

.2
50

.0
00

.0
00

.2
50

.5
00

.2
50

.7
31

.0
00

.7
50

.8
62

 M
a

in
 S

t 

 Private Drwy 
 6th Ave 

 M
a

in
 S

t 

R
ig

h
t1
 

T
h

ru
0

 
L

e
ft3

4
 

P
e

d
s0

 

In
O

u
t

T
o

ta
l

8
5

 
3

5
 

1
2

0
 

Right
79 

Thru
1 

Left
4 

Peds
0 

Out TotalIn
40 84 124 

L
e

ft
0

 
T

h
ru

6
 

R
ig

h
t5
 

P
e

d
s0

 

O
u

t
T

o
ta

l
In

4
 

1
1

 
1

5
 

Left
0 

Thru
1 

Right
0 

Peds
0 

Total OutIn
2 1 3 

P
e

a
k 

H
o

u
r 

B
e

g
in

s 
a

t 
0

7
:0

0
 A

M
 C

a
rs

, 
B

u
se

s 
a

n
d

 T
ru

ck
s

P
e
a
k 

H
o
u
r 

D
a
ta

N
o

rt
h

R
e
li
a
b

le
 T

ra
ff

ic
 D

a
ta

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
e
l: 

(7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
8
 I

 F
a
x:

 (
7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
9



F
ile

 N
a
m

e
: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
2

S
ite

 C
o

d
e

: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
2

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

: 
6
/4

/2
0
2
4

P
a
g
e
 N

o
: 
3

T
M

C
 D

a
ta

M
a

in
 S

t 
@

 6
th

 A
ve

A
u

b
u
rn

, 
G

A
7

-9
 A

M
 |
 4

-6
 P

M

M
ai

n 
St

N
or

th
bo

un
d

M
ai

n 
St

So
ut

hb
ou

nd
P

ri
va

te
 D

rw
y

E
as

tb
ou

nd
6t

h 
A

ve
W

es
tb

ou
nd

St
ar

t T
im

e
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
In

t. 
T

ot
al

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r 
A

na
ly

si
s 

Fr
om

 0
4:

00
 P

M
 to

 0
5:

45
 P

M
 -

 P
ea

k 
1 

of
 1

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r 
fo

r 
E

nt
ir

e 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
B

eg
in

s 
at

 0
4:

30
 P

M
04

:3
0 

PM
0

0
5

0
5

18
0

0
0

18
0

2
0

0
2

2
0

35
0

37
62

04
:4

5 
PM

1
1

0
0

2
27

1
0

0
28

0
0

0
0

0
1

1
19

0
21

51
05

:0
0 

PM
0

2
2

0
4

25
1

0
0

26
0

3
0

0
3

2
1

21
0

24
57

05
:1

5 
PM

0
2

4
0

6
27

0
1

0
28

0
1

1
0

2
4

0
18

0
22

58
T

ot
al

 V
ol

um
e

1
5

11
0

17
97

2
1

0
10

0
0

6
1

0
7

9
2

93
0

10
4

22
8

%
 A

pp
. T

ot
al

29
.4

64
.7

85
.7

14
.3

89
.4

PH
F

.2
50

.6
25

.5
50

.0
00

.7
08

.8
98

.5
00

.2
50

.0
00

.8
93

.0
00

.5
00

.2
50

.0
00

.5
83

.5
63

.5
00

.6
64

.0
00

.7
03

.9
19

 M
a
in

 S
t 

 Private Drwy 
 6th Ave 

 M
a
in

 S
t 

R
ig

h
t1
 

T
h
ru

2
 

L
e
ft9

7
 

P
e
d
s0

 

In
O

u
t

T
o
ta

l
9
8
 

1
0
0
 

1
9
8
 

Right
93 

Thru
2 

Left
9 

Peds
0 

Out TotalIn
114 104 218 

L
e
ft

1
 

T
h
ru

5
 

R
ig

h
t

1
1
 

P
e
d
s0

 

O
u
t

T
o
ta

l
In

1
2
 

1
7
 

2
9
 

Left
0 

Thru
6 

Right
1 

Peds
0 

Total OutIn
4 7 11 

P
e
a
k 

H
o
u
r 

B
e
g
in

s 
a
t 
0
4
:3

0
 P

M
 C

a
rs

, 
B

u
se

s 
a
n
d
 T

ru
ck

s

P
e
a
k 

H
o
u
r 

D
a
ta

N
o
rt

h

R
e
li
a
b

le
 T

ra
ff

ic
 D

a
ta

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
e
l: 

(7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
8
 I

 F
a
x:

 (
7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
9



F
ile

 N
a
m

e
: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
3

S
ite

 C
o

d
e

: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
3

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

: 
6
/4

/2
0
2
4

P
a
g
e
 N

o
: 
1

T
M

C
 D

a
ta

A
tla

n
ta

 H
w

y 
(U

S
2

9
 B

u
s)

 @
 M

a
in

 S
t

A
u

b
u
rn

, 
G

A
7

-9
 A

M
 |
 4

-6
 P

M

G
ro

up
s 

P
ri

nt
ed

- 
C

ar
s,

 B
us

es
 a

nd
 T

ru
ck

s
M

ai
n 

St
N

or
th

bo
un

d
M

t 
M

or
ia

h 
R

d
So

ut
hb

ou
nd

A
tl

an
ta

 H
w

y 
(U

S2
9 

B
us

)
E

as
tb

ou
nd

A
tl

an
ta

 H
w

y 
(U

S2
9 

B
us

)
W

es
tb

ou
nd

St
ar

t T
im

e
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
L

ef
t

T
hr

u
R

ig
ht

Pe
ds

A
pp

. T
ot

al
In

t. 
T

ot
al

07
:0

0 
A

M
8

13
1

0
22

27
4

7
0

38
8

67
2

0
77

0
16

5
21

0
18

6
32

3
07

:1
5 

A
M

12
14

0
0

26
27

3
6

0
36

5
10

1
1

0
10

7
1

15
2

29
0

18
2

35
1

07
:3

0 
A

M
7

13
0

0
20

25
8

9
0

42
4

10
2

2
0

10
8

0
14

1
27

0
16

8
33

8
07

:4
5 

A
M

10
10

0
0

20
32

6
6

0
44

6
93

5
0

10
4

0
13

3
30

0
16

3
33

1
T

ot
al

37
50

1
0

88
11

1
21

28
0

16
0

23
36

3
10

0
39

6
1

59
1

10
7

0
69

9
13

43

08
:0

0 
A

M
8

10
0

0
18

32
5

8
0

45
5

96
3

0
10

4
0

12
9

31
0

16
0

32
7

08
:1

5 
A

M
10

6
0

0
16

26
3

5
0

34
3

85
3

0
91

0
14

8
26

0
17

4
31

5
08

:3
0 

A
M

3
4

0
0

7
35

5
4

0
44

7
89

3
0

99
1

13
0

25
0

15
6

30
6

08
:4

5 
A

M
11

4
0

0
15

33
2

11
0

46
5

84
4

0
93

2
10

3
23

0
12

8
28

2
T

ot
al

32
24

0
0

56
12

6
15

28
0

16
9

20
35

4
13

0
38

7
3

51
0

10
5

0
61

8
12

30

**
* 

B
R

E
A

K
 *

**

04
:0

0 
PM

6
9

2
0

17
36

12
7

0
55

5
17

7
7

0
18

9
0

15
5

23
0

17
8

43
9

04
:1

5 
PM

8
10

0
0

18
38

8
13

0
59

7
18

4
7

0
19

8
2

16
1

26
0

18
9

46
4

04
:3

0 
PM

15
16

1
0

32
40

11
6

0
57

10
16

2
4

0
17

6
0

16
5

30
0

19
5

46
0

04
:4

5 
PM

14
9

1
0

24
38

22
12

0
72

10
19

0
7

0
20

7
0

12
2

28
0

15
0

45
3

T
ot

al
43

44
4

0
91

15
2

53
38

0
24

3
32

71
3

25
0

77
0

2
60

3
10

7
0

71
2

18
16

05
:0

0 
PM

10
11

1
0

22
38

14
10

0
62

14
18

9
9

0
21

2
1

15
6

25
0

18
2

47
8

05
:1

5 
PM

6
12

1
0

19
42

18
12

0
72

10
16

9
10

0
18

9
2

15
1

29
0

18
2

46
2

05
:3

0 
PM

8
9

2
0

19
35

13
16

0
64

12
19

1
10

0
21

3
0

13
5

31
0

16
6

46
2

05
:4

5 
PM

9
3

1
0

13
58

12
7

0
77

12
14

7
5

0
16

4
0

10
1

21
0

12
2

37
6

T
ot

al
33

35
5

0
73

17
3

57
45

0
27

5
48

69
6

34
0

77
8

3
54

3
10

6
0

65
2

17
78

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

14
5

15
3

10
0

30
8

56
2

14
6

13
9

0
84

7
12

3
21

26
82

0
23

31
9

22
47

42
5

0
26

81
61

67
A

pp
rc

h 
%

47
.1

49
.7

3.
2

0
 

66
.4

17
.2

16
.4

0
 

5.
3

91
.2

3.
5

0
 

0.
3

83
.8

15
.9

0
 

 
T

ot
al

 %
2.

4
2.

5
0.

2
0

5
9.

1
2.

4
2.

3
0

13
.7

2
34

.5
1.

3
0

37
.8

0.
1

36
.4

6.
9

0
43

.5

R
e
li
a
b

le
 T

ra
ff

ic
 D

a
ta

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
e
l: 

(7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
8
 I

 F
a
x:

 (
7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
9



F
ile

 N
a
m

e
: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
3

S
ite

 C
o

d
e

: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
3

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

: 
6
/4

/2
0
2
4

P
a
g
e
 N

o
: 
2

T
M

C
 D

a
ta

A
tla

n
ta

 H
w

y 
(U

S
2

9
 B

u
s)

 @
 M

a
in

 S
t

A
u

b
u
rn

, 
G

A
7

-9
 A

M
 |
 4

-6
 P

M

M
ai

n 
St

N
or

th
bo

un
d

M
t 

M
or

ia
h 

R
d

So
ut

hb
ou

nd
A

tl
an

ta
 H

w
y 

(U
S2

9 
B

us
)

E
as

tb
ou

nd
A

tl
an

ta
 H

w
y 

(U
S2

9 
B

us
)

W
es

tb
ou

nd
St

ar
t T

im
e

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

In
t. 

T
ot

al

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r 
A

na
ly

si
s 

Fr
om

 0
7:

00
 A

M
 to

 0
8:

45
 A

M
 -

 P
ea

k 
1 

of
 1

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r 
fo

r 
E

nt
ir

e 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
B

eg
in

s 
at

 0
7:

15
 A

M
07

:1
5 

A
M

12
14

0
0

26
27

3
6

0
36

5
10

1
1

0
10

7
1

15
2

29
0

18
2

35
1

07
:3

0 
A

M
7

13
0

0
20

25
8

9
0

42
4

10
2

2
0

10
8

0
14

1
27

0
16

8
33

8
07

:4
5 

A
M

10
10

0
0

20
32

6
6

0
44

6
93

5
0

10
4

0
13

3
30

0
16

3
33

1
08

:0
0 

A
M

8
10

0
0

18
32

5
8

0
45

5
96

3
0

10
4

0
12

9
31

0
16

0
32

7
T

ot
al

 V
ol

um
e

37
47

0
0

84
11

6
22

29
0

16
7

20
39

2
11

0
42

3
1

55
5

11
7

0
67

3
13

47

%
 A

pp
. T

ot
al

69
.5

13
.2

17
.4

92
.7

82
.5

17
.4

PH
F

.7
71

.8
39

.0
00

.0
00

.8
08

.9
06

.6
88

.8
06

.0
00

.9
28

.8
33

.9
61

.5
50

.0
00

.9
79

.2
50

.9
13

.9
44

.0
00

.9
24

.9
59

 M
t 

M
o

ri
a

h
 R

d
 

 Atlanta Hwy (US29 Bus) 
 Atlanta Hwy (US29 Bus) 

 M
a

in
 S

t 

R
ig

h
t

2
9

 
T

h
ru2

2
 

L
e

ft
1

1
6

 
P

e
d

s0
 

In
O

u
t

T
o

ta
l

1
8

4
 

1
6

7
 

3
5

1
 

Right
117 

Thru
555 

Left
1 

Peds
0 

Out TotalIn
508 673 1181 

L
e

ft3
7

 
T

h
ru4

7
 

R
ig

h
t0
 

P
e

d
s0

 

O
u

t
T

o
ta

l
In

3
4

 
8

4
 

1
1

8
 

Left
20 

Thru
392 

Right
11 

Peds
0 

Total OutIn
621 423 1044 

P
e

a
k 

H
o

u
r 

B
e

g
in

s 
a

t 
0

7
:1

5
 A

M
 C

a
rs

, 
B

u
se

s 
a

n
d

 T
ru

ck
s

P
e
a
k 

H
o
u
r 

D
a
ta

N
o

rt
h

R
e
li
a
b

le
 T

ra
ff

ic
 D

a
ta

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
e
l: 

(7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
8
 I

 F
a
x:

 (
7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
9



F
ile

 N
a
m

e
: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
3

S
ite

 C
o

d
e

: 
4
8
9
8
0
0
0
3

S
ta

rt
 D

a
te

: 
6
/4

/2
0
2
4

P
a
g
e
 N

o
: 
3

T
M

C
 D

a
ta

A
tla

n
ta

 H
w

y 
(U

S
2

9
 B

u
s)

 @
 M

a
in

 S
t

A
u

b
u
rn

, 
G

A
7

-9
 A

M
 |
 4

-6
 P

M

M
ai

n 
St

N
or

th
bo

un
d

M
t 

M
or

ia
h 

R
d

So
ut

hb
ou

nd
A

tl
an

ta
 H

w
y 

(U
S2

9 
B

us
)

E
as

tb
ou

nd
A

tl
an

ta
 H

w
y 

(U
S2

9 
B

us
)

W
es

tb
ou

nd
St

ar
t T

im
e

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

L
ef

t
T

hr
u

R
ig

ht
Pe

ds
A

pp
. T

ot
al

In
t. 

T
ot

al

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r 
A

na
ly

si
s 

Fr
om

 0
4:

00
 P

M
 to

 0
5:

45
 P

M
 -

 P
ea

k 
1 

of
 1

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r 
fo

r 
E

nt
ir

e 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
B

eg
in

s 
at

 0
4:

15
 P

M
04

:1
5 

PM
8

10
0

0
18

38
8

13
0

59
7

18
4

7
0

19
8

2
16

1
26

0
18

9
46

4
04

:3
0 

PM
15

16
1

0
32

40
11

6
0

57
10

16
2

4
0

17
6

0
16

5
30

0
19

5
46

0
04

:4
5 

PM
14

9
1

0
24

38
22

12
0

72
10

19
0

7
0

20
7

0
12

2
28

0
15

0
45

3
05

:0
0 

PM
10

11
1

0
22

38
14

10
0

62
14

18
9

9
0

21
2

1
15

6
25

0
18

2
47

8
T

ot
al

 V
ol

um
e

47
46

3
0

96
15

4
55

41
0

25
0

41
72

5
27

0
79

3
3

60
4

10
9

0
71

6
18

55

%
 A

pp
. T

ot
al

47
.9

61
.6

16
.4

91
.4

84
.4

15
.2

PH
F

.7
83

.7
19

.7
50

.0
00

.7
50

.9
63

.6
25

.7
88

.0
00

.8
68

.7
32

.9
54

.7
50

.0
00

.9
35

.3
75

.9
15

.9
08

.0
00

.9
18

.9
70

 M
t 
M

o
ri
a
h
 R

d
 

 Atlanta Hwy (US29 Bus) 
 Atlanta Hwy (US29 Bus) 

 M
a
in

 S
t 

R
ig

h
t

4
1
 

T
h
ru5

5
 

L
e
ft

1
5
4
 

P
e
d
s0

 

In
O

u
t

T
o
ta

l
1
9
6
 

2
5
0
 

4
4
6
 

Right
109 

Thru
604 

Left
3 

Peds
0 

Out TotalIn
882 716 1598 

L
e
ft4

7
 

T
h
ru4

6
 

R
ig

h
t3
 

P
e
d
s0

 

O
u
t

T
o
ta

l
In

8
5
 

9
6
 

1
8
1
 

Left
41 

Thru
725 

Right
27 

Peds
0 

Total OutIn
692 793 1485 

P
e
a
k 

H
o
u
r 

B
e
g
in

s 
a
t 
0
4
:1

5
 P

M
 C

a
rs

, 
B

u
se

s 
a
n
d
 T

ru
ck

s

P
e
a
k 

H
o
u
r 

D
a
ta

N
o
rt

h

R
e
li
a
b

le
 T

ra
ff

ic
 D

a
ta

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

T
e
l: 

(7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
8
 I

 F
a
x:

 (
7
7
0
) 

5
7
8
-8

1
5
9



   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 

      

       

  

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 B
 

 

In
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
 A

n
al

ys
is

 M
et

h
o

d
o

lo
gy

 



   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 In

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 A
n

al
ys

is
 M

et
h

o
d

o
lo

gy
 

 Th
e 

m
et

h
o

d
o

lo
gy

 u
se

d
 fo

r 
ev

al
u

at
in

g 
tr

af
fi

c 
o

p
er

at
io

n
s 

at
 in

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

s 
is

 p
re

se
n

te
d

 in
 t

h
e 

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
at

io
n

 R
es

ea
rc

h
 

B
o

ar
d

’s
 2

0
2

2 
H

ig
h

w
a

y 
C

ap
a

ci
ty

 M
a

n
ua

l, 
7

th
 E

d
it

io
n

 (
H

C
M

 7
).

 S
yn

ch
ro

 1
2

 s
o

ft
w

ar
e,

 w
h

ic
h

 e
m

u
la

te
s 

th
e 

H
C

M
 7

 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
gy

, w
as

 u
se

d
 f

o
r 

al
l a

n
al

ys
es

. T
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

is
 a

n
 o

ve
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e 

m
et

h
o

d
o

lo
gy

 e
m

p
lo

ye
d

 f
o

r 
th

e 
an

al
ys

is
 

o
f 

si
gn

al
iz

ed
 in

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 r

o
u

n
d

ab
o

u
ts

 a
n

d
 s

to
p

-s
ig

n
 c

o
n

tr
o

lle
d

 (
u

n
si

gn
al

iz
ed

) 
in

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

s.
 L

ev
el

s 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 

(L
O

S)
 a

re
 a

ss
ig

n
ed

 le
tt

e
rs

 A
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 F
. L

O
S 

A
 in

d
ic

at
es

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

w
it

h
 v

er
y 

lo
w

 c
o

n
tr

o
l d

e
la

y 
w

h
ile

 L
O

S 
F 

d
es

cr
ib

es
 

o
p

er
at

io
n

s 
w

it
h

 h
ig

h
 c

o
n

tr
o

l d
el

ay
. L

O
S 

F 
is

 c
o

n
si

d
er

ed
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
ac

ce
p

ta
b

le
 b

y 
m

o
st

 d
ri

ve
rs

, w
h

ile
 L

O
S 

E 
is

 t
yp

ic
al

ly
 

co
n

si
d

er
ed

 t
o

 b
e 

th
e 

lim
it

 o
f 

ac
ce

p
ta

b
le

 d
el

ay
.  

 Si
gn

al
iz

ed
 In

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

s 
an

d
 R

o
u

n
d

ab
o

u
ts

 –
 L

ev
el

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 fo

r 
a 

si
gn

al
iz

ed
 in

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

 r
o

u
n

d
ab

o
u

t 
is

 d
ef

in
e

d
 

in
 t

er
m

s 
o

f 
co

n
tr

o
l d

el
ay

 p
er

 v
eh

ic
le

. F
o

r 
si

gn
al

iz
ed

 in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 r
o

u
n

d
ab

o
u

ts
, a

 c
o

m
p

o
si

te
 in

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 le
ve

l 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

is
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
. 

Th
e 

th
re

sh
o

ld
s 

fo
r 

ea
ch

 l
ev

el
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

e 
h

ig
h

er
 f

o
r 

si
gn

al
iz

ed
 i

n
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 

ro
u

n
d

ab
o

u
ts

 t
h

an
 f

o
r 

u
n

si
gn

al
iz

ed
 i

n
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
s.

 T
h

is
 i

s 
at

tr
ib

u
ta

b
le

 t
o

 a
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f 
fa

ct
o

rs
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g 

ex
p

ec
ta

ti
o

n
 

an
d

 a
cc

ep
ta

n
ce

 o
f h

ig
h

er
 d

el
ay

s 
at

 s
ig

n
al

s/
ro

u
n

d
ab

o
u

ts
, a

n
d

 t
h

e 
fa

ct
 t

h
at

 d
ri

ve
rs

 c
an

 r
e

la
x 

w
h

en
 w

ai
ti

n
g 

at
 a

 s
ig

n
al

 

as
 o

p
p

o
se

d
 t

o
 h

av
in

g 
to

 r
em

ai
n

 a
tt

en
ti

ve
 a

s 
th

ey
 p

ro
ce

ed
 t

h
ro

u
gh

 t
h

e
 u

n
si

gn
al

iz
ed

 in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
. T

h
e

 le
ve

l o
f s

er
vi

ce
 

cr
it

er
ia

 f
o

r 
si

gn
al

iz
ed

 in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 r
o

u
n

d
ab

o
u

ts
 a

re
 s

h
o

w
n

 in
 T

ab
le

 A
. 

 

Ta
b

le
 A

 –
 L

ev
el

 o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
ri

te
ri

a 
fo

r 
Si

gn
al

iz
ed

 In
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 R
o

u
n

d
ab

o
u

ts
 

C
o

n
tr

o
l D

e
la

y 
(s

/v
eh

) 
LO

S 


 1

0
 

A
 


 1

0
 a

n
d

 
 2

0
 

B
 


 2

0
 a

n
d

 
 3

5
 

C
 


 3

5
 a

n
d

 
 5

5
 

D
 


 5

5
 a

n
d

 
 8

0
 

E 


 8

0
 

F 

So
u

rc
e:

  H
ig

h
w

a
y 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

 M
an

u
a

l 7
 

 U
n

si
gn

al
iz

ed
 In

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

s 
–

 L
ev

el
 o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
fo

r 
an

 u
n

si
gn

al
iz

ed
 in

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 is
 d

ef
in

e
d

 in
 t

er
m

s 
o

f 
co

n
tr

o
l d

e
la

y 
p

er
 

ve
h

ic
le

. 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
d

el
ay

 i
s 

th
at

 p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
d

e
la

y 
at

tr
ib

u
ta

b
le

 t
o

 t
h

e 
co

n
tr

o
l 

d
ev

ic
e 

an
d

 i
n

cl
u

d
es

 i
n

it
ia

l 
d

e
ce

le
ra

ti
o

n
 

d
e

la
y,

 q
u

eu
e

 m
o

ve
-u

p
 t

im
e,

 s
to

p
p

ed
 d

el
ay

, 
an

d
 f

in
al

 a
cc

el
er

at
io

n
 d

e
la

y.
 T

h
e 

d
el

ay
s 

at
 u

n
si

gn
al

iz
ed

 in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
s 

ar
e 

b
as

ed
 o

n
 g

ap
 a

cc
ep

ta
n

ce
 t

h
eo

ry
, 

fa
ct

o
ri

n
g 

in
 a

va
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
ga

p
s,

 u
se

fu
ln

es
s 

o
f 

th
e 

ga
p

s,
 a

n
d

 t
h

e 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 o
f 

ri
gh

t-
o

f-
w

ay
 g

iv
en

 t
o

 e
ac

h
 t

ra
ff

ic
 s

tr
e

am
. 

Th
e 

le
ve

l o
f 

se
rv

ic
e 

cr
it

er
ia

 f
o

r 
u

n
si

gn
al

iz
ed

 in
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
s 

ar
e 

p
re

se
n

te
d

 

in
 T

ab
le

 B
.  

 

Ta
b

le
 B

 –
 L

ev
el

 o
f 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
ri

te
ri

a 
fo

r 
U

n
si

gn
al

iz
ed

 In
te

rs
ec

ti
o

n
s 

C
o

n
tr

o
l D

e
la

y 
(s

/v
eh

) 
LO

S 

0
 –

 1
0

 
A

 


 1

0
 a

n
d

 
 1

5
 

B
 


 1

5
 a

n
d

 
 2

5
 

C
 


 2

5
 a

n
d

 
 3

5
 

D
 


 3

5
 a

n
d

 
 5

0
 

E 


 5

0
 

F 

So
u

rc
e:

  H
ig

h
w

a
y 

C
a

p
a

ci
ty

 M
an

u
a

l 7
 



   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
  

  

              

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 C
 

 

Ex
is

ti
n

g 
In

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 O
p

er
at

io
n

al
 A

n
al

ys
is

 

 
 



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

1:
 L

yl
e 

R
d/

In
gl

es
 A

cc
es

s 
&

 A
ut

ry
 R

d
ex

is
tin

g 
a.

m
.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
2

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

LO
S

A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

13
27

2
2

9
2

2
1

1
0

0
3

Fu
tu

re
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

13
27

2
2

9
2

2
1

1
0

0
3

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r F
ac

to
r

0.
75

0.
75

0.
75

0.
65

0.
65

0.
65

0.
33

0.
33

0.
33

0.
75

0.
75

0.
75

H
ea

vy
 V

eh
ic

le
s,

 %
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
M

vm
t F

lo
w

17
36

3
3

14
3

6
3

3
0

0
4

N
um

be
r o

f L
an

es
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0

Ap
pr

oa
ch

EB
W

B
N

B
SB

O
pp

os
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
W

B
EB

SB
N

B
O

pp
os

in
g 

La
ne

s
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 L

ef
t

SB
N

B
EB

W
B

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
Le

ft
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 R

ig
ht

N
B

SB
W

B
EB

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
R

ig
ht

1
1

1
1

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
3

7
7.

1
6.

5
H

C
M

 L
O

S
A

A
A

A

La
ne

N
BL

n1
EB

Ln
1

W
BL

n1
SB

Ln
1

Vo
l L

ef
t, 

%
50

%
31

%
15

%
0%

Vo
l T

hr
u,

 %
25

%
64

%
69

%
0%

Vo
l R

ig
ht

, %
25

%
5%

15
%

10
0%

Si
gn

 C
on

tro
l

St
op

St
op

St
op

St
op

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
 b

y 
La

ne
4

42
13

3
LT

 V
ol

2
13

2
0

Th
ro

ug
h 

Vo
l

1
27

9
0

R
T 

Vo
l

1
2

2
3

La
ne

 F
lo

w
 R

at
e

12
56

20
4

G
eo

m
et

ry
 G

rp
1

1
1

1
D

eg
re

e 
of

 U
til

 (X
)

0.
01

4
0.

06
2

0.
02

2
0.

00
4

D
ep

ar
tu

re
 H

ea
dw

ay
 (H

d)
4.

02
4.

01
2

3.
94

4
3.

47
5

C
on

ve
rg

en
ce

, Y
/N

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

C
ap

88
9

89
6

90
9

10
26

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ti
m

e
2.

05
1

2.
02

1
1.

96
1.

50
9

H
C

M
 L

an
e 

V/
C

 R
at

io
0.

01
3

0.
06

3
0.

02
2

0.
00

4
H

C
M

 C
on

tro
l D

el
ay

, s
/v

eh
7.

1
7.

3
7

6.
5

H
C

M
 L

an
e 

LO
S

A
A

A
A

H
C

M
 9

5t
h-

til
e 

Q
0

0.
2

0.
1

0



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

2:
 M

ai
n 

S
t &

 b
an

k 
ac

ce
ss

/6
th

 A
ve

ex
is

tin
g 

a.
m

.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
2

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

LO
S

A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

0
1

0
4

1
79

0
6

5
34

0
1

Fu
tu

re
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

0
1

0
4

1
79

0
6

5
34

0
1

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r F
ac

to
r

0.
25

0.
25

0.
25

0.
75

0.
75

0.
75

0.
55

0.
55

0.
55

0.
73

0.
73

0.
73

H
ea

vy
 V

eh
ic

le
s,

 %
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
M

vm
t F

lo
w

0
4

0
5

1
10

5
0

11
9

47
0

1
N

um
be

r o
f L

an
es

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

Ap
pr

oa
ch

EB
W

B
N

B
SB

O
pp

os
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
W

B
EB

SB
N

B
O

pp
os

in
g 

La
ne

s
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 L

ef
t

SB
N

B
EB

W
B

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
Le

ft
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 R

ig
ht

N
B

SB
W

B
EB

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
R

ig
ht

1
1

1
1

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
2

7
7

7.
6

H
C

M
 L

O
S

A
A

A
A

La
ne

N
BL

n1
EB

Ln
1

W
BL

n1
SB

Ln
1

Vo
l L

ef
t, 

%
0%

0%
5%

97
%

Vo
l T

hr
u,

 %
55

%
10

0%
1%

0%
Vo

l R
ig

ht
, %

45
%

0%
94

%
3%

Si
gn

 C
on

tro
l

St
op

St
op

St
op

St
op

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
 b

y 
La

ne
11

1
84

35
LT

 V
ol

0
0

4
34

Th
ro

ug
h 

Vo
l

6
1

1
0

R
T 

Vo
l

5
0

79
1

La
ne

 F
lo

w
 R

at
e

20
4

11
2

48
G

eo
m

et
ry

 G
rp

1
1

1
1

D
eg

re
e 

of
 U

til
 (X

)
0.

02
2

0.
00

5
0.

10
9

0.
05

8
D

ep
ar

tu
re

 H
ea

dw
ay

 (H
d)

3.
90

2
4.

13
9

3.
50

1
4.

33
1

C
on

ve
rg

en
ce

, Y
/N

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

C
ap

91
5

86
0

10
19

82
8

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ti
m

e
1.

93
5

2.
18

5
1.

53
9

2.
35

4
H

C
M

 L
an

e 
V/

C
 R

at
io

0.
02

2
0.

00
5

0.
11

0.
05

8
H

C
M

 C
on

tro
l D

el
ay

, s
/v

eh
7

7.
2

7
7.

6
H

C
M

 L
an

e 
LO

S
A

A
A

A
H

C
M

 9
5t

h-
til

e 
Q

0.
1

0
0.

4
0.

2



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

3:
 M

ai
n 

S
t/M

t M
or

ia
h 

R
d 

&
 U

S
 2

9 
B

us
ex

is
tin

g 
a.

m
.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
um

e 
(v

eh
/h

)
20

39
2

11
1

55
5

11
7

37
47

0
11

6
22

29
Fu

tu
re

 V
ol

um
e 

(v
eh

/h
)

20
39

2
11

1
55

5
11

7
37

47
0

11
6

22
29

In
iti

al
 Q

 (Q
b)

, v
eh

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

La
ne

 W
id

th
 A

dj
.

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

Pe
d-

Bi
ke

 A
dj

(A
_p

bT
)

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

Pa
rk

in
g 

Bu
s,

 A
dj

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

W
or

k 
Zo

ne
 O

n 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
N

o
N

o
N

o
N

o
Ad

j S
at

 F
lo

w
, v

eh
/h

/ln
18

70
18

11
18

70
18

70
18

11
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
Ad

j F
lo

w
 R

at
e,

 v
eh

/h
20

40
0

11
1

60
3

12
7

46
58

0
12

5
24

31
Pe

ak
 H

ou
r F

ac
to

r
0.

98
0.

98
0.

98
0.

92
0.

92
0.

92
0.

81
0.

81
0.

81
0.

93
0.

93
0.

93
Pe

rc
en

t H
ea

vy
 V

eh
, %

2
6

2
2

6
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

C
ap

, v
eh

/h
20

9
84

2
23

43
6

66
4

14
0

27
3

31
5

0
39

3
78

78
Ar

riv
e 

O
n 

G
re

en
0.

02
0.

48
0.

48
0.

00
0.

46
0.

46
0.

30
0.

30
0.

00
0.

30
0.

30
0.

30
Sa

t F
lo

w
, v

eh
/h

17
81

17
54

48
17

81
14

51
30

6
62

9
10

41
0

97
4

25
7

25
6

G
rp

 V
ol

um
e(

v)
, v

eh
/h

20
0

41
1

1
0

73
0

10
4

0
0

18
0

0
0

G
rp

 S
at

 F
lo

w
(s

),v
eh

/h
/ln

17
81

0
18

02
17

81
0

17
56

16
70

0
0

14
87

0
0

Q
 S

er
ve

(g
_s

), 
s

0.
4

0.
0

9.
6

0.
0

0.
0

24
.1

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

2.
9

0.
0

0.
0

C
yc

le
 Q

 C
le

ar
(g

_c
), 

s
0.

4
0.

0
9.

6
0.

0
0.

0
24

.1
2.

6
0.

0
0.

0
5.

5
0.

0
0.

0
Pr

op
 In

 L
an

e
1.

00
0.

03
1.

00
0.

17
0.

44
0.

00
0.

69
0.

17
La

ne
 G

rp
 C

ap
(c

), 
ve

h/
h

20
9

0
86

5
43

6
0

80
4

58
9

0
0

54
8

0
0

V/
C

 R
at

io
(X

)
0.

10
0.

00
0.

48
0.

00
0.

00
0.

91
0.

18
0.

00
0.

00
0.

33
0.

00
0.

00
Av

ai
l C

ap
(c

_a
), 

ve
h/

h
31

3
0

93
8

57
9

0
91

4
58

9
0

0
54

8
0

0
H

C
M

 P
la

to
on

 R
at

io
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
U

ps
tre

am
 F

ilt
er

(I)
1.

00
0.

00
1.

00
1.

00
0.

00
1.

00
1.

00
0.

00
0.

00
1.

00
0.

00
0.

00
U

ni
fo

rm
 D

el
ay

 (d
), 

s/
ve

h
13

.3
0.

0
10

.9
9.

7
0.

0
15

.7
16

.1
0.

0
0.

0
17

.0
0.

0
0.

0
In

cr
 D

el
ay

 (d
2)

, s
/v

eh
0.

2
0.

0
0.

4
0.

0
0.

0
11

.8
0.

7
0.

0
0.

0
1.

6
0.

0
0.

0
In

iti
al

 Q
 D

el
ay

(d
3)

, s
/v

eh
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
%

ile
 B

ac
kO

fQ
(5

0%
),v

eh
/ln

0.
1

0.
0

3.
0

0.
0

0.
0

9.
9

1.
1

0.
0

0.
0

2.
1

0.
0

0.
0

U
ns

ig
. M

ov
em

en
t D

el
ay

, s
/v

eh
Ln

G
rp

 D
el

ay
(d

), 
s/

ve
h

13
.5

0.
0

11
.4

9.
7

0.
0

27
.5

16
.7

0.
0

0.
0

18
.6

0.
0

0.
0

Ln
G

rp
 L

O
S

B
B

A
C

B
B

Ap
pr

oa
ch

 V
ol

, v
eh

/h
43

1
73

1
10

4
18

0
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 D

el
ay

, s
/v

eh
11

.5
27

.5
16

.7
18

.6
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 L

O
S

B
C

B
B

Ti
m

er
 - 

As
si

gn
ed

 P
hs

2
3

4
6

7
8

Ph
s 

D
ur

at
io

n 
(G

+Y
+R

c)
, s

23
.4

4.
6

34
.5

23
.4

6.
0

33
.1

C
ha

ng
e 

Pe
rio

d 
(Y

+R
c)

, s
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
M

ax
 G

re
en

 S
et

tin
g 

(G
m

ax
), 

s
18

.9
5.

1
32

.5
18

.9
5.

1
32

.5
M

ax
 Q

 C
le

ar
 T

im
e 

(g
_c

+I
1)

, s
4.

6
2.

0
11

.6
7.

5
2.

4
26

.1
G

re
en

 E
xt

 T
im

e 
(p

_c
), 

s
0.

4
0.

0
2.

2
0.

7
0.

0
2.

5

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y
H

C
M

 7
th

 C
on

tro
l D

el
ay

, s
/v

eh
20

.8
H

C
M

 7
th

 L
O

S
C



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

1:
 L

yl
e 

R
d/

In
gl

es
 A

cc
es

s 
&

 A
ut

ry
 R

d
ex

is
tin

g 
p.

m
.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
2

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

LO
S

A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

8
13

0
4

20
0

3
7

4
0

10
12

Fu
tu

re
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

8
13

0
4

20
0

3
7

4
0

10
12

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r F
ac

to
r

0.
66

0.
66

0.
66

0.
55

0.
55

0.
55

0.
58

0.
58

0.
58

0.
69

0.
69

0.
69

H
ea

vy
 V

eh
ic

le
s,

 %
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
M

vm
t F

lo
w

12
20

0
7

36
0

5
12

7
0

14
17

N
um

be
r o

f L
an

es
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0

Ap
pr

oa
ch

EB
W

B
N

B
SB

O
pp

os
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
W

B
EB

SB
N

B
O

pp
os

in
g 

La
ne

s
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 L

ef
t

SB
N

B
EB

W
B

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
Le

ft
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 R

ig
ht

N
B

SB
W

B
EB

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
R

ig
ht

1
1

1
1

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
3

7.
3

7.
1

6.
9

H
C

M
 L

O
S

A
A

A
A

La
ne

N
BL

n1
EB

Ln
1

W
BL

n1
SB

Ln
1

Vo
l L

ef
t, 

%
21

%
38

%
17

%
0%

Vo
l T

hr
u,

 %
50

%
62

%
83

%
45

%
Vo

l R
ig

ht
, %

29
%

0%
0%

55
%

Si
gn

 C
on

tro
l

St
op

St
op

St
op

St
op

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
 b

y 
La

ne
14

21
24

22
LT

 V
ol

3
8

4
0

Th
ro

ug
h 

Vo
l

7
13

20
10

R
T 

Vo
l

4
0

0
12

La
ne

 F
lo

w
 R

at
e

24
32

44
32

G
eo

m
et

ry
 G

rp
1

1
1

1
D

eg
re

e 
of

 U
til

 (X
)

0.
02

7
0.

03
7

0.
05

0.
03

3
D

ep
ar

tu
re

 H
ea

dw
ay

 (H
d)

3.
96

4.
13

9
4.

08
7

3.
75

5
C

on
ve

rg
en

ce
, Y

/N
Ye

s
Ye

s
Ye

s
Ye

s
C

ap
90

0
86

4
87

5
94

8
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ti

m
e

2.
00

3
2.

17
2.

11
6

1.
79

9
H

C
M

 L
an

e 
V/

C
 R

at
io

0.
02

7
0.

03
7

0.
05

0.
03

4
H

C
M

 C
on

tro
l D

el
ay

, s
/v

eh
7.

1
7.

3
7.

3
6.

9
H

C
M

 L
an

e 
LO

S
A

A
A

A
H

C
M

 9
5t

h-
til

e 
Q

0.
1

0.
1

0.
2

0.
1



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

2:
 M

ai
n 

S
t &

 b
an

k 
ac

ce
ss

/6
th

 A
ve

ex
is

tin
g 

p.
m

.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
7

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

LO
S

A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

0
6

1
9

2
93

1
5

11
97

2
1

Fu
tu

re
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

0
6

1
9

2
93

1
5

11
97

2
1

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r F
ac

to
r

0.
58

0.
58

0.
58

0.
70

0.
70

0.
70

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
89

0.
89

0.
89

H
ea

vy
 V

eh
ic

le
s,

 %
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
M

vm
t F

lo
w

0
10

2
13

3
13

3
1

7
15

10
9

2
1

N
um

be
r o

f L
an

es
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0

Ap
pr

oa
ch

EB
W

B
N

B
SB

O
pp

os
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
W

B
EB

SB
N

B
O

pp
os

in
g 

La
ne

s
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 L

ef
t

SB
N

B
EB

W
B

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
Le

ft
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 R

ig
ht

N
B

SB
W

B
EB

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
R

ig
ht

1
1

1
1

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
4

7.
4

7.
1

8.
2

H
C

M
 L

O
S

A
A

A
A

La
ne

N
BL

n1
EB

Ln
1

W
BL

n1
SB

Ln
1

Vo
l L

ef
t, 

%
6%

0%
9%

97
%

Vo
l T

hr
u,

 %
29

%
86

%
2%

2%
Vo

l R
ig

ht
, %

65
%

14
%

89
%

1%
Si

gn
 C

on
tro

l
St

op
St

op
St

op
St

op
Tr

af
fic

 V
ol

 b
y 

La
ne

17
7

10
4

10
0

LT
 V

ol
1

0
9

97
Th

ro
ug

h 
Vo

l
5

6
2

2
R

T 
Vo

l
11

1
93

1
La

ne
 F

lo
w

 R
at

e
24

12
14

9
11

2
G

eo
m

et
ry

 G
rp

1
1

1
1

D
eg

re
e 

of
 U

til
 (X

)
0.

02
6

0.
01

4
0.

15
1

0.
13

8
D

ep
ar

tu
re

 H
ea

dw
ay

 (H
d)

3.
92

5
4.

30
4

3.
65

9
4.

42
1

C
on

ve
rg

en
ce

, Y
/N

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

C
ap

90
0

83
7

96
4

80
8

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ti
m

e
2.

00
3

2.
30

4
1.

74
5

2.
46

8
H

C
M

 L
an

e 
V/

C
 R

at
io

0.
02

7
0.

01
4

0.
15

5
0.

13
9

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
1

7.
4

7.
4

8.
2

H
C

M
 L

an
e 

LO
S

A
A

A
A

H
C

M
 9

5t
h-

til
e 

Q
0.

1
0

0.
5

0.
5



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

3:
 M

ai
n 

S
t/M

t M
or

ia
h 

R
d 

&
 U

S
 2

9 
B

us
ex

is
tin

g 
p.

m
.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
um

e 
(v

eh
/h

)
41

72
5

27
3

60
4

10
9

47
46

3
15

4
55

41
Fu

tu
re

 V
ol

um
e 

(v
eh

/h
)

41
72

5
27

3
60

4
10

9
47

46
3

15
4

55
41

In
iti

al
 Q

 (Q
b)

, v
eh

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

La
ne

 W
id

th
 A

dj
.

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

Pe
d-

Bi
ke

 A
dj

(A
_p

bT
)

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

Pa
rk

in
g 

Bu
s,

 A
dj

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

W
or

k 
Zo

ne
 O

n 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
N

o
N

o
N

o
N

o
Ad

j S
at

 F
lo

w
, v

eh
/h

/ln
18

70
18

11
18

70
18

70
18

11
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
Ad

j F
lo

w
 R

at
e,

 v
eh

/h
44

77
1

29
3

65
7

11
8

63
61

4
17

7
63

47
Pe

ak
 H

ou
r F

ac
to

r
0.

94
0.

94
0.

94
0.

92
0.

92
0.

92
0.

75
0.

75
0.

75
0.

87
0.

87
0.

87
Pe

rc
en

t H
ea

vy
 V

eh
, %

2
6

2
2

6
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

C
ap

, v
eh

/h
21

7
89

1
34

19
0

71
4

12
8

27
5

24
6

14
34

3
11

9
75

Ar
riv

e 
O

n 
G

re
en

0.
04

0.
51

0.
51

0.
00

0.
48

0.
48

0.
30

0.
30

0.
30

0.
30

0.
30

0.
30

Sa
t F

lo
w

, v
eh

/h
17

81
17

34
65

17
81

14
94

26
8

67
6

82
4

48
88

5
39

7
25

1
G

rp
 V

ol
um

e(
v)

, v
eh

/h
44

0
80

0
3

0
77

5
12

8
0

0
28

7
0

0
G

rp
 S

at
 F

lo
w

(s
),v

eh
/h

/ln
17

81
0

17
99

17
81

0
17

63
15

48
0

0
15

34
0

0
Q

 S
er

ve
(g

_s
), 

s
0.

9
0.

0
28

.6
0.

1
0.

0
30

.1
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
7.

0
0.

0
0.

0
C

yc
le

 Q
 C

le
ar

(g
_c

), 
s

0.
9

0.
0

28
.6

0.
1

0.
0

30
.1

4.
2

0.
0

0.
0

11
.3

0.
0

0.
0

Pr
op

 In
 L

an
e

1.
00

0.
04

1.
00

0.
15

0.
49

0.
03

0.
62

0.
16

La
ne

 G
rp

 C
ap

(c
), 

ve
h/

h
21

7
0

92
4

19
0

0
84

2
53

5
0

0
53

7
0

0
V/

C
 R

at
io

(X
)

0.
20

0.
00

0.
87

0.
02

0.
00

0.
92

0.
24

0.
00

0.
00

0.
53

0.
00

0.
00

Av
ai

l C
ap

(c
_a

), 
ve

h/
h

26
9

0
96

8
30

6
0

94
8

53
5

0
0

53
7

0
0

H
C

M
 P

la
to

on
 R

at
io

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

U
ps

tre
am

 F
ilt

er
(I)

1.
00

0.
00

1.
00

1.
00

0.
00

1.
00

1.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1.
00

0.
00

0.
00

U
ni

fo
rm

 D
el

ay
 (d

), 
s/

ve
h

15
.3

0.
0

15
.6

14
.5

0.
0

17
.9

19
.5

0.
0

0.
0

21
.8

0.
0

0.
0

In
cr

 D
el

ay
 (d

2)
, s

/v
eh

0.
5

0.
0

8.
0

0.
0

0.
0

13
.0

1.
1

0.
0

0.
0

3.
8

0.
0

0.
0

In
iti

al
 Q

 D
el

ay
(d

3)
, s

/v
eh

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

%
ile

 B
ac

kO
fQ

(5
0%

),v
eh

/ln
0.

3
0.

0
11

.2
0.

0
0.

0
12

.8
1.

7
0.

0
0.

0
4.

5
0.

0
0.

0
U

ns
ig

. M
ov

em
en

t D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

Ln
G

rp
 D

el
ay

(d
), 

s/
ve

h
15

.8
0.

0
23

.7
14

.5
0.

0
30

.9
20

.5
0.

0
0.

0
25

.6
0.

0
0.

0
Ln

G
rp

 L
O

S
B

C
B

C
C

C
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

84
4

77
8

12
8

28
7

Ap
pr

oa
ch

 D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

23
.3

30
.8

20
.5

25
.6

Ap
pr

oa
ch

 L
O

S
C

C
C

C

Ti
m

er
 - 

As
si

gn
ed

 P
hs

2
3

4
6

7
8

Ph
s 

D
ur

at
io

n 
(G

+Y
+R

c)
, s

26
.4

4.
8

42
.2

26
.4

7.
5

39
.6

C
ha

ng
e 

Pe
rio

d 
(Y

+R
c)

, s
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
M

ax
 G

re
en

 S
et

tin
g 

(G
m

ax
), 

s
21

.9
5.

1
39

.5
21

.9
5.

1
39

.5
M

ax
 Q

 C
le

ar
 T

im
e 

(g
_c

+I
1)

, s
6.

2
2.

1
30

.6
13

.3
2.

9
32

.1
G

re
en

 E
xt

 T
im

e 
(p

_c
), 

s
0.

5
0.

0
3.

5
1.

0
0.

0
3.

0

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y
H

C
M

 7
th

 C
on

tro
l D

el
ay

, s
/v

eh
26

.3
H

C
M

 7
th

 L
O

S
C



   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 

           

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 D
 

 

N
o

-B
u

ild
 In

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 O
p

er
at

io
n

al
 A

n
al

ys
is

 

 
 



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

1:
 L

yl
e 

R
d/

In
gl

es
 A

cc
es

s 
&

 A
ut

ry
 R

d
no

-b
ui

ld
 a

.m
.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
2

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

LO
S

A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

14
30

2
2

10
2

2
1

1
0

0
3

Fu
tu

re
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

14
30

2
2

10
2

2
1

1
0

0
3

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r F
ac

to
r

0.
75

0.
75

0.
75

0.
65

0.
65

0.
65

0.
33

0.
33

0.
33

0.
75

0.
75

0.
75

H
ea

vy
 V

eh
ic

le
s,

 %
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
M

vm
t F

lo
w

19
40

3
3

15
3

6
3

3
0

0
4

N
um

be
r o

f L
an

es
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0

Ap
pr

oa
ch

EB
W

B
N

B
SB

O
pp

os
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
W

B
EB

SB
N

B
O

pp
os

in
g 

La
ne

s
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 L

ef
t

SB
N

B
EB

W
B

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
Le

ft
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 R

ig
ht

N
B

SB
W

B
EB

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
R

ig
ht

1
1

1
1

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
3

7.
1

7.
1

6.
5

H
C

M
 L

O
S

A
A

A
A

La
ne

N
BL

n1
EB

Ln
1

W
BL

n1
SB

Ln
1

Vo
l L

ef
t, 

%
50

%
30

%
14

%
0%

Vo
l T

hr
u,

 %
25

%
65

%
71

%
0%

Vo
l R

ig
ht

, %
25

%
4%

14
%

10
0%

Si
gn

 C
on

tro
l

St
op

St
op

St
op

St
op

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
 b

y 
La

ne
4

46
14

3
LT

 V
ol

2
14

2
0

Th
ro

ug
h 

Vo
l

1
30

10
0

R
T 

Vo
l

1
2

2
3

La
ne

 F
lo

w
 R

at
e

12
61

22
4

G
eo

m
et

ry
 G

rp
1

1
1

1
D

eg
re

e 
of

 U
til

 (X
)

0.
01

4
0.

06
8

0.
02

4
0.

00
4

D
ep

ar
tu

re
 H

ea
dw

ay
 (H

d)
4.

03
2

4.
01

4
3.

95
2

3.
48

7
C

on
ve

rg
en

ce
, Y

/N
Ye

s
Ye

s
Ye

s
Ye

s
C

ap
88

5
89

5
90

7
10

22
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ti

m
e

2.
06

7
2.

02
4

1.
96

9
1.

52
4

H
C

M
 L

an
e 

V/
C

 R
at

io
0.

01
4

0.
06

8
0.

02
4

0.
00

4
H

C
M

 C
on

tro
l D

el
ay

, s
/v

eh
7.

1
7.

3
7.

1
6.

5
H

C
M

 L
an

e 
LO

S
A

A
A

A
H

C
M

 9
5t

h-
til

e 
Q

0
0.

2
0.

1
0



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

2:
 M

ai
n 

S
t &

 b
an

k 
ac

ce
ss

/6
th

 A
ve

no
-b

ui
ld

 a
.m

.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
2

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

LO
S

A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

0
1

0
4

1
87

0
7

6
38

0
1

Fu
tu

re
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

0
1

0
4

1
87

0
7

6
38

0
1

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r F
ac

to
r

0.
25

0.
25

0.
25

0.
75

0.
75

0.
75

0.
55

0.
55

0.
55

0.
73

0.
73

0.
73

H
ea

vy
 V

eh
ic

le
s,

 %
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
M

vm
t F

lo
w

0
4

0
5

1
11

6
0

13
11

52
0

1
N

um
be

r o
f L

an
es

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

Ap
pr

oa
ch

EB
W

B
N

B
SB

O
pp

os
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
W

B
EB

SB
N

B
O

pp
os

in
g 

La
ne

s
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 L

ef
t

SB
N

B
EB

W
B

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
Le

ft
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 R

ig
ht

N
B

SB
W

B
EB

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
R

ig
ht

1
1

1
1

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
2

7
7.

1
7.

7
H

C
M

 L
O

S
A

A
A

A

La
ne

N
BL

n1
EB

Ln
1

W
BL

n1
SB

Ln
1

Vo
l L

ef
t, 

%
0%

0%
4%

97
%

Vo
l T

hr
u,

 %
54

%
10

0%
1%

0%
Vo

l R
ig

ht
, %

46
%

0%
95

%
3%

Si
gn

 C
on

tro
l

St
op

St
op

St
op

St
op

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
 b

y 
La

ne
13

1
92

39
LT

 V
ol

0
0

4
38

Th
ro

ug
h 

Vo
l

7
1

1
0

R
T 

Vo
l

6
0

87
1

La
ne

 F
lo

w
 R

at
e

24
4

12
3

53
G

eo
m

et
ry

 G
rp

1
1

1
1

D
eg

re
e 

of
 U

til
 (X

)
0.

02
6

0.
00

5
0.

12
0.

06
5

D
ep

ar
tu

re
 H

ea
dw

ay
 (H

d)
3.

91
9

4.
16

1
3.

51
1

4.
35

4
C

on
ve

rg
en

ce
, Y

/N
Ye

s
Ye

s
Ye

s
Ye

s
C

ap
91

0
85

4
10

14
82

2
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ti

m
e

1.
95

9
2.

21
6

1.
55

6
2.

38
2

H
C

M
 L

an
e 

V/
C

 R
at

io
0.

02
6

0.
00

5
0.

12
1

0.
06

4
H

C
M

 C
on

tro
l D

el
ay

, s
/v

eh
7.

1
7.

2
7

7.
7

H
C

M
 L

an
e 

LO
S

A
A

A
A

H
C

M
 9

5t
h-

til
e 

Q
0.

1
0

0.
4

0.
2



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

3:
 M

ai
n 

S
t/M

t M
or

ia
h 

R
d 

&
 U

S
 2

9 
B

us
no

-b
ui

ld
 a

.m
.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
um

e 
(v

eh
/h

)
22

43
3

12
1

61
3

12
9

41
52

0
12

8
24

32
Fu

tu
re

 V
ol

um
e 

(v
eh

/h
)

22
43

3
12

1
61

3
12

9
41

52
0

12
8

24
32

In
iti

al
 Q

 (Q
b)

, v
eh

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

La
ne

 W
id

th
 A

dj
.

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

Pe
d-

Bi
ke

 A
dj

(A
_p

bT
)

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

Pa
rk

in
g 

Bu
s,

 A
dj

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

W
or

k 
Zo

ne
 O

n 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
N

o
N

o
N

o
N

o
Ad

j S
at

 F
lo

w
, v

eh
/h

/ln
18

70
18

11
18

70
18

70
18

11
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
Ad

j F
lo

w
 R

at
e,

 v
eh

/h
22

44
2

12
1

66
6

14
0

51
64

0
13

8
26

34
Pe

ak
 H

ou
r F

ac
to

r
0.

98
0.

98
0.

98
0.

92
0.

92
0.

92
0.

81
0.

81
0.

81
0.

93
0.

93
0.

93
Pe

rc
en

t H
ea

vy
 V

eh
, %

2
6

2
2

6
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

C
ap

, v
eh

/h
19

9
91

5
25

44
6

72
2

15
2

25
3

29
0

0
36

4
71

71
Ar

riv
e 

O
n 

G
re

en
0.

03
0.

52
0.

52
0.

00
0.

50
0.

50
0.

28
0.

28
0.

00
0.

28
0.

28
0.

28
Sa

t F
lo

w
, v

eh
/h

17
81

17
55

48
17

81
14

51
30

5
63

3
10

42
0

98
4

25
4

25
7

G
rp

 V
ol

um
e(

v)
, v

eh
/h

22
0

45
4

1
0

80
6

11
5

0
0

19
8

0
0

G
rp

 S
at

 F
lo

w
(s

),v
eh

/h
/ln

17
81

0
18

03
17

81
0

17
56

16
76

0
0

14
95

0
0

Q
 S

er
ve

(g
_s

), 
s

0.
4

0.
0

10
.9

0.
0

0.
0

28
.9

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

3.
6

0.
0

0.
0

C
yc

le
 Q

 C
le

ar
(g

_c
), 

s
0.

4
0.

0
10

.9
0.

0
0.

0
28

.9
3.

2
0.

0
0.

0
6.

9
0.

0
0.

0
Pr

op
 In

 L
an

e
1.

00
0.

03
1.

00
0.

17
0.

44
0.

00
0.

70
0.

17
La

ne
 G

rp
 C

ap
(c

), 
ve

h/
h

19
9

0
94

0
44

6
0

87
4

54
3

0
0

50
6

0
0

V/
C

 R
at

io
(X

)
0.

11
0.

00
0.

48
0.

00
0.

00
0.

92
0.

21
0.

00
0.

00
0.

39
0.

00
0.

00
Av

ai
l C

ap
(c

_a
), 

ve
h/

h
28

8
0

99
6

57
7

0
97

0
54

3
0

0
50

6
0

0
H

C
M

 P
la

to
on

 R
at

io
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
1.

00
U

ps
tre

am
 F

ilt
er

(I)
1.

00
0.

00
1.

00
1.

00
0.

00
1.

00
1.

00
0.

00
0.

00
1.

00
0.

00
0.

00
U

ni
fo

rm
 D

el
ay

 (d
), 

s/
ve

h
14

.2
0.

0
10

.4
9.

2
0.

0
15

.8
18

.8
0.

0
0.

0
20

.0
0.

0
0.

0
In

cr
 D

el
ay

 (d
2)

, s
/v

eh
0.

2
0.

0
0.

4
0.

0
0.

0
13

.1
0.

9
0.

0
0.

0
2.

3
0.

0
0.

0
In

iti
al

 Q
 D

el
ay

(d
3)

, s
/v

eh
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
%

ile
 B

ac
kO

fQ
(5

0%
),v

eh
/ln

0.
1

0.
0

3.
4

0.
0

0.
0

12
.0

1.
4

0.
0

0.
0

2.
7

0.
0

0.
0

U
ns

ig
. M

ov
em

en
t D

el
ay

, s
/v

eh
Ln

G
rp

 D
el

ay
(d

), 
s/

ve
h

14
.4

0.
0

10
.8

9.
2

0.
0

28
.9

19
.7

0.
0

0.
0

22
.2

0.
0

0.
0

Ln
G

rp
 L

O
S

B
B

A
C

B
C

Ap
pr

oa
ch

 V
ol

, v
eh

/h
47

6
80

7
11

5
19

8
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 D

el
ay

, s
/v

eh
11

.0
28

.9
19

.7
22

.2
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 L

O
S

B
C

B
C

Ti
m

er
 - 

As
si

gn
ed

 P
hs

2
3

4
6

7
8

Ph
s 

D
ur

at
io

n 
(G

+Y
+R

c)
, s

23
.4

4.
6

39
.9

23
.4

6.
2

38
.3

C
ha

ng
e 

Pe
rio

d 
(Y

+R
c)

, s
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
M

ax
 G

re
en

 S
et

tin
g 

(G
m

ax
), 

s
18

.9
5.

1
37

.5
18

.9
5.

1
37

.5
M

ax
 Q

 C
le

ar
 T

im
e 

(g
_c

+I
1)

, s
5.

2
2.

0
12

.9
8.

9
2.

4
30

.9
G

re
en

 E
xt

 T
im

e 
(p

_c
), 

s
0.

4
0.

0
2.

6
0.

7
0.

0
2.

9

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y
H

C
M

 7
th

 C
on

tro
l D

el
ay

, s
/v

eh
22

.0
H

C
M

 7
th

 L
O

S
C



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

1:
 L

yl
e 

R
d/

In
gl

es
 A

cc
es

s 
&

 A
ut

ry
 R

d
no

-b
ui

ld
 p

.m
.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
2

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

LO
S

A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

9
14

0
4

22
0

3
8

4
0

11
13

Fu
tu

re
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

9
14

0
4

22
0

3
8

4
0

11
13

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r F
ac

to
r

0.
66

0.
66

0.
66

0.
55

0.
55

0.
55

0.
58

0.
58

0.
58

0.
69

0.
69

0.
69

H
ea

vy
 V

eh
ic

le
s,

 %
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
M

vm
t F

lo
w

14
21

0
7

40
0

5
14

7
0

16
19

N
um

be
r o

f L
an

es
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0

Ap
pr

oa
ch

EB
W

B
N

B
SB

O
pp

os
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
W

B
EB

SB
N

B
O

pp
os

in
g 

La
ne

s
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 L

ef
t

SB
N

B
EB

W
B

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
Le

ft
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 R

ig
ht

N
B

SB
W

B
EB

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
R

ig
ht

1
1

1
1

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
4

7.
4

7.
1

7
H

C
M

 L
O

S
A

A
A

A

La
ne

N
BL

n1
EB

Ln
1

W
BL

n1
SB

Ln
1

Vo
l L

ef
t, 

%
20

%
39

%
15

%
0%

Vo
l T

hr
u,

 %
53

%
61

%
85

%
46

%
Vo

l R
ig

ht
, %

27
%

0%
0%

54
%

Si
gn

 C
on

tro
l

St
op

St
op

St
op

St
op

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
 b

y 
La

ne
15

23
26

24
LT

 V
ol

3
9

4
0

Th
ro

ug
h 

Vo
l

8
14

22
11

R
T 

Vo
l

4
0

0
13

La
ne

 F
lo

w
 R

at
e

26
35

47
35

G
eo

m
et

ry
 G

rp
1

1
1

1
D

eg
re

e 
of

 U
til

 (X
)

0.
02

9
0.

04
0.

05
4

0.
03

6
D

ep
ar

tu
re

 H
ea

dw
ay

 (H
d)

3.
98

3
4.

15
4

4.
09

7
3.

77
1

C
on

ve
rg

en
ce

, Y
/N

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

C
ap

89
4

86
0

87
3

94
4

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ti
m

e
2.

02
8

2.
18

6
2.

12
6

1.
81

7
H

C
M

 L
an

e 
V/

C
 R

at
io

0.
02

9
0.

04
1

0.
05

4
0.

03
7

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
1

7.
4

7.
4

7
H

C
M

 L
an

e 
LO

S
A

A
A

A
H

C
M

 9
5t

h-
til

e 
Q

0.
1

0.
1

0.
2

0.
1



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

2:
 M

ai
n 

S
t &

 b
an

k 
ac

ce
ss

/6
th

 A
ve

no
-b

ui
ld

 p
.m

.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
8

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

LO
S

A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

0
7

1
10

2
10

3
1

6
12

10
7

2
1

Fu
tu

re
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

0
7

1
10

2
10

3
1

6
12

10
7

2
1

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r F
ac

to
r

0.
58

0.
58

0.
58

0.
70

0.
70

0.
70

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
89

0.
89

0.
89

H
ea

vy
 V

eh
ic

le
s,

 %
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
M

vm
t F

lo
w

0
12

2
14

3
14

7
1

8
17

12
0

2
1

N
um

be
r o

f L
an

es
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0

Ap
pr

oa
ch

EB
W

B
N

B
SB

O
pp

os
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
W

B
EB

SB
N

B
O

pp
os

in
g 

La
ne

s
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 L

ef
t

SB
N

B
EB

W
B

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
Le

ft
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 R

ig
ht

N
B

SB
W

B
EB

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
R

ig
ht

1
1

1
1

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
4

7.
5

7.
2

8.
3

H
C

M
 L

O
S

A
A

A
A

La
ne

N
BL

n1
EB

Ln
1

W
BL

n1
SB

Ln
1

Vo
l L

ef
t, 

%
5%

0%
9%

97
%

Vo
l T

hr
u,

 %
32

%
88

%
2%

2%
Vo

l R
ig

ht
, %

63
%

13
%

90
%

1%
Si

gn
 C

on
tro

l
St

op
St

op
St

op
St

op
Tr

af
fic

 V
ol

 b
y 

La
ne

19
8

11
5

11
0

LT
 V

ol
1

0
10

10
7

Th
ro

ug
h 

Vo
l

6
7

2
2

R
T 

Vo
l

12
1

10
3

1
La

ne
 F

lo
w

 R
at

e
27

14
16

4
12

4
G

eo
m

et
ry

 G
rp

1
1

1
1

D
eg

re
e 

of
 U

til
 (X

)
0.

03
0.

01
7

0.
16

8
0.

15
3

D
ep

ar
tu

re
 H

ea
dw

ay
 (H

d)
3.

97
2

4.
36

8
3.

68
4

4.
45

4
C

on
ve

rg
en

ce
, Y

/N
Ye

s
Ye

s
Ye

s
Ye

s
C

ap
88

6
82

4
95

4
80

0
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ti

m
e

2.
06

5
2.

36
8

1.
78

3
2.

51
2

H
C

M
 L

an
e 

V/
C

 R
at

io
0.

03
0.

01
7

0.
17

2
0.

15
5

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
2

7.
4

7.
5

8.
3

H
C

M
 L

an
e 

LO
S

A
A

A
A

H
C

M
 9

5t
h-

til
e 

Q
0.

1
0.

1
0.

6
0.

5



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

3:
 M

ai
n 

S
t/M

t M
or

ia
h 

R
d 

&
 U

S
 2

9 
B

us
no

-b
ui

ld
 p

.m
.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
um

e 
(v

eh
/h

)
45

80
0

30
3

66
7

12
0

52
51

3
17

0
61

45
Fu

tu
re

 V
ol

um
e 

(v
eh

/h
)

45
80

0
30

3
66

7
12

0
52

51
3

17
0

61
45

In
iti

al
 Q

 (Q
b)

, v
eh

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

La
ne

 W
id

th
 A

dj
.

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

Pe
d-

Bi
ke

 A
dj

(A
_p

bT
)

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

Pa
rk

in
g 

Bu
s,

 A
dj

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

W
or

k 
Zo

ne
 O

n 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
N

o
N

o
N

o
N

o
Ad

j S
at

 F
lo

w
, v

eh
/h

/ln
18

70
18

11
18

70
18

70
18

11
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
Ad

j F
lo

w
 R

at
e,

 v
eh

/h
48

85
1

32
3

72
5

13
0

69
68

4
19

5
70

52
Pe

ak
 H

ou
r F

ac
to

r
0.

94
0.

94
0.

94
0.

92
0.

92
0.

92
0.

75
0.

75
0.

75
0.

87
0.

87
0.

87
Pe

rc
en

t H
ea

vy
 V

eh
, %

2
6

2
2

6
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

C
ap

, v
eh

/h
18

9
95

0
36

16
2

76
6

13
7

25
5

23
4

12
32

8
10

4
71

Ar
riv

e 
O

n 
G

re
en

0.
04

0.
55

0.
55

0.
00

0.
51

0.
51

0.
29

0.
29

0.
29

0.
29

0.
29

0.
29

Sa
t F

lo
w

, v
eh

/h
17

81
17

34
65

17
81

14
95

26
8

66
2

80
4

43
89

4
35

8
24

6
G

rp
 V

ol
um

e(
v)

, v
eh

/h
48

0
88

3
3

0
85

5
14

1
0

0
31

7
0

0
G

rp
 S

at
 F

lo
w

(s
),v

eh
/h

/ln
17

81
0

17
99

17
81

0
17

63
15

09
0

0
14

98
0

0
Q

 S
er

ve
(g

_s
), 

s
1.

0
0.

0
37

.3
0.

1
0.

0
39

.4
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
10

.2
0.

0
0.

0
C

yc
le

 Q
 C

le
ar

(g
_c

), 
s

1.
0

0.
0

37
.3

0.
1

0.
0

39
.4

5.
9

0.
0

0.
0

16
.0

0.
0

0.
0

Pr
op

 In
 L

an
e

1.
00

0.
04

1.
00

0.
15

0.
49

0.
03

0.
62

0.
16

La
ne

 G
rp

 C
ap

(c
), 

ve
h/

h
18

9
0

98
6

16
2

0
90

3
50

1
0

0
50

3
0

0
V/

C
 R

at
io

(X
)

0.
25

0.
00

0.
90

0.
02

0.
00

0.
95

0.
28

0.
00

0.
00

0.
63

0.
00

0.
00

Av
ai

l C
ap

(c
_a

), 
ve

h/
h

22
4

0
98

6
26

1
0

95
7

50
1

0
0

50
3

0
0

H
C

M
 P

la
to

on
 R

at
io

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

U
ps

tre
am

 F
ilt

er
(I)

1.
00

0.
00

1.
00

1.
00

0.
00

1.
00

1.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1.
00

0.
00

0.
00

U
ni

fo
rm

 D
el

ay
 (d

), 
s/

ve
h

18
.6

0.
0

17
.2

16
.9

0.
0

19
.8

23
.5

0.
0

0.
0

27
.1

0.
0

0.
0

In
cr

 D
el

ay
 (d

2)
, s

/v
eh

0.
7

0.
0

10
.7

0.
0

0.
0

17
.2

1.
4

0.
0

0.
0

5.
9

0.
0

0.
0

In
iti

al
 Q

 D
el

ay
(d

3)
, s

/v
eh

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

%
ile

 B
ac

kO
fQ

(5
0%

),v
eh

/ln
0.

4
0.

0
15

.4
0.

0
0.

0
17

.7
2.

3
0.

0
0.

0
6.

3
0.

0
0.

0
U

ns
ig

. M
ov

em
en

t D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

Ln
G

rp
 D

el
ay

(d
), 

s/
ve

h
19

.3
0.

0
27

.9
17

.0
0.

0
37

.0
24

.9
0.

0
0.

0
33

.0
0.

0
0.

0
Ln

G
rp

 L
O

S
B

C
B

D
C

C
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

93
1

85
8

14
1

31
7

Ap
pr

oa
ch

 D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

27
.4

37
.0

24
.9

33
.0

Ap
pr

oa
ch

 L
O

S
C

D
C

C

Ti
m

er
 - 

As
si

gn
ed

 P
hs

2
3

4
6

7
8

Ph
s 

D
ur

at
io

n 
(G

+Y
+R

c)
, s

29
.4

4.
8

51
.4

29
.4

7.
9

48
.4

C
ha

ng
e 

Pe
rio

d 
(Y

+R
c)

, s
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
M

ax
 G

re
en

 S
et

tin
g 

(G
m

ax
), 

s
24

.9
5.

1
46

.5
24

.9
5.

1
46

.5
M

ax
 Q

 C
le

ar
 T

im
e 

(g
_c

+I
1)

, s
7.

9
2.

1
39

.3
18

.0
3.

0
41

.4
G

re
en

 E
xt

 T
im

e 
(p

_c
), 

s
0.

6
0.

0
3.

4
1.

0
0.

0
2.

5

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y
H

C
M

 7
th

 C
on

tro
l D

el
ay

, s
/v

eh
31

.7
H

C
M

 7
th

 L
O

S
C



   

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
ai

n
 S

tr
ee

t 
/ 

Ly
le

 R
o

ad
 S

u
b

d
iv

is
io

n
, A

u
b

u
rn

 

Tr
af

fi
c 

Im
p

ac
t 

St
u

d
y 

 
A

C
A

M
P

O
R

A
 T

R
A

F
F

I
C

,
 L

L
C

 
 

            

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 E
 

 

Fu
tu

re
 In

te
rs

ec
ti

o
n

 O
p

er
at

io
n

al
 A

n
al

ys
is

 

 



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

1:
 L

yl
e 

R
d/

In
gl

es
 A

cc
es

s 
&

 A
ut

ry
 R

d
fu

tu
re

 a
.m

.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
3

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

LO
S

A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

14
30

2
11

10
2

2
4

28
0

1
3

Fu
tu

re
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

14
30

2
11

10
2

2
4

28
0

1
3

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r F
ac

to
r

0.
75

0.
75

0.
75

0.
65

0.
65

0.
65

0.
33

0.
33

0.
33

0.
75

0.
75

0.
75

H
ea

vy
 V

eh
ic

le
s,

 %
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
M

vm
t F

lo
w

19
40

3
17

15
3

6
12

85
0

1
4

N
um

be
r o

f L
an

es
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0

Ap
pr

oa
ch

EB
W

B
N

B
SB

O
pp

os
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
W

B
EB

SB
N

B
O

pp
os

in
g 

La
ne

s
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 L

ef
t

SB
N

B
EB

W
B

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
Le

ft
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 R

ig
ht

N
B

SB
W

B
EB

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
R

ig
ht

1
1

1
1

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
5

7.
4

7.
1

6.
8

H
C

M
 L

O
S

A
A

A
A

La
ne

N
BL

n1
EB

Ln
1

W
BL

n1
SB

Ln
1

Vo
l L

ef
t, 

%
6%

30
%

48
%

0%
Vo

l T
hr

u,
 %

12
%

65
%

43
%

25
%

Vo
l R

ig
ht

, %
82

%
4%

9%
75

%
Si

gn
 C

on
tro

l
St

op
St

op
St

op
St

op
Tr

af
fic

 V
ol

 b
y 

La
ne

34
46

23
4

LT
 V

ol
2

14
11

0
Th

ro
ug

h 
Vo

l
4

30
10

1
R

T 
Vo

l
28

2
2

3
La

ne
 F

lo
w

 R
at

e
10

3
61

35
5

G
eo

m
et

ry
 G

rp
1

1
1

1
D

eg
re

e 
of

 U
til

 (X
)

0.
10

4
0.

07
1

0.
04

1
0.

00
6

D
ep

ar
tu

re
 H

ea
dw

ay
 (H

d)
3.

62
3

4.
18

6
4.

21
6

3.
73

1
C

on
ve

rg
en

ce
, Y

/N
Ye

s
Ye

s
Ye

s
Ye

s
C

ap
98

2
85

4
84

7
94

9
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ti

m
e

1.
67

4
2.

22
2.

25
5

1.
79

2
H

C
M

 L
an

e 
V/

C
 R

at
io

0.
10

5
0.

07
1

0.
04

1
0.

00
5

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
1

7.
5

7.
4

6.
8

H
C

M
 L

an
e 

LO
S

A
A

A
A

H
C

M
 9

5t
h-

til
e 

Q
0.

3
0.

2
0.

1
0



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

2:
 M

ai
n 

S
t &

 b
an

k 
ac

ce
ss

/6
th

 A
ve

fu
tu

re
 a

.m
.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
7

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

LO
S

A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

0
1

0
7

1
87

0
59

15
38

17
1

Fu
tu

re
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

0
1

0
7

1
87

0
59

15
38

17
1

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r F
ac

to
r

0.
25

0.
25

0.
25

0.
75

0.
75

0.
75

0.
55

0.
55

0.
55

0.
73

0.
73

0.
73

H
ea

vy
 V

eh
ic

le
s,

 %
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
M

vm
t F

lo
w

0
4

0
9

1
11

6
0

10
7

27
52

23
1

N
um

be
r o

f L
an

es
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0

Ap
pr

oa
ch

EB
W

B
N

B
SB

O
pp

os
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
W

B
EB

SB
N

B
O

pp
os

in
g 

La
ne

s
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 L

ef
t

SB
N

B
EB

W
B

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
Le

ft
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 R

ig
ht

N
B

SB
W

B
EB

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
R

ig
ht

1
1

1
1

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
6

7.
5

7.
9

7.
9

H
C

M
 L

O
S

A
A

A
A

La
ne

N
BL

n1
EB

Ln
1

W
BL

n1
SB

Ln
1

Vo
l L

ef
t, 

%
0%

0%
7%

68
%

Vo
l T

hr
u,

 %
80

%
10

0%
1%

30
%

Vo
l R

ig
ht

, %
20

%
0%

92
%

2%
Si

gn
 C

on
tro

l
St

op
St

op
St

op
St

op
Tr

af
fic

 V
ol

 b
y 

La
ne

74
1

95
56

LT
 V

ol
0

0
7

38
Th

ro
ug

h 
Vo

l
59

1
1

17
R

T 
Vo

l
15

0
87

1
La

ne
 F

lo
w

 R
at

e
13

5
4

12
7

77
G

eo
m

et
ry

 G
rp

1
1

1
1

D
eg

re
e 

of
 U

til
 (X

)
0.

15
3

0.
00

5
0.

13
6

0.
09

4
D

ep
ar

tu
re

 H
ea

dw
ay

 (H
d)

4.
10

1
4.

53
4

3.
87

6
4.

39
5

C
on

ve
rg

en
ce

, Y
/N

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

C
ap

86
5

79
3

93
1

80
6

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ti
m

e
2.

17
2

2.
53

8
1.

87
6

2.
47

2
H

C
M

 L
an

e 
V/

C
 R

at
io

0.
15

6
0.

00
5

0.
13

6
0.

09
6

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
9

7.
6

7.
5

7.
9

H
C

M
 L

an
e 

LO
S

A
A

A
A

H
C

M
 9

5t
h-

til
e 

Q
0.

5
0

0.
5

0.
3



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

3:
 M

ai
n 

S
t/M

t M
or

ia
h 

R
d 

&
 U

S
 2

9 
B

us
fu

tu
re

 a
.m

.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
um

e 
(v

eh
/h

)
22

43
3

15
7

61
3

12
9

50
77

18
12

8
32

32
Fu

tu
re

 V
ol

um
e 

(v
eh

/h
)

22
43

3
15

7
61

3
12

9
50

77
18

12
8

32
32

In
iti

al
 Q

 (Q
b)

, v
eh

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

La
ne

 W
id

th
 A

dj
.

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

Pe
d-

Bi
ke

 A
dj

(A
_p

bT
)

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

Pa
rk

in
g 

Bu
s,

 A
dj

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

W
or

k 
Zo

ne
 O

n 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
N

o
N

o
N

o
N

o
Ad

j S
at

 F
lo

w
, v

eh
/h

/ln
18

70
18

11
18

70
18

70
18

11
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
Ad

j F
lo

w
 R

at
e,

 v
eh

/h
22

44
2

15
8

66
6

14
0

62
95

22
13

8
34

34
Pe

ak
 H

ou
r F

ac
to

r
0.

98
0.

98
0.

98
0.

92
0.

92
0.

92
0.

81
0.

81
0.

81
0.

93
0.

93
0.

93
Pe

rc
en

t H
ea

vy
 V

eh
, %

2
6

2
2

6
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

C
ap

, v
eh

/h
19

9
89

2
30

44
8

72
2

15
2

20
0

28
5

58
34

8
86

68
Ar

riv
e 

O
n 

G
re

en
0.

03
0.

51
0.

51
0.

01
0.

50
0.

50
0.

28
0.

28
0.

28
0.

28
0.

28
0.

28
Sa

t F
lo

w
, v

eh
/h

17
81

17
41

59
17

81
14

51
30

5
46

2
10

23
20

8
93

1
30

8
24

5
G

rp
 V

ol
um

e(
v)

, v
eh

/h
22

0
45

7
8

0
80

6
17

9
0

0
20

6
0

0
G

rp
 S

at
 F

lo
w

(s
),v

eh
/h

/ln
17

81
0

18
00

17
81

0
17

56
16

93
0

0
14

85
0

0
Q

 S
er

ve
(g

_s
), 

s
0.

4
0.

0
11

.3
0.

2
0.

0
28

.9
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
1.

7
0.

0
0.

0
C

yc
le

 Q
 C

le
ar

(g
_c

), 
s

0.
4

0.
0

11
.3

0.
2

0.
0

28
.9

5.
3

0.
0

0.
0

7.
0

0.
0

0.
0

Pr
op

 In
 L

an
e

1.
00

0.
03

1.
00

0.
17

0.
35

0.
12

0.
67

0.
17

La
ne

 G
rp

 C
ap

(c
), 

ve
h/

h
19

9
0

92
2

44
8

0
87

4
54

3
0

0
50

2
0

0
V/

C
 R

at
io

(X
)

0.
11

0.
00

0.
50

0.
02

0.
00

0.
92

0.
33

0.
00

0.
00

0.
41

0.
00

0.
00

Av
ai

l C
ap

(c
_a

), 
ve

h/
h

28
8

0
99

5
56

4
0

97
0

54
3

0
0

50
2

0
0

H
C

M
 P

la
to

on
 R

at
io

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

U
ps

tre
am

 F
ilt

er
(I)

1.
00

0.
00

1.
00

1.
00

0.
00

1.
00

1.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1.
00

0.
00

0.
00

U
ni

fo
rm

 D
el

ay
 (d

), 
s/

ve
h

14
.2

0.
0

10
.8

9.
0

0.
0

15
.8

19
.6

0.
0

0.
0

20
.1

0.
0

0.
0

In
cr

 D
el

ay
 (d

2)
, s

/v
eh

0.
2

0.
0

0.
4

0.
0

0.
0

13
.1

1.
6

0.
0

0.
0

2.
5

0.
0

0.
0

In
iti

al
 Q

 D
el

ay
(d

3)
, s

/v
eh

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

%
ile

 B
ac

kO
fQ

(5
0%

),v
eh

/ln
0.

1
0.

0
3.

6
0.

0
0.

0
12

.0
2.

3
0.

0
0.

0
2.

8
0.

0
0.

0
U

ns
ig

. M
ov

em
en

t D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

Ln
G

rp
 D

el
ay

(d
), 

s/
ve

h
14

.4
0.

0
11

.2
9.

1
0.

0
28

.9
21

.2
0.

0
0.

0
22

.6
0.

0
0.

0
Ln

G
rp

 L
O

S
B

B
A

C
C

C
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

47
9

81
4

17
9

20
6

Ap
pr

oa
ch

 D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

11
.4

28
.7

21
.2

22
.6

Ap
pr

oa
ch

 L
O

S
B

C
C

C

Ti
m

er
 - 

As
si

gn
ed

 P
hs

2
3

4
6

7
8

Ph
s 

D
ur

at
io

n 
(G

+Y
+R

c)
, s

23
.4

5.
2

39
.3

23
.4

6.
2

38
.3

C
ha

ng
e 

Pe
rio

d 
(Y

+R
c)

, s
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
M

ax
 G

re
en

 S
et

tin
g 

(G
m

ax
), 

s
18

.9
5.

1
37

.5
18

.9
5.

1
37

.5
M

ax
 Q

 C
le

ar
 T

im
e 

(g
_c

+I
1)

, s
7.

3
2.

2
13

.3
9.

0
2.

4
30

.9
G

re
en

 E
xt

 T
im

e 
(p

_c
), 

s
0.

7
0.

0
2.

6
0.

8
0.

0
2.

9

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y
H

C
M

 7
th

 C
on

tro
l D

el
ay

, s
/v

eh
22

.2
H

C
M

 7
th

 L
O

S
C



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

1:
 L

yl
e 

R
d/

In
gl

es
 A

cc
es

s 
&

 A
ut

ry
 R

d
fu

tu
re

 p
.m

.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
5

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

LO
S

A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

9
14

0
34

22
0

3
10

22
0

14
13

Fu
tu

re
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

9
14

0
34

22
0

3
10

22
0

14
13

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r F
ac

to
r

0.
66

0.
66

0.
66

0.
55

0.
55

0.
55

0.
58

0.
58

0.
58

0.
69

0.
69

0.
69

H
ea

vy
 V

eh
ic

le
s,

 %
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
M

vm
t F

lo
w

14
21

0
62

40
0

5
17

38
0

20
19

N
um

be
r o

f L
an

es
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0

Ap
pr

oa
ch

EB
W

B
N

B
SB

O
pp

os
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
W

B
EB

SB
N

B
O

pp
os

in
g 

La
ne

s
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 L

ef
t

SB
N

B
EB

W
B

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
Le

ft
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 R

ig
ht

N
B

SB
W

B
EB

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
R

ig
ht

1
1

1
1

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
5

7.
9

7.
2

7.
2

H
C

M
 L

O
S

A
A

A
A

La
ne

N
BL

n1
EB

Ln
1

W
BL

n1
SB

Ln
1

Vo
l L

ef
t, 

%
9%

39
%

61
%

0%
Vo

l T
hr

u,
 %

29
%

61
%

39
%

52
%

Vo
l R

ig
ht

, %
63

%
0%

0%
48

%
Si

gn
 C

on
tro

l
St

op
St

op
St

op
St

op
Tr

af
fic

 V
ol

 b
y 

La
ne

35
23

56
27

LT
 V

ol
3

9
34

0
Th

ro
ug

h 
Vo

l
10

14
22

14
R

T 
Vo

l
22

0
0

13
La

ne
 F

lo
w

 R
at

e
60

35
10

2
39

G
eo

m
et

ry
 G

rp
1

1
1

1
D

eg
re

e 
of

 U
til

 (X
)

0.
06

4
0.

04
1

0.
12

0.
04

3
D

ep
ar

tu
re

 H
ea

dw
ay

 (H
d)

3.
84

1
4.

26
5

4.
25

6
3.

93
C

on
ve

rg
en

ce
, Y

/N
Ye

s
Ye

s
Ye

s
Ye

s
C

ap
91

8
83

3
83

9
89

7
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ti

m
e

1.
92

4
2.

32
6

2.
3

2.
01

4
H

C
M

 L
an

e 
V/

C
 R

at
io

0.
06

5
0.

04
2

0.
12

2
0.

04
3

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
2

7.
5

7.
9

7.
2

H
C

M
 L

an
e 

LO
S

A
A

A
A

H
C

M
 9

5t
h-

til
e 

Q
0.

2
0.

1
0.

4
0.

1



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

2:
 M

ai
n 

S
t &

 b
an

k 
ac

ce
ss

/6
th

 A
ve

fu
tu

re
 p

.m
.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

8.
5

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

LO
S

A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

0
7

1
20

2
10

3
1

41
18

10
7

60
1

Fu
tu

re
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

0
7

1
20

2
10

3
1

41
18

10
7

60
1

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r F
ac

to
r

0.
58

0.
58

0.
58

0.
70

0.
70

0.
70

0.
71

0.
71

0.
71

0.
89

0.
89

0.
89

H
ea

vy
 V

eh
ic

le
s,

 %
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
M

vm
t F

lo
w

0
12

2
29

3
14

7
1

58
25

12
0

67
1

N
um

be
r o

f L
an

es
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0

Ap
pr

oa
ch

EB
W

B
N

B
SB

O
pp

os
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
W

B
EB

SB
N

B
O

pp
os

in
g 

La
ne

s
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 L

ef
t

SB
N

B
EB

W
B

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
Le

ft
1

1
1

1
C

on
fli

ct
in

g 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 R

ig
ht

N
B

SB
W

B
EB

C
on

fli
ct

in
g 

La
ne

s 
R

ig
ht

1
1

1
1

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
8

8.
2

7.
9

9
H

C
M

 L
O

S
A

A
A

A

La
ne

N
BL

n1
EB

Ln
1

W
BL

n1
SB

Ln
1

Vo
l L

ef
t, 

%
2%

0%
16

%
64

%
Vo

l T
hr

u,
 %

68
%

88
%

2%
36

%
Vo

l R
ig

ht
, %

30
%

13
%

82
%

1%
Si

gn
 C

on
tro

l
St

op
St

op
St

op
St

op
Tr

af
fic

 V
ol

 b
y 

La
ne

60
8

12
5

16
8

LT
 V

ol
1

0
20

10
7

Th
ro

ug
h 

Vo
l

41
7

2
60

R
T 

Vo
l

18
1

10
3

1
La

ne
 F

lo
w

 R
at

e
85

14
17

9
18

9
G

eo
m

et
ry

 G
rp

1
1

1
1

D
eg

re
e 

of
 U

til
 (X

)
0.

10
3

0.
01

8
0.

20
5

0.
23

9
D

ep
ar

tu
re

 H
ea

dw
ay

 (H
d)

4.
38

9
4.

69
3

4.
12

5
4.

56
7

C
on

ve
rg

en
ce

, Y
/N

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

Ye
s

C
ap

81
7

76
3

87
1

78
7

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ti
m

e
2.

41
4

2.
71

8
2.

14
2.

58
9

H
C

M
 L

an
e 

V/
C

 R
at

io
0.

10
4

0.
01

8
0.

20
6

0.
24

H
C

M
 C

on
tro

l D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

7.
9

7.
8

8.
2

9
H

C
M

 L
an

e 
LO

S
A

A
A

A
H

C
M

 9
5t

h-
til

e 
Q

0.
3

0.
1

0.
8

0.
9



Ly
le

 / 
M

ai
n 

S
ub

di
vi

si
on

 A
ub

ur
n

3:
 M

ai
n 

S
t/M

t M
or

ia
h 

R
d 

&
 U

S
 2

9 
B

us
fu

tu
re

 p
.m

.

Sy
nc

hr
o 

12
 R

ep
or

t
Ac

am
po

ra
 T

ra
ffi

c,
 L

LC
M

R
A

M
ov

em
en

t
EB

L
EB

T
EB

R
W

BL
W

BT
W

BR
N

BL
N

BT
N

BR
SB

L
SB

T
SB

R
La

ne
 C

on
fig

ur
at

io
ns

Tr
af

fic
 V

ol
um

e 
(v

eh
/h

)
45

80
0

40
23

66
7

12
0

58
68

15
17

0
89

45
Fu

tu
re

 V
ol

um
e 

(v
eh

/h
)

45
80

0
40

23
66

7
12

0
58

68
15

17
0

89
45

In
iti

al
 Q

 (Q
b)

, v
eh

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

La
ne

 W
id

th
 A

dj
.

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

Pe
d-

Bi
ke

 A
dj

(A
_p

bT
)

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

Pa
rk

in
g 

Bu
s,

 A
dj

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

W
or

k 
Zo

ne
 O

n 
Ap

pr
oa

ch
N

o
N

o
N

o
N

o
Ad

j S
at

 F
lo

w
, v

eh
/h

/ln
18

70
18

11
18

70
18

70
18

11
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
18

70
Ad

j F
lo

w
 R

at
e,

 v
eh

/h
48

85
1

43
25

72
5

13
0

77
91

20
19

5
10

2
52

Pe
ak

 H
ou

r F
ac

to
r

0.
94

0.
94

0.
94

0.
92

0.
92

0.
92

0.
75

0.
75

0.
75

0.
87

0.
87

0.
87

Pe
rc

en
t H

ea
vy

 V
eh

, %
2

6
2

2
6

2
2

2
2

2
2

2
C

ap
, v

eh
/h

18
4

89
3

45
16

0
76

1
13

6
21

5
23

9
47

29
5

13
2

63
Ar

riv
e 

O
n 

G
re

en
0.

04
0.

52
0.

52
0.

03
0.

51
0.

51
0.

30
0.

30
0.

30
0.

30
0.

30
0.

30
Sa

t F
lo

w
, v

eh
/h

17
81

17
09

86
17

81
14

95
26

8
52

8
81

0
15

9
78

0
44

7
21

5
G

rp
 V

ol
um

e(
v)

, v
eh

/h
48

0
89

4
25

0
85

5
18

8
0

0
34

9
0

0
G

rp
 S

at
 F

lo
w

(s
),v

eh
/h

/ln
17

81
0

17
96

17
81

0
17

63
14

98
0

0
14

42
0

0
Q

 S
er

ve
(g

_s
), 

s
1.

1
0.

0
40

.9
0.

6
0.

0
40

.0
0.

0
0.

0
0.

0
11

.3
0.

0
0.

0
C

yc
le

 Q
 C

le
ar

(g
_c

), 
s

1.
1

0.
0

40
.9

0.
6

0.
0

40
.0

8.
3

0.
0

0.
0

19
.5

0.
0

0.
0

Pr
op

 In
 L

an
e

1.
00

0.
05

1.
00

0.
15

0.
41

0.
11

0.
56

0.
15

La
ne

 G
rp

 C
ap

(c
), 

ve
h/

h
18

4
0

93
8

16
0

0
89

7
50

1
0

0
49

1
0

0
V/

C
 R

at
io

(X
)

0.
26

0.
00

0.
95

0.
16

0.
00

0.
95

0.
38

0.
00

0.
00

0.
71

0.
00

0.
00

Av
ai

l C
ap

(c
_a

), 
ve

h/
h

21
9

0
95

4
21

9
0

93
7

50
1

0
0

49
1

0
0

H
C

M
 P

la
to

on
 R

at
io

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

1.
00

U
ps

tre
am

 F
ilt

er
(I)

1.
00

0.
00

1.
00

1.
00

0.
00

1.
00

1.
00

0.
00

0.
00

1.
00

0.
00

0.
00

U
ni

fo
rm

 D
el

ay
 (d

), 
s/

ve
h

19
.0

0.
0

19
.6

19
.0

0.
0

20
.2

24
.2

0.
0

0.
0

28
.4

0.
0

0.
0

In
cr

 D
el

ay
 (d

2)
, s

/v
eh

0.
7

0.
0

18
.6

0.
4

0.
0

18
.6

2.
1

0.
0

0.
0

8.
5

0.
0

0.
0

In
iti

al
 Q

 D
el

ay
(d

3)
, s

/v
eh

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

0.
0

%
ile

 B
ac

kO
fQ

(5
0%

),v
eh

/ln
0.

4
0.

0
18

.9
0.

2
0.

0
18

.3
3.

2
0.

0
0.

0
7.

5
0.

0
0.

0
U

ns
ig

. M
ov

em
en

t D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

Ln
G

rp
 D

el
ay

(d
), 

s/
ve

h
19

.8
0.

0
38

.3
19

.4
0.

0
38

.9
26

.3
0.

0
0.

0
36

.9
0.

0
0.

0
Ln

G
rp

 L
O

S
B

D
B

D
C

D
Ap

pr
oa

ch
 V

ol
, v

eh
/h

94
2

88
0

18
8

34
9

Ap
pr

oa
ch

 D
el

ay
, s

/v
eh

37
.3

38
.3

26
.3

36
.9

Ap
pr

oa
ch

 L
O

S
D

D
C

D

Ti
m

er
 - 

As
si

gn
ed

 P
hs

2
3

4
6

7
8

Ph
s 

D
ur

at
io

n 
(G

+Y
+R

c)
, s

30
.0

6.
8

49
.6

30
.0

7.
9

48
.5

C
ha

ng
e 

Pe
rio

d 
(Y

+R
c)

, s
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
4.

5
M

ax
 G

re
en

 S
et

tin
g 

(G
m

ax
), 

s
25

.5
5.

1
45

.9
25

.5
5.

1
45

.9
M

ax
 Q

 C
le

ar
 T

im
e 

(g
_c

+I
1)

, s
10

.3
2.

6
42

.9
21

.5
3.

1
42

.0
G

re
en

 E
xt

 T
im

e 
(p

_c
), 

s
0.

9
0.

0
1.

7
0.

8
0.

0
2.

0

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

Su
m

m
ar

y
H

C
M

 7
th

 C
on

tro
l D

el
ay

, s
/v

eh
36

.7
H

C
M

 7
th

 L
O

S
D


